
Loudon County CoDlDlission 
Loudon, Tennessee 

Monday, April 5, 2021 

Courthouse Annex 

6:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 

Public Hearing 

COUNTY FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE LOUDON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE REGIONAL ZONING RESOLUTION REGULATING DEVELOPMENT WITHIN 

THE JURISDICTION OF LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, TO MINIMIZE DANGER TO 
LIFE AND PROPERTY DUE TO FLOODING, AND TO MAINTAIN ELIGIBILITY FOR 

PARTICIPATION IN THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM. 

1. Opening of Meeting, Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States, Invocation 

2. Roll Call 

3. Adoption of the April 5, 2021 Loudon County Commission Agenda 

4 . Reading and Acceptance of the March 1, 2021 Loudon County Commission Meeting Minutes 

5. General Public Comments 

6. Loudon County Codes Enforcement Director - Jim Jenkins 

A. COUN1Y FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE LOUDON 
COUN1Y, TENNESSEE REGIONAL ZONING RESOLUTION REGULATING 
DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE JURISDICTION OF LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, 
TO MINIMIZE DANGER TO LIFE AND PROPERTY DUE TO FLOODING, AND TO 
MAINTAIN ELIGIBILITY FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE NATIONAL FLOOD 
INSURANCE PROGRAM. 

1 



7. Mayor Buddy Bradshaw 

A Fort Loudon Medical Center and Transaction Related to the Expansion of the Facility 

B. TOSHA Resolution for Updated Safety and Health Plan 

8. Property Assessor - Mike Campbell 

A Presentation to Departmental Update Regarding 2021 Reappraisal (informational Update 
Only) 

9. Director of Accounts and Budgets - Tracy Blair 

A Consideration ofrecommendation to approve application/acceptance of the 
following grants, no matching funds required: 

A. $5,ooo High Visibility Grant (THSO) 
B. $30,000 Impaired Driving Grant (THSO) 
C. $30,000 Police Traffic Grant (THSO) 
D. $49,100 Litter Grant (TDOT) 

B. Consideration of recommendation to approve A Resolution Authorizing the 
Issuance of Rural School Refunding Bonds in the Aggregate Principal Amount of 
Approximately $7,550,000 

C. Consideration of recommendation to approve Statutory Bond for Director of 
Accounts & Budgets 

D. Consideration of recommendation to approve amendments in the following 
funds: 

A. County General Fund 101 
B. Public Libraries Fund 115 
C. Highway Department Fund 131 
D. General Capital Projects Fund 171 

E. Statutory Bond 

A. Tracy Blair 

F. Distribution of monthly reports 

10. Commissioner David Meers 

A. Bonds and Notaries 

Darlene Alexander, Cinda G. Bivens, Cassie Boring, Karen J. Churchwell, Cindy 
Cornelius, Melanie Crowder, Janet Jones, Dana L. Kelley, Debbie Kirpec, Dawn 
Mackey- Wilson, Michael W. McBroon, Allison H. McConkey, Clarence W. Minor, 
Tina Parris, Joel E. Pearman, Adam Strachn, Ashley N. Vandyke, Rebecca 
Wallace 

11. Adjournment 

2 



Loudon County Commission 

March 1, 2021 

County Commission Meeting Minutes 

(For Approval) 



(1) Public Hearing 

(2) Opening of 
Meeting 

(3) Roll Call 

(4) Agenda Adoption 

(5) Minutes 
Approval 

(6) General Public 
Comments 

LOUDON COUNTY COMMISSION 
LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

Monday, March 1, 2021 

Courthouse Annex Building DRAFT COPY 
6P.M. 

Not Approved 

REGULAR COMMISSION MINUTES 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF LOUDON COUNTY. TENNESSEE, 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER SEVEN, §13-7-105 OF THE TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, TO 
REZONE APPROXIMATELY 2.83 ACRES FROM M-1, GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT TO 
A-1 AGRICULTURE-FORESTRY DISTRICT CORPORATE PARK DR., TAX MAP 032, PARCELS 
003.00, SITUATED IN THE 4th LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF LOUDON COUNTY TENNESSEE, 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER SEVEN, §13-7-105 OF THE TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, 
TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 38.1 ACRES FROM A-2, RURAL RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT TO A-1, AGRICULTURE-FORESTRY DISTRICT WITH T-1 OVERLAY, 
LOUDON COUNTY TAX MAP 056, PARCEL 181.00 LOCATED AT 5378 STEEKEE CREEK 
RD., LOUDON COUNTY, TN, SITUATED IN THE 4th LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF LOUDON COUNTY. TENNESSEE, 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER SEVEN, §13-7-105 OF THE TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, 
TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY i.1 ACRES FROM C-1, GENERAL COMMERCIAL 
DISTRICT TO R-1, RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, LOUDON COUNTY TAX MAP 065, 
PARCEL 02i.oo LOCATED AT 181 LEE HWY., LOUDON COUNTY, TN, SITUATED IN 
THE 4 th LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT 

BE IT REMEMBERED that the Board of Commissioners of Loudon County convened in regular 
session in Loudon, Tennessee on the 151 day of March 2021. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm. 

Commissioner Julia Hurley opened the County Commission Meeting by leading the Pledge 
of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and then gave the invocation. 

Upon Roll Call, the following commissioners were present: Kelly Brewster, David Meers, 
Julia Hurley, Matthew Tinker, Bill Satterfield, Gary Whitfield, Henry Cullen, 
Harold Duff, Van Shaver, Adam Waller (10) 

Also present was the Honorable Mayor Buddy Bradshaw, Director of Accounts and 
Budgets, Tracy Blair and Chief Deputy Clerk, Tammie Wampler. 

Commission Chairman Cullen requested that the March 1, 2021 Agenda be adopted. 
Mayor Bradshaw requested that the TCCA resolution Commissioner Hurley is presenting 
needs to be added to the agenda and voted on. Also, Director of Accounts and Budgets 
Tracy Blair requested that the Pettway Grant/ Greenback be added to the agenda as well. 
Commissioner Shaver made a motion to approve the agenda with the additions requested 
and Commissioner Brewster seconded the motion. 

Upon Voice Vote, the motion PASSED unanimously. 

Commission Chairman Cullen requested that the February 1, 2021 minutes be accepted. 
Commissioner Shaver made a motion to accept the minutes as written. Commissioner 
Whitfield seconded the motion. 

Upon Voice Vote, the motion PASSED unanimously. 

Commission Chairman Cullen opened the floor for the General Public Comments. The 
following people spoke: 

1) Tim Amos - Adjoining property owner - opposes cell tower 
2) Ben Mullins - US Cellular Attorney 
3) Shamaur Myrick - Cell Tower Engineer 
4) Robert "Wayne" Hinds - Property owner of the land the cell tower may be placed on 



(7) Re-Zone 2.83 
Acres from M-1 
General 
Industrial 
District to A-1 
Agriculture 
Forest District 
Corporate Park 
Dr. I 4'" 
Legislative 
District 

(8) Re-Zone 38.0 
Acres from A-2 
Rural Residential 
District to A-1 
Agriculture 
Forestry District 
with T-1 Overlay 
/ 5378 Stcekee 
Creek Road/ 4'" 
Legislative 
District 
(TABLED6o 
Days) 

(9) Re-Zone 1.1 

Acres from C-1 
General 
Commercial 
District to R-1 
Residential/ 181 
Lee Hwy/ 4'" 
Legislative 
District 

(10) Old High School 

(11) 4'" Year Clean 
Audit 

(12) Update -
Regarding 

Loudon County Con1mission Meeting MinutcsJ Monday, March 1, 2021 

Commission Chairman Cullen called back to the floor Loudon County Planning and 
Codes Director - Jim Jenkins regarding the zoning request that were read at the public 
hearing at the beginning of the meeting. 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF LOUDON COUN1Y. TENNESSEE, 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER SEVEN, §13-7-105 OF THE TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, 
TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 2.83 ACRES FROM M-1, GENERAL INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT TO A-1 AGRICULTURE-FORESTRY DISTRICT CORPORATE PARK DR., TAX 
MAP 032, PARCELS 003.00, SITUATED IN THE 4th LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT 

Commissioner Whitfield made a motion to approve the zoning resolution request and 
Commissioner Meers seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 
Meers, Hurley, Tinker, Satterfield, Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, Shaver, Waller, 
Brewster (10) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (o) 

The motion PASSED. (10/0) RESOLUTION 030121-A 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF LOUDON COUNTY TENNESSEE, 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER SEVEN, §13-7-105 OF THE TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, 
TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 38.1 ACRES FROM A-2, RURAL RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT TO A-1, AGRICULTURE-FORESTRY DISTRICT WITH T-1 OVERLAY, 
LOUDON COUNTY TAX MAP 056, PARCEL 18i.oo LOCATED AT 5378 STEEKEE CREEK 
RD., LOUDON COUNTY, TN, SITUATED IN THE 4th LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT 

Commissioner Whitfield made a motion to table the zoning item request for 60 days 
and Commissioner Brewster seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 
Hurley, Tinker, Satterfield, Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, Shaver, Waller, Brewster, 
Meers (10) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (o) 

The motion is TABLED for 60 days. (10/0) RESOLUTION 030121-B 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF LOUDON COUNTY TENNESSEE, 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER SEVEN, §13-7-105 OF THE TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED, 
TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 1.1 ACRES FROM C-1, GENERAL COMMERCIAL 
DISTRICT TO R-1, RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, LOUDON COUNTY TAX MAP 065, 
PARCEL 02i.oo LOCATED AT 181 LEE HWY., LOUDON COUNTY, TN, SITUATED IN 
THE 4th LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT 

Commissioner Whitfield made a motion to approve the zoning resolution request and 
Commissioner Brewster seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 
Tinker, Satterfield, Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, Shaver, Waller, Brewster, Meers, 
Hurley(10) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (o) 

The motion PASSED. (10/0) RESOLUTION 030121-C 

Mayor Bradshaw asked commission if there was any interest in the old high school. After 
a few moments of discussion, it was brought to the commission's attention that it is 
currently under contract. 

Mayor Bradshaw informed commission that Loudon County has received its fourth 
consecutive clean audit. Mayor Bradshaw stated it was an incredible job by all employees 
who handle a nickel within the county. 

Mayor Bradshaw had a couple of updates as well - the first one is the Transition Center that 
several other surrounding counties (Monroe, Blount, Loudon, Sevier and Knox County) are 
looking to increase workforce development and keep first time offenders and recovering addicts 

o out of jail. Governor Lee has taken great interest in this as it could become a statewide 

2 



(13) Update - Federal 
Grant - State / 
Loeal Corona 
Virus Fiscal 
Recovery Funds 

(14) Congratulations 
to Commissioner 
Brewster 

(15) Resolution -
Meat Processing 
Training / 
Tennessee 
College of 
Applied 
Technology 

(16) Resolution -
Drug Dealer 
Liability Lawsuit 

(17) Resolution -
Interlocal 
Agreement 
LCEDA - lease 
property 

(18) Resolution -
Sale of a lot in 
Center 75 
Business Park/ 
Drive-In Theatre 

Loudon County Con1ntission Meeting Minutes, Monday, March 1, 2021 

project with oversight by local agencies. Mayor Bradshaw, Sheriffs office representative, 
District Attorney Russell Johnson are part of the advisory committee. 

Mayor Bradshaw presented to commission the second update regarding the Federal 
Grant - State/ Local Corona Virus Fiscal Recovery Funds. This grant is for 10.5 million and 
does have stipulations. It was stated that it could not be used for recurring expense. It was 
to be used for one-time expenses. Mayor Bradshaw is checking to see if this can be used 
to retire old debt. The stipulations are currently being reviewed. 

Mayor Bradshaw expressed his congratulations to Commissioner Brewster for her 
two years of service as the chair for the Loudon County Republican Party. 

Commissioner Hurley presented information to commission regarding a resolution that 
was presented at the TCCA meeting regarding meat processing. Commissioner Hurley 
stated that the Chairman of the Ag Committee and the Chairman of the Cattleman 
Association of Tennessee represent and request the resolution move forward . 
Commissioner Hurley also stated that counties across the state are supporting this 
resolution and ask that Loudon County do so as well. The resolution request that state 
officials add meat processing training to Tennessee College of Applied Technology 
curriculum. Commissioner Hurley made a motion to write the resolution and and send 
it to our State Representatives and State Senate. Commissioner Waller seconded the 
motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a voice vote. 

Upon Voice Vote, the motion PASSED unanimously. RESOLUTION 010121-D 

Commission Chairman Cullen presented to commission the resolution for supporting 
the Drug Dealer Liability Act Lawsuit. Attorney Bob Bowman and District Attorney 
Russell Johnson requested Loudon County to go along with other counties who are suing 
big pharma companies. Commissioner Shaver made a motion to approve the resolution 
and Commission Satterfield seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Voice Vote. 

Upon Voice Vote, the motion PASSED unanimously. RESOLUTION 010121-H 

Economic Development Director, Jack Qualls presented to commission the 
following resolutions: 

A Resolution - Loudon, County, Tennessee Amending the interlocal agreement governing 
LCEDA to permit the lease of property. This would enable the lease of property in Centre 75 
which would facilitate the transaction allowing for a drive-in theatre. 

Commissioner Meers made a motion to accept the resolution and Commissioner 
Satterfield seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 

Satterfield, Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, Waller, Brewster, Meers, Hurley, Tinker 
(9) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (1) 
Shaver 

The motion PASSED. (9/1) EXHIBIT 010121-E 

A Resolution - Loudon, County, Tennessee approving the sale of a lot in Centre 75 Business Park 
which would facilitate the transaction allowing for a drive-in-theatre. The leased lot(s) are 
directly behind (south of) the Good Fellas store. 

Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to accept the resolution and Commissioner 
Meers seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 
Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, Waller, Brewster, Meers, Hurley, Tinker, Satterfield 
(9) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (1) 
Shaver 

3 



(19) Resolution -
Sale of a lot in 
Center75 
Business (East 
of Good Fellas 
Store) 

(20) Action Item 
- Center 75 
Business Park/ 
lighting repairs 

(21) Action Item 
-Grant 
Application for 
funding road 
improvements in 
Centre 75 
Business 

(22) Loudon 
County Re
Appraisal Plan/ 
5Year 

Loudon County Commission Meeting Minutes, Monday, March 1, 2021 

The motion PASSED. (9/1) EXHIBIT 030121-F 

A Resolution - Loudon, County, Tennessee approving the sale of a lot in Centre 75 Business Park 
for commercial development. The lot location is beside (east) of Good Fellas store. 

Commissioner Brewster made a motion to accept the resolution and Commissioner 
Meers seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 
Cullen, Duff, Shaver, Waller, Brewster, Meers, Hurley, Tinker, Satterfield, 
Whitfield (10) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (o) 

The motion PASSED. (10/0) EXHIBIT 030121-G 

Action Item - Loudon County, Tennessee requesting Loudon County as fiscal agent to allocate 
funds to support of Centre 75 Business Park lighting repairs. 

Commissioner Brewster made a motion to accept the resolution and Commissioner 
Hurley seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 
Duff, Shaver, Waller, Brewster, Meers, Hurley, Tinker, Satterfield, Whitfield, 
Cullen(10) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (o) 

The motion PASSED. (10/0) 

Action Item - Loudon, County, Tennessee approving a grant application for the funding of 
certain road improvements in the Centre 75 Business. 

Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to accept the resolution and Commissioner 
Brewster seconded the motion. 

Commission Chariman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 
Shaver, Waller, Brewster, Meers, Hurley, Tinker, Satterfield, Whitfield, 
Cullen, Duff (10) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (o) 

The motion PASSED. (10/0) EXHIBIT 030121-I 

Property Assessor Mike Campbell presented to commission the Loudon County 
Re-appraisal Plan. Cs year vs . Current 4 year) 

Commissioner Brewster made a motion to accept the re-appraisal plan. 
Commissioner Tinker seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 
Waller, Brewster, Meers, Hurley, Tinker, Satterfield, Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, 
Shaver (10) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (o) 

The motion PASSED. (10/0) EXHIBIT 030121-J /RESOLUTION 030121-K 

4 



(23) $ 17,000 
Homeland 
Security Grant/ 
No Matching 
Funds 

(24) Pettway 
Grant - Loudon 
County Libraries 
(Lenoir City, 
Philadelphia, 
Loudon, 
Greenback) 

(25) Budget 
Amendments -
Funds 101, u6, 
119, 122, 141, 

142, 171 

(26) Monthly 
Reports 

Loudon County Con1mission Meeting Minutes, Monday, March 1, 2021 

Director of Accounts and Budgets Tracy Blair presented to commission the 
recommendation to approve application/ acceptance of$ 17,000 Homeland Security 
Grant; no matching funds. 

Commissioner Shaver made a motion to accept the recommendation . Commissioner 
Satterfield seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 
Brewster, Meers, Hurley, Tinker, Satterfield, Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, Shaver, 
Waller (10)The following commissioners voted NAY: (o) 

The motion PASSED. (10/0) 

Director of Accounts and Budgets Tracy Blair presented to commission the 
recommendation to approve application/ acceptance of the Pettway Grant for Loudon County 
Libraries as follows; no matching funds. 

A. Lenoir City $ 3,000 
B. Philadelphia $ 4,200 
C. Loudon $ 3,400 
D. Greenback Library $ 2000 

Commissioner Satterfield made a motion to accept the recommendation. 
Commissioner Shaver seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 
Meers, Hurley, Tinker, Satterfield, Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, Shaver, Waller, 
Brewster (10) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (o) 

The motion PASSED. (10/0) 

Director of Accounts and Budgets Tracy Blair presented to commission the 
recommendation to approve amendments in the following funds : 

A. County General Fund 101 EXHIBIT 030121-L 
B. Recycling Centers Fund 116 EXHIBIT 030121-M 
C. Centre 75 Fund 119 EXHIBIT 030121-N 
D. Drug Fund 122 EXHIBIT 030121-0 
E. General Purpose School Fund 141 EXHIBIT 030121-P 
F. School Federal Projects Fund 142 EXHIBIT 030121-0 
G. General Capital Projects Fund 171 EXHIBIT 030121-R 

Commissioner Brewster made a motion to accept the recommendations for items A- G. 
Commissioner Shaver seconded the motion. 

Commission Chairman Cullen called for a Roll Call Vote. 

The following commissioners voted AYE: 

Brewster, Meers, Hurley, Tinker, Satterfield, Whitfield, Cullen, Duff, Shaver, 
Waller(10) 

The following commissioners voted NAY: (o) 

NOTE: Before giving his vote, Commissioner Tinker gave his Conflict of Interest 
Statement. 

The motion PASSED. (10/0) 

Director of Accounts and Budgets, Tracy Blair, requested that the record reflect that prior 
to the meeting the following report was distributed: 

1) Summary Financial Statement EXHIBIT 030121-S 

5 



(27) Bonds& 
Notaries 

(28) 
Adjourn 

Loudon County Comntission Meeting Minutes, Monday, March 1, 2021 

Commissioner Meers made a motion that was seconded by Commissioner Shaver to 
approve the following Notaries: 

Marla Foster, Kristi D. Guider, Robert Hinton, Kellie Niles, Patricia 
Ouderkirk, Loren E. Plemmons, Lisa Russell, Michelle Stone, Susan 
Suafoa-Dinino, Brian Sumpton, G. Paige Tramell, Kimberlee A. 
Waterhouse, Cheryl Lynette Wright 

EXHIBIT 030121-T 

There being no further business a motion being duly made by Commissioner Shaver and 
seconded by Commissioner Waller, the March I", 2021 County Commission was adjourned 
at 7:35 pm. 

Loudon County Commission Chairman 
ATTEST: 

Loudon County Clerk 

Loudon County Mayor 

6 



Loudon County Commission 

County Flood Damage Prevention 
Resolution 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE LOUDON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE REGIONAL ZONING RESOLUTION REGULATING DEVELOPMENT WITHIN 

THE JURISDICTION OF LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, TO MINIMIZE DANGER TO 
LIFE AND PROPERTY DUE TO FLOODING, AND TO MAINTAIN ELIGIBILITY FOR 

PARTICIPATION IN THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM. 



RESOLUTION NO. -----

COUNTY FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE LOUDON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE REGIONAL ZONING RESOLUTION REGULATING 
DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE JURISDICTION OF LOUDON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, TO MINIMIZE DANGER TO LIFE AND PROPERTY DUE TO 
FLOODING, AND TO MAINTAIN ELIGIBILITY FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE 
NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM. 

ARTICLE I. STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, PURPOSE AND 
OBJECTIVES 

Section A. Statutory Authorization 

The Legislature of the State of Tennessee has in Sections 13-7-101through13-7-115, Tennessee 
Code Annotated delegated the responsibility to the county legislative body to adopt regulations 
designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry. Therefore, the 
Loudon County, Tennessee, Mayor and County Commission, do resolve as follows: 

Section B. 

1. 

2. 

.., 

.) . 

Section C. 

Findings of Fact 

The Loudon County, Tennessee, Mayor and its Legislative Body wish to maintain 
eligibility in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and in order to do so 
must meet the NFIP regulations found in Title 44 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR), Ch. 1, Section 60.3. 

Areas of Loudon County, Tennessee are subject to periodic inundation which 
could result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of 
commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood 
protection and relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect 
the public health, safety and general welfare. 

Flood losses are caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in floodplains, 
causing increases in flood heights and velocities; by uses in flood hazard areas 
which are vulnerable to floods; or construction which is inadequately elevated, 
floodproofed, or otherwise unprotected from flood damages. 

Statement of Purpose 

It is the purpose of this Resolution to promote the public health, safety and general welfare and 
to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions in specific areas. This Resolution 
is designed to: 

1. Restrict or prohibit uses which are vulnerable to flooding or erosion hazards, or 
which result in damaging increases in erosion, flood heights, or velocities; 



2. 

,.., 
_). 

4. 

5. 

Section D. 

Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including community facilities, be 
protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction; 

Control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural 
protective barriers which are involved in the accommodation of floodwaters; 

Control filling, grading, dredging and other development which may increase 
flood damage or erosion; 

Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert 
flood waters or which may increase flood hazards to other lands. 

Objectives 

The objectives of this Resolution are: 

1. To protect human life, health, safety and property; 

2. To minimize expenditure of public funds for costly flood control projects; 

3. To minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and 
generally undertaken at the expense of the general public; 

4. To minimize prolonged business interruptions; 

5. To minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and gas mains, 
electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets and bridges located in floodprone 
areas; 

6. To help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and 
development of floodprone areas to minimize blight in flood areas; 

7. To ensure that potential homebuyers are notified that property is in a floodprone 
area; 

8. To maintain eligibility for participation in the NFIP. 

ARTICLE II. DEFINITIONS 

Unless specifically defined below, words or plu·ases used in this Resolution shall be interpreted 
as to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this Resolution its most 
reasonable application given its stated purpose and objectives. 

"Accessory Structure" means a subordinate structure to the principal structure on the same lot 
and, for the purpose of this Resolution, shall conform to the following: 

1. Accessory structures shall only be used for parking of vehicles and storage. 

2. Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood damage potential. 

3. Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as to 
offer the minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters. 

2 



4. Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and 
lateral movement, which otherwise may result in damage to other structures. 

5. Utilities and service facilities such as electrical and heating equipment shall be 
elevated or otherwise protected from intrusion of floodwaters. 

"Addition (to an existing building)" means any walled and roofed expansion to the perimeter 
or height of a building. 

"Appeal" means a request for a review of the local enforcement officer's interpretation of any 
provision of this Resolution or a request for a variance. 

"Area of Shallow Flooding" means a designated AO or AH Zone on a community's Flood 
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with one percent or greater annual chance of flooding to an average 
depth of one to three feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where the path of 
flooding is unpredictable and indeterminate; and where velocity flow may be evident. Such 
flooding is characterized by ponding or sheet flow. 

"Area of Special Flood-related Erosion Hazard" is the land within a community which is 
most likely to be subject to severe flood-related erosion losses. The area may be designated as 
Zone E on the Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM). After the detailed evaluation of the special 
flood-related erosion hazard area in preparation for publication of the FIRM, Zone E may be 
further refined. 

"Area of Special Flood Hazard" see "Special Flood Hazard Area". 

"Base Flood" means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any 
given year. This term is also referred to as the 100-year flood or the one (1 )-percent annual 
chance flood. 

"Basement" means any portion of a building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on 
all sides. 

"Building" see "Structure". 

"Development" means any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, 
but not limited to, buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, 
excavating, drilling operations, or storage of equipment or materials . 

"Elevated Building" means a non-basement building built to have the lowest floor of the lowest 
enclosed area elevated above the ground level by means of solid foundation perimeter walls with 
openings sufficient to facilitate the unimpeded movement of floodwater, pilings, columns, piers, 
or shear walls adequately anchored so as not to impair the structural integrity of the building 
during a base flood event. 

"Emergency Flood Insurance Program" or "Emergency Program" means the program as 
implemented on an emergency basis in accordance with Section 1336 of the Act. It is intended 
as a program to provide a first layer amount of insurance on all insurable structures before the 
effective date of the initial FIRM. 

"Erosion" means the process of the gradual wearing away of land masses. This peril is not 
"per se" covered under the Program. 

3 



"Exception" means a waiver from the provisions of this Resolution which relieves the applicant 
from the requirements of a rule, regulation, order or other determination made or issued pursuant 
to this Resolution. 

"Existing Construction" means any structure for which the "start of construction" commenced 
before the effective date of the initial floodplain management code or resolution adopted by the 
community as a basis for that community's participation in the NFIP. 

"Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision" means a manufactured home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
manufactured homes are to be affixed (including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the 
construction of streets, final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the 
effective date of the first floodplain management Qode or resolution adopted by the community 
as a basis for that community's participation in the NFIP. 

"Existing Structures" see "Existing Construction". 

"Expansion to an Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision" means the preparation 
of additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
manufactured homes are to be affixed (including the installation of utilities, the construction of 
streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). 

"Flood" or "Flooding" 
(a) A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land 
areas from: 

1. The overflow of inland or tidal waters. 

2. The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source. 

3. Mudslides (i.e., mudflows) which are proximately caused by flooding as defined 
in paragraph (a)(2) of this definition and are akin to a river of liquid and flowing 
mud on the surfaces of normally dry land areas, as when earth is carried by a 
current of water and deposited along the path of the current. 

(b) The collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or other body of water as a result 
of erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding anticipated cyclical 
levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water level in a natural body of water, 
accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of nature, such as flash flood or an 
abnormal tidal surge, or by some similarly unusual and unforeseeable event which results in 
flooding as defined in paragraph (a)( 1) of this definition. 

"Flood Elevation Determination" means a determination by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) of the water surface elevations of the base flood, that is, the flood 
level that has a one percent or greater chance of occurrence in any given year. 

"Flood Elevation Study" means an examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards 
and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations, or an examination, evaluation and 
determination of mudslide (i .e., mudflow) or flood-related erosion hazards. 

"Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM)" means an official map of a community, issued by 
FEMA, where the boundaries of areas of special flood hazard have been designated as Zone A. 

4 



"Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM)" means an official map of a community, issued by 
FEMA, delineating the areas of special flood hazard or the risk premium zones applicable to the 
community. 

"Flood Insurance Study" is the official report provided by FEMA, evaluating flood hazards 
and containing flood profiles and water surface elevation of the base flood. 

"Floodplain" or "Floodprone Area" means any land area susceptible to being inundated by 
water from any source (see definition of "flooding"). 

"Floodplain Management" means the operation of an overall program of corrective and 
preventive measures for reducing flood damage, including but not limited to emergency 
preparedness plans, flood control works and floodplain management regulations. 

"Flood Protection System" means those physical structural works for which funds have been 
authorized, appropriated, and expended and which have been constructed specifically to modify 
flooding in order to reduce the extent of the area within a community subject to a "special flood 
hazard" and the extent of the depths of associated flooding. Such a system typically includes 
hurricane tidal barriers, dams, reservoirs, levees or dikes. These specialized flood modifying 
works are those constructed in conformance with sound engineering standards. 

"Floodproofing" means any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or 
adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real 
property, water and sanitary facilities and structures and their contents. 

"Flood-related Erosion" means the collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or 
other body of water as a result of undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding 
anticipated cyclical levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water level in a natural body 
of water, accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of nature, such as a flash 
flood , or by some similarly unusual and unforeseeable event which results in flooding. 

"Flood-related Erosion Area" or "Flood-related Erosion Prone Area" means a land area 
adjoining the shore of a lake or other body of water, which due to the composition of the 
shoreline or bank and high water levels or wind-driven currents, is likely to suffer flood-related 
erosion damage. 

"Flood-related Erosion Area Management" means the operation of an overall program of 
corrective and preventive measures for reducing flood-related erosion damage, including but not 
limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood-related erosion control works and floodplain 
management regulations . 

"Floodway" means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that 
must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water 
surface elevation more than a designated height. 

"Freeboard" means a factor of safety usually expressed in feet above a flood level for purposes 
of floodplain management. "Freeboard" tends to compensate for the many unknown factors that 
could contribute to flood heights greater than the height calculated for a selected size flood and 
floodway conditions, such as wave action, blockage of bridge or culvert openings, and the 
hydrological effect of urbanization of the watershed. 

"Functionally Dependent Use" means a use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless 
it is located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities, 
port facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship 

5 



building and ship repair facilities, but does not include long-term storage or related 
manufacturing facilities. 

"Highest Adjacent Grade" means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface, prior to 
construction, adjacent to the proposed walls of a structure. 

"Historic Structure" means any structure that is : 

1. Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing 
maintained by the U.S . Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the 
Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the 
National Register; 

2. Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as 
contributing to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a 
district preliminarily determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered 
historic district; 

3. Individually listed on the Tennessee inventory of historic places and determined 
as eligible by states with historic preservation programs which have been 
approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or 

4. Individually listed on the Loudon County, Tennessee inventory of historic places 
and determined as eligible by communities with historic preservation programs 
that have been certified either: 

a. By the approved Tennessee program as determined by the Secretary of the 
Interior or 

b. Directly by the Secretary of the Interior. 

"Levee" means a man-made structure, usually an earthen embankment, designed and 
constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices to contain, control or divert the flow 
of water so as to provide protection from temporary flooding. 

"Levee System" means a flood protection system which consists of a levee, or levees, and 
associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, which are constructed and operated 
in accordance with sound engineering practices. 

"Lowest Floor" means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including a basement. An 
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure used solely for parking of vehicles, building access or 
storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building's lowest floor; 
provided, that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the 
applicable non-elevation design requirements of this Resolution. 

"Manufactured Home" means a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built 
on a permanent chassis and designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when 
attached to the required utilities. The term "Manufactured Home" does not include a 
"Recreational Vehicle". 

"Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision" means a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land 
divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale. 

6 



"Map" means the Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM) or the Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) for a community issued by FEMA. 

"Mean Sea Level" means the average height of the sea for all stages of the tide. It is used as a 
reference for establishing various elevations within the floodplain. For the purposes of this 
Resolution, the term is synonymous with the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 
1929, the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988, or other datum, to which Base 
Flood Elevations shown on a community's Flood Insurance Rate Map are referenced. 

"National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD)" means, as corrected in 1929, a vertical control 
used as a reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain. 

"New Construction" means any structure for which the "start of construction" commenced on 
or after the effective date of the initial floodplain management Resolution and includes any 
subsequent improvements to such structure. 

"New Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision" means a manufactured home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the 
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed 
on or after the effective date of this resolution or the effective date of the initial floodplain 
management resolution and includes any subsequent improvements to such structure. 

"North American Vertical Datum (NAVD)" means, as corrected in 1988, a vertical control 
used as a reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain. 

"100-year Flood" see "Base Flood". 

"Person" includes any individual or group of individuals, corporation, partnership, association, 
or any other entity, including State and local governments and agencies. 

"Reasonably Safe from Flooding" means base flood waters will not inundate the land or 
damage structures to be removed from the Special Flood Hazard Area and that any subsurface 
waters related to the base flood will not damage existing or proposed structures. 

"Recreational Vehicle" means a vehicle which is: 

1. Built on a single chassis; 

2. 400 square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection; 

3. Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck; 

4. Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living 
quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

"Regulatory Floodway" means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent 
land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively 
increasing the water surface elevation more than a designated height. 

"Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation" means the "Base Flood Elevation" plus the 
"Freeboard". In "Special Flood Hazard Areas" where Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) have been 
determined, this elevation shall be the BFE plus 1 foot. In "Special Flood Hazard Areas" where 

7 



no BFE has been established, this elevation shall be at least three (3) feet above the highest 
adjacent grade. 

"Riverine" means relating to, formed by, or resembling a river (including tributaries), stream, 
brook, etc. 

"Special Flood Hazard Area" is the land in the floodplain within a community subject to a one 
percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. The area may be designated as Zone A 
on the FHBM. After detailed ratemaking has been completed in preparation for publication of 
the FIRM, Zone A usually is refined into Zones A, AO, AH, Al-30, AE or A99. 

"Special Hazard Area" means an area having special flood, mudslide (i.e., mudflow) and/or 
flood-related erosion hazards, and shown on an FHBM or FIRM as Zone A, AO, Al-30, AE, 
A99, or AH. 

"Start of Construction" includes substantial improvement, and means the date the building 
permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, 
addition, placement, or other improvement was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual 
start means either the first placement of permanent construction of a structure (including a 
manufactured home) on a site, such as the pouring of slabs or footings, the installation of piles, 
the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; and includes the 
placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include 
initial land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it include the installation 
of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or 
foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the installation on the 
property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds, not occupied as dwelling units or not 
part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means 
the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not 
that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building. 

"State Coordinating Agency" the Tennessee Emergency Management Agency, State NFIP 
Office, as designated by the Governor of the State of Tennessee at the request of FEMA to assist 
in the implementation of the NFIP for the State. 

"Structure" for purposes of this Resolution, means a walled and roofed building, including a 
gas or liquid storage tank, that is principally above ground, as well as a manufactured home. 

"Substantial Damage" means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost 
of restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed fifty percent 
(50%) of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred. 

"Substantial Improvement" means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, alteration or 
other improvement of a structure in which the cost equals or exceeds fifty percent (50%) of the 
market value of the structure before the "start of construction" of the initial improvement. This 
term includes structures which have incurred "substantial damage", regardless of the actual repair 
work performed. The market value of the structure should be (1) the appraised value of the 
structure prior to the start of the initial improvement, or (2) in the case of substantial damage, the 
value of the structure prior to the damage occurring. 

The term does not, however, include either: (1) Any project for improvement of a structure to 
correct existing violations of State or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which 
have been pre-identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum 
necessary to assure safe living conditions and not solely triggered by an improvement or repair 

8 



project or; (2) Any alteration of a "historic structure", provided that the alteration will not 
preclude the structure's continued designation as a "historic structure". 

"Substantially Improved Existing Manufactured Home Parks or Subdivisions" is where the 
repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation or improvement of the streets, utilities and pads equals or 
exceeds fifty percent (50%) of the value of the streets, utilities and pads before the repair, 
reconstruction or improvement commenced. 

"Variance" is a grant of relief from the requirements of this Resolution. 

"Violation" means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 
community's floodplain management regulations. A structure or other development without the 
elevation certificate, other certification, or other evidence of compliance required in this 
Resolution is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided. 

"Water Surface Elevation" means the height, in relation to the National Geodetic Vertical 
Datum (NGVD) of 1929, the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988, or other datum, 
where specified, of floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in the floodplains of riverine 
areas. 

ARTICLE III. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section A. Application 

This Resolution shall apply to all areas within the unincorporated area of Loudon County, 
Tennessee. 

Section B. Basis for Establishing the Areas of Special Flood Hazard 

The Areas of Special Flood Hazard identified on the Loudon County, Tennessee, as identified by 
FEMA, and in its Flood Insurance Study (FIS) dated May 16, 2007 and Flood Insurance Rate 
Map (FIRM), Community Panel Numbers 47105C0025D, 47105C0075D, 47105C0083D, 
47105C0084D,47105C0089D,47105C0092D,47105C0093D,47105C0094D,47105C0100D, 
47105C0111D, 47105C0125D, 47105C0150D, 47105C0157D, 47105C0159D, 47105C0166D, 
47105C0167D, 47105C0175D, 47105C0176D, 47105C0177D, 47105C0178D, 47105C0181D, 
47105C0200D, 47105C0225D, and 47105C0300D, dated May 16, 2007, along with all 
supporting technical data, are adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this Resolution. 

Section C. Requirement for Development Permit 

A development permit shall be required in conformity with this Resolution pnor to the 
commencement of any development activities. 

Section D. Compliance 

No land, structure or use shall hereafter be located, extended, converted or structurally altered 
without full compliance with the terms of this Resolution and other applicable regulations. 

Section E. Abrogation and Greater Restrictions 

9 



This Resolution is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing easements, covenants 
or deed restrictions. However, where this Resolution conflicts or overlaps with another 
regulatory instrument, whichever imposes the more stringent restrictions shall prevail. 

Section F. Interpretation 

In the interpretation and application of this Resolution, all provisions shall be: (1) considered as 
minimum requirements; (2) liberally construed in favor of the governing body and; (3) deemed 
neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under Tennessee statutes. 

Section G. Warning and Disclaimer of Liability 

The degree of flood protection required by this Resolution is considered reasonable for 
regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can 
and will occur on rare occasions. Flood heights may be increased by man-made or natural 
causes. This Resolution does not imply that land outside the Areas of Special Flood Hazard or 
uses permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or flood damages. This Resolution 
shall not create liability on the part of Loudon County, Tennessee or by any officer or employee 
thereof for any flood damages that result from reliance on this Resolution or any administrative 
decision lawfully made hereunder. 

Section H. Penalties for Violation 

Violation of the provisions of this Resolution or failure to comply with any of its requirements, 
including violation of conditions and safeguards established in connection with grants of 
variance shall constitute a misdemeanor punishable as other misdemeanors as provided by law. 
Any person who violates this resolution or fails to comply with any of its requirements shall, 
upon adjudication therefore, be fined as prescribed by Tennessee statutes, and in addition, shall 
pay all costs and expenses involved in the case. Each day such violation continues shall be 
considered a separate offense. Nothing herein contained shall prevent Loudon County, 
Tennessee from taking such other lawful actions to prevent or remedy any violation. 

ARTICLE IV. ADMINISTRATION 

Section A. Designation of Resolution Administrator 

The Director of Codes Enforcement is hereby appointed as the Administrator to implement the 
provisions of this Resolution. 

Section B. Permit Procedures 

Application for a development permit shall be made to the Administrator on forms furnished by 
the community prior to any development activities. The development permit may include, but is 
not limited to the following: plans in duplicate drawn to scale and showing the nature, location, 
dimensions, and elevations of the area in question; existing or proposed structures, earthen fill 
placement, storage of materials or equipment, and drainage facilities. Specifically, the following 
information is required: 

1. Application stage 

JO 



a. Elevation in relation to mean sea level of the proposed lowest floor, 
including basement, of all buildings where Base Flood Elevations are 
available, or to certain height above the highest adjacent grade when 
applicable under this Resolution. 

b. Elevation in relation to mean sea level to which any non-residential 
building will be floodproofed where Base Flood Elevations are available, 
or to certain height above the highest adjacent grade when applicable 
under this Resolution. 

c. A FEMA Floodproofing Certificate from a Tennessee registered 
professional engineer or architect that the proposed non-residential 
floodproofed building will meet the floodproofing criteria in Article V, 
Sections A and B. 

d. Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or 
relocated as a result of proposed development. 

e. A final Finished Construction Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 086-0-
33) is required after construction is completed and prior to Certificate of 
Compliance/Occupancy issuance. It shall be the duty of the permit holder 
to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a certification of final as-built 
construction of the elevation of the reference level and all attendant 
utilities. 

f. In order to determine if improvements or damage meet the Substantial 
Improvement or Substantial Damage criteria, the applicant shall provide to 
the Floodplain Administrator a detailed cost to repair all damages and/or 
cost of improvements which includes the complete costs associated with 
all types of work necessary to completely repair or improve a building. 
These include the costs of all materials, labor, and other items necessary to 
perform the proposed work. These must be in the form of: 

• An itemized costs of materials, and labor, or estimates of materials 
and labor that are prepared by licensed contractors or professional 
construction cost estimators 

• Building valuation tables published by building code organizations 
and cost-estimating manuals and tools available from professional 
building cost-estimating services. 

• A qualified estimate of costs that is prepared by the local official 
using professional judgement and knowledge of local and regional 
construction costs. 

• A detailed cost estimate provided and prepared by the building 
owner. This must include as much supp01iing documentation as 
possible (such as pricing information from lumber companies, 
plumbing and electrical suppliers, etc). In addition, the estimate 
must include the value of labor, including the value of the owner's 
labor. 

II 



2. Construction Stage 

Within AE Zones, where Base Flood Elevation data is available, any lowest floor 
certification made relative to mean sea level shall be prepared by or under the 
direct supervision of, a Tennessee registered land surveyor and certified by same. 
The Administrator shall record the elevation of the lowest floor on the 
development permit. When floodproofing is utilized for a non-residential 
building, said certification shall be prepared by, or under the direct supervision of, 
a Tennessee registered professional engineer or architect and certified by same. 

Within approximate A Zones, where Base Flood Elevation data is not available, 
the elevation of the lowest floor shall be determined as the measurement of the 
lowest floor of the building relative to the highest adjacent grade. The 
Administrator shall record the elevation of the lowest floor on the development 
permit. When floodproofing is utilized for a non-residential building, said 
certification shall be prepared by, or under the direct supervision of, a Tennessee 
registered professional engineer or architect and certified by same. 

For all new construction and substantial improvements, the permit holder shall 
provide to the Administrator an as-built certification of the lowest floor elevation 
or flood proofing level upon the completion of the lowest floor or floodproofing. 

Any work undertaken prior to submission of the certification shall be at the permit 
holder's risk. The Administrator shall review the above-referenced certification 
data. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder 
immediately and prior to further work being allowed to proceed. Failure to 
submit the certification or failure to make said corrections required hereby, shall 
be cause to issue a stop-work order for the project. 

3. Finished Construction Stage 

Section C. 

For all new construction and substantial improvements, the permit holder shall 
provide to the Administrator a final Finished Construction Elevation Certificate 
(FEMA Form 086-0-33). A final Finished Construction Elevation Certificate is 
required after construction is completed and prior to Certificate of 
Compliance/Occupancy issuance. It shall be the duty of the permit holder to 
submit to the Floodplain Administrator a certification of final as-built 
construction of the elevation of the reference level and all attendant utilities. The 
Administrator will keep the certificate on file in perpetuity. 

Duties and Responsibilities of the Administrator 

Duties of the Administrator shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

1. Review all development permits to assure that the permit requirements of this 
Resolution have been satisfied, and that proposed building sites will be reasonably 
safe from flooding. 

12 



2. Review proposed development to assure that all necessary permits have been 
received from those governmental agencies from which approval is required by 
Federal or State law, including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334. 

3. Notify adjacent communities and the Tennessee Emergency Management 
Agency, State NFIP Office, prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse 
and submit evidence of such notification to FEMA. 

4. For any altered or relocated watercourse, submit engineering data/analysis within 
six (6) months to FEMA to ensure accuracy of community FIRM's through the 
Letter of Map Revision process. 

5. Assure that the flood carrying capacity within an altered or relocated portion of 
any watercourse is maintained. 

6. Record the elevation, in relation to mean sea level or the highest adjacent grade, 
where applicable, of the lowest floor (including basement) of all new and 
substantially improved buildings, in accordance with Article IV, Section B. 

7. Record the actual elevation, in relation to mean sea level or the highest adjacent 
grade, where applicable to which the new and substantially improved buildings 
have been floodproofed, in accordance with Article IV, Section B. 

8. When floodproofing is utilized for a nonresidential structure, obtain certification 
of design criteria from a Tennessee registered professional engineer or architect, 
in accordance with Article IV, Section B. 

9. Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the Areas 
of Special Flood Hazard (for example, where there appears to be a conflict 
between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions), make the necessary 
interpretation. Any person contesting the location of the boundary shall be given 
a reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as provided in this 
Resolution. 

10. When Base Flood Elevation data and floodway data have not been provided by 
FEMA, obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any Base Flood Elevation and 
floodway data available from a Federal, State, or other sources, including data 
developed as a result of these regulations, as criteria for requiring that new 
construction, substantial improvements, or other development in Zone A on the 
Loudon County, Tennessee FIRM meet the requirements of this Resolution. 

11. Maintain all records pertaining to the provisions of this Resolution in the office of 
the Administrator and shall be open for public inspection. Permits issued under 
the provisions of this Resolution shall be maintained in a separate file or marked 
for expedited retrieval within combined files . 

12. A final Finished Construction Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 086-0-33) is 
required after construction is completed and prior to Certificate of 
Compliance/Occupancy issuance. It shall be the duty of the permit holder to 
submit to the Floodplain Administrator a certification of final as-built 
construction of the elevation of the reference level and all attendant utilities. The 
Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate data submitted. Deficiencies 

13 



detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately and 
prior to Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy issuance. In some instances, 
another certification may be required to certify corrected as-built construction. 
Failure to submit the certification or failure to make required conections shall be 
cause to withhold the issuance of a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy. The 
Finished Construction Elevation Certificate certifier shall provide at least 2 
photographs showing the front and rear of the building taken within 90 days from 
the date of certification. The photographs must be taken with views confirming 
the building description and diagram number provided in Section A. To the extent 
possible, these photographs should show the entire building including foundation. 
If the building has split-level or multi-level areas, provide at least 2 additional 
photographs showing side views of the building. In addition, when applicable, 
provide a photograph of the foundation showing a representative example of the 
flood openings or vents. All photographs must be in color and measure at least 3 11 

x 3 11
• Digital photographs are acceptable. 

ARTICLE V. PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION 

Section A. General Standards 

In all areas of special flood hazard, the following provisions are required: 

1. New construction and substantial improvements shall be anchored to prevent 
flotation, collapse and lateral movement of the structure; 

2. Manufactured homes shall be installed using methods and practices that minimize 
flood damage. They must be elevated and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse 
and lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but are not limited to, 
use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground anchors . This requirement is in 
addition to applicable State of Tennessee and local anchoring requirements for 
resisting wind forces. 

3. New construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed with 
materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage; 

4. New construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed by methods 
and practices that minimize flood damage; 

5. All electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning equipment, and 
other service facilities shall be designed and/or located so as to prevent water 
from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of 
flooding; 

6. New and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or 
eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system; 

7. New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or 
eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the systems and discharges from the 
systems into flood waters; 

14 



8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

Section B. 

On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid 
impairment to them or contamination from them during flooding; 

Any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvements to a building that is in 
compliance with the provisions of this Resolution, shall meet the requirements of 
"new construction" as contained in this Resolution; 

Any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvements to a building that is not in 
compliance with the provision of this Resolution, shall be undertaken only if said 
non-conformity is not further extended or replaced; 

All new construction and substantial improvement proposals shall provide copies 
of all necessary Federal and State permits, including Section 404 of the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334; 

All subdivision proposals and other proposed new development proposals shall 
meet the standards of Article V, Section B; 

When proposed new construction and substantial improvements are partially 
located in an area of special flood hazard, the entire structure shall meet the 
standards for new construction; 

When proposed new construction and substantial improvements are located in 
multiple flood hazard risk zones or in a flood hazard risk zone with multiple Base 
Flood Elevations, the entire structure shall meet the standards for the most 
hazardous flood hazard risk zone and the highest Base Flood Elevation. 

Specific Standards 

In all Areas of Special Flood Hazard, the following provisions, in addition to those set forth in 
Article V, Section A, are required: 

1. Residential Structures 

In AE Zones where Base Flood Elevation data is available, new construction and 
substantial improvement of any residential building (or manufactured home) shall 
have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to no lower than one (1) foot 
above the Base Flood Elevation. Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used 
to elevate a structure, openings sufficient to facilitate equalization of flood 
hydrostatic forces on both sides of exterior walls shall be provided in accordance 
with the standards of this section: "Enclosures". 

Within approximate A Zones where Base Flood Elevations have not been 
established and where alternative data is not available, the administrator shall 
require the lowest floor of a building to be elevated to a level of at least three (3) 
feet above the highest adjacent grade (as defined in Aliicle II). Should solid 
foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure, openings sufficient to 
facilitate equalization of flood hydrostatic forces on both sides of exterior walls 
shall be provided in accordance with the standards of this section: "Enclosures" 

2. Non-Residential Structures 

15 



In AE Zones, where Base Flood Elevation data is available, new construction and 
substantial improvement of any commercial, industrial, or non-residential 
building, shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated or 
floodproofed to no lower than one (1) foot above the level of the Base Flood 
Elevation. Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure, 
openings sufficient to facilitate equalization of flood hydrostatic forces on both 
sides of exterior walls shall be provided in accordance with the standards of this 
section: "Enclosures" 

In approximate A Zones, where Base Flood Elevations have not been established 
and where alternative data is not available, new construction and substantial 
improvement of any commercial, industrial, or non-residential building, shall 
have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated or floodproofed to no lower 
than three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade (as defined in A1iicle II). 
Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure, openings 
sufficient to facilitate equalization of flood hydrostatic forces on both sides of 
exterior walls shall be provided in accordance with the standards of this section: 
"Enclosures" 

Non-Residential buildings located in all A Zones may be floodproofed, in lieu of 
being elevated, provided that all areas of the building below the required elevation 
are watertight, with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water, and 
are built with structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic 
and hydrodynamic loads and the effects of buoyancy. A Tennessee registered 
professional engineer or architect shall certify that the design and methods of 
construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice for meeting the 
provisions above, and shall provide such certification to the Administrator as set 
forth in Article IV, Section B. 

3. Enclosures 

All new construction and substantial improvements that include fully enclosed 
areas formed by foundation and other exterior walls below the lowest floor that 
are subject to flooding, shall be designed to preclude finished living space and 
designed to allow for the entry and exit of flood waters to automatically equalize 
hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls. 

a. Designs for complying with this requirement must either be certified by a 
Tennessee professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the 
following minimum criteria. 

1) Provide a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not 
less than one ( 1) square inch for every square foot of enclosed area 
subject to flooding; 

2) The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot 
above the finished grade; 

3) Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other 
coverings or devices provided they permit the automatic flow of 
floodwaters in both directions. 

b. The enclosed area shall be the minimum necessary to allow for parking of 
vehicles, storage or building access. 

16 



c. The interior portion of such enclosed area shall not be finished or 
paiiitioned into separate rooms in such a way as to impede the movement 
of floodwaters and all such partitions shall comply with the provisions of 
Article V, Section B. 

4. Standards for Manufactured Homes and Recreational Vehicles 

a. All manufactured homes placed, or substantially improved, on: (1) 
individual lots or parcels, (2) in expansions to existing manufactured home 
parks or subdivisions, or (3) in new or substantially improved 
manufactured home parks or subdivisions, must meet all the requirements 
of new construction. 

b. All manufactured homes placed or substantially improved in an existing 
manufactured home park or subdivision must be elevated so that either: 

1) In AE Zones, with Base Flood Elevations, the lowest floor of the 
manufactured home is elevated on a permanent foundation to no 
lower than one (1) foot above the level of the Base Flood Elevation 
or 

2) In approximate A Zones, without Base Flood Elevations, the 
manufactured home chassis is elevated and supported by 
reinforced piers (or other foundation elements of at least equivalent 
strength) that are at least three (3) feet in height above the highest 
adjacent grade (as defined in Article II). 

c. Any manufactured home, which has incurred "substantial damage" as the 
result of a flood, must meet the standards of Article V, Sections A and B. 

d. All manufactured homes must be securely anchored to an adequately 
anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral 
movement. 

e. All recreational vehicles placed in an identified Special Flood Hazard 
Area must either: 

1) Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; 

2) Be fully licensed and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle 
is ready for highway use if it is licensed, on its wheels or jacking 
system, attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities 
and security devices, and has no permanently attached structures or 
additions), or; 

3) The recreational vehicle must meet all the requirements for new 
construction. 

5. Standards for Subdivisions and Other Proposed New Development Proposals 

Subdivisions and other proposed new developments, including manufactured 
home parks, shall be reviewed to determine whether such proposals will be 
reasonably safe from flooding . 

17 



Section C. 

a. All subdivision and other proposed new development proposals shall be 
consistent with the need to minimize flood damage. 

b. All subdivision and other proposed new development proposals shall have 
public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water 
systems located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage. 

c. All subdivision and other proposed new development proposals shall have 
adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards. 

d. In all approximate A Zones require that all new subdivision proposals and 
other proposed developments (including proposals for manufactured home 
parks and subdivisions) greater than 50 lots or 5 acres, whichever is the 
lesser, include within such proposals Base Flood Elevation data (See 
Article V, Section E). 

Standards for Special Flood Hazard Areas with Established Base Flood 
Elevations and With Floodways Designated 

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article III, Section B, are areas 
designated as floodways. A floodway may be an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of 
floodwaters, debris or erosion potential. In addition, the area must remain free of encroachment 
in order to allow for the discharge of the base flood without increased flood heights and 
velocities. Therefore, the following provisions shall apply: 

1. Encroaclunents are prohibited, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements 
or other development within the adopted regulatory floodway. Development may be 
permitted however, provided it is demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic 
analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice that the 
encroaclm1ent shall not result in any increase in flood levels or floodway widths during a 
base flood discharge. A registered professional engineer must provide supporting 
teclmical data and certification thereof; 

2. A community may permit encroachments within the adopted regulatory floodway that 
would result in an increase in base flood elevations, provided that the applicant first 
applies for a conditional letter of map revision (CLOMR) and floodway revision, fulfills 
the requirements for such revisions as established under the provisions of § 65.12, and 
receives the approval of FEMA; 

3. ONLY if Article V, Section C, provisions (1) tlu·ough (2) are satisfied, then any new 
construction or substantial improvement shall comply with all other applicable flood 
hazard reduction provisions of Article V, Sections A and B. 

Section D. Standards for Areas of Special Flood Hazard Zones AE with Established 
Base Flood Elevations but Without Floodways Designated 

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article III, Section B, where 
streams exist with base flood data provided but where no floodways have been designated 
(Zones AE), the following provisions apply: 

18 



1. Require until a regulatory floodway is designated, that no new construction, substantial , 
or other development, including fill shall be permitted within Zone AE on the 
community's FIRM, unless it is demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses 
performed that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with 
all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface 
elevation of the base flood more than one (1) foot at any point within the community. 

2. A community may permit encroachments within within Zones AE on the community's 
FIRM, that would result in an increase in the water surface elevation of the base flood, 
provided that the applicant first applies for a conditional letter of map revision (CLO MR) 
and floodway revision, fulfills the requirements for such revisions as established under 
the provisions of§ 65 .12, and receives the approval of FEMA; 

3. ONLY if Article V, Section D, provisions (1) through (2) are satisfied, then any new 
construction or substantial improvement shall comply with all other applicable flood 
hazard reduction provisions of Article V, Sections A and B. 

Section E. Standards for Streams without Established Base Flood Elevations and 
Floodways (A Zones) 

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article III, Section B, where 
streams exist, but no base flood data has been provided and where a Floodway has not been 
delineated, the following provisions shall apply: 

1. The Administrator shall obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any Base Flood 
Elevation and floodway data available from any Federal, State, or other sources, 
including data developed as a result of these regulations (see 2 below), as criteria 
for requiring that new construction, substantial improvements, or other 
development in approximate A Zones meet the requirements of Article V, 
Sections A and B. 

2. Require that all new subdivision proposals and other proposed developments 
(including proposals for manufactured home parks and subdivisions) greater than 
50 lots or 5 acres, whichever is the lesser, include within such proposals Base 
Flood Elevation data. 

3. Within approximate A Zones, where Base Flood Elevations have not been 
established and where such data is not available from other sources, require the 
lowest floor of a building to be elevated or floodproofed to a level of at least three 
(3) feet above the highest adjacent grade (as defined in Article II). All applicable 
data including elevations or floodproofing certifications shall be recorded as set 
forth in Article IV, Section B. Openings sufficient to facilitate automatic 
equalization of hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls shall be provided in 
accordance with the standards of Article V, Section B. 

4. Within approximate A Zones, where Base Flood Elevations have not been 
established and where such data is not available from other sources, no 
encroachments, including structures or fill material, shall be located within an 
area equal to the width of the stream or twenty feet (20), whichever is greater, 
measured from the top of the stream bank, unless certification by a Tennessee 

19 



5. 

Section F. 

registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that the cumulative 
effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and 
anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the base 
flood more than one (I ) foot at any point within Loudon County, Tennessee. The 
engineering certification should be supp011ed by technical data that conforms to 
standard hydraulic engineering principles. 

New construction and substantial improvements of buildings, where permitted, 
shall comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of Article V, 
Sections A and B. Within approximate A Zones, require that those subsections of 
Article V Section B dealing with the alteration or relocation of a watercourse, 
assuring watercourse carrying capacities are maintained and manufactured homes 
provisions are complied with as required. 

Standards For Areas of Shallow Flooding (Zone AO) 

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in A11icle III, Section B, are areas 
designated as shallow flooding areas. These areas have special flood hazards associated with 
base flood depths of one (I) to three (3) feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist and 
where the path of flooding is unpredictable and indeterminate. In addition to Article V, Sections 
A and B, all new construction and substantial improvements shall meet the following 
requirements : 

1. The lowest floor (including basement) shall be elevated at least as high as the depth 
number specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), in feet, plus a freeboard of 
one (1) foot above the highest adjacent grade; or at least three (3) feet above the highest 
adjacent grade, if no depth number is specified. 

2. Non-residential structures may, in lieu of elevation, be floodproofed to the same level as 
required in Article V, Section F( 1) so that the structure, together with attendant utility and 
sanitary facilities, below that level shall be watertight with walls substantially 
impermeable to the passage of water and with structural components having the 
capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects of buoyancy. 
Certification is required in accordance with Article IV, Section B(l) (c) and Article V, 
Section B(2). 

3. Adequate drainage paths shall be provided around structures on slopes, to guide 
floodwaters around and away from proposed structures. 

Section G. Standards For Areas of Shallow Flooding (Zone AH) 

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article III, Section B, are areas 
designated as shallow flooding areas. These areas are subject to inundation by 1-percent-annual
chance shallow flooding (usually areas of ponding) where average depths are one (1) to three (3) 
feet. Base Flood Elevations are derived from detailed hydraulic analyses are shown in this zone. 

20 



In addition to meeting the requirements of Article V, Sections A and B, all new construction and 
substantial improvements shall meet the following requirements: 

1. Adequate drainage paths shall be provided around structures on slopes, to guide 
floodwaters around and away from proposed structures. 

Section H. Standards For Areas Protected by Flood Protection System (A-99 Zones) 

Located within the Areas of Special Flood Hazard established in Article III, Section B, are areas 
of the 100-year floodplain protected by a flood protection system but where Base Flood 
Elevations have not been determined. Within these areas (A-99 Zones) all provisions of Article 
IV and Article V shall apply. 

Section I. Standards for Unmapped Streams 

Located within the Loudon County, Tennessee, are unmapped streams where areas of special 
flood hazard are neither indicated nor identified. Adjacent to such streams, the following 
provisions shall apply : 

1. No encroaclunents including fill material or other development including 
structures shall be located within an area of at least equal to twice the width of the 
stream, measured from the top of each stream bank, unless certification by a 
Tennessee registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that the 
cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other 
existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface 
elevation of the base flood more than one (1) foot at any point within the locality. 

2. When a new flood hazard risk zone, and Base Flood Elevation and floodway data 
is available, new construction and substantial improvements shall meet the 
standards established in accordance with Articles IV and V. 

3. ONLY if Article III, Section B, provisions (1) through (2) are satisfied, then any 
new construction or substantial improvement shall comply with all other 
applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of Article V, Sections A and B. 

ARTICLE VI. VARIAN CE PROCEDURES 

Section A. 

1. 

Regional Board of Zoning Appeals 

Authority 

The Loudon County, Tennessee Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall hear and 
decide appeals and requests for variances from the requirements of this 
Resolution. 

2. Procedure 

21 



Meetings of the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall be held at such times, as 
the Board shall determine. All meetings of the Regional Board of Zoning 
Appeals shall be open to the public. The Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall 
adopt rules of procedure and shall keep records of applications and actions 
thereof, which shall be a public record. Compensation of the members of the 
Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall be set by the Legislative Body. 

3. Appeals: How Taken 

An appeal to the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals may be taken by any person, 
firm or corporation aggrieved or by any governmental officer, department, or 
bureau affected by any decision of the Administrator based in whole or in part 
upon the provisions of this Resolution. Such appeal shall be taken by filing with 
the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals a notice of appeal, specifying the grounds 
thereof. In all cases where an appeal is made by a property owner or other 
interested party, a fee of (0.00) dollars for the cost of publishing a notice of such 
hearings shall be paid by the appellant. The Administrator shall transmit to the 
Regional Board of Zoning Appeals all papers constituting the record upon which 
the appeal action was taken. The Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall fix a 
reasonable time for the hearing of the appeal, give public notice thereof, as well as 
due notice to parties in interest and decide the same within a reasonable time 
which shall be by the first day of the month in which the request will be heard. At 
the hearing, any person or party may appear and be heard in person or by agent or 
by attorney. 

4. Powers 

The Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the following powers: 

a. Administrative Review 

To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged by the applicant that there is 
error in any order, requirement, permit, decision, determination, or refusal 
made by the Administrator or other administrative official in carrying out 
or enforcement of any provisions of this Resolution. 

b. Variance Procedures 

In the case of a request for a variance the following shall apply: 

1) The Loudon County, Tennessee Regional Board of Zoning 
Appeals shall hear and decide appeals and requests for variances 
from the requirements of this Resolution. 

2) Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic 
structures as defined, herein, upon a determination that the 
proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's 
continued designation as a historic structure and the variance is the 
minimum necessary deviation from the requirements of this 
Resolution to preserve the historic character and design of the 
structure. 

3) In passing upon such applications, the Regional Board of Zoning 
Appeals shall consider all technical evaluations, all relevant 

22 



Section B. 

1. 

2. 

factors, all standards specified in other sections of this Resolution, 
and: 

a) The danger that materials may be swept onto other property 
to the injury of others; 

b) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion; 

c) The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents 
to flood damage; 

d) The importance of the services provided by the proposed 
facility to the community; 

e) The necessity of the facility to a waterfront location, in the 
case of a functionally dependent use; 

f) The availability of alternative locations, not subject to 
flooding or erosion damage, for the proposed use; 

g) The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive 
plan and floodplain management program for that area; 

h) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for 
ordinary and emergency vehicles; 

i) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and 
sediment transport of the flood waters and the effects of 
wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; 

j) The costs of providing governmental services during and 
after flood conditions including maintenance and repair of 
public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, 
water systems, and streets and bridges. 

4) Upon consideration of the factors listed above, and the purposes of 
this Resolution, the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals may attach 
such conditions to the granting of variances, as it deems necessary 
to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 

5) Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if 
any increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge would 
result. 

Conditions for Variances 

Variances shall be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum 
relief necessary, considering the flood hazard and the factors listed in Article VI, 
Section A. 

Variances shall only be issued upon: a showing of good and sufficient cause, a 
determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional 
hardship; or a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in 

23 



increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public 
expense, create nuisance, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict 
with existing local laws or Resolutions. 

3. Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice that the 
issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the Base Flood Elevation 
will result in increased premium rates for flood insurance (as high as $25 for 
$100) coverage, and that such construction below the Base Flood Elevation 
increases risks to life and property. 

4. The Administrator shall maintain the records of all appeal actions and report any 
variances to FEMA upon request. 

ARTICLE VII. LEGAL STATUS PROVISIONS 

Section A. Conflict with Other Resolutions 

In case of conflict between this Resolution or any part thereof, and the whole or part of any 
existing or future Resolution of Loudon County, Tennessee, the most restrictive shall in all cases 
apply . 

Section B. Severability 
If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this Resolution shall be held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect any other 
section, clause, provision, or portion of this Resolution which is not of itself invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

Section C. Effective Date 

This Resolution shall become effective on April 5, 2021 , the public welfare demanding it. 

Approved and adopted by the Loudon County, Tennessee, Mayor and County Commission. 

Date 

Mayor of Loudon County, Tennessee 

Attest: 
~~~~~~~~~~~ 

County Clerk 

Date of Public Hearing 

24 



Date of Publication of 
Caption and Summary 

25 



Loudon County Commission 

Ft. Loudon Medical Center / Transaction 
Related to the Expansion of the Facility 



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

(FORT LOUDOUN MEDICAL CENTER TRANSACTION) 

April 5, 2021 

WHEREAS, Loudon County, Tennessee (the .. County'") is the fee simple owner of that 
certain tract or parcel of real property which has a street address of 550 Fort Loudoun Medical 
Center Drive, Lenoir City, Tennessee and is also identified as all of Parcel 079.03 on Tax Map 
015 among the maps of the Property Assessor for Loudon County. Tennessee (the ··Property"); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Property is improved with, among other things, a hospital commonly 
known as Fort Loudoun Medical Center (the ·'Hospital'"); and 

WHEREAS, for more than 16 years, the County has ground leased the Prope1ty to Fo1i 
Loudoun Medical Center, a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing under the laws of 
the State of Tennessee ("FLMC") pursuant to that certain Lease Agreement dated November 12, 
2004 (the "Hospital Lease"); and 

WHEREAS, FLMC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Covenant Health. a Tennessee non
profit corporation ("Covenant"), and the two have expended in excess of $49,500,000 in (a) 
constructing the Hospital, (b) constructing a medical office building, (c) incurring amounts 
required by the Hospital Lease, and (d) developing and expanding healthcare services in the 
County; and 

WHEREAS, FLMC and Covenant desire to further expand and enhance the healthcare 
services being provided to the County's residents by (a) converting the Hospital from a facility 
with all semi-private rooms into a facility with all private rooms, through the construction of a 
new wing with approximately 25 new private rooms, and (b) renovating cetiain areas of the 
existing Hospital as necessary to accomplish this objective, with an expected cost of $12 million 
to $15 million, all at their sole cost and expense; and 

WHEREAS, in light of the significant sums of money that will be necessary to 
accomplish the foregoing and considering that the term of the I !ospital Lease is set to end no 
later than December 31, 2034, FLMC and Covenant desire to ensure that they will be able to 
maintain a long term presence at the Property after the expansion and enhancements are 
completed, and therefore have requested that the County transfer ownership of the Property to 
FLMC in accordance with the provisions of an Agreement to Expand and Improve Fort Loudoun 
Medical Center, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (the ·'Expansion and 
Improvement Au:reement"); and 

WHEREAS, the Loudon County Board of Commissioners (the "County Commission") 
believes the expansion and enhancement of the Hospital and healthcare services to the residents 
of the County which are contemplated by FLM C and Covenant, as set forth in the Expansion and 
Improvement Agreement, are in the best interests of the County and its residents and should be 
approved; and 



WHEREAS, the County Commission also desires to authorize the County Mayor to 
execute, acknowledge, and deliver on behalf of the County, the Expansion and Improvement 
Agreement, as well as all other documents and instruments which are necessary or appropriate, 
to accomplish the purposes thereof. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED TI-IA T: 

1. The Expansion and Improvement Agreement is in the best interests of the County 
and its residents and is hereby approved in all respects. 

2. The County Mayor be, and hereby is, acting in his official capacity and without 
the joinder of any other person, authorized, empowered, and directed (subject to 
the conditions described herein) to execute, acknowledge, and deliver on behalf of 
the County the Expansion and Improvement Agreement, along with any and all 
other documents and instruments which are necessary or prudent, in the County 
Mayor's discretion, to fulfill the obligations of the County thereunder. 

3. The County Mayor be and hereby is, acting in his official capacity but without the 
joinder of any other person, authorized, empowered, and directed to approve the 
fin al form of all documents and instruments in connection with the transactions 
contemplated in the Expansion and Improvement Agreement, with such 
completions, omissions, insertions, and changes as may be approved by such 
County Mayor, his execution of the same to constitute conclusive evidence of his 
approval of the form of such documents and instruments. 

4. The County Mayor be and hereby is, acting in his official capacity and without 
the joinder of any other person, authorized, empowered, and directed to execute 
and deliver all certificates and instruments and to take all such further actions as 
he may consider necessary or desirable in connection with accomplishing the 
intents and purposes of the Expansion and Improvement Agreement. 

5. All other acts of the County Mayor which are in conformity with the purposes and 
intents of this resolution and in furtherance of accomplishing the purposes set 
forth in the Expansion and Improvement Agreement are hereby approved and 
confirmed in all respects 

APPROV ED: 

Henry Cullen 
Chair, Loudon County Board of Commissioners 

Buddy Bradshaw 
Loudon County Mayor 

2 



ATTEST: 

CaITie McKelvey 
County Clerk 

3 



Exhibit A 
(Copy of Agreement to Expand and Improve Fort Loudoun Medical Center) 

[See attached! 

4 



AGREEMENT TO EXPAND AND IMPROVE FORT LOUDOUN MEDICAL CENTER 

This Agreement to Expand and Improve Fort Loudoun Medical Center (this "Agreement") is made 
and entered into as of this __ day of April, 2021 (the "Effective Date"), by and between 

LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, a county and political subdivision of the State of Tennessee 
(the "County"), 

FORT LOUDOUN MEDICAL CENTER, a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of Tennessee ("FLMC"), and 

COVENANT HEALTH, a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of Tennessee ("Covenant"). 

The County, FLMC, and Covenant are sometimes collectively referred to as the "Parties'' and 
individually as a "fru:ty." 

RECITALS: 

A. The County is the fee simple owner of that ce11ain tract or parcel ofland located in Loudon 
County, Tennessee which is described on the Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Land"). 

B. Pursuant to a Lease Agreement between FLMC, Covenant, and the County dated 
November 9, 2004 (the "Lease") and a Memorandum of Lease between FLMC, the County, and Covenant 
dated November 12, 2004 and recorded in Trust Book 766, page 662 in the Register's Office for Loudon 
County, Tennessee (the "Memo of Lease"), FLMC leased from the County the Land, together with all 
improvements located thereon at the time and certain easements and other rights appurtenant thereto. The 
Lease required FLMC to, among other things, construct a hospital facility (the "Hospital") and expend 
substantial sums of money for the purpose of developing and enhancing the availability and quality of 
healthcare provided to the residents of Loudon County, Tennessee. 

C. To the knowledge of each Party, FLMC and Covenant have each complied with all their 
obi igations under the Lease to be performed prior to the Effective Date, including the construction of the 
Hospital and the enhancement of the healthcare services available to residents of Loudon County. 
Tennessee. 

D. The Parties agree that the quantity and quality of healthcare services available to the 
residents of Loudon County, Tennessee will be fu11her enhanced if ce11ain renovations and additions are 
made to the Hospital and the Land (as more pa11icularly described in this Agreement, the "Enhancement 
Work"). 

E. FLMC is willing to undertake and perform the Enhancement Work at its sole cost and 
expense in consideration of the County transferring ownership of the Land and Hospital to FLMC. 
Covenant, as the parent company of FLMC, is willing to guarantee the performance and completion of the 
Enhancement Work. 

F. The County believes that the Enhancement Work will provide substantial and material 
benefits to the County and its residents, and therefore it is willing to enter into this Agreement for the 
purposes contained herein. 

G. The Enhancement Work shall commence no later than 24 months from the Effective Date. 



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the covenants of the Parties set forth 
herein, and other good and valuable consideration exchanged between the Parties, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Recitals; Definitions and Exhibits. 
1.1 Recitals. The Recitals set fo1th above are hereby incorporated and made a part of 

th is Agreement. 

1.2 Certain Definitions. Those tenns listed on the Appendix attached to this 
Agreement shall have the meanings set fo1th therein whenever used in this Agreement or any Exhibits 
attached hereto, unless the context clearly requires otherwise. All definitions shall also be applicable to the 
singular and plural fo1ms of such words and tenns. Likewise, those words and terms which are defined in 
the body of this Agreement shall have the meaning given to them whenever used in this Agreement or any 
of the Exhibits attached hereto. 

1.3 Exhibits. The Exhibits listed below are attached to and incorporated into this 
Agreement by reference . In the event of any inconsistency between such Exhibits and the provisions of 
this Agreement, the provisions of the Exhibits shall control. The Exhibits attached to this Agreement are: 

Appendix 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 
ExhibitD 
Exhibit E 

Defined Terms 
Description of the Land 
List of Penn itted Encumbrances 
Work Letter 
Form of Agreement for Right of First Refusal 
Copy of Jail Agreement 

2. Transfer of Ownership. Subject to and on the terms and conditions set fo1th in this 
Agreement, and in consideration of the Enhancement Work and the other obligations of FLMC and 
Covenant as set forth in this Agreement, the County hereby covenants and agrees to transfer and convey to 
FLMC the following (collectively, the "Property"): (i) the Land, (ii) the Hospital and all other buildings, 
roads, and other improvements located thereon or thereunder (collectively, the " ltnQrovements"), (iii) all 
reversions, remainders, easements, rights-of-way, appurtenances, hereditaments, and privileges in, to, or 
for the benefit of the Land or any of the Improvements, and (iv) all other rights, privileges, and 
appu1tenances owned by the County and which in any way relate to or are used in connection with the Land 
and any of the Improvements. 

3. Expansion of and Improvements to Hospital. 
3. I Subject to and on the tenns and conditions set forth in this Agreement, and in 

consideration of the transfer of the Property to FLMC, FLMC shall construct, or cause to be constructed, at 
FLMC 's sole cost and expense, a ce1tain expansion of and improvements to the Hospital as described in 
Exhibit C attached hereto (said Exhibit C is referred to as the "Work Letter," and the work described 
therein is referred to collectively as the "Enhancement Work"), all of which shall be performed in 
accordance with the provisions of the Work Letter. The Parties agree that the description of the work to be 
performed by FLMC in the Work Letter constitutes a full and complete description of the Enhancement 
Work, as defined in Recital D above. 

3.2 Covenant hereby guarantees the full and prompt performance by FLMC of all its 
obligations in Section 3.1. Furthermore, neither Covenant nor FLMC will sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose 
of all or any significant po1tion of its assets without requiring such buyer or transferee to join in writing in 
the foregoing guarantee. Covenant's obligations under this Agreement are limited to those set forth in this 

2 



Section 3, and at such time as all such obligations are fully paid and satisfied or provision for full payment 
and satisfaction has been made to the reasonable satisfaction of the County, the provisions of this Section 
3 shall cease to be effective. 

3.3 The obligations of FLMC and Covenant contained in Section 3.1 and 11 shall 
survive the Closing. 

3 .4 Other than the obligations of FLMC and Covenant contained herein, there is no. 
and there shall not be, any separate, other, or additional consideration, whether in cash or in kind, due or 
payable for the transactions contemplated in this Agreement. 

4. Closing. 
4.1 Closing. Subject to the other prov1s1ons contained in this Agreement, the 

consummation of the transfer and conveyance of the Prope1ty (the "Closing") shall occur on the. date which 
is the earlier of the following (as applicable, the "Closing Date"): 

4.1.1 The date on which the Pa1iies mutually agree in writing; or 
4.1.2 Ten (10) business days following the date upon which both of the 

following shall have occurred: (a) the final approval of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated 
hereby by the Governing Body and all periods for filing an appeal or other Action to challenge or invalidate 
such approval have expired; and (b) the execution of this Agreement by all of the Parties hereto. 

4.2 Transfer Agent. The Closing shall be conducted by Tennessee Valley Title 
Insurance Company or such other title company or law finn as the Parties may hereafter agree to in writing 
(as applicable, the "Transfer Agent"). 

4.3 Location of Closing. The Closing shall occur at the location agreed to by the Parties 
or, failing that, the main office of the Transfer Agent: provided, that it shall not be necessary for any Party 
to be present at the Closing so long as it has perfonned all its obligations under this Agreement including 
delivering all those documents, amounts, and other items required of it under this Agreement. 

5. Representations and Warranties. 
5.1 Coy.!!JY'_~ __ Representations and Warranties. For the purpose of inducing FLMC and 

Covenant to enter into this Agreement, the County hereby represents and warrants to FLMC all the 
following as of the date the County has executed this Agreement and again as of the Closing Date, all of 
which are being relied upon by FLMC and Covenant: 

5.1 . 1 The County is a duly created and validly existing county and political 
subdivision of the State of Tennessee; 

5.1.2 The County has the power and authority to enter into this Agreement and 
the transactions hereby contemplated and to carry out and perform its obligations hereunder; 

5.1.3 This Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly 
approved and authorized by final, unappealable action of the Governing Body, and no further consent or 
approval of any Person is required; 

5. l.4 Neither the County's execution and delivery of this Agreement nor its 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement will (i) violate any provision of the Constitution of the 
State of Tennessee or any Laws or (ii) conflict with or violate, in any material respect, any representation. 
warranty, covenant, agreement, or other obligation of the County; 

5.1.5 This Agreement constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the County, 
enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject only to bankruptcy and other similar Laws affecting the 
rights of creditors and the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases, and the individuals executing 
this Agreement and the documents or instruments con tern plated hereby on behalf of the County have been 
duly authorized to do so by the Governing Body; 

5.1.6 To the best of the County's knowledge, the County owns the Land in fee 
simple with title thereto unencumbered by any encumbrance, obligation, covenant, or restriction other than 

3 



Permitted Encumbrances. The County has no claims or any interest in any of the equipment, furnishings, 
beds, trade fixtures, or other personal property located on the Property and at the Closing, it shall execute 
and deliver to FLMC a Bill of Sale and Assignment quitclaiming all rights, title and interest it has, if any, 
to the same. 

5.1. 7 To the knowledge of each Party, FLMC and Covenant (i) have each fully 
perfonned all their duties and obligations under the Lease and the Memo of Lease, (ii) there is no existing 
breach or default by either Party under either the Lease or the Memo of Lease, and (iii) there is no condition 
or circumstance that, with the giving of notice, the lapse of time, or both, would constitute a breach or 
default under any such documents; and 

5.1 .8 There is no Action pending or, to the County's knowledge, threatened 
against the County, that, if detennined adversely to the County, would materially affect the ability of the 
County to perform any of its duties or obligations under this Agreement. 

5.2 FLMC's and Covenant's Representations and Warranties. For the purpose of 
inducing the County to enter into this Agreement and consummate the transactions set forth herein, FLMC 
and Covenant each hereby makes the following representations and warranties to the County as of the date 
each has executed this Agreement, and again as of the Closing Date, all of which are being relied upon by 
the County: 

5.2. l Each of FLMC and Covenant is a non-profit public benefit corporation 
organized and existing under the Laws of the State of Tennessee and exempt from federal income taxation 
under Section 50l(a) of the Code; 

5.2.2 Each of FLMC and Covenant has the power and authority to enter into this 
Agreement and the transactions hereby contemplated and to carry out its obligations hereunder; 

5.2.3 This Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly 
approved and authorized by the final action of the respective Boards of Directors of FLMC and Covenant 
and no further consent or approval of any Person is required; 

5.2.4 This Agreement constitutes the valid and binding obligation of FLMC and 
Covenant, enforceable in accordance with its tenns, subject only to bankruptcy and other similar Laws 
affecting the rights of creditors and the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases, and the 
individuals executing this Agreement and the documents or instruments contemplated hereby on behalf of 
the FLMC and Covenant have been duly authorized to do so by the Governing Body;· 

5.2.5 Neither FLMC's nor Covenant's execution and delive1y of this Agreement 
nor their performance of their obligations under this Agreement will (i) violate any provision of the 
Constitution of the State of Tennessee or and Laws, or (ii) conflict with or violate, in any material respect, 
any representation, warranty, covenant, agreement, or other obligation of FLMC or Covenant; and 

5.2.6 There is no Action pending or, to the knowledge of FLMC and Covenant, 
there is no Action threatened against FLMC or Covenant, that, if detennined adversely to FLMC or 
Covenant, would materially affect the ability of FLMC or Covenant to perform its duties and obligations 
in this Agreement. 

5.3 Survival. The representations, warranties, indemnification obi igations, rights, and 
remedies of the Parties contained in this Section 5 shall survive the Closing or earlier termination of this 
Agreement. 

6. County's Undertakings Pending Closing. 

6.1 Until the Closing or earlier tennination of this Agreement, the County shall: 
6.1.1 Status of Title. Not do anything or permit anything to be done that would 

impair or modify the status of the title as shown on any title commitment or survey procured by FLMC, 
unless the same is first approved or requested by FLMC, as determined in FLMC's Discretion; 

4 



6. I .2 Zoning. Not take any action to change the zoning of the Property or any 
portion thereof, unless first approved or requested to do so by FLMC, as determined in FLMC's Discretion; 
or 

6.1.3 Transfer. Not cause or permit the transfer, conveyance, sale, assignment, 
pledge, mortgage, lease, or encumbrance of all or any portion of the Property. 

6.2 In addition to the County's other obligations in this Agreement, until the Closing 
or earlier termination of this Agreement, the County shall also promptly notify FLMC and Covenant in 
writing upon learning or receiving notice, whichever first occurs, of any of the following: 

6.2. l Events. Any event, transaction, or occun·ence including any potential 
change in any Law that would or could materially affect in an adverse manner the title, condition, or utility 
of the Prope1iy or any portion thereof or the consummation of the transactions contemplated in this 
Agreement; 

6.2.2 Litigation. Any Action filed or threatened to be filed against the or the 
County that could affect the ability of the County to consummate the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement; 

6.2.3 Zoning. Any proposed change in any zoning or other Law affecting the 
use, occupancy, or future improvement of the Property or any portion thereof, unless such change was 
requested by FLMC; and 

6.2.4 Acknowledgment. FLMC and Covenant acknowledge that the jurisdiction 
for any zoning change concerning the Property is vested exclusively with the Lenoir City, Tennessee, 
zoning commission. 

7. Closing Deliveries; Possession. 
7.1 Deliveries by the County. At the Closing, the County shall, in addition to the other 

matters set forth in this Agreement, if any, deliver all of the following to FLMC or the Transfer Agent, as 
appropriate, all of which shall be properly completed, executed, and , where applicable, acknowledged and 
notarized, and in the form required in this Agreement or otherwise in a form reasonably acceptable to 
FLMC: 

7.1 .1 Limited Warranty Deed. A Limited Warranty Deed pursuant to which the 
County agrees to defend the title to the Property against the claims of all Persons claiming by, through, or 
under the County, but no further or otherwise (the "Deed") conveying good and marketable title to the 
Prope1iy to FLMC free and clear of any and all liens and encumbrances except for the Permitted 
Encumbrances, and the legal description of the Land in the Deed shall be the same as set forth on the 
Exhibit A attached hereto; 

7.1.2 Quitclaim Deed. Should FLMC obtain a new survey of the Land and such 
survey shows the legal description of the Land different from that described on the attached Exhibit A, the 
County shall, at the request of FLMC, execute, acknowledge, and deliver a Quitclaim Deed to FLMC 
describing the Land according to the description shown on such new survey; 

7.1.3 Resolutions and Consents. Appropriate resolutions, approvals, and/or 
consents from the Governing Body, with all applicable appeal periods having expired, authorizing, or 
ratifying, as appropriate (a) the execution of this Agreement and all documents to be executed and delivered 
by the County in connection with the Closing, and (b) the performance by the County of all its obligations 
under this Agreement and under such documents required to be executed and/or delivered by the County 
herein; 

7.1.4 QQinion or Ce1tificate of County's Counsel. A certificate or opinion from 
the County's counsel certifying or opining that all necessary action has been taken by the County to 
authorize and consummate the transactions contemplated in this Agreement: 

7. I .5 Settlement Statement. A counterpart signature page for a settlement 
statement prepared by the Transfer Agent for the transaction and which reflects the credits, debits, and 
adjustments contemplated by or specifically provided for in this Agreement (the "Settlement Statement"); 

5 



7.1.6 Owner's Affidavit. An "owner's affidavit," "title affidavit" or similar 
agreement that will allow the Title Insurance Company to delete all the so-called "preprinted" or "standard" 
exceptions from the Title Policy; 

7.1.7 Ce1tificate. A certificate which certifies to FLMC and Covenant that all 
the representations and warranties made by the County in this Agreement are true and correct as of the 
Closing Date; 

7.1.8 Termination of Lease. An agreement tenninating the Lease and the Memo 
of Lease (the "Lease Termination"); and 

7.1.9 Other Documents. Such other documents or instruments reasonably 
requested by FLMC, Covenant, the Transfer Agent, and/or the Title Insurance Company and that are 
reasonably necessary to complete the Closing and/or for FLMC to obtain the Title Pol icy in the condition 
contemplated in this Agreement. 

7.2 Deliveries by FLMC and Covenant. At the Closing, FLMC and Covenant shall 
deliver all of the following to the County or the Transfer Agent, as appropriate, all of which shall be properly 
completed, executed, and, where applicable, acknowledged and notarized, and in the form required in this 
Agreement or otherwise in a fonn reasonably acceptable to the County: 

7.2. l Opinion or Certificate of FLMC's Counsel. A certificate or opinion from 
FLMC's and Covenant's counsel cer1ifying or opining that all necessary action has been taken by FLMC 
and Covenant to authorize and consummate the transactions contemplated in this Agreement; 

7.2.2 Settlement Statement. A counterpart signature page for the Settlement 
Statement; 

7.2.3 Certificate. A certificate which certifies to the County that all the 
representations and warranties made by FLMC and Covenant in this Agreement are true and correct as of 
the Closing Date; 

7.2.4 Termination of Lease. A counterpart signature page for the Lease 
Termination; 

7.2.5 Intentionally Omitted. 

7.2.6 ROFR/Memo. The Right of First Refusal Agreement shall be promptly 
recorded in the Register's Office for Loudon County, Tennessee, as soon as practical after the Closing. 

7.2.7 Other Documents. Such other documents or instruments reasonably 
requested by the County and/or the Transfer Agent and that are reasonably necessary to complete the 
Closing. 

The Parties agree that it shall not be necessary for Covenant to execute a guaranty agreement 
separate from this Agreement. Instead, the Parties agree that the language contained in Section 3.2 of this 
Agreement shall be sufficient, and that such guaranty provisions shall survive the Closing. 

7.3 Possession. The Parties acknowledge that FLMC is already in possession of the 
Land and the Improvements, and, subject to the provisions of the Lease, it shall remain in possession of the 
same until the Closing. Subject to the representations and warranties of the County contained in this 
Agreement, FLMC agrees that it is accepting the Property in its "AS IS, WHERE IS" condition. 

8. Closing Costs; No Prorations. 
8.1 Closing Costs. Subject in all events to the provisions of Section 8.3 hereof~ the 

County shall pay (a) the cost of the County's counsel and consultants, if any, (b) the cost of obtaining all 
approvals and consents from the Governing Body, and (c) the cost to record all title curative documents, 
including satisfactions of all deeds of trust or liens. Other than as set forth in the foregoing sentence, all 
other fees, costs, and expenses for or related to the Closing including the Transfer Agent's settlement fee, 
costs of preparing the Deed and, if necessary, the Quitclaim Deed (both of which shall be prepared by the 

6 



Transfer Agent), conveyance taxes, and recording fees, shall be paid by FLMC. 

8.2 No Prorations. The Parties acknowledge and agree that (a) no real property taxes 
are currently being assessed to the Property, and (b) FLMC, as the tenant of the Property, is cu1Tently 
responsible for paying all utility bills for those utilities consumed on the Prope1ty. As a result, the Parties 
agree that there shall be no need to prorate any amounts for real property taxes, utilities, or similar items 
for the Closing. 

8.3 Fees of County's Legal Counsel. As partial consideration for the County's 
willingness to enter into this Agreement and perfonn its obligations contained herein, FLMC agrees that, 
ifand only if the Closing shall occur, it shall either pay in the first instance or reimburse the County for all 
reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses which the County incurs to its outside counsel, Kramer Rayson. 
LLP (the "Finn"), and which fees and expenses pertain to the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement 
and the consummation of the Closing; provided, that all such fees and expenses are charged at the rates 
which the Firm typically charges the County for similar work and shall take into account, among other 
things, all typical discounts, if any. 

9. Conditions Precedent. 
9.1 Conditions to Both Parties' Obligations . Each Party's obligation to complete the 

transactions contemplated hereby is contingent upon all of the following being satisfied as of the Closing 
Date, each of which constitutes a condition precedent to each Paity's obligation to complete the transactions 
contemplated in this Agreement and may be waived by each Party in its sole and absolute discretion by 
such Party executing and def ivering a written waiver to the other Party expressly stating the same: 

9. I . I Perfonnance by the Other Party. The other Party has performed all its 
duties and obligations under this Agreement in all material respects; 

9.1.2 Representations and Warranties . All the representations and warranties of 
the other Party contained in this Agreement are true and accurate in all material respects; and 

9. I .3 No Default. There is no pending default by the other Party, and there is no 
condition or circumstance that, with the giving of notice. the passage of time. or both , wou Id constitute a 
default by the other Parry. 

9.2 Conditions to FLMC's Obligations. FLMC's obligation to complete the 
transactions contemplated hereby is also contingent upon all of the fol lowing being satisfied as of the 
Closing Date, each of which constitutes a condition precedent to FLMC's obligation to complete the 
acquisition of the Prope1ty and may be waived by FLMC in FLMC's Discretion by FLMC executing and 
delivering a written waiver to the County expressly stating the same: 

9.2. J No Change in Zoning Laws. There has been no change in the zoning or 
any similar Law affecting the use and/or occupancy of the Property or any po1tion thereof. 

9.3 Failure of Condition. If any condition precedent set forth in this Section 9 is not 
satisfied at or before Closing, and the same is not expressly waived in writing by the Pa1ty benefitted by 
the same, as determined in such Par):y's sole and absolute discretion, then such benefitting Party shall have 
the right and option, as detennined in its sole and absolute discretion, to either: (a) terminate this Agreement, 
and, in such event, the Parties shall thereafter have no further rights, duties, or obligations under this 
Agreement except for the Surviving Obligations, or (b) extend the Closing Date for an additional period of 
thirty (30) days so the Parties may attempt to satisfy the unsatisfied condition; provided. that if the Closing 
Date is extended, the condition is still not satisfied within such additional thi1ty (30) day period. and the 
Party benefitted by such condition does not waive the unsatisfied condition during such additional thirty 
(30) day period, this Agreement shall automatically tenn inate and the Parties shall thereafter have no further 
rights, duties, or obligations under this Agreement except for the Surviving Obligations. 

7 



10. Events of Default and Remedies. 
I 0.1 County Default and FLMC's Remedies. If (a) any representation or warranty of 

the County contained in this Agreement is materially false when made or becomes materially false prior to 
the Closing or earlier termination of this Agreement due to any act or omission of the County or any Person 
for which the County is responsible, (b) the County fails or otherwise refuses to perform any of its 
obligations contained in this Agreement, and said failure or refusal continues for ten (! 0) days after it 
receives a written notice from FLMC specifying and demanding it remedy the same, or (c) the Closing does 
not occur due to the fault of the County (for a reason other than one permitted in this Agreement), then in 
any such event, the County shall be in material breach of this Agreement (each a "County Default"). 

In the event of a County Defau It, FLMC shall have the right to either (x) terminate th is Agreement, 
and, in such event, the Parties shall thereafter have no further rights, duties, or obligations under this 
Agreement, except for the Surviving Obligations; or (y) obtain specific performance from the County and, 
in the Action seeking specific pe1fo11nance, FLMC may also recover all Legal Fees it incurs in the Action 
obtaining the same. 

I 0.2 Default by FLMC or Covenant; County's Remedies. If (a) any representation or 
warranty of FLMC or Covenant contained in this Agreement is materially false when made or becomes 
materially false prior to the Closing due to any act or omission of FLMC, Covenant, or any Person for 
which either of them is responsible, (b) FLMC fails or otherwise refuses to perform any of its obligations 
under th is Agreement, and said failure or refusal continues for ten (I 0) days after it receives a written notice 
from the County specifying and demanding it remedy the same, or (c) the Closing does not occur due to the 
fault of FLMC or Covenant (for a reason other than one permitted in this Agreement), the same shall 
constitute a material breach of this Agreement by FLMC (each a "FLMC Default") . 

In the event of a FLMC Default, the County shall have the right to either (x) terminate this 
Agreement, and, in such event, the Parties shall thereafter have no fu1ther rights , duties, or obligations under 
this Agreement, except for the Surviving Obligations; or (y) obtain specific perfonnance from FLMC and, 
in the Action seeking specific performance, the County may also recover all Legal Fees it incurs in the 
Action obtaining the same. 

I 0.3 Lease. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Section I 0 or this Agreement 
to the contra1y, should the Closing not occur for any reason including the termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to this Section 10, the Lease shall remain in full force and effect. 

I 0.4 Survival. The provisions of this Section 10 shall survive the tennination of this 
Agreement. 

11. No Brokerage Commissions. 
11 .1 FLMC's Representations. FLMC hereby represents and warrants to the County 

that neither it nor Covenant has engaged any real estate agent, broker, finder, facilitator, or other 
intennediary in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. FLMC fu1ther represents 
and warrants to the County that there is no real estate, brokerage, commission, or similar payment owed in 
connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement to any party claiming through FLMC or 
Covenant or arising out of the actions of FLMC or Covenant. 

11.2 County's Representations. The County represents and warrants to FLMC and 
Covenant that the County has not engaged any real estate agent, broker, finder, facilitator, or other 
intennediary in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The County further 
represents and warrants to FLMC and Covenant that there is no real estate, brokerage, commission, or 
similar payment owed in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement to any party 
claiming through the County or arising out of the actions of the County . 

8 



11.3 Survival. The provisions of this Section 11 shall survive the Closing or the earlier 
termination of this Agreement. 

12. Notices. All notices, demands, elections, deliveries, and other communications between 
the Parties required or desired to be given in connection with this Agreement (for purposes of this Section 
12., each a "Notice"), to be effective under this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be 
given and received: (i) when personally delivered, (ii) when sent by electronic mail (i.e., email), (iii) one 
business day after sent by a reputable overnight courier and marked for next business day delivery, or (iv) 
three business days after deposit with the United States Postal Service as certified mail, return receipt 
requested; in each instance with all charges and/or postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 

If to FLMC: 

If to Covenant: 

If to the County: 

Fort Loudoun Medical Center 
550 Fort Loudoun Medical Center Drive 
Lenoir City, Tennessee 3 7771 
Attention: Jeffrey Feike, CAO 
Email: jfeike@covhlth.com 

Covenant Health 
I 00 Fort Sanders West Blvd. 
Knoxville, Tennessee 37922 
Attention: James D. VanderSteeg, President and CEO 
Email: jvanders@covhlth .com 

County of Loudon, Tennessee 
I 00 River Road, #I 06 
Loudon, Tennessee 37774 
Attention: Honorable Buddy Bradshaw 
Email: 

~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 12, if a Notice is delivered on a non
business day or after 6:00 p.m . (local time of the recipient) on a business day, then, in either event, the same 
shall not be deemed given or received until 9:00 a.m. (local time of the recipient) on the following business 
day. 

Any Party may from time to time designate another Person, physical address, mailing address, 
and/or email address for the receipt of future Notices by sending a Notice in accordance with the provisions 
of this Section 12 to the other Party to the Person(s) and address( es) set forth herein or as last provided by 
such other Party in accordance with the provisions of this Section 12. 

13. Risk of Loss. FLMC shall bear the risk of loss to the Property until the Closing; provided, 
that this provision shall not modify any of the provisions contained in the Lease. 

14. Casualtv. Should any Casualty occur prior to the Closing, the first Party to learn of the 
same shall promptly notify the others. Further, should a Casualty occur prior to the Closing, neither Party 
shall have the right to terminate th is Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall proceed to 
Closing according to the terms and conditions hereof. At Closing, all insurance proceeds shall be paid to 
FLMC, and the County shall assign to FLMC all rights to any such proceeds and all additional proceeds 
which may be owed resulting from such Casualty. The provisions of this Section 14 shall survive the 
Closing. 

15. Eminent Domain. If, prior to the Closing, all , any po1tion of, or any interest in the Prope1ty 

9 



shall be taken or threatened to be taken by eminent domain or deed in lieu thereof, the Pa1ty which first 
learns of the same shall promptly notify the others. In such event, FLMC shall thereafter have the absolute 
right, exercisable at any time prior to the Closing, to terminate this Agreement by delivering a notice to the 
County stating the same. Should FLMC exercise its right to tenninate this Agreement pursuant to the 
provisions of this Section 15 then, this Agreement shall terminate as of the date of FLMC's notice, and the 
Parties shall thereafter no further rights, duties, or obligations under this Agreement except for the Surviving 
Obligations. 

16. Additional Agreements and Obligations. 
16. l Right of First Refusal. Contemporaneous with the Closing and in partial 

consideration for the County entering into this Agreement and fulfilling all its obligations contained herein, 
FLMC shall grant to the County a right of first refusal (the "ROFR") to acquire the Property if, and only if, 
FLMC or any successor Covenant Entity (as defined in Section 16.3 below) shall elect, as determined in its 
sole and absolute discretion, to sell, transfer, or convey fee simple ownership of the Prope1ty or any portion 
thereof to a Party other than a Covenant Entity as a single, stand-alone transaction (as opposed to a 
transaction involving the sale, transfer or conveyance of multiple properties of FLMC and one or more 
other Covenant Entities), which ROFR shall be granted to the County in an agreement substantially similar 
to the one attached hereto as Exhibit D, which shall be recorded in Register's Office for Loudon County, 
Tennessee, as soon as practical after the Closing. For the avoidance of doubt, the pa1ties agree that the 
ROFR shall not arise in the context of(i) a merger, membership exchange or similar transaction to which 
Covenant is a party (regardless of whether Covenant is the surviving or controlling entity as a result of such 
transaction), or (ii) a transaction involving the sale of all or substantially all of the assets or properties of 
Covenant, or a transaction involving the sale of all or substantially all of the assets or properties of FLMC 
and one or more other Covenant Entities 

16 .2 Restrictions. The Parties acknowledge that the Restricted Lots are currently subject 
to ce1tain restrictions as set fo1th in A1ticfe I of that ce1tain Declaration of Restrictive Covenants and 
Easements dated August 13, 2004 and recorded in Book T741, page 263 in the Register's Office for Loudon 
County, Tennessee, to which instrument specific reference is hereby made and incorporated herein as if set 
out verbatim (the .. Declaration"). The Parties also acknowledge that Section 9 of the Declaration currently 
provides that the restrictions contained therein shall expire on August 13 , 2044. 

As part of the consideration for the County entering into this Agreement, FLMC covenants and 
agrees that if, and only if, the Closing occurs, it shall use commercially reasonable efforts, commencing 
promptly after the Closing, to enter into an amendment of the Declaration with the owners of the Restricted 
Lots (and those other paities which have an interest in the same), which amendment will have the effect of 
making pennanent the provisions restricting the use of the Restricted Lots. 

The provisions of this Section 16.2 shall survive the Closing. 

16.3 Establ ishrnent of Scholarships. Fol lowing the Closing and continuing thereafter 
for so long as FLMC or any Covenant Entity (each a "Covenant Entity'') owns the Property, FLMC or 
another Covenant Entity shall establish an annual scholarship in the amount of$5,000 (the "Scholarship .. ) 
for each of the three (3) high schools currently located in Loudon County, Tennessee (i.e., Lenoir City High 
School, Loudon County High School, and Greenback High School), which shall be awarded each calendar 
year to a Qualified Graduate (as defined below). 

As used in this Agreement, "Qualified Graduate" means an individual who is a graduating senior 
from one of the high schools currently located in Loudon County. Tennessee (i.e., Lenoir City High School, 
Loudon County High School and Greenback High School) and who (i) intends to pursue a degree in nursing 
or other clinical area approved by FLMC or Covenant (which may include an associates' degree, bachelor's 
degree, or another degree or certification acceptable to FLMC or the applicable Covenant Entity providing 
the Scholarship) from an appropriately-accredited school and (ii) who commits in a manner acceptable to 
the entity awarding the Scholarship to work in the field of nursing (or other approved clinical area) at a 

10 



Covenant owned or controlled facility in Loudon County following graduation for a period of at least three 
(3) years. 

The provisions of this Section 16.3 shall survive the Closing. 

16.4 Provision of Services to Inmates. The Parties acknowledge that FLMC and the 
County previously entered into a Services Agreement dated June 24, 2014, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit E (the "Jail Agreement") wherein FLMC agreed, subject to the provisions contained 
therein, to provide certain medical services from time to time to the inmates of the Loudon County Jail. The 
Paities agree that the Jail Agreement shall continue in effect following the Closing according to the tenns 
and conditions thereof, except that as regards Section 2 of the Jai I Agreement, the reference therein to thitiy
three percent (33%) shall be replaced with thitiy-two percent (32%). Patients who are provided services at 
Hospital under or pursuant to the Jail Agreement shall not be considered indigent patients as described in 
Section 16.5 below. Section 2 of the Jail Agreement shall be further modified to require FLMC to use 
commercially reasonable efforts to asce1tain whether County inmates who are provided medical services at 
the Hospital have medical benefit insurance coverage. If such coverage is determined to be available, 
FLMC shall be authorized to charge its standard negotiated billing rates applicable to such rnsurance 
coverage. 

The provisions of this Section 16.4 sh al I survive the Closing. 

16.5 Indigent Patients. Covenant and FLMC agree that FLMC shall provide treatment 
to indigent patients in accordance with the policies and practices of Covenant as the same exist from time 
to time. 

17. Miscellaneous. 
17.1 Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement contains all the representations 

and the entire agreement between the Patties with respect to the subject matter hereof. Any prior 
correspondence, discussions, memoranda, letters of intent, or agreements are superseded in total by this 
Agreement. 

17.2 Successors and Permitted Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon the 
Parties and their respective successors and assigns. 

17.3 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence with this Agreement and all the provisions 
thereof. 

17.4 Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterpaits which together shall constitute the agreement of the Patties. For purposes of executing this 
Agreement, a document signed and transmitted by electronic mail (i .e., email) in Portable Document Format 
(pdf) shall be treated as an original document, the signature of any Party thereon sh al I be considered an 
original signature, and the document transmitted shall be considered to have the same binding legal effect 
as an original signature on an original document. At the request of any Party, any document transmitted by 
email shall be re-executed by the Patties in original form. No Party may raise the fact that any signature 
was transmitted through the use of email as a defense to the enforcement of this Agreement or any 
amendment executed in compliance with this subsection. 

17.5 Proper Execution. This Agreement shall have no binding force or effect on any 
Party, shall not constitute an offer, and shall not confer any rights upon any Party or impose any obligations 
upon any Paiiy irrespective of any reliance thereon, change of position, or partial perfonnance unless and 
until such time as all the Parties have executed this Agreement. 

11 



17.6 No Presumption from Draftsmanship. In the event of a dispute involving the 
interpretation or construction of this Agreement involving FLMC, Covenant, the County, and/or any other 
party or patties, it shall be deemed that this Agreement was jointly drafted by all the parties to the dispute, 
and no rule of construction or presumption shall be asserted in favor or to the detriment of FLMC, Covenant, 
the County, or any other party based upon the identity of the party actually drafting this Agreement. 

17. 7 Severability. If any tenn or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof 
to any Person or circumstance shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, as evidenced by the final 
order of a comt of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such tenn 
or provision to Persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid or unenforceable, shall 
not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced to the 
fu II est extent penn itted by Law. 

17.& Use of Headings and Subheadings. The headings and subheadings used in this 
Agreement are for the purpose of convenience only and in no way define, describe, limit, or amplify the 
scope or intent of this Agreement or any of the provisions thereof. 

17 .9 Pronouns and Tense. Whenever used in this Agreement, as necessary to effectuate 
its purposes, the singular number shall include the plural, the plural shall include the singular, and the use 
of any gender shall be applicable to all genders. 

17.10 Governing Law. This Agreement and the performance thereof shall be governed, 
interpreted, construed, enforced, and regulated by the Laws of the State of Tennessee, without reference to 
its conflicts of laws principles. 

17.11 No Partnershig. This Agreement does not and shall not be construed to create a 
partnership, joint venture, or a relationship of principal and agent between the Parties or any of them. 
l nstead, the only relationship created by th is Agreement is that of transferor, transferee, and guarantor, as 
applicable. 

17.12 Dates. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the co11tra1y, 
wherever in this Agreement any provision governs the date of commencement or expiration of any time 
period, or the date of occu1Tence of any act or event, if such date would otherwise fall on a day other than 
a business day, then and in each such event, such date shall be deemed for all purposes of this Agreement 
to commence, expire, or occur, as the case may be, on the next succeeding day which is a business day. 

17.13 Force Majeure. If performance of any action by a Party is prevented or delayed by 
an Event of Force Majeure, the time for performance of such action will extended for the period that such 
action is delayed or prevented by such Event of Force Majeure; provided, that the Party asse1ting the right 
to additional time under this Section shall promptly give notice to the other Paities of the fact it is asserting 
the same, a reasonably-detailed description of its justification, and the estimated period of time such Event 
of Force Majeure shall delay its performance. 

17.14 Fu1ther Assurances. Each Patty covenants and agrees to sign, execute, 
acknowledge, deliver, and/or file of record, or cause to be signed, executed, acknowledged, delivered, 
and/or filed of record, and to do or make, or cause to be done or made, upon the reasonable written request 
of any other Party, any and all agreements, instruments, papers, acts, or things, supplemental, confirmatory, 
or otherwise, as may be reasonably required by any other Patty for the purpose of or in connection with 
confinning and consummating the matters described herein. The provisions of this Section 17.14 shall 
survive the Closing. 

12 



I 7. I 5 Assignment. FLMC shall have the absolute right to assign this Agreement to any 
Affiliate of FLMC; provided, that any such assignment shall not release FLMC or Covenant from any or 
all their obligations hereunder. In the event of an assignment, the assigning Pa1ty shall promptly notify the 
other Parties of the assignment and provide a copy of the document accomplishing the same once the 
assignment has been consummated. 

I 7. I 6 Effective Date. This Agreement shall become binding on the Parties 011 the 
Effective Date, which shall be the date it has been executed by all the Paiiies. The last Party to execute this 
Agreement is authorized to complete the date 011 the first page of this Agreement prior to returning it to the 
other Parties. 

17.17 lndemnitv. FLMC and Covenant, jointly and severally, covenant and agree to 
indemnify, defend, and hold the County hannless from and against any and all losses, damages, fines, fees, 
costs and expenses, including but not limited to attorney fees, which it incurs due to all Actions which are 
filed against the County, arising from or pe1iaining to the operations of FLMC under the Lease on or before 
the Closing Date and for any period thereafter. 

The provisions of this Section 17.17 shall survive the Closing. 

In Witness Whereof, the Paities have executed this Agreement through their duly authorized 
undersigned representatives to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

(Signature Pages of the Patiies follow) 

13 



Signature Page of FLMC 
(Attached to Agreement with Covenant Health and Loudon County, Tennessee) 

FLMC: 

FORT LOUDOUN MEDICAL CENTER, 
a Tennessee not-for-profit corporation 

Printed Name: Jeffrey Feike 

Title: President and CAO 

Date:----------------

14 



Signature Page of Covenant 
(Attached to Agreement with Fort Loudoun Medical Center and Loudon County, Tennessee) 

COVENANT: 

COVENANT HEALTH, 
a Tennessee not-for-profit corporation 

Printed Name: James 0. VanderSteeg 

Title : President and CEO 

15 



Signature Page of the County 
(Attached to Agreement with Fort Loudoun Medical Center and Covenant Health) 

COUNTY: 

LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, 
a county and political subdivision of the 
State of Tennessee 

Printed Name: Buddy Bradshaw 

Title : County Mayor 

Date:------ -----------

16 



Appendix 

Whenever used in the Agreement to Expand and Improve Fort Loudoun Medical Center between 
Loudon County, Tennessee, Fort Loudoun Medical Center, and Covenant Health or any Exhibit attached 
thereto, the following words and phrases shall have the following definitions unless the context shall clearly 
require otherwise. These defined te1ms are in addition to the terms specifically defined in the Agreement. 
These definitions shall also be applicable to the singular and plural forms of such words and phrases. 

"Action" shall mean any claim, action, suit, lawsuit, demand, proceeding, petition or investigation, 
including any proceeding involving eminent domain or tax certiorari proceeding, whether at law or in equity 
or before any cou1t, arbitrator, arbitration panel, or Governmental Authority. 

"Affiliate" shall mean, with respect to any Person, any Person that controls, is controlled by, or is 
under common control with such Person, together with its and their respective members, paitners, venturers, 
directors, officers, stockholders, agents, employees, spouses, legal representatives, successors, and assigns. 
A Person shall be presumed to have control when it possesses the power, directly or indirectly, to direct, or 
cause the direction of, the management or policies of another Person, whether through ownership of voting 
securities, by contract, or otherwise. 

"Agreement" shall mean the Agreement to Expand and Improve Fort Loudoun Medical Center to 
which this Appendix is attached. 

"business day" means a day other than a Saturday, a Sunday, a day designated as or determined to 
be a legal holiday observed by the federal government under 5 U.S.C. Section 6103, or a day designated as 
or detennined to be a holiday observed by the government of the State of Tennessee under Tennessee Code 
Annotated Section 15-1-10 I. 

"Casualty" shall mean any fire, flood, tornado, windstorm, ea1thquake, act of God, epidemic, 
pandemic, or other condition which causes damage to or delay in FLMC's performance of any of its duties 
hereunder and which was not caused by FLMC or any Person for whom it is legally responsible. 

"Closing Date" means the date on which ownership of the Prope1ty is transferred to FLMC. 

"Code" means the federal Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the provisions of any 
successor code with respect to the federal taxation of income of individuals, corporations, and other 
organizations, as applicable. 

"County Party" means the County, any Affiliate of the County, or any employee, contractor, agent, 
or representative of either of them. 

"Covenant Entity" shall have the meaning set fo1th in Section 16.3 of the Agreement. 

"Declaration" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 16.2 of the Agreement. 

"Enhancement Work" shall have the meaning given to it in Recital D of the Agreement, as more 
particularly described in Section 3 of the Work Letter attached to the Agreement 

"Entity" shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, general partnership, limited 
pa1tnership, joint venture, Governmental Authority, or any other legal entity. 

17 



"Event of Force Majeure" shall mean any event beyond the control of FLMC and may include, 
without limitation, weather, acts of God, epidemics, pandemics, interference by Governmental Authorities, 
civil disturbance, riots, strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, the inability to procure labor or materials, 
injunctions, Casualty, war, terrorist acts, or other events of a similar or dissimilar nature. 

"Firm" shall have the meaning set fo11h in Section 8.3 of this Agreement. 

"FLMC's Discretion" shall mean the discretion of FLMC, which may be withheld, conditioned, or 
delayed in FLMC sole and absolute subjective judgment. 

"Governing Body" shall mean the Loudon County Commission or such successor body as may be 
provided by Law. 

"Governmental Authority" shall mean any federal, State, county, municipal, local, or other 
governmental body or authority, or any department, commission, board, office, cou11, bureau, agency, or 
instrumentality thereof, and whether the same is domestic or foreign and, in each instance, has jurisdiction 
over the Property (or any portion thereof), FLMC, the County, or Covenant. 

"Jail Agreement" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 16.4 of the Agreement. 

"Laws" shall collectively mean all laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, court orders, 
permits, authorizations, executive orders, directives, guidelines, and other orders, and all interpretations of 
the foregoing issued by any Governmental Authority, and al I restrictive covenants, equitable servitudes, 
permissive use agreements, easements, and other agreements applicable to or affecting the Property or any 
portion thereof. 

"Legal Fees" collectively means all reasonable attorneys' fees, paralegal fees, expert witness fees, 
consultant fees, litigation expenses, costs of investigation, court costs, and other expenses incurred (i) 
obtaining legal advice regarding an event or circumstance and whether or not an Action is ever initiated, (ii) 
initiating or defending any Action, (iii) litigating any Action and pursuing or defending against all appeals 
thereof, and (iv) enforcing all remedies granted in any Action including collecting all amounts owed. 

"PCBs" shall mean polychlorinated biphenyls. 

"Permitted Encumbrances" shall collectively mean those matters specified in Exhibit B of the 
Agreement. 

"Person" shall mean an individual human being or an Entity. 

"Qualified Graduate" shall have the meaning set fo11h in Section 16.3 of the Agreement. 

"Restricted Lots" collectively means all the following tracts or parcels of land located in Loudon 
County, Tennessee and which are adjacent to the Land : 

(a) All of Lots I and 5 as shown on the Final Plat for Covenant Health recorded in Plat Cabinet 
F, Page 280 in the Loudon County Register's Office, to which plat specific reference is hereby made for a 
more particular description; and 

(b) All of Lots 2A and 28 as shown on that ce11ain plat entitled Covenant Health SID Lot 2 
recorded in Plat Cabinet F, Page 369 in the Loudon County Register's Office, to which plat specific 
reference is hereby made for a more particular description. 

18 



"ROFR" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 16. I of the Agreement. 

"Surviving Obligations" shall collectively mean those obligations of one, some, or all of the Pai1ies 
specified in the Agreement as surviving the termination of the Agreement and/or the Closing. 

"Title Insurance ComRany" shall mean a national or regional title insurance company chosen by 
and acceptable to FLMC and which is licensed to issue title insurance in the State of Tennessee. 

"Title Policy" collectively means (i) a standard ALTA Owner's Policy of Title Insurance (2006) 
which insures FLMC, at standard premium rates, that FLMC is the fee simple owner of the Property and 
without exception to any matter other than the Permitted Exceptions, and (ii) those endorsements thereto as 
may be reasonably requested by FLMC. 

"to FLMC's knowledge" shall mean the current actual (and not imputed) knowledge of the Person 
executing the Agreement on behalf of FLMC without any fu11her inquiry or investigation. 

"to Covenant's knowledge" shall mean the current actual (and not imputed) knowledge of the 
Person executing the Agreement on behalf of Covenant without any further inquiry or investigation. 

"to the County's knowledge" shall mean the cu1Tent actual (and not imputed) knowledge of the 
Person executing the Agreement on behalf of the County without any further inquiry or investigation. 

19 



Exhibit A 
(Description of the Land) 

SITUATED in District No. Two (2) of Loudon County, Tennessee, and within the corporate limits of the 
City of Lenoir City, Tennessee, being known and designated as all of Lot 3 as shown on the Final Plat for 
Covenant Health recorded in Plat Cabinet F, Page 280, in the Loudon County Register's Office, said lot 
being more particularly bounded and described as shown by map aforesaid, to which map specific reference 
is hereby made for a more particular description. 

BETNG the same property conveyed to Loudon County, Tennessee from Covenant Health by Warranty 
Deed dated November 9, 2004 and recorded in Deed Book 289, page 845 in the Loudon County Register's 
Office. 

TOGETHER WITH drainage easements, detention basin easements, ingress/egress and utility easements 
granted and established in Declaration of Restrictive Covenants and Easements made by Covenant Health 
dated August 13, 2004, filed for record in Trust Book 741, page 263 , in the Loudon County Register's 
Office, to the extent the same are appurtenant to Lot 3 described above. 

20 



Exhibit B 
(Pennitted Encumbrances) 

I. All ad valorem real property taxes for 2021 and all subsequent years; 
2. All applicable zoning and similar land use Laws; 
3. All encumbrances caused by FLMC or any Affiliate of FLMC during the County's ownership of 

the Land; 
4. Those applicable matters shown on the plat recorded in Plat Cabinet F, Page 280 in the Register's 

Office for Loudon County, Tennessee; 
5. Those applicable matters which would be shown on a current and accurate survey of the Property; 

and 
6. Those other matters which are acceptable to FLMC in FLMC 's Discretion. 

21 



Exhibit C 
(Work Letter) 

WORK LETTER 

1. GENERAL. This Work Letter sets forth the agreement of FLMC, Covenant, and the 
County with respect to the construction of certain improvements to the Land and Hospital following the 
Closing. 

2. DEFINED TERMS. As used in this Work Letter, the following terms shall have the 
following meanings unless the context clearly requires otherwise. Fu1ther, all capitalized terms used, but 
not defined in this Work Letter, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Lease. All other capitalized 
tenns used, but not defined, in this Work Letter shall have their ordinary and customary meanings. All 
definitions shall be applicable to both the singular and plural fonns of such words. 

(a) Building Permits. "Building Permits" shall collectively mean all pennits and 
approvals required from al I necessary Governmental Authorities for the construction of the Enhancement 
Work. 

(b) Occupancy Certifications. "Occupancy Ce1tifications" collectively means those 
certificates and authorizations with respect to the Enhancement Work which FLMC is required to obtain 
from all applicable Governmental Authorities in order for the same to be used for its intended purposes. 

(c) Project Architect. "Project Architect" means a Tennessee-licensed architect 
chosen and engaged by FLMC in FLMC's Discretion to design the Enhancement Work. 

(d) Punch List Items. "Punch List Items" collectively means those items which 
require co1Tection or adjustment upon initial completion of all the Enhancement Work, but which do not 
materially affect the utility or value of the same. 

(e) County Delay. "County Delay" means any material delay in the completion of the 
Enhancement Work caused in whole or in part by the County or any other County Party. As used in this 
definition. a material delay in the completion of the Enhancement Work means one or more actions or 
omissions by the County and/or another County Party, the aggregate effect of which delays the time for 
completion of the Enhancement Work by one (I) day or more. The Project Architect shall determine 
whether a County Delay has occurred and the extent of such County Delay, and his decision shall be 
conclusive and binding on the Patties . 

(f) Substantial Completion . "Substantial Completion" or "Substantially Completed'' 
means that level of completion of the Enhancement Work such that all elements thereof have been 
substantially completed in accordance with this Work Letter other than the Punch List Items. Substantial 
Completion shall be detennined by the Project Architect, whose decision shall be conclusive and binding 
on the Parties. The Project Architect shall issue a written statement to the County, Covenant and FLMC 
certifying when "Substantial Completion" of the Enhancement Work has been achieved . 

(g) Substantial Completion Date. "Substantial Completion Date" means the date 
upon which the Enhancement Work is Substantially Completed, as evidenced by the written statement of 
the Project Architect. 

3. CONSTRUCTION OF THE ENHANCEMENT WORK. 

(a) Scope of Enhancement Work. In accordance with and subject to the provisions of 
this Work Letter, FLMC shall, at FLMC's sole cost and expense, perform or contract for the perfonnance 
of that scope of work which is necessa1)' to (i) construct an additional twenty-five private patient rooms 
onto the Hospital, (ii) renovate and convert al I existing semi-private patient rooms in the Hospital into 
private patient rooms, (iii) renovation ofcertain areas of the Hospital necessary to accomplish the foregoing, 
and (iv) obtain all Occupancy Ceriifications for the foregoing (the work contemplated in this Section J(a) 
is collectively refeiTed to as the "Enhancement Work"). 

22 



(b) Design of Enhancement Work. FLMC shall cause the Enhancement Work to be 
designed and engineered, as appropriate, by architects and engineers who are authorized to perfonn such 
work (or their appropriate portion thereof) in the State of Tennessee. All aspects of the design, layout, and 
specifications of the Enhancement Work shall be decided by FLMC in FLMC's Discretion. 

(c) Construction of Enhancement Work. FLMC shall cause the Enhancement Work to 
be constructed by contractors who are licensed to perform such work (or their appropriate portion thereof) 
in the State of Tennessee. All contractors and subcontractors who are to perform the Enhancement Work 
shall be chosen by FLMC as detennined in FLMC's Discretion. 

FLMC shall cause the Enhancement Work to be constructed (i) in a good and workmanlike 
condition, (ii) using new materials, (iii) using standard quantities and procedures, and (iv) in substantial 
compliance with sound trade practices, all Laws, and the provisions of this Work Letter. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, FLMC's obligations under this Work Letter shall be subject to 
delays caused by (i) Casualties, (ii) Events of Force Majeure, and (iii) County Delays. 

FLMC shall determine, in FLMC's Discretion, when the Enhancement Work shall commence, as 
well as the sequence in which it shall be perfom1ed; provided that the Enhancement Work shall commence 
no later than twenty-four (24) months from the Effective Date (such date, or the actual date on which the 
Enhancement Work is commenced, if earlier, being referred to as the "Work Commencement Date"). 
FLMC shall provide the County with written notice of the Work Commencement Date. Once commenced, 
FLMC shall use commercially reasonable efforts to attain Substantial Completion of the Enhancement 
Work. 

Upon Substantial Completion of the Enhancement Work, the Project Architect shall issue a written 
statement to the County, Covenant, and FLMC ce1iifying that "Substantial Completion'' of the 
Enhancement Work has been achieved, which written statement shall be conclusive and binding on the 
Parties. 

(d) Ownership. The Pariies agree that FLMC shall be the sole owner of all the 
Enhancement Work. 

4. COST OF ENHANCEMENT WORK. FLMC agrees to expend not less than Twelve 
Million and No/I 00 Dollars ($12,000,000.00) (the "Minimum Investment") in performing the Enhancement 
Work. Those amounts which may be included in the calculation of the Minimum Investment include all the 
following: 

(a) All costs ofobtaining all Building Penn its and Occupancy Certifications; 
(b) All due diligence costs related to the title, geotechnical, and environmental 

condition of the Property; 
(c) All costs incurred in the surveying and design of the Enhancement Work; 
( d) All site preparation costs, costs of materials, and construction costs; 
(e) All costs for all payment bonds, performance bonds, letters of credit, and similar 

items; and 
(f) All costs of equipment, furnishings, and fixtures, legal, accounting, and consulting 

fees, capitalized interest, and financing costs. 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that it is their intent that the Minimum Investment include all 
costs of any nature whatsoever incurred by FLMC in connection with the design, construction, and opening 
of the Enhancement Work. FLMC may, in FLMC's Discretion, waive any requirement that any general 
contractor or subcontractor provide or post any bond, letter of credit, or other security. 

23 



5. DELAYS. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Agreement to the contrary, FLMC 
shall not be responsible for delays in attaining Substantia I Completion due to one or more Casualties, Events 
of Force Majeure, and/or County Delays. 

6. INSURANCE. Throughout the construction of the Enhancement Work, FLMC shall maintain 
or require its contractors to maintain (i) commercial general I iability insurance coverage of not less than $1 
million per occurrence for personal inju1y, bodily injury, death or property damage and an additional $2 
million of umbrella coverage or the equivalent thereof; (ii) builder's risk insurance for the full replacement 
value of the construction work comprising the Enhancement Work; and (iii) worker's compensation 
insurance in the minimum amounts required by Law. FLMC may also require any contractor to obtain and 
maintain such other types of insurance and in such amounts as FLMC may elect, in FLMC's Discretion, 
from time to time. 

24 



Exhibit D 
(Agreement for Right of First Refusal) 

[Sec document attached hereto] 

Exhibit E 
(Copy of the Jail Agreement) 

[See copy of Jail Agreement attached hereto] 

25 



SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this ,:),t/ ~ay 
of ~U_J__f , 2014 by and between Fort Loudoun Medical Center, a Te1me-;-~1011-
profit corporation (the "Hospital") and Loudon County, Tennessee, a political subdivision of the 
State of Tennessee, (the "County"). In consideration of the promises and mutual covenants herein. 
the parties agree as follows: 

1. Medical Services. To the extent requested by the County during the term of this 
Agreement, Hospital agrees to provide needed medical services to individuals who are then inmates 
in the Loudon County Jail (the "Iirn1ates"); provided that the medical services to be provided by 
Hospital shall be limited to those services that are (i) within the scope of Hospital's license, (ii) for 
which Hospital has the appropriate equipment and facilities to provide, and (iii) routinely provided 
by Hospital to patients . The medical services that are to be provided by Uospital and that are subject 
to this Agreement include the services of physicians who are employed by Hospital and who practice 
exclusively at Hospital, but do not include the services of other physicians who practice al Hospital 
but are not e111ployed by Hospital. 

2. Fees for MediCal Services. In consideration of the services to be provided by 
Hospital to Inmates, the County covenants and agrees to pay Hospital's fees for such services; 
provided, that Hospital agrees that the fees it charges for such services shall not exceed thirty-three 
percent (33%) of Hospital's standard fees, as reflected on its chargernaster. The County 
acknowledges and agrees that any individual that is brought to the Hospital by the County and with 
respect to which the County indicates such individual is an inmate and for which the County requests 
medical treatment shall be treated as an Inmate for all purposes under this Agreement until such time 
as such individual is discharged by Hospital, and lhe County slrnll be responsible for all fees for such 
individual's medical services in accordance with the terms hereof. Hospital shall bill the County for 
the services it provides to hunales pursuant to the terms hereof no less often than monthly, and the 
County shall pay such fees within fifteen (15) days of receipt of an invoice. 

3. Security. The parties acknowledge that treatment of the ]nmales by Hospital presents 
issues of safety and security that Hospital does not normally face in the treatment of its other 
patients . The parties agree that the County shall provide any and all law enforcement personnel 
necessary to assure that the Hospital premises remain a safo and secure environment and that the 
Inmates do not injure or harm any Hospital personnel , patients or others while on I lospital premises. 

4. Term. Subject to sooner termination as provided for herein, this Agreement shall be 
for a term of one (1) year commencing Oil.. - \-( ; iu 6 I , 2014. This Agreement shall 
automatically renew for successive one (1) year terms 1unless either paiiy shall notify the other in 
writing at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the then current term that such paity does not 
wish to so renew this Agreement. 



5. Termination. 

(a) Eilher parly may terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days prior written 
notice to the other party. 

(b) Hospital may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to 
County in the event of the material breach by County of any or its duties and obi igations under this 
Agreement, which remain uncured or unrernedied for a period of five (5) days after written notice of 
such breach is given by Hospital to County specifying the event or facts constituting such breach. 

(c) Hospital shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon 
notice to County in the event (I) either Hospital has received an opinion of its counsel that, by reason 
of the terms or existence of this Agreement, Hospital, any of ils afiiliales or their directors, officers 
or employees might (i) suffer the loss of its tax-exempt stalus or incur excise taxes under 
"intermediate sanctions" regulations, (ii) Jose its right to participate in Medicare, TennCare 
(Medicaid) or other governmental reimbursement programs, or (iii) otherwise be in violalion of any 
Jaw, rule or regulation, and (II) Hospital and County are unable lo promptly reach an agreement on 
amendments to this Agreement !hat, in lhe opinion of such counsel, would serve to cure such 
violations and eliminate such risks on the part of! Iospital, its affiliates and/or their directors, officers 
or employees. 

(d) The parties agree fmther that upon termination oflhis Agreement, whether by 
County or Hospital, and whether or not for cause, the following terms and conditions shall apply: 

(1) Any Trunates then being treated at Hospital shall be discharged or 
transferred to another facility, as appropriate, as soon as it is practical and medically appropriate 
under the circumstances. 

(2) The County shall pay all fees clue Hospital for services provided by 
Hospital to Inmates through the date oftennination and all fees for Inmates who are inpatients on the 
date of termination through the date such Inmates are discharged or transferred to another facility. 

6. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire underslanding of the parties 
regarding County's relationship with Hospital and supersedes any current or prior agreements 
between the parties which shall be of no further force or effect as of the effective date of this 
Agreement. 

7. Binding Effect. All the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be binding 
upon and shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the respective permitted successor and 
assigns of the paiiies . 

8. Notices. Any notice, demand or communication required , permitted or desired to be 
given hereunder, shall be deemed effectively given when personally delivered or mailed by prepaid 
ce1tified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

2 



County: 

Hospital: 

Loudon County, Tennessee 
Joe 81. 1/f: 12- r{L,_.1-_,_? =c!'-' _____ _ 

0 _k_ //() 
.~~-----·--~ ·-~---

Loudon, Tennessee .,_3 ·-; ·;· / -'·i' 
At·(· ' \ '":.._, C\ i : ..,_.. ,.<,_· ' ' .,"JO 11. .._J (_, I-, "--' ,, _t..Jlf :. / , ... - · 

Fort Loudoun Medical Center 
550 Fort Loudoun Medical Center Drive 
Lenoir City, Te1111essee 37772 
Attn: Jeffrey Feike 

or to such other address and to the attention of such other person( s) or officer(s) as either party may 
designate by written notice. 

9. Amendments and Agreement Execution. This Agreement ancl m11endments thereto 
shall be in writing and executed in multiple copies on bchalfof Hospital and County. Each multiple 
copy shall be deemed an original, but all multiple copies together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

10. Severa bility. In the event any prov1s1011 of this Agreement is held to be 
unenforceable for any reason, the l1!1enforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder or this 
Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

11. Headings. The headings contained in this Agreement me for reference purposes only 
and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of thi~ Agreement. 

12. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. The parties acknowledge and agree that this 
Agreement is for the benefit of the parties hereto and for no other p<H'ly, and that only the pa1iies 
hereto may enforce or obtain damages related to a breach of this Agreement. 

3 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Hospital and County have executed this Agreement as of the 
date first above written. 

Hospital 

LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

Title : ._.:. ;,~:_L_· ----·-·-·------.. - -----

County 

4 



This Instrument Prepared By: 
Jason T. Murphy, Attorney 
Frantz, McConnell & Seymour, LLP 
550 W. Main Street, Suite 500 
Knoxville, Tennessee 37902 

AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL 

This Agreement for Right of First Refusal (this Agreement") is made this __ day of 
_________ , 2021 (the "Effective Date"), by and between 

FORT LOUDOUN MEDICAL CENTER, a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing 
under the Jaws of the State of Tennessee ("FLMC"), and 

LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, a county and political subdivision of the State of Tennessee 
(the "County"). 

FLMC and the County are sometimes jointly referred to as the "Parties" or individually as a "Party." 

RECITALS: 

A. FLMC has this day acquired from the County the fee simple title to those certain tracts or 
parcels of land located in Loudon County, Tennessee which are described on the Exhibit A attached hereto 
(jointly, the "Land"). 

B. As a condition to the County transferring ownership of the Property to FLMC, the County 
requires FLMC to, among other things, grant it a right of first refusal to acquire the Property in the 
circumstances described herein, and FLMC is willing to grant the County such a right of first refusal on the 
terms and conditions contained in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the payment of Ten Dollars ($10.00), and 
other good and valuable consideration exchanged between the Parties, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Recitals; Definitions and Exhibits. 
1.1 Recitals . The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made a part of 

this Agreement. 

1.2 Certain Definitions. Those terms listed on the Appendix attached to this 
Agreement shall have the meanings set forth therein whenever used in this Agreement or any Exhibits 
attached hereto, unless the context clearly requires otherwise. All definitions shall also be applicable to the 
singular and plural fonns of such words and terms. Likewise, those words and terms which are defined in 
the body of this Agreement shall have the meaning given to them whenever used in this Agreement or any 
of the Exhibits attached hereto. 

1.3 Exhibits. The Exhibits listed below are attached to and incorporated into this 
Agreement by reference. In the event of any inconsistency between such Exhibits and the provisions of 
this Agreement, the provisions of the Exhibits shall control. The Exhibits attached to this Agreement are: 



Appendix 
Exhibit A 

2. Right of First Refusal. 

Defined Terms 
Description of the Land 

2.1 Use of Defined Term FLMC in this Section. Whenever "FLMC" is used in this 
Section 2, it refers to Fort Loudon Medical Center or any Covenant Entity which owns the fee simple 
interest in the Land or any portion thereof at the time any of the events contemplated in this Section 2 
occurs. 

2.2 Grant of Right ofFirst Refusal. Subject to the provisions in this Agreement, FLMC 
hereby grants to the County a right of first refusal (the "ROFR") to acquire the Property if, and only if, 
FLMC shall elect, as determined in its sole and absolute discretion, to sell, transfer, or convey fee simple 
ownership of the Property or any portion thereof to a party other than a Covenant Entity as a single, stand
alone transaction (as opposed to a transaction involving the sale, transfer or conveyance of multiple 
properties ofFLMC and one or more other Covenant Entities). For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties agree 
that the ROFR shall not arise in the context of (i) a merger, membership exchange or similar transaction to 
which FLMC or Covenant is a party (regardless of whether FLMC or Covenant is the surviving or 
controlling entity as a result of such transaction), or (ii) a transaction involving the sale of all or substantially 
all of the assets or properties ofFLMC or Covenant, or a transaction involving the sale ofall or substantially 
all of the assets or properties ofFLMC and one or more other Covenant Entities. 

2.3 Notice of Third Party Offer. In the event FLMC shall desire to sell, transfer, or 
convey the fee sin1ple interest in the Property or any portion thereof in a transaction giving rise to the ROFR 
pursuant to Section 2.2 above, it shall first obtain a bona fide written offer from a Third Party that desires 
to acquire the same and which FLMC desires to accept (the "Third Party Offer"). The Third Party Offer 
must (a) contain all the tenns and conditions of the proposed sale and purchase (which shall consist of, 
among other things, a cash purchase price), and (b) a description ofthe Land or portion thereof which is to 
be acquired by the Third Party (the "Offered Land") . 

FLMC shall promptly send written notice of the Third Par1y Offer to the County after it receives 
the same. Said notice shall also include (a) a true and exact copy of the Third Party Offer, and (b) a written 
offer from FLMC offering to sell, transfer, and convey the Offered Property to the County on the same 
terms and conditions contained in the Third Party Offer (the "FLMC Offer"). 

The County shall have thirty (30) days after it receives the notice and FLMC Offer within which to 
accept the same, as determined in the County's sole and absolute discretion. Should the County desire to 
accept the FLMC Offer, it shall do so by signing the FLMC Offer and returning it to FLMC within said 30-
day period. The County shall be required to pay all earnest money and perform any other requirements set 
forth in the FLMC Offer which are necessary for it to accept the same. 

2.4 Acceptance ofFLMC Offer. If the County accepts the FLMC Offer within the time 
period and othenvise in accordance with the provisions of the FLMC Offer, the Parties shall proceed in 
accordance with the terms of the FLMC Offer. 

2.5 Failure to Accept FLMC Offer. 
(a) If the County does not accept the FLMC Offer within thirty (30) days after 

it receives the same from FLMC, the ROFR for the Offered Land shall automatically terminate and shall 
no longer arise in the connection with any foture or subsequent sale, transfer or conveyance of the Offered 
Land or any portion thereof or interest therein, subject to the provisions in subsection (b) below. 

(b) If the County does not accept the Third Party Offer and either (i) FLMC 
does not thereafter accept the Third Party Offer or (i) FLMC accepts the Third Party Offer, but FLMC and 
the Third Party do not subsequently close on the Third Party Offer on substantially the same material terms 
and conditions which were contained in the Third Party Offer previously submitted to the County, the 

2 



County's ROFR with respect to the Offered Land shall automatically be reinstated, and FLMC shall be 
required to either resubmit the revised Third Party Offer to the County for its review and possible 
acceptance or submit any new Third Party Offer it receives for the Offered Land in the future to the County 
in the manner specified above. 

2.6 Sale without Notice to the County. Any sale, transfer, or conveyance of the fee 
simple interest in the Land or any portion thereof by FLMC in violation of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall not extinguish the ROFR, but rather such sale, transfer, or conveyance shall be made subject thereto 
such that the County shall still have the ROFR with respect to the Land or portion thereof that was sold, 
transferred, or conveyed. 

2. 7 Term. The ROFR shall commence on the Effective Date, and shall continue in full 
force and effect until the first of the following events occur: 

(a) The date on which the County reacquires the fee simple interest in the 
Land from FLMC or a Covenant Entity, if ever; provided, that if the County only acquires a portion of the 
Land, the portion of the Land not acquired by the County shall remain subject to the ROFR except as set 
forth below; 

(b) If FLMC grants a lien or other security interest in the Land or a portion 
thereof by executing a mortgage, deed of trust, or other instrument (each a "Mortgage") to or for the benefit 
of a Bank, and said Bank subsequently forecloses on the Mortgage or accepts a deed in lieu of foreclosure 
for the Property or portion thereof (each a "Foreclosure Event"), then the Property or portion thereof upon 
which the Foreclosure Event occurs shall be released from the ROFR; and 

( c) If the Land is offered for sale to the County in accordance with the 
provisions of this Section 2, the date on which the County declines to repurchase it or fails to accept the 
Third Party Offer within the time permitted for the same, all in accordance with Section 2.5, but subject to 
the reinstatement provisions contained therein. 

2.8 Only Portion of the Land Included. Should the Offered Land not include all the 
Land, but instead only a portion thereof, then the portion of the Land not included therein shall continue to 
be subject to the ROFR and the provisions of this Agreement. 

2.9 Recording. This Agreement may be recorded in the Register's Office for Loudon 
County, Tennessee at the request and expense of the County. 

3. Notices. All notices, demands, elections, deliveries, and other communications between 
the Parties required or desired to be given in connection with this Agreement (for purposes of this Section 
J, each a "Notice"), to be effective under this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be 
given and received (a) when delivered personally, (b) one business day after deposit with a national 
overnight courier service (e.g., Federal Express, UPS, DHL, or Airborne) and marked for overnight priority 
delivery, or (c) three business days after deposit with the United States Postal Service as certified mail, 
return receipt requested; in each event with all charges and postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 

Ifto FLMC: 

With Copies To: 

Fort Loudoun Medical Center 
550 Fort Loudoun Medical Center Drive 
Lenoir City, Tennessee 37771 
Attention: President 

Covenant Health 
100 Fort Sanders West Blvd. 
Knoxville, Tennessee 37922 

3 



Attention: Chief Executive Officer 

And: Covenant Health 

If to County: 

With a Copy To: 

100 Fort Sanders West Blvd. 
Knoxville, Tennessee 37922 
Attention: General Counsel 

County of Loudon, Tennessee 
100 River Road, # 106 
Loudon, Tennessee 3 777 4 
Attention: County Mayor 

County of Loudon, Tennessee 
100 River Road, #106 
Loudon, Tennessee 37774 
Attention: County Law Director 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any Notice is sent by personal delivery and is delivered on a day other 
than a business day or after 5 :00 p.m. on a business day, the same shall not be considered received until the 
first business day after the day on which it was delivered. 

Either Party may from time to time designate another person or address for the receipt of future 
Notices by giving a Notice in accordance with this Section 3 to the other Party to the person and at the 
address set forth herein, or as last provided by such other Party in accordance with the provisions of this 
Section 3. 

4. Miscellaneous. 
4.1 Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement contains all the representations 

and the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. Any prior 
correspondence, discussions, memoranda, letters of intent, or agreements are superseded in total by this 
Agreement. 

4.2 No Assignment. The County shall not have the right to assign the ROFR or any of 
its rights contained in this Agreement except with the written consent of Covenant, which consent may be 
withheld, conditioned, or delayed in its sole and absolute discretion. 

4.3 Successors and Permitted Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon the 
Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

4.4 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence with this Agreement and all the provisions 
thereof. 

4.5 Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed rn any number of 
counterparts which together shall constitute the agreement of the Parties. 

4.6 Proper Execution. This Agreement shall have no binding force or effect on either 
Party, shall not constitute an offer, and shall not confer any rights upon any Party or impose any obligations 
upon any Party irrespective of any reliance thereon, change of position, or partial performance unless and 
until such time as all the Parties have executed this Agreement. 

4 



4.7 No Presumption from Draftsmanship. In the event of a dispute involving the 
interpretation or construction of this Agreement involving FLMC, the County, and/or any other party or 
parties, it shall be deemed that this Agreement was jointly drafted by all the parties to the dispute, and no 
rule of construction or presumption shall be asserted in favor or to the detriment of FLMC, the County, or 
any other party based upon the identity of the party actually drafting this Agreement. 

4.8 Severability. If any tenn or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof 
to any Person or circumstance shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, as evidenced by the final 
order of a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term 
or provision to Persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid or unenforceable, shall 
not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced to the 
fullest extent permitted by Law. 

4.9 Use of Headings and Subheadings. The headings and subheadings used in this 
Agreement are for the purpose of convenience only and in no way define, describe, limit, or amplify the 
scope or intent of this Agreement or any of the provisions thereof. 

4.10 Pronouns and Tense. Whenever used in this Agreement, as necessary to effectuate 
its purposes, the singular number shall include the plural, the plural shall include the singular, and the use 
of any gender shall be applicable to all genders. 

4.11 Governing Law. This Agreement and the perfmmance thereof shall be governed, 
interpreted, construed, enforced, and regulated by the Laws of the State of Tennessee, without reference to 
its conflict oflaws principles. 

4.12 No Partnership. This Agreement does not and shall not be construed to create a 
partnership, joint venture, or a relationship of p1incipal and agent between the Parties. Instead, the only 
relationship created by this Agreement is that of granter and grantee. 

4.13 Dates. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, 
wherever in this Agreement any provision governs the date of commencement or expiration of any time 
period, or the date of occurrence of any act or event, if such date would otherwise fall on a day other than 
a business day, then and in each such event, such date shall be deemed for all purposes of this Agreement 
to commence, expire, or occur, as the case may be, on the next succeeding day which is a business day. 

4.14 Force Majeure. If perfomrnnce of any action by a Party is prevented or delayed by 
an Event of Force Majeure, the time for performance of such action will extended for the period that such 
action is delayed or prevented by such Event of Force Majeure; provided, that the Party asserting the right 
to additional time under this Section shall promptly give notice to the other Party of the fact it is asserting 
the same, a reasonably-detailed description of its justification, and the estimated period of time such Event 
of Force Majeure shall delay its performance. 

4.15 Further Assurances. Each Party covenants and agrees to sign, execute, 
acknowledge, deliver, and/or file of record, or cause to be signed, executed, acknowledged, delivered, 
and/or filed of record, and to do or make, or cause to be done or made, upon the reasonable written request 
of the other Party, any and all agreements, instruments, papers, acts, or things, supplemental, confirmatory, 
or otherwise, as may be reasonably required by the other Party for the purpose of or in connection with 
confinning and consummating the matters described herein. 

5 



4.16 Rule Against Perpetuities. In the event any provision in this Addendum shall be 
invalid due to the time limitations, or lack thereof, then such event or events shall be required to be 
perfonned prior to period provided in Tennessee Code Annotated Section 66-1-20 I, et seq. 

4.1 7 No Conveyance Tax Owed. This Agreement grants certain rights a governmental 
entity and therefore is this Agreement is exempt from the payment of conveyance tax upon its recording in 
the Register's Office for Loudon County, Tennessee. 

In Witness Whereof, the Parties have executed this Agreement through their duly authorized 
undersigned representatives to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

(Signature Pages of the Parties follow) 

6 



Signature Page of FLMC 
(Attached to Agreement for Right of First Refusal with Loudon County, Tennessee) 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
COUNTY OF ------ )ss. 

FLMC: 

FORT LOUDOUN MEDICAL CENTER, 
a Tennessee not-for-profit corporation 

Printed Name: Jeffrey Feike 

Title: President and CAO 

Before me, a Notary Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared Jeffrey 
Feike, with whom I am personally acquainted (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) and 
who, upon oath, acknowledged himself to be the President and CAO of Fort Loudoun Medical Center, the 
within named bargainor, a Tennessee not-for-profit corporation, and that he as such President and CAO 
executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose therein contained by signing the name of the corporation 
by himself as President and CAO. 

Witness my hand and seal this ___ day of ____________ , 2021. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: ______ _ 

7 



Signature Page of the County 
(Attached to Agreement Right of First Refusal with Fort Loudoun Medical Center) 

STATE OF TENNESSEE ) 
COUNTY OF LOUDON )ss. 

COUNTY: 

LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, 
a county and political subdivision of the 
State of Tennessee 

Printed Name: Buddy Bradshaw 

Title: County Mayor 

Before me, a Notary Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared Buddy 
Bradshaw, with whom I am personally acquainted (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) 
and who, upon oath, acknowledged himself to be the County Mayor of Loudon County, Tennessee, the 
within named bargainor, a county and political subdivision of the State of Tennessee, and that he as such 
County Mayor executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose therein contained by signing the name 
of the County by himself as County Mayor. 

Witness my hand and seal this ___ day of __________ ___ ., 2021. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: _______ _ 

8 



Appendix 

Whenever used in the Agreement for Right of First Refusal between Fort Loudoun Medical Center 
and Loudon County, Tennessee, or any Exhibit attached thereto, the following words and phrases shall have 
the following definitions unless the context shall clearly require otherwise. These defined terms are in 
addition to the terms specifically defined in the Agreement. These definitions shall also be applicable to the 
singular and plural fonns of such words and phrases. 

"Affiliate" shall mean, with respect to any Person, any Person that controls, is controlled by, or is 
under common control with such Person, together with its and their respective members, partners, venturers, 
directors, officers, stockholders, agents, employees, spouses, legal representatives, successors, and assigns. 
A Person shall be presumed to have control when it possesses the power, directly or indirectly, to direct, or 
cause the direction of, the management or policies of another Person, whether through ownership of voting 
securities, by contract, or otherwise. 

"Agreement" shall mean the Agreement for Right of First Refusal to which this Appendix is 
attached. 

"Bank" shall mean a bank, insurance company, or other lending institution. 

"business day" means a clay other than a Saturday, a Sunday, a day designated as or determined to 
be a legal holiday observed by the federal government under 5 U.S.C. Section 6103, or a day designated as 
or determined to be a holiday observed by the government of the State of Tennessee under Tennessee Code 
Annotated Section 15-1-101 . 

"County" means Loudon County, Tennessee, a county and political subdivision of the State of 
Tennessee. 

"Covenant" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.5 of the Agreement. 

"Covenant Entity" shall mean FLMC, Covenant, or any Affiliate of either of them. 

"Effective Date" shall have the meaning set forth in the title block of the Agreement. 

"Entity" shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, general partnership, limited 
partnership, joint venture, Governmental Authority, or any other legal entity. 

"Event of Force Majeure" shall mean any event beyond the control of FLMC and may include, 
without limitation, weather, acts of God, epidemics, pandemics, interference by Governmental Authorities, 
civil disturbance, riots, strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, the inability to procure labor or materials, 
injunctions, Casualty, war, terrorist acts, or other events of a similar or dissimilar nature. 

"FLMC" means Fort Loudoun Medical Center, a Tennessee not-for-profit corporation. 

"FLMC Offer" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2 of the Agreement. 

9 



"Foreclosure Event" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(b) of the Agreement. 

"Governmental Authority" shall mean any federal, State, county, municipal, local, or other 
governmental body or authority, or any department, commission, board, office, court, bureau, agency, or 
instrumentality thereof, and whether the same is domestic or foreign and, in each instance, has jurisdiction 
over the Property (or any portion thereof), FLMC or the County. 

"Land" shall have the meaning set forth in Recital A of the Agreement. 

"Laws" shall collectively mean all Jaws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, court orders, 
permits, authorizations, executive orders, directives, guidelines, and other orders, and all interpretations of 
the foregoing issued by any Governmental Authority, and all restrictive covenants, equitable servitudes, 
permissive use agreements, easements, and other agreements applicable to or affecting the Property or any 
portion thereof. 

"Mortgage" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(b) of the Agreement. 

"Notice" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement. 

"Offered Land" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2 of the Agreement. 

"Parties" shall have the meaning set forth in the title block of the Agreement. 

"Party" shall have the meaning set forth in the title block of the Agreement. 

"Person" shall mean an individual human being or an Entity. 

"Property" shall have the meaning set forth in Recital A of the Agreement. 

"ROFR" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.1 of the Agreement. 

"Third Party" means any Person other than a Covenant Entity. 

"Third Party Offer" means a Person other than a Covenant Entity. 

10 



Exhibit A 
(Description of the Land) 

SITUATED in District No. Two (2) of Loudon County, Tennessee, and within the corporate limits of the 
City of Lenoir City, Tennessee, being known and designated as all of Lot 3 as shown on the Final Plat for 
Covenant Health recorded in Plat Cabinet F, Page 280, in the Loudon County Register's Office, said lot 
being more particularly bounded and described as shown by map aforesaid, to which map specific reference 
is hereby made for a more particular description. 

BEING the same property conveyed to Loudon County, Tennessee from Covenant Health by Warranty 
Deed dated November 9, 2004 and recorded in Deed Book 289, page 845 in the Loudon County Register's 
Office. 

TOGETHER WITH drainage easements, detention basin easements, ingress/egress and utility easements 
granted and established in Declaration of Restrictive Covenants and Easements made by Covenant Health 
dated August 13, 2004, filed for record in Trust Book 7 41, page 263, in the Loudon County Register's 
Office, to the extent the same are appurtenant to Lot 3 described above. 

11 



Loudon County Commission 

TOSHA Resolution for Updated Safety 
and Health Plan 



Rev i sed Ap r il 202 1 
RESOLUTION NUMBER _____ _ 

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH AN UPDATED OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH PROGRAM PLAN, 
DEVISE RULES AND REGULATIONS, AND TO PROVIDE FOR A SAFETY DIRECTOR AND THE 
IMPLEMENTATION OF SUCH PROGRAM PLAN 

WHEREAS, in compliance with Public Chapter 561 of the General Assembly of the State of Tennessee for the year 
1972, the Loudon County Commission hereby updates the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for our 
employees. 

WHEREAS, due to various changes in subsequent years, it has become necessary to amend the program plan to 
comply with more recent state requirements. 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

SECTION 1. BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Loudon County Commission that there be and is hereby amended as 
follows: 

TITLE: 

This section shall be known as "The Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan" for the employees of Loudon 
County Tennessee. 

PURPOSE: 
The Loudon County Commission in electing to update the established Program Plan will maintain an effective and 
comprehensive Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for its employees and shall: 

1) Provide a safe and healthful place and condition of employment that includes: 
a) Top Management Commitment and Employee Involvement 
b) Continually analyze the worksite to identify all hazards and potential hazards 
c) Develop and maintain methods for preventing or controlling the existing or potential hazards; and 
d) Train managers, supervisors , and employees to understand and deal with worksite hazards. 

2) Acquire, maintain and require the use of safety equipment, personal protective equipment and devices 
reasonably necessary to protect employees. 

3) Record , keep, preserve, and make available to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development, or 
persons within the Department of Labor and Workforce Development to whom such responsibilities have been 
delegated, adequate records of all occupational accidents and illnesses and personal injuries for proper 
evaluation and necessary corrective action as required . 

4) Consult with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development with regard to the adequacy of the 
form and content of records. 

5) Consult with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development, as appropriate, regarding safety and 
health problems which are considered to be unusual or peculiar and are such that they cannot be achieved 
under a standard promulgated by the State. 

6) Provide reasonable opportunity for the participation of employees in the effectuation of the objectives of 
th is Program Plan, including the opportunity to make anonymous complaints concerning conditions or 

1 



practices injurious to employee safety and health. 

7) Provide for education and training of personnel for the fair and efficient administration of occupational 
safety and health standards and provide for education and notification of all employees of the existence of this 
Program Plan. 

COVERAGE: 

The provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for the employees of Loudon County Tennessee 
shall apply to all employees of each administrative department, commission, board, division, or other agency whether 
part-time or full-time, seasonal or permanent. 

STANDARDS AUTHORIZED: 

The Occupational Safety and Health standards adopted by the Loudon County Commission are the same as, but not 
limited to, the State of Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Standards promulgated, or which may be 
promulgated, in accordance with Section 6 of the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972 (T.C.A. 
Title 50, Chapter 3) . 

VARIANCES FROM STANDARDS AUTHORIZED: 

Upon written application to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development of the State of Tennessee, we 
may request an order granting a temporary variance from any approved standards. Applications for variances shall 
be in accordance with Rules of Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development Occupational Safety 
and Health, VARIANCES FROM OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH STANDARDS, CHAPTER 0800-01-02, 
as authorized by T.C.A., Title 50. Prior to requesting such temporary variance, we will notify or serve notice to our 
employees, their designated representatives, or interested parties and present them with an opportunity for a hearing. 
The posting of notice on the main bulletin board shall be deemed sufficient notice to employees. 

ADMINISTRATION: 

For the purposes of this resolution, the Facilities Maintenance Director is designated as the Safety Director of 
Occupational Safety and Health to perform duties and to exercise powers assigned to plan, develop, and administer 
this Program Plan. The Safety Director shall develop a plan of operation for the Program Plan in accordance with 
Rules of Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development Occupational Safety and Health, SAFETY 
AND HEALTH PROVISIONS FOR THE PUBLIC SECTOR, CHAPTER 0800-01-05, as authorized by T.C.A., Title 50. 

FUNDING THE PROGRAM PLAN: 

Sufficient funds for administering and staffing the Program Plan pursuant to this resolution shall be made available as 
authorized by the Loudon County Commission. 

SEVERABILITY: 

SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 
this resolution is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion 
shall be deemed separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions hereof. 

AMENDMENTS, ETC: 

SECTION 3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall take effect from and after the date it shall have 

2 



been passed, properly signed, certified, and has met all other legal requirements, and as otherwise provided by law, 
the general welfare of the Loudon County Commission, requiring it. 

(Executive) (Date) 

--------------------(Passed First Reading) 

3 



PLAN OF OPERATION FOR THE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH 
PROGRAM PLAN FOR THE EMPLOYEES OF LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

SECTION PAGE 

I. PURPOSE AND COVERAGE ...... .. .. .. .... .. .......... .. ...... .. .... .......... .... ...... .. ..... .. .... .... ..... .. .. ... 4 

II. DEFINITIONS .. .. ......... .. ...... .. ...... .... ..... .. ...... .... .... ... ... .. .. .... .. .. .. .... ... ..... ... .. ... ... .. ...... ........ ... .. 4 

Ill. EMPLOYER'S RIGHTS AND DUTIES .... ........ .. ... .................. .. .... .. ... .. .... .......... .... .. .. ......... 5 

IV. EMPLOYEE'S RIGHTS AND DUTIES .......... ........ .... .. ...... .. ... ... ..... .... .. ................ .. ... ......... 6 

V. ADMINISTRATION ....... .. .. ...... .... .. .. .. .. ....... ...... .. .. ... .. ... .. .... ............. ... .... ..... ... ... .. .. .. .... ... ... ... 7 

VI. STANDARDS AUTHORIZED .. ........ .... .... .... .... ............ ... ... ... .. .. .. ..... ..... ...... .. .......... ............ 8 

VII. VARIANCE PROCEDURE .... .. .... .... .... .. .... .... .. .. ....... ........ ........ .......... .......... ..... ... ........ ... .... 8 

VIII. RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING ... ...... .... .... .. ...... .. .. .. ......... .. ...... .... ......... .. .... .. .. .... .. 9 

IX. EMPLOYEE COMPLAINT PROCEDURE ..... .. .. ...... ............ ... ... ... ..... ............. ...... .. .. .......... . 9 

x. EDUCATION AND TRAINING .. ..... ... .... .. .. .... .... .... .... ............... .. ... ..... .... .. .. ........ .. .. ............. 10 

XI. GENERAL INSPECTION PROCEDURES ... ...... .... ... ........ .. .. .. ......... ... .. .. .. ... .. .... .. .. ... ... ...... 11 

XII. IMMINENT DANGER PROCEDURES .... ....... .. .. .. ... .. ....... .. ........ .... .. .. ........ .. ...... .. .............. 12 

XIII. ABATEMENT ORDERS AND HEARINGS ... .... ....... .. ... ........ .. ... .. ... ......... .. ...... .. .. ... .. .. .. .. .. .. 13 

XIV. PENALTIES ...... .......... ...... ... ......... ..... ... .. .. ....... .... ........ ....... .. .. ... .. .... ... .......... ...... ... .... .. ... ... .. 13 

XV. CONFIDENTIALITY OF PRIVILEGED INFORMATION .. .... ... .. .. .. ... ......... .... ... ............ .. .... 13 

XVI. DISCRIMINATION INVESTIGATIONS AND SANCTIONS ........... .. .. ... .... ............... .. 14 

XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LAWS NOT EXCUSED ...... .. .. ........ .... .. .......... .... .... ...... .... . 14 

APPENDICES 

I. WORK LOCATIONS ...... . . . . . . . . . .... ... ..... 15 

II. NOTICE TO ALL EMPLOYEES .. . . .. .. . .. .. . . ... 16 

Ill. PROGRAM PLAN BUDGET .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. . .. . 17 

IV. ACCIDENT REPORTING PROCEDURES .. ..... . . 18-19 

4 



I. PURPOSE AND COVERAGE 

The purpose of th is plan is to provide guidelines and procedures for implementing the Occupational Safety and Health 
Program Plan for the employees of Loudon County. 

This plan is applicable to all employees, part-time or full-time, seasonal or permanent. 

The Loudon County Commission, in electing to update and maintain an effective Occupational Safety and Health 
Program Plan for its employees, 

a. Provide a safe and healthful place and condition of employment. 
b. Require the use of safety equipment, personal protective equipment, and other devices where reasonably 

necessary to protect employees. 
c. Make, keep, preserve, and make available to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development, his 

designated representatives, or persons within the Department of Labor and Workforce Development to whom 
such responsibilities have been delegated, including the Safety Director of the Division of Occupational 
Safety and Health, adequate records of all occupational accidents and illnesses and personal injuries for 
proper evaluation and necessary corrective action as required . 

d. Consult with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development or his designated representative with 
regard to the adequacy of the form and content of such records. 

e. Consult with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development regarding safety and health problems 
which are considered to be unusual or peculiar and are such that they cannot be resolved under an 
occupational safety and health standard promulgated by the State. 

f. Assist the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development or his monitoring activities to determine 
Program Plan effectiveness and compliance with the occupational safety and health standards. 

g. Make a report to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development annually, or as may otherwise be 
required, including information on occupational accidents, injuries, and illnesses and accomplishments and 
progress made toward achieving the goals of the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan. 

h. Provide reasonable opportunity for and encourage the participation of employees in the effectuation of the 
objectives of this Program Plan, including the opportunity to make anonymous complaints concerning 
conditions or practices which may be injurious to employees D safety and health. 

II. DEFINITIONS 

For the purposes of this Program Plan, the following definitions apply : 

a. COMMISSIONER OF LABOR and Workforce Development means the chief executive officer of the 
Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development. This includes any person appointed, 
designated, or deputized to perform the duties or to exercise the powers assigned to the Commissioner of 
Labor and Workforce Development. 

b. EMPLOYER means the Loudon County Commission and includes each administrative department, board, 
commission , division , or other agency of Loudon County. 

c. SAFETY DIRECTOR OF OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH or SAFETY DIRECTOR means the 
person designated by the establishing resolution, or executive order to perform duties or to exercise powers 
assigned so as to plan, develop, and administer the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for the 
employees of Loudon County. 

d. INSPECTOR(S) means the individual(s) appointed or designated by the Safety Director of Occupational 

5 



Safety and Health to conduct inspections provided for herein. If no such compliance inspector(s) is 
appointed, inspections shall be conducted by the Safety Director of Occupational Safety and Health. 

e. APPOINTING AUTHORITY means any official or group of officials of the employer having legally designated 
powers of appointment, employment, or removal there from for a specific department, board, commission, 
division, or other agency of this employer. 

f. EMPLOYEE means any person performing services for this employer and listed on the payroll of this 
employer, either as part-time, full-time, seasonal, or permanent. It also includes any persons normally 
classified as "volunteers" provided such persons received remuneration of any kind for their services. This 
definition shall not include independent contractors, their agents, servants, and employees. 

g. PERSON means one or more individuals, partnerships, associations, corporations, business trusts, or legal 
representatives of any organized group of persons. 

h. STANDARD means an occupational safety and health standard promulgated by the Commissioner of Labor 
and Workforce Development in accordance with Section VI (6) of the Tennessee Occupational Safety and 
Health Act of 1972 which requires conditions or the adoption or the use of one or more practices, means, 
methods, operations, or processes or the use of equipment or personal protective equipment necessary or 
appropriate to provide safe and healthful conditions and places of employment. 

i. IMMINENT DANGER means any conditions or practices in any place of employment which are such that a 
hazard exists which could reasonably be expected to cause death or serious physical harm immediately or 
before the imminence of such hazard can be eliminated through normal compliance enforcement procedures. 

j . ESTABLISHMENT or WORKSITE means a single physical location under the control of this employer where 
business is conducted, services are rendered, or industrial type operations are performed. 

k. SERIOUS INJURY or HARM means that type of harm that would cause permanent or prolonged impairment 
of the body in that: 

1. A part of the body would be permanently removed (e.g ., amputation of an arm, leg, finger(s); loss of an 
eye) or rendered functionally useless or substantially reduced in efficiency on or off the job (e.g., leg 
shattered so severely that mobility would be permanently reduced), or 

2. A part of an internal body system would be inhibited in its normal performance or function to such a 
degree as to shorten life or cause reduction in physical or mental efficiency (e.g., lung impairment 
causing shortness of breath). 

On the other hand, simple fractures, cuts, bruises, concussions, or similar injuries would not fit either of these 
categories and would not constitute serious physical harm. 

I. ACT or TOSH Act shall mean the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972. 
m. GOVERNING BODY means the County Quarterly Court, Board of Aldermen, Board of Commissioners, City 

or Town Council, Board of Governors, etc., whichever may be applicable to the local government, 
government agency, or utility to which this plan applies. 

n. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER means the chief administrative official, County Judge, County Chairman, 
County Mayor, Mayor, City Manager, General Manager, etc., as may be applicable. 

Ill. EMPLOYERS RIGHTS AND DUTIES 

Rights and duties of the employer shall include, but are not limited to, the following provisions: 

a. Employer shall furnish to each employee conditions of employment and a place of employment free from 
recognized hazards that are causing or are likely to cause death or serious injury or harm to employees. 

b. Employer shall comply with occupational safety and health standards and regulations promulgated pursuant 
to Section VI (6) of the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972. 

c. Employer shall refrain from an unreasonable restraint on the right of the Commissioner of Labor and 
6 



Workforce Development to inspect the employers place(s) of business. Employer shall assist the 
Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development in the performance of their monitoring duties by 
supplying or by making available information, personnel, or aids reasonably necessary to the effective 
conduct of the monitoring activity. 

d. Employer is entitled to participate in the development of standards by submission of comments on proposed 
standards, participation in hearing on proposed standards, or by requesting the development of standards on 
a given issue under Section 6 of the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972. 

e. Employer is entitled to request an order granting a variance from an occupational safety and health standard. 

f. Employer is entitled to protection of its legally privileged communication. 
g. Employer shall inspect all worksites to ensure the provisions of this Program Plan are complied with and 

carried out. 
h. Employer shall notify and inform any employee who has been or is being exposed in a biologically significant 

manner to harmful agents or material in excess of the applicable standard and of corrective action being 
taken. 

i. Employer shall notify all employees of their rights and duties under this Program Plan. 

IV. EMPLOYEES RIGHTS AND DUTIES 

Rights and duties of employees shall include, but are not limited to, the following provisions: 

a. Each employee shall comply with occupational safety and health act standards and all rules, regulations, and 
orders issued pursuant to this Program Plan and the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972 
which are applicable to his or her own actions and conduct. 

b. Each employee shall be notified by the placing of a notice upon bulletin boards, or other places of common 
passage, of any application for a permanent or temporary order granting the employer a variance from any 
provision of the TOSH Act or any standard or regulation promulgated under the Act. 

c. Each employee shall be given the opportunity to participate in any hearing which concerns an application by 
the employer for a variance from a standard or regulation promulgated under the Act. 

d. Any employee who may be adversely affected by a standard or variance issued pursuant to the Act or this 
Program Plan may file a petition with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development or whoever is 
responsible for the promulgation of the standard or the granting of the variance. 

e. Any employee who has been exposed or is being exposed to toxic materials or harmful physical agents in 
concentrations or at levels in excess of that provided for by any applicable standard shall be provided by the 
employer with information on any significant hazards to wh ich they are or have been exposed, relevant 
symptoms, and proper conditions for safe use or exposure. Employees shall also be informed of corrective 
action being taken . 

f. Subject to regulations issued pursuant to this Program Plan, any employee or authorized representative of 
employees shall be given the right to request an inspection and to consult with the Safety Director or 
Inspector at the time of the physical inspection of the worksite. 

g. Any employee may bring to the attention of the Safety Director any violation or suspected violations of the 
standards or any other health or safety hazards. 

h. No employee shall be discharged or discriminated against because such employee has filed any complaint or 
instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding or inspection under or relating to this Program Plan. 

i. Any employee who believes that he or she has been discriminated against or discharged in violation of 
subsection (h) of th is section may file a complaint alleging such discrimination with the Safety Director. Such 
employee may also, with in thirty (30) days after such violation occurs, file a complaint with the Commissioner 
of Labor and Workforce Development alleging such discrimination. 

j. Nothing in this or any other provisions of this Program Plan shall be deemed to authorize or require any 

7 



employee to undergo medical examination, immunization, or treatment for those who object thereto on 
religious grounds, except where such is necessary for the protection of the health or safety or others or when 
a medical examination may be reasonably required for performance of a specific job. 

k. Employees shall report any accident, injury, or illness resulting from their job, however minor it may seem to 
be, to their supervisor or the Safety Director within twenty-four (24) hours after the occurrence. 

V. ADMINISTRATION 

a. The Safety Director of Occupational Safety and Health is designated to perform duties or to exercise powers 
assigned so as to administer this Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan. 

1. The Safety Director may designate person or persons as he deems necessary to carry out his powers, 
duties, and responsibilities under this Program Plan. 

2. The Safety Director may delegate the power to make inspections, provided procedures employed are as 
effective as those employed by the Safety Director. 

3. The Safety Director shall employ measures to coordinate, to the extent possible, activities of all 
departments to promote efficiency and to minimize any inconveniences under this Program Plan. 

4. The Safety Director may request qualified technical personnel from any department or section of 
government to assist him in making compliance inspections, accident investigations, or as he may 
otherwise deem necessary and appropriate in order to carry out his duties under this Program Plan. 

5. The Safety Director shall prepare the report to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development 
required by subsection (g) of Section 1 of this plan. 

6. The Safety Director shall make or cause to be made periodic and follow-up inspections of all facilities and 
worksites where employees of this employer are employed. He shall make recommendations to correct 
any hazards or exposures observed. He shall make or cause to be made any inspections required by 
complaints submitted by employees or inspections requested by employees. 

7. The Safety Director shall assist any officials of the employer in the investigation of occupational accidents 
or illnesses. 

8. The Safety Director shall maintain or cause to be maintained records required under Section VIII of this 
plan. 

9. The Safety Director shall, in the eventuality that there is a fatality, ensure that the Commissioner 
of Labor and Workforce Development receives notification of the occurrence within eight (8) 
hours. All work-related inpatient hospitalizations, amputations, and loss of an eye must be 
reported to TOSHA within 24 hours. 

b. The administrative or operational head of each department, division , board , or other agency of this employer 
shall be responsible for the implementation of this Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan within their 
respective areas. 

1. The administrative or operational head shall follow the directions of the Safety Director on all issues 
involving occupational safety and health of employees as set forth in this plan. 

2. The administrative or operational head shall comply with all abatement orders issued in accordance with 
the provisions of this plan or request a review of the order with the Safety Director within the abatement 
period. 

3. The administrative or operational head should make periodic safety surveys of the establishment under 
his jurisdiction to become aware of hazards or standards violations that may exist and make an attempt 
to immediately correct such hazards or violations. 

4. The administrative or operational head shall investigate all occupational accidents, injuries, or illnesses 
reported to him. He shall report such accidents, injuries, or illnesses to the Safety Director along with his 

8 



findings and/or recommendations in accordance with APPENDIX IV of this plan. 

VI. STANDARDS AUTHORIZED 

The standards adopted under this Program Plan are the applicable standards developed and promulgated under 
Section VI (6) of the Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972. Additional standards may be 
promulgated by the governing body of this employer as that body may deem necessary for the safety and health 
of employees. Note: 29 CFR 1910 General Industry Regulations; 29 CFR 1926 Construction Industry 
Regulations; and the Rules of Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development Occupational Safety 
and Health, CHAPTER 0800-01-1 through CHAPTER 0800-01-11 are the standards and rules invoked. 

VII. VARIANCE PROCEDURE 

The Safety Director may apply for a variance as a result of a complaint from an employee or of his knowledge of 
certa in hazards or exposures. The Safety Director should definitely believe that a variance is needed before the 
application for a variance is submitted to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development. 

The procedure for applying for a variance to the adopted safety and health standards is as follows: 

a. The application for a variance shall be prepared in writing and shall contain : 

1. A specification of the standard or portion thereof from which the variance is sought. 
2. A detailed statement of the reason(s) why the employer is unable to comply with the standard supported 

by representations by qualified personnel having fi rst-hand knowledge of the facts represented. 
3. A statement of the steps the employer has taken and will take (with specific date) to protect employees 

against the hazard covered by the standard. 
4. A statement of when the employer expects to comply and what steps have or will be taken (with dates 

specified) to come into compliance with the standard. 
5. A certification that the employer has informed employees, their authorized representative(s), and/or 

interested parties by giving them a copy of the request, posting a statement summarizing the application 
(to include the location of a copy available for examination) at the places where employee notices are 
normally posted and by other appropriate means. The certification shall contain a description of the 
means actually used to inform employees and that employees have been informed of their right to 
petition the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development for a hearing. 

b. The application for a variance should be sent to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development by 
registered or certified mail. 

c. The Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development will review the application for a variance and may 
deny the request or issue an order granting the variance. An order granting a variance shall be issued only if 
it has been established that: 

1. The employer 
i. Is unable to comply with the standard by the effective date because of unavailability of professional 

or technical personnel or materials and equipment required or necessary construction or alteration of 
facil ities or technology. 

ii. Has taken all available steps to safeguard employees against the hazard(s) covered by the standard. 
iii . Has as effective Program Plan for coming into compliance with the standard as quickly as possible. 

9 



2. The employee is engaged in an experimental Program Plan as described in subsection (b), section 13 of 
the Act. 

d. A variance may be granted for a period of no longer than is required to achieve compliance or one (1) year, 
whichever is shorter. 

e. Upon receipt of an application for an order granting a variance, the Commissioner to whom such application 
is addressed may issue an interim order granting such a variance for the purpose of permitting time for an 
orderly consideration of such application. No such interim order may be effective for longer than one hundred 
eighty (180) days. 

f. The order or interim order granting a variance shall be posted at the worksite and employees notified of such 
order by the same means used to inform them of the application for said variance (see subsection (a)(5) of 
this section) . 

VIII. RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING 

Recording and reporting of all occupational accident, injuries, and illnesses shall be in accordance with 
instructions and on forms prescribed in the booklet. You can get a copy of the Forms for Recordkeeping from 
the internet. Go to www.osha.gov and type Recordkeeping Forms in the search box. 

The position responsible for recordkeeping is shown on the SAFETY AND HEALTH ORGANIZATIONAL CHART, 
Appendix IV to this plan. 

Details of how reports of occupational accidents, injuries, and illnesses will reach the recordkeeper are specified 
by ACCIDENT REPORTING PROCEDURES, Append ix IV to this plan. The Rule of Tennessee Department of 
Labor and Workforce Development Occupational Safety and Health , OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEAL TH 
RECORD-KEEPING AND REPORTING, CHAPTER 0800-01-03, as authorized by T.C.A., Title 50. 

IX. EMPLOYEE COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

If any employee feels that he is assigned to work in conditions which might affect his health, safety, or general 
welfare at the present time or at any time in the future, he should report the condition to the Safety Director of 
Occupational Safety and Health. 

a. The complaint should be in the form of a letter and give details on the condition(s) and how the employee 
believes it affects or will affect his health, safety, or general welfare. The employee should sign the letter but 
need not do so if he wishes to remain anonymous (see subsection (h) of Section 1 of this plan). 

b. Upon receipt of the complaint letter, the Safety Director will evaluate the condition(s) and institute any 
corrective action, if warranted . Within ten (10) working days following the receipt of the complaint, the Safety 
Director will answer the complaint in writing stating whether or not the complaint is deemed to be valid and if 
no, why not, what action has been or will be taken to correct or abate the condition(s) and giving a designated 
time period for correction or abatement. Answers to anonymous complaints will be posted upon bulletin 
boards or other places of common passage where the anonymous complaint may be reasonably expected to 
be seen by the complainant for a period of three (3) working days. 

c. If the complainant finds the reply not satisfactory because it was held to be invalid, the corrective action is felt 
to be insufficient, or the time period for correction is felt to be too long, he may forward a letter to the Chief 
Executive Officer or to the governing body explaining the condition(s) cited in his original complaint and why 
he bel ieves the answer to be inappropriate or insufficient. 

d. The Chief Executive Officer or a representative of the governing body will evaluate the complaint and will 

10 



begin to take action to correct or abate the condition(s) through arbitration or administrative sanctions or may 
find the complaint to be invalid . An answer will be sent to the complainant within ten (10) working days 
following receipt of the complaint or the next regularly scheduled meeting of the governing body following 
receipt of the complaint explaining decisions made and action taken or to be taken . 

e. After the above steps have been followed and the complainant is still not satisfied with the results, he may 
then file a complaint with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development. Any complaint filed with 
the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development in such cases shall include copies of all related 
correspondence with the Safety Director and the Chief Executive Officer or the representative of the 
governing body. 

f. Copies of all complaint and answers thereto will be filed by the Safety Director who shall make them available 
to the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development or his designated representative upon request. 

X. EDUCATION AND TRAINING 

a. Safety Director and/or Compliance lnspector(s): 

1. Arrangements will be made for the Safety Director and/or Compliance lnspector(s) to attend training 
seminars, workshops, etc., conducted by the State of Tennessee or other agencies. A list of Seminars 
can be obtained. 

2. Access will be made to reference materials such as 29 CFR 1910 General Industry Regulations; 29 CFR 
1926 Construction Industry Regulations; The Rules of Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce 
Development Occupational Safety and Health, and other equipmenUsupplies, deemed necessary for use 
in conducting compliance inspections, conducting local training, wiring technical reports, and informing 
officials, supervisors, and employees of the existence of safety and health hazards will be furn ished. 

b. All Employees (including supervisory personnel) : 

A suitable safety and health training program for employees will be established. This program will , as a 
minimum: 

1. Instruct each employee in the recognition and avoidance of hazards or unsafe conditions and of 
standards and regulations applicable to the employees work environment to control or eliminate any 
hazards, unsafe conditions, or other exposures to occupational illness or injury. 

2. Instruct employees who are required to handle or use poisons, acids, caustics, toxicants, flammable 
liquids or gases, explosives, and other harmful substances in the proper handling procedures and use of 
such items and make them aware of the personal protective measures, person hygiene, etc., which may 
be required. 

3. Instruct employees who may be exposed to environments where harmful plants or animals are present, 
of the hazards of the environment, how to best avoid injury or exposure, and the first aid procedures to 
be followed in the event of injury or exposure. 

4. Instruct all employees of the common deadly hazards and how to avoid them, such as Falls; Equipment 
Turnover; Electrocution; Struck by/Caught In; Trench Cave In; Heat Stress; and Drowning. 

5. Instruct employees on hazards and dangers of confined or enclosed spaces. 

i. Confined or enclosed space means space having a limited means of egress and which is subject to 
the accumulation of toxic or flammable contaminants or has an oxygen deficient atmosphere. 
Confined or enclosed spaces include, but are not limited to, storage tanks, boilers, ventilation or 
exhaust ducts, sewers, underground utility accesses, tunnels, pipelines, and open top spaces more 
than four feet (4) in depth such as pits, tubs, vaults, and vessels. 

11 



ii. Employees will be given general instruction on hazards involved, precautions to be taken, and on use 
of personal protective and emergency equipment required. They shall also be instructed on all 
specific standards or regulations that apply to work in dangerous or potentially dangerous areas. 

iii. The immediate supervisor of any employee who must perform work in a confined or enclosed space 
shall be responsible for instructing employees on danger of hazards which may be present, 
precautions to be taken, and use of personal protective and emergency equipment, immediately prior 
to their entry into such an area and shall require use of appropriate personal protective equipment. 

XI. GENERAL INSPECTION PROCEDURES 

It is the intention of the governing body and responsible officials to have an Occupational Safety and Health 
Program Plan that will insure the welfare of employees. In order to be aware of hazards, periodic inspections 
must be performed. These inspections will enable the finding of hazards or unsafe conditions or operations that 
will need correction in order to maintain safe and healthful worksites. Inspections made on a pre-designated 
basis may not yield the desired results . Inspections will be conducted , therefore, on a random basis at intervals 
not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days. 

a. In order to carry out the purposes of this Resolution, the Safety Director and/or Compliance lnspector(s) , if 
appointed, is authorized: 
1. To enter at any reasonable time, any establishment, facility , or worksite where work is being performed 

by an employee when such establishment, facility, or worksite is under the jurisdiction of the employer 
and 

2. To inspect and investigate during regular working hours and at other reasonable times, within reasonable 
limits, and in a reasonable manner, any such place of employment and all pertinent conditions, 
processes, structures, machines, apparatus, devices, equipment, and materials therein , and to question 
privately any supervisor, operator, agent, or employee working therein . 

b. If an imminent danger situation is found, alleged, or otherwise brought to the attention of the Safety Director 
or Inspector during a routine inspection, he shall immediately inspect the imminent danger situation in 
accordance with Section XII of this plan before inspecting the remaining portions of the establishment, facility, 
or worksite. 

c. An administrative representative of the employer and a representative authorized by the employees shall be 
given an opportunity to consult with and/or to accompany the Safety Director or Inspector during the physical 
inspection of any worksite for the purpose of aiding such inspection. 

d. The right of accompaniment may be denied any person whose conduct interferes with a full and orderly 
inspection. 

e. The conduct of the inspection shall be such as to preclude unreasonable disruptions of the operation(s) of the 
workplace. 

f. Interviews of employees during the course of the inspection may be made when such interviews are 
considered essential to investigative techniques. 

g. Advance Notice of Inspections. 

1. Generally, advance notice of inspections will not be given as this precludes the opportunity to make 
minor or temporary adjustments in an attempt to create misleading impression of conditions in an 

12 



establishment. 
2. There may be occasions when advance notice of inspections will be necessary in order to conduct an 

effective inspection or investigation. When advance notice of inspection is given, employees or their 
authorized representative(s) will also be given notice of the inspection. 

h. The Safety Director need not personally make an inspection of each and every worksite once every thirty (30) 
days. He may delegate the responsibility for such inspections to supeivisors or other personnel provided: 

1. Inspections conducted by supeivisors or other personnel are at least as effective as those made by the 
Safety Director. 

2. Records are made of the inspections, any discrepancies found, and corrective actions taken. This 
information is forwarded to the Safety Director. 

i. The Safety Director shall maintain records of inspections to include identification of worksite inspected, date 
of inspection, description of violations of standards or other unsafe conditions or practices found, and 
corrective action taken toward abatement. Those inspection records shall be subject to review by the 
Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development or his authorized representative. 

XII . IMMINENT DANGER PROCEDURES 

a. Any discovery, any allegation, or any report of imminent danger shall be handled in accordance with the 
following procedures: 

1. The Safety Director shall immediately be informed of the alleged imminent danger situation and he shall 
immediately ascertain whether there is a reasonable basis for the allegation. 

2. If the alleged imminent danger situation is determined to have merit by the Safety Director, he shall make 
or cause to be made an immediate inspection of the alleged imminent danger location. 

3. As soon as it is concluded from such inspection that conditions or practices exist which constitutes an 
imminent danger, the Safety Director or Compliance Inspector shall attempt to have the danger 
corrected . All employees at the location shall be informed of the danger and the supeivisor or person in 
charge of the worksite shall be requested to remove employees from the area, if deemed necessary. 

4. The admin istrative or operational head of the workplace in which the imminent danger exists, or his 
authorized representative, shall be responsible for determining the manner in which the imminent danger 
situation will be abated. This shall be done in cooperation with the Safety Director or Compliance 
Inspector and to the mutual satisfaction of all parties involved. 

5. The imminent danger shall be deemed abated if: 

i. The imminence of the danger has been eliminated by removal of employees from the area of danger. 
ii. Conditions or practices which resulted in the imminent danger have been eliminated or corrected to 

the point where an unsafe condition or practice no longer exists. 

6. A written report shall be made by or to the Safety Director describing in detail the imminent danger and 
its abatement. This report will be maintained by the Safety Director in accordance with subsection (i) of 
Section XI of this plan. 

b. Refusal to Abate. 

1. Any refusal to abate an imminent danger situation shall be reported to the Safety Director and Chief 
Executive Officer immediately. 

13 



2. The Safety Director and/or Chief Executive Officer shall take whatever action may be necessary to 
achieve abatement. 

XIII. ABATEMENT ORDERS AND HEARINGS 

a. Whenever, as a result of an inspection or investigation, the Safety Director or Compliance lnspector(s) finds 
that a worksite is not in compliance with the standards, rules or regulations pursuant to this plan and is unable 
to negotiate abatement with the administrative or operational head of the worksite within a reasonable period 
of time, the Safety Director shall : 

1. Issue an abatement order to the head of the worksite. 
2. Post or cause to be posted, a copy of the abatement order at or near each location referred to in the 

abatement order. 

b. Abatement orders shall contain the following information: 

1. The standard, rule, or regulation which was found to violated. 
2. A description of the nature and location of the violation . 
3. A description of what is required to abate or correct the violation. 
4. A reasonable period of time during which the violation must be abated or corrected. 

c. At any time within ten (10) days after receipt of an abatement order, anyone affected by the order may advise 
the Safety Director in writing of any objections to the terms and conditions of the order. Upon receipt of such 
objections, the Safety Director shall act promptly to hold a hearing with all interested and/or responsible 
parties in an effort to resolve any objections. Following such hearing, the Safety Director shall, within three 
(3) working days, issue an abatement order and such subsequent order shall be binding on all parties and 
shall be final. 

XIV. PENALTIES 

a. No civil or criminal penalties shall be issued against any official, employee, or any other person for failure to 
comply with safety and health standards or any rules or regulations issued pursuant to this Program Plan. 

b. Any employee, regardless of status, who willfully and/or repeatedly violates, or causes to be violated, any 
safety and health standard, rule, or regulation or any abatement order shall be subject to disciplinary action 
by the appointing authority. It shall be the duty of the appointing authority to administer discipline by taking 
action in one of the following ways as appropriate and warranted: 

1. Oral reprimand . 
2. Written reprimand . 
3. Suspension for three (3) or more working days. 
4. Termination of employment. 

XV. CONFIDENTIALITY OF PRIVILEGED INFORMATION 

All information obtained by or reported to the Safety Director pursuant to this plan of operation or the legislation 
(resolution, or executive order) enabling this Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan which contains or 

14 



might reveal information which is otherwise privileged shall be considered confidential. Such information may be 
disclosed to other officials or employees concerned with carrying out this Program Plan or when relevant in any 
proceeding under this Program Plan. Such information may also be disclosed to the Commissioner of Labor and 
Workforce Development or their authorized representatives in carrying out their duties under the Tennessee 
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972. 

XVI. DISCRIMINATION INVESTIGATIONS AND SANCTIONS 

The Rule of Tennessee Department of Labor and Workforce Development Occupational Safety and Health, 
DISCRIMINATION AGAINST EMPLOYEES EXERCISING RIGHTS UNDER THE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY 
AND HEAL TH ACT OF 1972 0800-01-08, as authorized by TC.A, Title 50. The agency agrees that any 
employee who believes they have been discriminated against or discharged in violation of Tenn. Code Ann § 50-
3-409 can file a complaint with their agency/safety Safety Director within 30 days, after the alleged discrimination 
occurred. Also, the agency agrees the employee has a right to file their complaint with the Commissioner of 
Labor and Workforce Development within the same 30 day period. The Commissioner of Labor and Workforce 
Development may investigate such complaints, make recommendations, and/or issue a written notification of a 
violation . 

XVII . COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LAWS NOT EXCUSED 

a. Compliance with any other law, statute, resolution, or executive order, which regulates safety and health in 
employment and places of employment, shall not excuse the employer, the employee, or any other person 
from compliance with the provisions of this Program Plan. 

b. Compliance with any provisions of this Program Plan or any standard, rule, regulation, or order issued 
pursuant to this Program Plan shall not excuse the employer, the employee, or any other person from 
compliance with the law, statue, resolution , or executive order, as applicable, regulating and promoting safety 
and health unless such law, statute, resolution, or executive order, as applicable, is specifically repealed. 

Signature: Safety Director, Occupational Safety and Health and Date 

15 



APPENDIX - I WORK LOCATIONS 
(ORGANIZATIONAL CHART) 

{For this section make a list of each work location where in Loudon County, your employees work, such 
as Street Department, Fire Hall, City Hall, Courthouse, Jail, Sheriff Department, Each School, etc. 
covered under this Program Plan. Include, the address for the workplace, phone number at that 
workplace, and number of employees who work there.} 

Department, Agency, 
Office, Board, Etc. 

County Mayor - _ Employees 

Rollen "Buddy" Bradshaw 

100 River Road 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-4664 

Agriculture Extension - _ Employees 

John Goddard 

100 River Road 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-5612 

Animal Shelter - _ Employees 

Miracle Nichols 

250 Jaime Drive 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-5593 

Circuit Court Clerk - _Employees 

Steve Harrelson 

601 Grove St. 
Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-2042 

1 6 



Clerk and Master - _Employees 
Lisa Niles 

601 Grove St. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-2630 

Convenience Center Greenback - _Employees 

Chris Parks 

3840 Highway 95 South 

Greenback, TN 37742 

865-856-2010 

Convenience Center Lenoir City - _Employees 

Chris Parks 

500 Halls Ferry Rd. 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

865-988-7 558 

Convenience Center Loudon - _ Employees 

Chris Parks 

300 Rock Quarry Rd. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-8536 

County Clerk - _Employees 
Carrie McKelvey 

101 Mulberry St. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-3314 

Election Commission - _Employees 

Susan Harrison 

100 River Rd. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-2560 

17 



EMA - _Employees 
Kelli Branam 

500 John Parris Dr. 

Loudon , TN 37774 

865-458-7298 

Finance - _ Employees 

Tracy Blair 

100 River Rd. 

Loudon , TN 37774 

865-458-4665 

General Sessions Court Clerk - _Employees 

Steve Harrelson 

12680 Highway 11 W 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

865-986-3505 

General Session Judge - _Employees 

Rex Dale 

Hank Sledge 

12680 Highway 11 W 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

865-986-3505 

Health Department-_ Employees 

Teresa Harrill 

600 Rayder Ave. 

Loudon, TN 3777 4 

865-458-2662 

18 



Facilities Maintenance - 10 Employees 
Brian Brown 

1203 West Broadway 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

865-988-4077 

Highway Department - _Employees 
Eddie Simpson 

292 Blair Bend Dr. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-6940 

Juvenile Center - _ Employees 
Kevin Curbow 

12665 Highway 11 W 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

865-986-8696 

Greenback Library - _Employees 
Jordan Baker 

6889 Morganton Rd. 

Greenback, TN 377 42 

865-856-2841 

Lenoir City Library - _ Employees 

Susan Dorsey 

100 W Broadway 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

865-986-3210 

Loudon Library - _Employees 

Kate Clabough 

210 River Rd. 

Loudon , TN 37774 
865-458-3161 

19 



Philadelphia Library - _Employees 
Mark Williams 

714 Thompson St. 

Philadelphia, TN 37846 

865-458-9493 

The Public Library at Tellico Village - _Employees 
Carol DeForest 

300 Irene Ln. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-5199 

Planning and Codes - _Employees 
Jim Jenkins 

101 Mulberry St. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-4470 

Property Assessor-_ Employees 

Mike Campbell 

101 Mulberry St. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-2050 

Register of Deeds - _ Employees 
Traci Littleton 

101 Mulberry St. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-2605 

20 



Senior Citizens Center - _Employees 
Becki Wallace 

901 Main St. 

Loudon , TN 37774 

865-458-5445 

Sheriff's Department & Jail - _ Employees 

Tim Guider 

12680 Highway 11 W 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

865-986-4823 

Soil Conservation - _ Employees 

100 River Rd . 

Loudon , TN 37774 

865-458-2306 

Trustee - _ Employees 

Chip Miller 

101 Mulberry St. 

Loudon , TN 37774 

865-458-2630 

Veteran's Affairs - _Employees 

Alvin Wagner 

100 West Broadway 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

865-816-3987 

Loudon County Board of Education - _Employees 

Mike Garren 

100 River Rd . 

Loudon , TN 37774 

865-458-5411 

21 



Eaton Elementary School -- Employees 
Ashley Bassler 

423 Hickory Creek Rd . 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

Fort Loudoun Middle School - _ Employees 
Patrick Bethel 

1083 Mulberry St. 

Loudon , TN 37774 

865-458-2026 

Greenback School - _Employees 
Mike Casteel 

6945 Morganton Rd . 

Greenback, TN 37742 

865-856-3028 

Highland Park School - _ Employees 
Kathy Windsor 

4404 Highway 11 W 

Lenoir City, TN 37772 

865-986-2241 

Loudon Elementary School - _Employees 
Christie Amburn 

2175 Roberts Rd. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-2001 

Loudon High School - _ Employees 
Scott MacKintosh 

1039 Mulberry St. 

Loudon , TN 37774 

865-458-4326 

22 



North Middle School - _Employees 
Jodi Lowery 

421 Hickory Creek Rd. 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

865-986-9944 

Philadelphia Elementary School - _ Employees 
Marvin Feezell 

300 Spring St. 

Philadelphia, TN 37846 

865-458-6801 

Steekee Elementary School - _ Employees 
Donna Stapleton 

4500 Steekee School Rd. 

Loudon, TN 37774 

865-458-3322 

Technology Center - _Employees 
Cheri Parrish 

4380 Harrison Rd . 

Lenoir City, TN 37771 

865-986-2036 

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: __ _ 

{Once each work location has been listed, record the total number of employees that the county 
employees.} 

23 



APPENDIX - II NOTICE TO ALL EMPLOYEES 

NOTICE TO ALL EMPLOYEES OF LOUDON COUNTY 

The Tennessee Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1972 provide job safety and health protection for Tennessee workers 
through the promotion of safe and healthful working conditions. Under a plan reviewed by the Tennessee Department of 
Labor and Workforce Development, this government, as an employer, is responsible for administering the Act to its 
employees. Safety and health standards are the same as State standards and jobsite inspections will be conducted to ensure 
compliance with the Act. 

Employees shall be furnished conditions of employment and a place of employment free from recognized hazards that are 
causing or are likely to cause death or serious injury or harm to employees. 

Each employee shall comply with occupational safety and health standards and all rules, regulations, and orders issued 
pursuant to this Program Plan which are applicable to his or her own actions and conduct. 

Each employee shall be notified by the placing upon bulletin boards or other places of common passage of any application for 
a temporary variance from any standard or regulation . 

Each employee shall be given the opportunity to participate in any hearing which concerns an application for a variance from a 
. standard. 

Any employee who may be adversely affected by a standard or variance issued pursuant to this Program Plan may file a 
petition with the Safety Director or Human Resource Administrator. 

Any employee who has been exposed or is being exposed to toxic materials or harmful physical agents in concentrations or at 
levels in excess of that provided for by an applicable standard shall be notified by the employer and informed of such 
exposure and corrective action being taken . 

Subject to regulations issued pursuant to this Program Plan, any employee or authorized representative(s) of employees shall 
be given the right to request an inspection. 

No employee shall be discharged or discriminated against because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or 
caused to be instituted any proceedings or inspection under, or relating to, this Program Plan. 

Any employee who believes he or she has been discriminated against or discharged in violation of these sections may, within 
thirty (30) days after such violation occurs, have an opportunity to appear in a hearing before the Loudon County Mayor for 
assistance in obtaining relief or to file a complaint with the Commissioner of Labor and Workforce Development alleging such 
discrimination. 

A copy of the Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan for the Employees of Loudon County is available for inspection 
by any employee at Human Resource Administrators Office during regular office hours. 

Signature: (City/County) MAYOR AND DATE 

24 



APPENDIX - Ill PROGRAM PLAN BUDGET 

(Either answer questions 1-11 or fill in the statement below) 

1. Prorated portion of wages, salaries, etc., for program administration and support. 
2. Office space and office supplies. 
3. Safety and health educational materials and support for education and training. 
4. Safety devices for personnel safety and health. 
5. Equipment modifications. 
6. Equipment additions (facilities) 
7. Protective clothing and equipment (personnel) 
8. Safety and health instruments 
9. Funding for projects to correct hazardous conditions. 
10. Reserve fund for the Program Plan. 
11 . Contingencies and miscellaneous, 

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROGRAM PLAN FUNDING, 
ESTIMATE OF TOTAL BUDGET FOR: 

OR Use This Statement: 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESOURCE AVAILABILITY 

Be assured that (Name of local government) Loudon County Government has sufficient financial resources available 
or will make sufficient financial resources available as may be required in order to administer and staff its 
Occupational Safety and Health Program Plan and to comply with standards. 

25 



APPENDIX - IV ACCIDENT REPORTING PROCEDURES 

(1-15) Employees shall report all accidents, injuries, or illnesses directly to the Safety Director 
as soon as possible, but not later than twenty-four (24) hours after the occurrence. Such reports 
may be verbal or in writing. All fatalities , inpatient hospitalizations, amputations, and losses of an 
eye shall be reported to the Safety Director and/or record keeper immediately, either by telephone 
or verbally, and will be followed by a written report within four (4) hours after their occurrence. The 
Safety Director will insure completion of required reports and records in accordance with Section 
VIII of the basic plan. 

(16-50) Employees shall report all accidents, injuries, or illnesses to their supervisor as soon as 
possible, but not later than two (2) hours after the occurrence. All fatalities, inpatient 
hospitalizations, amputations, and losses of an eye shall be reported to the Safety Director and/or 
record keeper immediately, either by telephone or verbally, and will be followed by a written report 
within four (4) hours after their occurrence. The supervisor will investigate the accident or illness, 
complete an accident report, and forward the accident report to the Safety Director and/or record 
keeper within twenty-four (24) hours of the time the accident or injury occurred or the time of the 
first report of the illness. 

(51-250) Employees shall report all accidents, injuries, or illnesses to their supervisors as soon as 
possible, but not later than two (2) hours after the occurrence. The supervisor will provide the 
Safety Director and/or record keeper with the name of the injured or ill employee and a brief 
description of the accident or illness by telephone as soon as possible, but not later than four (4) 
hours, after the accident or injury occurred or the time of the first report of the illness. All fatalities, 
inpatient hospitalizations, amputations, and losses of an eye shall be reported to the Safety 
Director and/or record keeper immediately, either by telephone or verbally, and will be followed by 
a written report within four (4) hours after their occurrence. The supervisor will then make a 
thorough investigation of the accident or illness (with the assistance of the Safety Director or 
Compliance Inspector, if necessary) and will complete a written report on the accident or illness 
and forward it to the Safety Director within seventy-two (72) hours after the accident, injury, or first 
report of illness and will provide one ( 1) copy of the written report to the record keeper. 

(251-Plus) Employees shall report all accidents, injuries, or illnesses to their supervisors as soon as 
possible, but not later than two (2) hours after their occurrence. The supervisor will provide the 
administrative head of the department with a verbal or telephone report of the accident as soon as 
possible, but not later than four (4) hours, after the accident. If the accident involves a fatality, 
inpatient hospitalization, amputation, loss of an eye, loss of consciousness, broken bones, or third
degree burns, the Safety Director will be notified by telephone immediately and will be given the 
name of the injured, a description of the injury, and a brief description of how the accident occurred. 
The supervisor will then make a thorough investigation of the accident or illness (with the 
assistance of the Safety Director or Compliance Inspector, if necessary) and will complete a written 
report on the accident or illness and forward it to the Safety Director within seventy-two (72) hours 
after the accident, injury, or first report of illness and will provide one (1) copy of the written report to 
the record keeper. 

26 



Since Workers Compensation Form 6A or OSHA NO. 301 Form must be completed; all reports submitted in writing to 
the person responsible for recordkeeping shall include the following information as a minimum: 

1. Accident location, if different from employer's mailing address and state whether accident occurred on 
premises owned or operated by employer. 

2. Name, social security number, home address, age, sex, and occupation (regular job title) of injured or ill 
employee. 

3. Title of the department or division in which the injured or ill employee is normally employed. 
4. Specific description of what the employee was doing when injured. 
5. Specific description of how the accident occurred. 
6. A description of the injury or illness in detail and the part of the body affected. 
7. Name of the object or substance which directly injured the employee. 
8. Date and time of injury or diagnosis of illness. 
9. Name and address of physician, if applicable. 
10. If employee was hospitalized, name and address of hospital. 
11 . Date of report. 

NOTE: A procedure such as one of those listed above or similar information is necessary to satisfy Item 
Number 4 listed under PROGRAM PLAN in Section V. ADMINISTRATION, Part b of the Tennessee 
Occupational Safety and Health Plan. This information may be submitted in flow chart form instead of in narrative 
form if desired. These procedures may be modified in any way to fit local situations as they have been prepared as a 
guide only. 

The four ( 4) procedures listed above are based upon the size of the work force and relative complexity of the 
organization. The approximate size of the organization for which each procedure is suggested is indicated in 
parenthesis in the left-hand margin at the beginning, i.e., (1-15), (16-50), (51-250), and (251 Plus), and the figures 
relate to the total number of employees including the Chief Executive Officer but excluding the governing body 
(County Court, City Council, Board of Directors, etc.). 

Generally, the simpler an accident reporting procedure is, the more effective it is. Please select the one procedure 
listed above, or prepare a similar procedure or flow chart, which most nearly fits what will be the most effective for 
your local situation. Note also that the specific information listed for written reports applies to all three of the 
procedures listed for those organizations with sixteen (16) or more employees. 

27 



Loudon County Commission 

Refunding Resolution 



Resolution# -----

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF RURAL SCHOOL 
REFUNDING BONDS OF LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE IN THE AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF APPROXIMATELY $7,550,000, TN ONE OR MORE 
SERIES; MAKING PROVISION FOR THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND PAYMENT OF 
SAID BONDS, ESTABLISHING THE TERMS THEREOF AND THE DISPOSITION 
OF PROCEEDS THEREFROM; AND PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES FOR 
THE PAYMENT or PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON 
THE BONDS 

WHEREAS, Sections 49-3-100 l et seg., and Sections 9-2I-101, ~ seg., inclusive, Tennessee 
Code Annotated, as amended, authorizes Loudon County, Tennessee (the "County"), by resolution of the 
Board of County Commissioners, to sell and issue bonds to refund outstanding indebtedness for schools; 
and 

WHEREAS, the County has previously issued and has outstanding its Rural School Bonds, Series 
2014B, dated December 30, 2014 (the "Outstanding Indebtedness"); and 

WHEREAS, all or a portion of the Outstanding Indebtedness can now be refunded for the 
purpose of reducing the debt service requirements of the County; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners hereby determines that it is advisable to issue 
rural school refunding bonds, in one or more series, for the purpose of refunding all or a po1tion of the 
Outstanding Indebtedness; and 

WHEREAS, a plan of refunding for the Outstanding Indebtedness has been filed with the 
Director of the Division of Local Government Finance (the "State Director") as required by 
Section 9-21-903, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, and the State Director has submitted to the 
County a report thereon, a copy of which has been made available to the members of the Board of County 
Commissioners; and 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners of the County to adopt this 
resolution for the purpose of authorizing approximately $7,550,000 in aggregate principal amount of 
bonds for the above-described purposes, providing for the issuance, sale and payment of said bonds, 
establishing the terms thereof, and the disposition of proceeds therefrom, and providing for the levy of a 
tax for the payment of principal thereof, premium, if any, and interest thereon. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Loudon 
County, Tennessee, as follows: 

Section I. Authoritv. The bonds authorized by this resolution are issued pursuant to 
Sections 49-3-100 I ~ ~., and Sections 9-21-10 I, ~ ~·· Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, and 
other applicable provisions of law. 

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the terms defined in the preamble above, the 
following terms shall have the following meanings in this resolution unless the text expressly or by 
necessary implication requires otherwise : 



(a) "Bonds" means the approximately $7,550,000 Rural School Refunding Bonds of the 
County, to be dated their date of issuance, and having such series designation or such other dated elate as 
shall be determined by the County Mayor pursuant to Section 8 hereof. 

(b) " Book-Entry Form" or "Book-Entry System" means a form or system, as applicable, 
under which physical bond ce1tificates in fully registered form are issued to a Depository, or to its 
nominee as Registered Owner, with the certificate of bonds being held by and "immobilized" in the 
custody of such Depository, and under which records maintained by persons, other than the County or the 
Registration Agent, constitute the written record that identifies, and records the transfer of, the beneficial 
"book-entry" interests in those bonds. 

( c) "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and all regulations 
promulgated thereunder. 

(d) "County Mayor" shall mean the County Mayor of the County. 

(e) "Depository" means any securities depository that is a clearing agency under federal laws 
operating and mainta ining, with its participants or otherwise, a Book-Entry System, including, but not 
limited to, DTC. 

(f) "DTC" means The Depository Trust Company, a limited purpose company organized 
under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns . 

(g) "DTC Paiticipant(s)" means securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and 
clearing corporations that have access to the DTC System. 

(h) "Governing Body" means the Board of County Commissioners of the County. 

(i) "Municipal Advisor" for the Bonds authorized herein means Cumberland Securities 
Company, Inc. 

U) " Refunding Escrow Agent" or "Escrow Agent" means the refunding escrow agent 
appointed by the County Mayor pursuant to the terms hereof, or any successor designated by the 
Governing Body. 

(k) "Refunding Escrow Agreement" or " Escrow Agreement" means the Refunding Escrow 
Agreement, dated as of the date of the Bonds, between the County and the Refunding Escrow Agent, in 
substantially the form of the document attached hereto as Exhibit B, subject to such changes thereto as 
shall be permitted by the terms of this resolution . 

(I) "Refunded Indebtedness" means the matunt1es or portions of the mahmt1es of the 
Outstanding Indebtedness designated for refunding by the County Mayor pursuant to the tenns hereof. 

(m) "Registration Agent" means the registration and paying agent appointed by the County 
Mayor pursuant to the terms hereof, or any successor designated by the Governing Body. 

Section 3. Findings of the Governing Body; Compliance with Debt Management Policy. 

(a) In conformance with the directive of the State Funding Board of the State of Tennessee, 
the County has heretofore adopted its Debt Management Policy . The Governing Body hereby finds that 

2 



the issuance and sale of the Bonds, as proposed herein, is consistent with the County's Debt Management 
Policy. 

(b) The estimated interest expense and costs of issuance of the Bonds have been made 
available to the Governing Body. 

( c) Attached hereto as Exhibit A is an engagement letter (the "Engagement Letter") by Bass, 
Berry & Sims PLC, as Bond Counsel ("Bond Counsel"), for its services in connection with the issuance 
of the Bonds. The Engagement Letter details the attorney-client relationship to be entered into and the 
services to be provided by Bond Counsel in connection with the Bonds. The Governing Body hereby 
approves and authorizes the County Mayor to accept the Engagement Letter. 

(d) The refunding of the Refunded Indebtedness authorized herein through the issuance of 
the Bonds will result in the reduction of the debt service payable by the County over the tenn of the 
Refunded Indebtedness, thereby effecting a cost savings to the public. 

(e) The report on the plan of refunding issued by the State Director has been presented to the 
members of the Governing Body in connection with their consideration of this resolution. 

Section 4. Authorization and Terms of the Bonds. 

(a) For the purpose of providing funds to refund the Refunded Indebtedness and pay costs 
incident to the issuance and sale of the Bonds, there is hereby authorized to be issued bonds, in one or 
more series, of the County in the aggregate principal amount of approximately $7,550,000. The Bonds 
shall be issued in one or more series, in fully registered, book-entry fonn (except as otherwise set fo1th 
herein), without coupons, and subject to the adjustments permitted hereunder, shall be known as "Rural 
School Refunding Bonds'', shall be dated their date of issuance, and shall have such series designation or 
such other dated date as shall be determined by the County Mayor pursuant to the terms hereof. The 
Bonds shall bear interest at a rate or rates not to exceed the maximum rate pem1itted by applicable 
Tennessee law at the time of issuance of the Bonds, or any series thereof, payable (subject to the 
adjustments permitted hereunder) semi-annually on June I and December 1 in each year, commencing 
December I, 2021. The Bonds shall be issued initially in $5,000 denominations or integral multiples 
thereof, as shall be requested by the original purchaser thereof. Subject to the adjustments permitted 
pursuant to the terms hereof, the Bonds shall mature serially or be subject to mandatory redemption and 
shall be payable on June 1 of each year, subject to prior optional redemption as hereinafter provided, in 
the years 2022 through 2030, inclusive; provided, however, such amortization may be adjusted in 
accordance with the terms hereof. 

(b) Subject to the adjustments permitted under Section 8 hereof, the Bonds shall be subject to 
redemption prior to maturity at the option of the County on June I, 2028 and thereafter, as a whole or in 
part at any time at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the redemption date. If less than all 
the Bonds shall be called for redemption, the maturities to be redeemed shall be selected by the 
Governing Body in its discretion. If less than all of the Bonds within a single maturity shall be called for 
redemption, the interests within the maturity to be redeemed shall be selected as follows: 

(i) if the Bonds are being held under a Book-Entry System by DTC, or a successor 
Depository, the Bonds to be redeemed shall be determined by DTC, or such successor 
Deposito1y, by lot or such other manner as DTC, or such successor Deposito1y, shall determine; 
or 

3 



(ii) if the Bonds are not being held under a Book-Ent1y System by DTC, or a 
successor Deposito1y, the Bonds within the maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by the 
Registration Agent by lot or such other random manner as the Registration Agent in its discretion 
shall determine. 

(c) Pursuant to the terms hereof, the County Mayor is authorized to sell the Bonds, or any 
maturities thereof, as term bonds ("Term Bonds") with mandato1y redemption requirements 
corresponding to the maturities set forth herein or as determined by the County Mayor. In the event any 
or all the Bonds are sold as Term Bonds, the County shall redeem Term Bonds on redemption dates 
corresponding to the maturity dates set forth herein, in aggregate principal amounts equal to the maturity 
amounts established pursuant to the tenns hereof for each redemption date, as such maturity amounts may 
be adjusted pursuant to the terms hereof, at a price of par plus accrued interest thereon to the date of 
redemption. If less than all of the Term Bonds to be redeemed within a single maturity shall be called for 
redemption, the interests within the maturity to be redeemed shall be selected in the manner provided in 
subsection (b) above. 

At its option, to be exercised on or before the forty-fifth ( 45 1h) day next preceding any such 
mandatory redemption date, the County may (i) deliver to the Registration Agent for cancellation Bonds 
to be redeemed, in any aggregate principal amount desired, and/or (ii) receive a credit in respect of its 
redemption obligation under this mandatory redemption provision for any Bonds of the maturity to be 
redeemed which prior to said date have been purchased or redeemed (otherwise than through the 
operation of this mandatory sinking fund redemption provision) and cancelled by the Registration Agent 
and not theretofore applied as a credit against any redemption obligation under this mandato1y sinking 
fund provision . Each Bond so delivered or previously purchased or redeemed shall be credited by the 
Registration Agent at I 00% of the principal amount thereof on the obligation of the County on such 
payment date and any excess shall be credited on future redemption obligations in chronological order, 
and the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed by operation of this mandatory sinking fund provision 
shall be accordingly reduced. The County shall on or before the forty-fifth ( 45 111

) day next preceding each 
payment date furnish the Registration Agent with its certificate indicating whether or not and to what 
extent the provisions of clauses (i) and (ii) of this subsection are to be availed of with respect to such 
payment and confirm that funds for the balance of the next succeeding prescribed payment will be paid on 
or before the next succeeding payment date. 

Notice of any call for redemption shall be given by the Registration Agent on behalf of the 
County not less than twenty (20) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption by 
sending an appropriate notice to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed by first-class mail, 
postage prepaid, at the addresses shown on the Bond registration records of the Registration Agent as of 
the date of the notice; but neither failure to mail such notice nor any defect in any such notice so mailed 
shall affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for redemption of any of the Bonds for which proper notice 
was given. The notice may state that it is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys in an amount equal to 
the amount necessary to effect the redemption with the Registration Agent no later than the redemption 
date ("Conditional Redemption") . As long as DTC, or a successor Depository, is the registered owner of 
the Bonds, all redemption notices shall be mailed by the Registration Agent to DTC, or such successor 
Deposito1y, as the registered owner of the Bonds, as and when above provided, and neither the County 
nor the Registration Agent shall be responsible for mailing notices of redemption to DTC Paiiicipants or 
Beneficial Owners. Failure of DTC, or any successor Depository, to provide notice to any DTC 
Pa11icipant or Beneficial Owner will not affect the validity of such redemption. The Registration Agent 
shall mail said notices as and when directed by the County pursuant to written instructions from an 
authorized representative of the County (other than for a mandatory sinking fund redemption, notices of 
which shall be given on the dates provided herein) given at least fo1ty-five (45) days prior to the 
redemption date (unless a shorter notice period shall be satisfactory to the Registration Agent). From and 

4 



after the redemption date, all Bonds called for redemption shall cease to bear interest if funds are 
available at the office of the Registration Agent for the payment thereof and if notice has been duly 
provided as set forth herein. In the case of a Conditional Redemption, the failure of the County to make 
funds available in pa1i or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of 
default, and the Registration Agent shall give immediate notice to the Depository, if applicable, or the 
affected Bondholders that the redemption did not occur and that the Bonds called for redemption and not 
so paid remain outstanding. 

(d) The Governing Body hereby authorizes and directs the County Mayor to appoint the 
Registration Agent for the Bonds and hereby authorizes the Registration Agent so appointed to maintain 
Bond registration records with respect to the Bonds, to authenticate and deliver the Bonds as provided 
herein, either at original issuance or upon transfer, to effect transfers of the Bonds, to give all notices of 
redemption as required herein, to make all payments of principal and interest with respect to the Bonds as 
provided herein, to cancel and destroy Bonds which have been paid at maturity or upon earlier 
redemption or submitted for exchange or transfer, to furnish the County at least annually a certificate of 
destruction with respect to Bonds cancelled and destroyed, and to furnish the County at least annually an 
audit confirmation of Bonds paid, Bonds outstanding and payments made with respect to interest on the 
Bonds. The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute and the County Clerk is hereby authorized to 
attest such written agreement between the County and the Registration Agent as they shall deem 
necessaiy and proper with respect to the obligations, duties and rights of the Registration Agent. The 
payment of all reasonable fees and expenses of the Registration Agent for the discharge of its duties and 
obligations hereunder or under any such agreement is hereby authorized and directed. 

(e) The Bonds shall be payable, both principal and interest, in lawful money of the United 
States of America at the main office of the Registration Agent. The Registration Agent shall make all 
interest payments with respect to the Bonds by check or draft on each interest payment date directly to the 
registered owners as shown on the Bond registration records maintained by the Registration Agent as of 
the close of business on the fifteenth day of the month next preceding the interest payment date (the 
"Regular Record Date") by depositing said payment in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed 
to such owners at their addresses shown on said Bond registration records, without, except for final 
payment, the presentation or surrender of such registered Bonds, and all such payments shall discharge 
the obi igations of the County in respect of such Bonds to the extent of the payments so made. Payment of 
principal of and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be made upon presentation and surrender of such 
Bonds to the Registration Agent as the same shall become due and payable. All rates of interest specified 
herein shall be computed on the basis of a three hundred sixty (360) day year composed of twelve (12) 
months of thitiy (30) days each . In the event the Bonds are no longer registered in the name of DTC, or a 
successor Deposito1y, if requested by the Owner of at least $1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of 
the Bonds, payment of interest on such Bonds shall be paid by wire transfer to a bank within the 
continental United States or deposited to a designated account if such account is maintained with the 
Registration Agent and written notice of any such election and designated account is given to the 
Registration Agent prior to the record date. 

(t) Any interest on any Bond that is payable but is not punctually paid or duly provided for 
on any interest payment date (hereinafter "Defaulted Interest") shall fo1ihwith cease to be payable to the 
registered owner on the relevant Regular Record Date; and, in lieu thereof, such Defaulted Interest shall 
be paid by the County to the persons in whose names the Bonds are registered at the close of business on 
a date (the "Special Record Date") for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which shall be fixed in the 
following manner: the County shall notify the Registration Agent in writing of the amount of Defaulted 
Interest proposed to be paid on each Bond and the date of the proposed payment, and at the same time the 
County shall deposit with the Registration Agent an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount 
proposed to be paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfacto1y to the 

5 



Registration Agent for such deposit prior to the elate of the proposed payment, such money when 
deposited to be held in trust for the benefit of the persons entitled to such Defaulted Interest as in this 
Section provided. Thereupon, not less than ten (I 0) days after the receipt by the Registration Agent of the 
notice of the proposed payment, the Registration Agent shall fix a Special Record Date for the payment of 
such Defaulted Interest which date shall be not more than fifteen ( 15) nor less than ten ( 10) days prior to 
the elate of the proposed payment to the registered Owners. The Registration Agent shall promptly notify 
the County of such Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the County, not less than 
ten ( 10) days prior to such Special Record Date, shall cause notice of the proposed payment of such 
Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, first-class postage prepaid, to each 
registered owner at the address thereof as it appears in the Bond registration records maintained by the 
Registration Agent as of the date of such notice. Nothing contained in this Section or in the Bonds shall 
impair any statutory or other rights in law or in equity of any registered owner arising as a result of the 
failure of the County to punctually pay or duly provide for the payment of principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on the Bonds when due. 

(g) The Bonds are transferable only by presentation to the Registration Agent by the 
registered owner, or his legal representative duly authorized in writing, of the registered Bond(s) to be 
transferred with the form of assignment on the reverse side thereof completed in full and signed with the 
name of the registered owner as it appears upon the face of the Bond(s) accompanied by appropriate 
documentation necessary to prove the legal capacity of any legal representative of the registered owner. 
Upon receipt of the Bond(s) in such form and with such documentation, if any, the Registration Agent 
shall issue a new Bond or the Bond to the assignee(s) in $5,000 denominations, or integral multiples 
thereof, as requested by the registered owner requesting transfer. The Registration Agent shall not be 
required to transfer or exchange any Bond during the period commencing on a Regular or Special Record 
Date and ending on the corresponding interest payment date of such Bond, nor to transfer or exchange 
any Bond after the publication of notice calling such Bond for redemption has been made, nor to transfer 
or exchange any Bond during the period following the receipt of instructions from the County to call such 
Bond for redemption; provided, the Registration Agent, at its option, may make transfers after any of said 
dates . . No charge shall be made to any registered owner for the privilege of transferring any Bond, 
provided that any transfer tax relating to such transaction shall be paid by the registered owner requesting 
transfer. The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the 
absolute owner thereof for all purposes and neither the County nor the Registration Agent shall be 
affected by any notice to the contra1y whether or not any payments due on the Bonds shall be overdue. 
The Bonds, upon surrender to the Registration Agent, may, at the option of the registered owner, be 
exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of the Bonds of the same maturity in any authorized 
denomination or denominations . 

(h) The Bonds shall be executed in such manner as may be prescribed by applicable law, in 
the name, and on behalf, of the County with the signature of the County Mayor and the attestation of the 
County Clerk. 

(i) Except as otherwise provided in this resolution, the Bonds shall be registered in the name 
of Cede & Co., as nominee of OTC, which will act as securities depository for the Bonds. References in 
this Section to a Bond or the Bonds shall be construed to mean the Bond or the Bonds that are held under 
the Book-Entiy System. One Bond for each maturity shall be issued to OTC and immobilized in its 
custody or a custodian of OTC. The Bond Registrar is a custodian and agent for OTC, and the Bond will 
be immobilized in its custody. A Book-Entry System shall be employed, evidencing ownership of the 
Bonds in authorized denominations, with transfers of beneficial ownership effected on the records of 
OTC and the DTC Participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by OTC. 

6 



Each DTC Participant shall be credited in the records of DTC with the amount of such DTC 
Participant's interest in the Bonds . Beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be purchased by or 
through DTC Pa1ticipants. The holders of these beneficial ownership interests are hereinafter referred to 
as the "Beneficial Owners." The Beneficial Owners shall not receive the Bonds representing their 
beneficial ownership interests. The ownership interests of each Beneficial Owner shall be recorded 
through the records of the DTC Participant from which such Beneficial Owner purchased its Bonds. 
Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds shall be accomplished by book entries made by DTC and, 
in turn, by DTC Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. SO LONG AS CEDE & CO., AS 
NOMINEE FOR DTC, IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, THE REGISTRATION 
AGENT SHALL TREAT CEDE & CO. AS THE ONLY HOLDER OF THE BONDS FOR ALL 
PURPOSES UNDER THIS RESOLUTION, INCLUDING RECEIPT OF ALL PRINCIPAL OF, 
PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS, RECEIPT OF NOTICES, VOTING AND 
REQUESTING OR DIRECTING THE REGISTRATION AGENT TO TAKE OR NOT TO TAKE, OR 
CONSENTING TO, CERTAIN ACTIONS UNDER THIS RESOLUTION. 

Payments of principal, interest, and redemption premium, if any, with respect to the Bonds, so 
long as DTC is the only owner of the Bonds, shall be paid by the Registration Agent directly to OTC or 
its nominee, Cede & Co., as provided in the Letter of Representation relating to the Bonds from the 
County and the Registration Agent to OTC (the "Letter of Representation") . DTC shall remit such 
payments to DTC Pa1ticipants, and such payments thereafter shall be paid by DTC Participants to the 
Beneficial Owners. The County and the Registration Agent shall not be responsible or liable for payment 
by DTC or DTC Participants for sending transaction statements or for maintaining, supervising or 
reviewing records maintained by DTC or DTC Participants . 

In the event that (I) OTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the Bonds, 
or (2) the County determines that the continuation of the Book-Entry System of evidence and transfer of 
ownership of the Bonds would adversely affect their interests or the interests of the Beneficial Owners of 
the Bonds, then the County shall discontinue the Book-Entry System with OTC or, upon request of such 
original purchaser, deliver the Bonds to the original purchaser in the form of fully-registered Bonds, as 
the case may be. If the County fails to identify another qualified securities depository to replace DTC, the 
County shall cause the Registration Agent to authenticate and deliver replacement Bonds in the form of 
fully-registered Bonds to each Beneficial Owner. If the purchaser(s) ce1tifies that it intends to hold the 
Bonds for its own account, then the County may issue certificated Bonds without the utilization of DTC 
and the Book-Entry System. 

THE COUNTY AND THE REGISTRATION AGENT SHALL NOT HA VE ANY 
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATIONS TO ANY PARTICIPANT OR ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER 
WITH RESPECT TO (i) THE BONDS; (ii) THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED 
BY OTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT; (iii) THE PAYMENT BY OTC OR ANY DTC 
PARTICIPANT OF ANY AMOUNT DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER IN RESPECT OF THE 
PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS; (iv) THE DELIVERY OR TIMELINESS OF 
DELIVERY BY DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OF ANY NOTICE DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL 
OWNER THAT IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS RESOLUTION TO 
BE GIVEN TO BENEFICIAL OWNERS; (v) THE SELECTION OF BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO 
RECEIVE PAYMENTS IN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS; OR 
(vi) ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY OTC OR ITS NOMINEE, CEDE & 
CO., AS OWNER. 

G) The Registration Agent is hereby authorized to take such action as may be necessa1y 
from time to time to qualify and maintain the Bonds for deposit with DTC, including but not limited to, 
wire transfers of interest and principal payments with respect to the Bonds, utilization of electronic book 

7 



ent1y data received from OTC in place of actual delivery of Bonds and provision of notices with respect 
to Bonds registered by OTC (or any of its designees identified to the Registration Agent) by overnight 
delive1y, courier service, telegram, telecopy or other similar means of communication. No such 
arrangements with OTC may adversely affect the interest of any of the owners of the Bonds; provided, 
however, that the Registration Agent shall not be liable with respect to any such arrangements it may 
make pursuant to this Section. 

(k) The Registration Agent is hereby authorized to authenticate and deliver the Bonds to the 
original purchaser, upon receipt by the County of the proceeds of the sale thereof and to authenticate and 
deliver Bonds in exchange for Bonds of the same principal amount delivered for transfer upon receipt of 
the Bond(s) to be transferred in proper form ·with proper documentation as hereinabove described . The 
Bonds shall not be valid for any purpose unless authenticated by the Registration Agent by the manual 
signature of an officer thereof on the certificate set forth herein on the Bond form. 

(1) Jn case any Bond shall become mutilated, or be lost, stolen, or destroyed, the County, in 
its discretion, shall issue, and the Registration Agent, upon written direction from the County, shall 
authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like tenor, amount, maturity and date, in exchange and 
substitution for, and upon the cancellation of, the mutilated Bond, or in lieu of and in substitution for such 
lost, stolen or destroyed Bond, or if any such Bond shall have matured or shall be able to mature, instead 
of issuing a substituted Bond the County may pay or authorize payment of such Bond without surrender 
thereof. In every case, the applicant shall furnish evidence satisfactOJ)' to the County and the Registration 
Agent of the destruction, theft or loss of such Bond, and indemnify satisfacto1y to the County and the 
Registration Agent; and the County may charge the applicant for the issue of such new Bond an amount 
sufficient to reimburse the County for the expense incurred by it in the issue thereof. 

Section 5. Source of Payment. The Bonds shall be payable from unlimited ad valorem taxes 
to be levied on all taxable property within the County lying outside the corporate limits of the City of 
Lenoir City, Tennessee. Subject to the foregoing, for the prompt payment of the principal of, premium, if 
any, and interest on the Bonds, the full faith and credit of the County are hereby irrevocably pledged. 

Section 6. Form of Bonds. The Bonds shall be in substantially the following form, the 
omissions to be appropriately completed when the Bonds are prepared and delivered : 

REGISTERED 
Number 

Interest Rate: 

Registered Owner: 

Principal Amount: 

(Form of Bond) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
ST A TE OF TENNESSEE 
COUNTY OF LOUDON 

RURAL SCHOOL REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2021 

Maturity Date: Date of Bond: 

REGISTERED 
$ ___ _ 

CUSIP No.: 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Loudon County, Tennessee (the "County") hereby promises to pay to 
the registered owner hereof, hereinabove named, or registered assigns, in the manner hereinafter 

8 



provided, the principal amount hereinabove set forth on the maturity date hereinabove set forth (or upon 
earlier redemption as set forth herein), and to pay interest (computed on the basis of a 360-day year of 
twelve 30-clay months) on said principal amount at the annual rate interest hereinabove set forth from the 
date hereof until said maturity date or redemption date, said interest being payable on [December 1, 
2021 ], and semi-annually thereafter on the first clay of June and December in each year until this Bond 
matures or is redeemed. The principal hereof and interest hereon are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America by check or draft at the principal corporate trust office of 
__________ , , , as registration and paying agent (the 
"Registration Agent"). The Registration Agent shall make all interest payments with respect to this Bond 
on each interest payment date directly to the registered owner hereof shown on the Bond registration 
records maintained by the Registration Agent as of the close of business on the fifteenth day of the month 
next preceding the interest payment date (the "Regular Record Date") by check or draft mailed to such 
owner at such owner's address shown on said Bond registration records, without, except for final 
payment, the presentation or surrender of this Bond, and al 1 such payments shall discharge the obligations 
of the County to the extent of the payments so made. Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly 
provided for on any interest payment date shall forthwith cease to be payable to the registered owner on 
the relevant Regular Record Date; and, in lieu thereof, such defaulted interest shall be payable to the 
person in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of business on the date (the "Special Record 
Date") for payment of such defaulted interest to be fixed by the Registration Agent, notice of which shall 
be given to the owners of the Bonds of the issue of which this Bond is one not less than ten (10) days 
prior to such Special Record Date. Payment of principal of [and premium, if any, on] this Bond shall be 
made when due upon presentation and surrender of this Bond to the Registration Agent. 

Except as otherwise provided herein or in the Resolution, as hereinafter defined, this Bond shall 
be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New 
York ("DTC"), which will act as securities depository for the Bonds of the series of which this Bond is 
one. One Bond for each maturity of the Bonds shall be issued to OTC and immobilized in its custody or a 
custodian of OTC. The Registration Agent is a custodian and agent for DTC, and the Bonds will be 
immobilized in its custody . A book-entry system shall be employed, evidencing ownership of the Bonds 
in $5,000 denominations, or multiples thereof, with transfers of beneficial ownership effected on the 
records of DTC and the OTC Participants, as defined in the Resolution, pursuant to rules and procedures 
established by OTC. So long as Cede & Co., as nominee for OTC, is the registered owner of the Bonds, 
the County and the Registration Agent shall treat Cede & Co. as the only owner of the Bonds for all 
purposes under the Resolution, including receipt of all principal and maturity amounts of, premium, if 
any, and interest on the Bonds, receipt of notices, voting and requesting or taking or not taking, or 
consenting to, certain actions hereunder. Payments of principal, maturity amounts, interest, and 
redemption premium, if any, with respect to the Bonds, so long as OTC is the only owner of the Bonds, 
shall be paid directly to OTC or its nominee, Cede & Co. OTC shall remit such payments to OTC 
Participants, and such payments thereafter shall be paid by DTC Paiiicipants to the Beneficial Owners, as 
defined in the Resolution. Neither the County nor the Registration Agent shall be responsible or liable for 
payment by DTC or OTC Paiticipants, for sending transaction statements or for maintaining, supervising 
or reviewing records maintained by OTC or DTC Participants. In the event that (1) OTC determines not 
to continue to act as securities depository for the Bonds or (2) the County determines that the continuation 
of the book-entry system of evidence and transfer of ownership of the Bonds would adversely affect its 
interests or the interests of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, the County may discontinue the book
ent1y system with DTC. If the County fails to identify another qualified securities deposito1y to replace 
DTC, the County shall cause the Registration Agent to authenticate and deliver replacement Bonds in the 
form of fully-registered Bonds to each Beneficial Owner. Neither the County nor the Registration Agent 
shall have any responsibility or obligations to DTC Participant or any Beneficial Owner with respect to 
(i) the Bonds; (ii) the accuracy or any records maintained by OTC or any DTC Participant; (iii) the 
payment by DTC or any DTC Patiicipant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in respect of the 

9 



principal or maturity amounts of and interest on the Bonds; (iv) the delivery or timeliness of delivery by 
DTC or any DTC Participant of any notice due to any Beneficial Owner that is required or permitted 
under the terms of the Resolution to be given to Beneficial Owners; (v) the selection of Beneficial 
Owners to receive payments in the event of any pa11ial redemption of the Bonds; or (vi) any consent given 
or other action taken by DTC, or its nominee, Cede & Co., as owner. 

[Bonds of the issue of which this Bond is one shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity at 
the option of the County on June 1, 2028 and thereafter, as a whole or in part at any time at the 
redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the redemption date.] 

If less than all the Bonds shall be called for redemption, the maturities to be redeemed shall be 
designated by the Board of County Commissioners of the County, in its discretion. If less than all the 
principal amount of the Bonds of a maturity shall be called for redemption, the interests within the 
maturity to be redeemed shall be selected as follows: 

(i) if the Bonds are being held under a Book-Entry System by DTC, or a successor 
Depository, the amount of the interest of each DTC Participant in the Bonds to be redeemed shall be 
determined by DTC, or such successor Depository, by lot or such other manner as DTC, or such 
successor Depository, shall determine; or 

(ii) if the Bonds are not being held under a Book-Entry System by DTC, or a successor 
Deposito1y, the Bonds within the maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by the Registration Agent by 
lot or such other random manner as the Registration Agent in its discretion shall determine. 

[Subject to the credit hereinafter provided, the County shall redeem Bonds maturing 
on the redemption dates set forth below opposite the maturity dates, in aggregate 

principal amounts equal to the respective dollar amounts set fo11h below opposite the respective 
redemption dates at a price of par plus accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption. DTC, as 
securities deposito1y for the series of Bonds of which this Bond is one, or such Person as shall then be 
serving as the securities deposito1y for the Bonds, shall determine the interest of each Participant in the 
Bonds to be redeemed using its procedures generally in use at that time. If DTC or another securities 
deposit01y is no longer serving as securities deposito1y for the Bonds, the Bonds to be redeemed within a 
maturity shall be selected by the Registration Agent by lot or such other random manner as the 
Registration Agent in its discretion shall select. The dates of redemption and principal amount of Bonds 
to be redeemed on said dates are as follows: 

Final Maturity 

*Final Maturity 

Principal Amount 
of Bonds Redeemed 

At its option, to be exercised on or before the forty-fifth (4511i) day next preceding any such 
redemption date, the County may (i) deliver to the Registration Agent for cancellation Bonds to be 
redeemed, in any aggregate principal amount desired, and/or (ii) receive a credit in respect of its 

IO 



redemption obligation under this mandatory redemption provision for any Bonds of the maturity to be 
redeemed which prior to said date have been purchased or redeemed (otherwise than through the 
operation of this mandato1y sinking fund redemption provision) and cancelled by the Registration Agent 
and not theretofore applied as a credit against any redemption obligation under this mandatory sinking 
fund provision. Each Bond so delivered or previously purchased or redeemed shall be credited by the 
Registration Agent at 100% of the principal amount thereof on the obligation of the County on such 
payment date and any excess shall be credited on future redemption obligations in chronological order, 
and the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed by operation of this mandato1y sinking fund provision 
shall be accordingly reduced. The County shall on or before the forty-fifth ( 45'h) day next preceding each 
payment date furnish the Registration Agent with its certificate indicating whether or not and to what 
extent the provisions of clauses (i) and (ii) of this subsection are to be availed of with respect to such 
payment and confinn that funds for the balance of the next succeeding prescribed payment will be paid on 
or before the next succeeding payment date.] 

[Notice of any call for redemption shall be given by the Registration Agent not Jess than twenty 
(20) nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption by sending an appropriate notice 
to the registered owners of the Bonds to be redeemed by first-class mail, postage prepaid, at the addresses 
shown on the Bond registration records of the Registration Agent as of the date of the notice; but neither 
failure to mail such notice nor any defect in any such notice so mailed shall affect the sufficiency of the 
proceedings for the redemption of any of the Bonds for which proper notice was given. The notice may 
state that it is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys in an amount equal to the amount necessary to 
effect the redemption with the Registration Agent no later than the redemption date ("Conditional 
Redemption"). As long as DTC, or a successor Deposito1y, is the registered owner of the Bonds, all 
redemption notices shall be mailed by the Registration Agent to DTC, or such successor Deposito1y, as 
the registered owner of the Bonds, as and when above provided, and neither the County nor the 
Registration Agent shall be responsible for mailing notices of redemption to DTC Participants or 
Beneficial Owners. Failure of DTC, or any successor Depository, to provide notice to any DTC 
Participant will not affect the validity of such redemption. From and after any redemption date, all Bonds 
called for redemption shall cease to bear interest if funds are available at the office of the Registration 
Agent for the payment thereof and it notice has been duly provided as set forth in the Resolution, as 
hereafter defined. In the case of a Conditional Redemption, the failure of the County to make funds 
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of default, and 
the Registration Agent shall give immediate notice to the [Deposito1y or the] affected Bondholders that 
the redemption did not occur and that the Bond called for redemption and not so paid remain 
outstanding.] 

This Bond is transferable by the registered owner hereof in person or by such owner's attorney 
duly authorized in writing at the principal corporate trust office of the Registration Agent set forth on the 
front side hereof, but only in the manner, subject to limitations and upon payment of the charges provided 
in the Resolution, as hereafter defined, and upon surrender and cancellation of this Bond. Upon such 
transfer, a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denominations of the same maturity and interest rate for the 
same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor. The person in 
whose name this Bond is registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all 
purposes and neither the County nor the Registration Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contra1y 
whether or not any payments due on the Bond shall be overdue. Bonds, upon surrender to the 
Registration Agent, may, at the option of the registered owner thereof, be exchanged for an equal 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds of the same maturity in authorized denomination or 
denominations, upon the terms set fo1th in the Resolution. The Registration Agent shall not be required 
to transfer or exchange any Bond during the period commencing on a Regular Record Date or Special 
Record Date and ending on the corresponding interest payment date of such Bond, nor to transfer or 

11 



exchange any Bond after the notice calling such Bond for redemption has been made, nor during a period 
following the receipt of instructions from the County to call such Bond for redemption. 

This Bond is one of a total authorized issue aggregating$ and issued by the County to 
(i) refund all or a portion of the County's outstanding Rural School Bonds, Series 20 l 4B, dated 
December 30, 2014, and (ii) pay costs incident to the issuance and sale of the Bonds, pursuant to Sections 
49-3-100 l ~ ~., and Sections 9-21-10 I, ~ seg., Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended, and pursuant 
to a resolution adopted by the Board of County Commissioners of the County on April 5, 2021 (the 
"Resolution"). 

The Bonds shall be payable from unlimited ad valorem taxes to be levied on all taxable property 
within the County lying outside the corporate limits of the City of Lenoir City, Tennessee. Subject to the 
foregoing, for the prompt payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, the full 
faith and credit of the County are irrevocab ly pledged. 

This Bond and the income therefrom are exempt from all present state, county and municipal 
taxes in Tennessee except (a) Tennessee excise taxes on interest on the Bond during the period the Bond 
is held or beneficially owned by any organization or entity, other than a sole proprietorship or general 
pa1inership, doing business in the State of Tennessee and (b) Tennessee franchise taxes by reason of the 
inclusion of the book value of the Bond in Tennessee franchise tax base of any organization or entity, 
other than a sole proprietorship or general partnership, doing business in the State of Tennessee. 

rt is hereby certified, recited, and declared that all acts, conditions and things required lo exist, 
happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond exist, have happened and have 
been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, and that the amount of this Bond, 
together with all other indebtedness of the County, does not exceed any limitation prescribed by the 
constitution and statutes of the State of Tennessee. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County has caused this Bond to be signed by its County Mayor 
and attested by its County Clerk under the corporate seal of the County, all as of the date hereinabove set 
fotih . 

LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

By: _______________ _ 

County Mayor 

(SEAL) 

ATTESTED: 

County Clerk 

12 



Transferable and payable at the 
principal corporate trust office of: 

Date of Registration : 

This Bond is one of the issue of Bonds issued pursuant to the Resolution hereinabove described . 

Registration Agent 

By: _______________ _ 

Authorized Officer 

(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT) 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 
_________ , whose address is (Please inse1t 
Federal Identification or Social Security Number of Assignee , the within Bond of 
Loudon County, Tennessee, and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 
__________ , attorney, to transfer the said Bond on the records kept for registration thereof 
with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Signature guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed 
by a member firm of a Medallion Program 
acceptable to the Registration Agent 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must 
correspond with the name of the registered owner as it 
appears on the face of the within Bond in every 
particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatsoever. 

Section 7. Levy of Tax. The County, through its Governing Body, shall annually levy and 
collect a tax upon all taxable property within the County lying outside the corporate limits of the City of 
Lenoir City, Tennessee, in addition to all other taxes authorized by law, sufficient to pay principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when due, and for that purpose there is hereby levied a direct 
annual tax in such amount as may be found necessary each year to pay principal and interest coming due 
on the Bonds in said year. Principal and interest falling due at any time when there are insufficient funds 
from this tax levy on hand shall be paid from the current funds of the County and reimbursement therefor 
shall be made out of the taxes hereby provided to be levied when the same shall have been collected. The 
tax herein provided may be reduced to the extent of any direct appropriations from other funds , taxes and 
revenues of the County to the payment of debt service on the Bonds. 

13 



Section 8. Sale of Bonds. 

(a) The Bonds shall be offered for competitive public sale in one or more series, at a price of 
not less than 98% of par, exclusive of original issue discount, plus accrued interest, as a whole or in pait 
from time to time as shall be determined by the County Mayor, in consultation with the Municipal 
Advisor. The Bonds, or any series thereof, shall be sold by delivery of bids via physical delivery, mail, 
email, fax, or telephone or by electronic bidding means of an internet bidding service as shall be 
determined by the County Mayor, in consultation with the Municipal Advisor. 

(b) lf the Bonds are sold in more than one series, the County Mayor is authorized to cause to 
be sold in each series an aggregate principal amount of Bonds less than that shown in Section 4 hereof for 
each series, so long as the total aggregate principal amount of all series issued does not exceed the total 
aggregate principal amount of Bonds that may be authorized to refund the Refunded Indebtedness 
pursuant to Section 9-21-904, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended. 

(c) The County Mayor is fu1ther authorized with respect to each series of Bonds to: 

( 1) change the dated date of the Bonds, or any series thereof, to a date other than the 
date of issuance of the Bonds; 

(2) change the designation of the Bonds, or any series thereof, to a designation other 
than "Rural School Refunding Bonds" and to specify the series designation of the Bonds, or any 
series thereof; 

(3) change the first interest payment date on the Bonds, or any series thereof, to a 
date other than December 1, 2021 , provided that such date is not later than twelve months from 
the dated date of such series of Bonds; 

( 4) adjust the principal and interest payment dates and the maturity amounts of the 
Bonds, or any series thereof, provided that (A) the total principal amount of all series of the 
Bonds does not exceed the total amount of Bonds that may be authorized to refund the Refunded 
Indebtedness pursuant to Section 9-21-904, Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended; and (B) the 
final maturity date of each series shall not be after the end of fiscal year 2036; 

(5) remove or adjust the County's optional redemption provisions of the Bonds, 
provided that the premium amount to be paid on Bonds or any series thereof does not exceed two 
percent (2%) of the principal amount thereof; 

(6) refund less than all of the Outstanding Indebtedness; 

(7) sell the Bonds, or any series thereof, or any maturities thereof as Term Bonds 
with mandato1y redemption requirements corresponding to the maturities set forth herein or as 
otherwise detennined by the County Mayor, as he shall deem most advantageous to the County; 
and 

(8) cause all or a portion of the Bonds to be insured by a bond insurance policy 
issued by a nationally recognized bond insurance company if such insurance is requested and paid 
for by the winning bidder of the Bonds, or any series thereof. 

The form of the Bond set fo1th in Section 6 hereof shall be conformed to reflect any changes 
made pursuant to this Section 8 hereof. 

14 



( d) The County Mayor is authorized to sel I the Bonds, or any series thereof, simultaneously 
with any other bonds or notes authorized by resolution or resolutions of the Governing Body. The 
County Mayor is further authorized to sell the Bonds, or any series thereof, as a single issue of bonds with 
any other bonds with substantially similar terms authorized by resolution or resolutions of the Governing 
Body, in one or more series as the County Mayor shall deem to be advantageous to the County and in 
doing so, the County Mayor is authorized to change the designation of the Bonds to a designation other 
than "Rural School Refunding Bonds"; provided, however, that the total aggregate principal amount of 
combined bonds to be sold does not exceed the total aggregate principal amount of Bonds authorized by 
this resolution or bonds authorized by any other resolution or resolutions adopted by the Governing Body. 

(e) The County Mayor is authorized to award the Bonds, or any series thereof, in each case 
to the bidder whose bid results in the lowest true interest cost to the County, provided the rate or rates on 
the Bonds does not exceed the maximum rate prescribed by Section 4 hereof. The award of the Bonds by 
the County Mayor to the lowest bidder shall be binding on the County, and no fu1iher action of the 
Governing Body with respect thereto shall be required. 

(I) The County Mayor and County Clerk are authorized to cause the Bonds, in book-entry 
form (except as otherwise permitted herein), to be authenticated and delivered by the Registration Agent 
to the successful bidder and to execute, publish, and deliver all certificates and documents, including an 
official statement and closing ce1iificates, as they shall deem necessary in connection with the sale and 
delivery of the Bonds. The County Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with the Municipal 
Advisor, for financial advis01y services in connection with the sale of the Bonds and, as provided above, 
to accept an Engagement Letter from Bass, Berry & Sims PLC to serve as bond counsel in connection 
with the Bonds, and all actions heretofore taken by the officers of the County in that regard are hereby 
ratified and approved. The County Trustee and such other officers of the County, as determined by the 
County Mayor, are additionally authorized to execute, publish, and deliver all certificates and documents 
necessary or advisable in connection with the sale and delivery of the Bonds, as determined by the County 
Mayor in consultation with the Municipal Advisor. 

Section 9. 
disbursed as follows : 

Disposition of Bond Proceeds. The proceeds of the sale of the Bonds shall be 

(a) An amount sufficient, together with such other County funds as may be identified by the 
County Mayor and, if applicable, investment earnings on the foregoing, to refund the Refunded 
Indebtedness shall be applied to the refunding thereof by depositing such funds with the Escrow Agent 
and held in accordance with the terms of the Refunding Escrow Agreement and/or paying such funds 
directly to the holders (or paying agent for the holders) of the Refunded Bonds . 

(b) The remainder of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds shall be used to pay costs of 
issuance of the Bonds, including necessary legal , accounting and fiscal expenses, printing, engraving, 
advertising and similar expenses, administrative and clerical costs, Registration Agent fees, bond 
insurance premiums, if any, and other necessary miscellaneous expenses incurred in connection with the 
issuance and sale of the Bonds. Notwithstanding the foregoing, costs of issuance of the Bonds may be 
withheld from the good faith deposit or purchase price of the Bonds and paid to the Municipal Advisor to 
be used to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds . 

Section 10. Official Statement. The officers of the County, or any of them, are hereby 
authorized and directed to provide for the preparation and distribution of a Prelimina1y Official Statement 
describing the Bonds. After bids have been received and the Bonds have been awarded, the officers of 
the County, or any of them, shall make such completions, omissions, insertions and changes in the 

15 



Preliminary Official Statement not inconsistent with this resolution as are necessaiy or desirable to 
complete it as a final Official Statement for purposes of Rule l 5c2-12( e )(3) of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission . The officers of the County, or any of them, shall arrange for the delivery to the 
successful bidder on the Bonds of a reasonable number of copies of the Official Statement within seven 
(7) business days after the Bonds have been awarded for delivery, by the successful bidder on the Bonds, 
to each potential investor requesting a copy of the Official Statement and to each person to whom such 
bidder and members of his bidding group initially sell the Bonds . 

The officers of the County, or any of them, are authorized, on behalf of the County, to deem the 
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement in final form, each to be final as of its date 
within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12(b)(l), except for the omission in the Preliminaiy Official Statement 
of certain pricing and other information allowed to be omitted pursuant to such Rule l 5c2-12(b)( 1 ). The 
distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement in final form shall be 
conclusive evidence that each has been deemed in final form as of its date by the County except for the 
omission in the Preliminary Official Statement of such pricing and other information . 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Official Statement is required to be prepared if the Bonds, or 
any series thereof, are purchased by a purchaser that certifies that such purchaser intends to hold the 
Bonds, or any series thereof, for its own account and has no present intention to reoffer the Bonds, or any 
series thereof. 

Section 11 . Refunding Escrow Agreement. With respect to each emission of Bonds, for the 
purpose of providing for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the 
Refunded Indebtedness, the County Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and the County 
Clerk to attest on behalf of the County the Refunding Escrow Agreement with the Escrow Agent and to 
deposit with the Escrow Agent the amounts to be used by the Escrow Agent to purchase Government 
Securities, if any, or to be held in cash un-invested; provided, however, that the yield on any such 
investments shall be determined in such manner that none of the Bonds will be an "arbitrage bond" within 
the meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code. The form of the Refunding Escrow Agreement presented to 
this meeting and attached hereto as Exhibit B is hereby in all respects approved and the County Mayor 
and the County Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver same on behalf of the 
County in substantially the form thereof presented to this meeting, or with such changes as may be 
approved by the County Mayor and the County Clerk, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive 
evidence of their approval of all such changes. The Governing Body hereby authorizes and directs the 
County Mayor to appoint a refunding escrow agent to serve as the Refunding Escrow Agent under the 
Refunding Escrow Agreement, and the Refunding Escrow Agent so appointed is hereby authorized and 
directed to hold and administer all funds deposited in trust for the payment when due of principal of and 
premium, if any, and interest on the Refunded Indebtedness and to exercise such duties as set fo1ih in the 
Refunding Escrow Agreement. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Refunding Escrow 
Agreement shall be required for the refunding of the Refunded Indebtedness if deemed advisable by the 
County Mayor, in consultation with the Municipal Advisor. 

Section 12. Redemption of the Refunded Indebtedness. The County Mayor and the County 
Clerk, or either of them, are hereby authorized and directed to take all steps necessary to redeem the 
Refunded Indebtedness at their earliest possible redemption date, including the giving of and publication 
of any redemption notice as required by the resolution(s) authorizing the issuance of the Refunded 
Indebtedness. 

Section 13 . Discharge and Satisfaction of Bonds. If the County shall pay and discharge the 
indebtedness evidenced by any series of the Bonds in any one or more of the following ways, to wit: 

16 



(a) By paying or causing to be paid, by deposit of sufficient funds as and when required with 
the Registration Agent, the principal of and interest on such Bonds as and when the same become due and 
payable; 

(b) By depositing or causing to be deposited with any trust company or financial institution 
whose deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or similar federal agency and 
which has trust powers (an "Agent"; which gent may be the Registration Agent) in trust or escrow, on or 
before the date of maturity or redemption, sufficient money or Defeasance Obligations, as hereafter 
defined, the principal of and interest on which, when due and payable, will provide sufficient moneys to 
pay or redeem such Bonds and to pay interest thereon when due until the maturity or redemption date 
(provided, if such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to maturity thereof, proper notice of such redemption 
shall have been given or adequate provision shall have been made for the giving of such notice); 

(c) By delivering such Bonds to the Registration Agent for cancellation by it; 

I 
and if the County shall also pay or cause to be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the County with 
respect to such Bonds, or make adequate provision therefor, and by resolution of the Governing Body 
instruct any such Agent to pay amounts when and as required to the Registration Agent for the payment 
of principal of and interest on such Bonds when due, then and in that case the indebtedness evidenced by 
such Bonds shall be discharged and satisfied and all covenants, agreements and obligations of the County 
to the holders of such Bonds shall be fully discharged and satisfied and shall thereupon cease, terminate 
and become void. 

If the County shall pay and discharge the indebtedness evidenced by any of the Bonds in the 
manner provided in either clause (a) or clause (b) above, then the registered owners thereof shall 
thereafter be entitled only to payment out of the money or Defeasance Obligations deposited as aforesaid . 

Except as otherwise provided in this Section, neither Defeasance Obligations nor moneys 
deposited with the Registration Agent pursuant to this Section nor principal or interest payments on any 
such Defeasance Obligations shall be withdrawn or used for any purpose other than, and shall be held in 
trust for, the payment of the principal and interest on said Bonds; provided that any cash received from 
such principal or interest payments on such Defeasance Obligations deposited with the Registration 
Agent, (A) to the extent such cash will not be required at any time for such purpose, shall be paid over to 
the County as received by the Registration Agent and (B) to the extent such cash will be required for such 
purpose at a later date, shall, to the extent practicable, be reinvested in Defeasance Obligations maturing 
at times and in amounts sufficient to pay when due the principal and interest to become due on said Bonds 
on or prior to such redemption date or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and interest earned from 
such reinvestments shall be paid over to the County, as received by the Registration Agent. For the 
purposes of this Section, Defeasance Obligations shall mean direct obligations of, or obligations, the 
principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by, the United States of America, which bonds or other 
obligations shall not be subject to redemption prior to their maturity other than at the option of the 
registered owner thereof. 

Section 14. Federal Tax Matters Related to the Bonds. 

(a) The Bonds are expected to be issued as federally tax-exempt bonds. In such event, the 
County hereby covenants that it will not use, or permit the use of, any proceeds of the Bonds in a manner 
that would cause the Bonds to be subjected to treatment under Section 148 of the Code, and applicable 
regulations thereunder, as an "arbitrage bond". To that end, the County shall comply with applicable 
regulations adopted under said Section 148. The County further covenants with the registered owners 
from time to time of the Bonds that it wi 11, throughout the tenn of the Bonds and through the date that the 

17 



final rebate, if any, must be made to the United States in accordance with Section 148 of the Code, 
comply with the provisions of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and all regulations proposed 
and promulgated thereunder that must be satisfied in order that interest on the Bonds shall be and 
continue to be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the 
Code. The officers of the County are hereby authorized and directed to comply with the County's Federal 
Tax Policies and Procedures, if and to the extent applicable, in relation to the Bonds. 

(b) The Governing Body hereby delegates to the County Mayor the authority to designate, 
and determine whether to designate, the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations," as defined in 
Section 265 of the Code, to the extent the Bonds are not deemed designated as such and may be 
designated as such . 

(c) The appropriate officers of the County are authorized and directed, on behalf of the 
County, to execute and deliver all such certificates and documents that may be required of the County in 
order to comply with the provisions of this Section related to the issuance of the Bonds. 

Section 15. Continuing Disclosure. The County hereby covenants and agrees that it will 
provide annual financial information and event notices if and as required by Rule l 5c2- l 2 of the 
Securities Exchange Commission for the Bonds. The County Mayor is authorized to execute at the 
closing of the sale of the Bonds an agreement for the benefit of and enforceable by the owners of the 
Bonds specifying the details of the financial information and event notices to be provided and its 
obligations relating thereto. Failure of the County to comply with the undertaking herein described and to 
be detailed in said closing agreement shall not be a default hereunder, but any such failure shall entitle the 
owner or owners of any of the Bonds to take such actions and to initiate such proceedings as shall be 
necessary and appropriate to cause the County to comply with their undertaking as set forth herein and in 
said agreement, including the remedies of mandamus and specific performance. 

Section 16. Resolution a Contract. The provisions of this resolution shall constitute a 
contract between the County and the registered owners of the Bonds, and after the issuance of the Bonds, 
no change, variation or alteration of any kind in the provisions of this resolution shall be made in any 
manner until such time as the Bonds and interest due thereon shall have been paid in full. 

Section 17. Separability. If any section, paragraph or provision of this resolution shall be 
held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, 
paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this resolution. 

Section 18. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions and Effective Date. All other resolutions and 
orders, or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this resolution, are, to the extent of such conflict, 
hereby repealed and this resolution shall be in immediate effect from and after its adoption . 

Duly adopted and approved on April 5, 202 I. 

County Mayor 

Attested: 

County Clerk 

18 



STATE OF TENNESSEE ) 

COUNTY OF LOUDON 

I, Carrie McKelvey, certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk of Loudon 

County, Tennessee, and as such official I further certify that attached hereto is a copy of excerpts from the 

minutes of a meeting of the governing body of the County held on April 5, 2021; that these minutes were 

promptly and fully recorded and are open to public inspection; that I have compared said copy with the 

original minute record of said meeting in my official custody; and that said copy is a true, correct and 

complete transcript from said original minute record insofar as said original record relates to the County's 

Rural School Refunding Bonds. 

WITNESS my official signature and seal of said County on April_, 2021. 

County Clerk 

(SEAL) 

19 



EXHIBIT A to the Resolution 

Engagement Letter 

(Attached) 



Loudon County, Tennessee 
I 00 River Road #I 06 
Loudon, Tennessee 37774 

[Letterhead of Bass, Berry & Sims PLC] 

April 5, 2021 

Attention: Rollen "Buddy" Bradshaw, County Mayor 

Re: Issuance of Approximately $7 ,550,000 in Aggregate Principal Amount of 
Rural School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021. 

Dear County Mayor: 

The purpose of this engagement letter is to set forth certain matters concerning the services we 
will perform as bond counsel to Loudon County, Tennessee (the "Issuer"), in connection with the 
issuance of the above-referenced bonds (the "Bonds"). We understand that the Bonds are being issued for 
the purposes of providing funds necessary to refinance ce1tain outstanding debt of the Issuer and pay costs 
incident to the sale and issuance of the Bonds. We also understand that the Bonds will be sold at 
competitive sale. 

SCOPE OF ENGAGEMENT 

In this engagement, we expect to perform the following duties: 

( 1) Subject to the completion of proceedings to our satisfaction, render our legal opinion (the 
"Bond Opinion") regarding the validity and binding effect of the Bonds, the source of 
payment and security for the Bonds, and the excludability of interest on the Bonds from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes . 

(2) Prepare and review documents necessary or appropriate for the authorization, issuance 
and de] ivery of the Bonds, coordinate the authorization and execution of such documents, 
and review enabling legislation. 

(3) Assist the Issuer in seeking from other governmental authorities such approvals, 
permissions and exemptions as we determine are necessa1y or appropriate in connection 
with the authorization, issuance, and delivery of the Bonds, except that we 'viii not be 
responsible for any required blue-sky filings. 

( 4) Review legal issues relating to the structure of the Bonds; and 

(5) Prepare those sections of the official statement to be disseminated in connection with the 
sale of the Bonds involving the description of (i) federal law pertinent to the validity of 
the Bonds and the tax law treatment thereon, (ii) the terms of the Bonds and (iii) our 
Bond Opinion. 

Our Bond Opinion will be addressed to the Issuer and the purchaser of the Bonds and will be 
delivered by us on the date the Bonds are exchanged for its purchase price (the "Closing") . 



The Bond Opinion will be based on facts and law existing as of its date. In rendering our Bond 
Opinion, we will rely upon the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials and other 
persons furnished to us without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation, and we will 
assume continuing compliance by the Issuer with applicable laws relating to the Bonds. During the 
course of this engagement, we will rely on you to provide us with complete and timely information on all 
developments pertaining to any aspect of the Bonds and their security. We understand that you will direct 
members of your staff and other employees of the Issuer to cooperate with us in this regard . 

Our duties in this engagement are limited to those expressly set forth above. Among other things, 
our duties do not include: 

a. 1) Assisting in the preparation or review of an official statement or any other 
disclosure document with respect to the Bonds other than as described in (5) above, or 

2) Performing an independent investigation to determine the accuracy, 
completeness or sufficiency of any such document, or 

3) Rendering advice that the official statement or other disclosure documents 

i) Do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 

ii) Do not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements 
contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading. 

b. Preparing requests for tax rulings from the Internal Revenue Service, or no action letters 
from the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

c. Preparing blue sky or investment surveys with respect to the Bonds. 

cl. Drafting state constitutional or legislative amendments. 

e. Pursuing test cases or other litigation, (such as contested validation proceedings) except 
as set fo1th above. 

f. Making an investigation or expressing any view as to the creditwo1thiness of the Issuer or 
the Bonds. 

g. Except for defending our Bond Opinion, representing the Issuer in Internal Revenue 
Service examinations or inquiries, or Securities and Exchange Commission 
investigations. 

h. After Closing, providing continuing advice to the Issuer or any other pa1ty concerning 
any actions necessary to assure that interest paid on the Bonds will continue to be 
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes (e.g., our engagement 
does not include rebate calculations for the Bonds). 

1. Opining on a continuing disclosure undertaking pertaining to the Bonds or, after Closing, 
providing advice concerning any actions necessary to assure compliance with any 
continuing disclosure undertaking. 



j . Addressing any other matter not specifically set forth above that is not required to render 
our Bond Opinion . 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP 

Upon execution of this engagement letter, the Issuer will be our client and an attorney-client 
relationship \Viii exist between us . We assume that all other parties will retain such counsel as they deem 
necessary and appropriate to represent their interests in this transaction . We fu1ther assume that all other 
parties understand that in this transaction we represent only the Issuer, we are not counsel to any other 
party, and we are not acting as an intermediary among the parties . Our services as bond counsel are 
Jim ited to those contracted for in this Jetter; the Issuer's execution of this engagement letter will constitute 
an acknowledgment of those limitations. In our representation of the Issuer, we will not act as a 
"municipal advisor," as such term is defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

Our representation of the Issuer and the attorney-client relationship created by this engagement 
letter will be concluded upon issuance of the Bonds. Nevertheless, subsequent to Closing, we will mail 
the appropriate Internal Revenue Service Form 803 8-G, and prepare and distribute to the participants in 
the transaction a transcript of the proceedings pertaining to the Bonds. 

As you are aware, our firm represents many political subdivisions, companies and individuals . It 
is possible that during the time that we arc representing the Issuer, one or more of our present or future 
clients will have transactions with the Issuer. It is also possible that we may be asked to represent, in an 
unrelated matter, one or more of the entities involved in the issuance of the Bonds. We do not believe 
such representation, if it occurs, will adversely affect our ability to represent you as provided in this Jetter, 
either because such matters will be sufficiently different from the issuance of the Bonds as to make such 
representations not adverse to our representation of you, or because the potential for such adversity is 
remote or minor and outweighed by the consideration that it is unlikely that advice given to the other 
client will be relevant to any aspect of the issuance of the Bonds. 

FEES 

Based upon: (i) our current understanding of the terms, structure, size and schedule of the 
financing represented by the Bonds; (ii) the duties we will undertake pursuant to this engagement Jetter; 
(iii) the time we anticipate devoting to the financing; and (iv) the responsibilities we will assume in 
connection therewith, our fee will be $17,000.00. The fee quoted above will include all out-of-pocket 
expenses advanced for your benefit. 

If, for any reason, the financing represented by the Bonds as described in the paragraph above is 
completed without the delivery of our Bond Opinion as bond counsel or our services are otherwise 
terminated, we will expect to be compensated at our normal rates for the time actually spent on your 
behalf plus client charges as described above unless we have failed to meet our responsibilities under this 
engagement, but in no event will the amount we are paid exceed $17,000 .00. 

RECORDS 

At your request, papers and property furnished by you will be returned promptly upon receipt of 
payment for outstanding fees and client charges. All goods, documents, records, and other work product 
and property produced during the perfonnance of this contract are deemed to be Issuer's prope1ty. Our 
own files , including lawyer work product, pertaining to the transaction will be retained by us for a period 
of three (3) years and be subject to inspection by Issuer upon reasonable notice. 



OTHER MATTERS 

We have not retained any persons to solicit or secure this engagement from the Issuer upon an 
agreement or understanding for a contingent commission, percentage, or brokerage fee . We have not 
offered any employee of the Issuer a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with this 
engagement and no employee has requested or agreed to accept a gratuity or offer of employment in 
connection with this engagement. 

Any modification or amendment to this engagement letter must be in writing, executed by us and 
contain the signature of the Issuer. The validity, construction and effect of this engagement letter and any 
and all extensions and/or modifications thereof shall be governed by the laws of the State of Tennessee. 

CONCLUSION 

If the foregoing terms are not acceptable to you , please so indicate in writing by an authorized 
officer of the County. Otherwise, we look forward to working with you. 



EXHIBIT B to the Resolution 

Form of Refunding Escrow Agreement 

(Attached) 



LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

$ ____ RURAL SCHOOL REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021 

REFUNDING ESCROW AGREEMENT 

This Refunding Escrow Agreement is made and entered into as of , 2021, by and -----
between Loudon County, Tennessee (the "Issuer") and (the "Agent"). 

W I TN E S S ET 1-I: 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined to provide for payment of the debt service requirements of 
certain of its outstanding debt obligations, as described herein (the "Outstanding Obligations") by 
depositing in escrow with the Agent funds sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 
Outstanding Obligations as set forth on Exhibit A hereto; and 

WHEREAS, in order to obtain the funds needed to refund the Outstanding Obligations, the Issuer 
has authorized and issued its Rural School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 (the "Refunding Bonds"); and 

WHEREAS, a portion of the proceeds derived from the sale of the Refunding Bonds[, together 
with legally available funds of the Issuer,] will be deposited in escrow with the Agent hereunder and 
applied to the purchase of certain securities described herein, the principal amount thereof together with 
interest thereon to mature at such times and in such amounts as shall be sufficient to pay when due all of 
the principal of and interest on the Outstanding Obligations as set forth on Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, in order to create the escrow hereinabove described, provide for the deposit of said 
Refunding Bond proceeds and other funds of the Issuer and the application thereof, and to provide for the 
payment of the Outstanding Obligations, the parties hereto do hereby enter into this Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Issuer, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants 
herein set forth and in order to secure the payment of the Outstanding Obligations according to their tenor 
and effect, does by these presents hereby grant, warrant, demise, release, convey, assign, transfer, alien, 
pledge, set over and confirm, to the Agent, and to its successors hereunder, and to it and its assigns 
forever, in escrow, all and singular the property hereinafter described to wit: 

DIVISION I 

All right, title and interest of the Issuer in and to $ _____ , consisting of $ ___ _ 
derived from the proceeds of the sale of the Refunding Bonds [and $ from other legally 
available funds of the Issuer]. 

DIVISION II 

All right, title and interest of the Issuer in and to the Government Securities purchased with the 
funds described in Division I hereof and more particularly described in Exhibit B, attached hereto, and to 
all income, earnings and increment derived from or accruing to the Government Securities. 



DIVISION l1I 

Any and all other property of every kind and nature from time to time hereafter, by delivery or by 
writing of any kind , conveyed, pledged, assigned or transferred in escrow hereunder by the Issuer or by 
anyone in its behalf to the Agent, which is hereby authorized to receive the same at any time to be held in 
escrow hereunder. 

DIVISION IV 

All property that is by the express provisions of this Agreement required to be subject to the 
pledge hereof and any additional property that may, from time to time hereafter, by delivery or by writing 
of any kind, be subject to the pledge hereof, by the Issuer or by anyone in its behalf, and the Agent is 
hereby authorized to receive the same at any time to be held in escrow hereunder. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD, all and singular, the escrowed property, including all additional 
property which by the terms hereof has or may become subject to this Agreement, unto the Agent, and its 
successors and assigns, forever . 

The escrowed property shall be held in escrow for the benefit and security of the owners from 
time to time of the Outstanding Obligations; but if the principal of and interest on the Outstanding 
Obligations shall be fully and promptly paid when due in accordance with the terms hereof, then this 
Agreement shall be and become void and of no fu1ther force and effect, otherwise the same shall remain 
in full force and effect, subject to the covenants and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION 

(a) Definitions. In addition to words and terms elsewhere defined in this Agreement, 
the following words and terms as used in this Agreement shall have the following meanings, unless some 
other meaning is plainly intended : 

"Agreement" means this Refunding Escrow Agreement; 

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any lawful regulations 
promulgated thereunder; 

"Escrow Fund" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2. l hereof; 

"Escrow Prope1ty", "escrow property" or "escrowed property" means the property, rights and 
interest of the Issuer that are described in Divisions I through IV of this Agreement and hereinabove 
conveyed in escrow to the Agent; 

"Government Securities" means obligations and securities described in Section 9-21-914, 
Tennessee Code Annotated; 

"Outstanding Obligations" means the Issuer's Rural School Bonds, Series 2014B, dated 
December 30, 2014, maturing ; and 

"Written Request" means a request in writing signed by the County Mayor of the Issuer or by any 
other officer or official of the Issuer duly authorized by the Issuer to act in the place of the County Mayor. 



(b) Construction. Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to 
include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders . Words importing the singular number shall 
include the plural number and vice versa unless the context shall otherwise indicate. The word "person" 
shall include corporations, associations, natural persons and public bodies unless the context shall 
otherwise indicate. Reference to a person other than a natural person shall include its successors. 

ARTICLE 11 
ESTABLISHMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF FUNDS 

(a) Creation of Escrow: Deposit of Funds . The Issuer hereby creates and establishes 
with the Agent a special and irrevocable escrow composed of the Escrowed Property and hereby deposits 
with the Agent and the Agent hereby acknowledges receipt of$ as described in Division I 
hereof. The monies so deposited, together with investment income therefrom, is herein referred to as the 
"Escrow Fund" and shall constitute a fund to be held by the Agent as a pait of the Escrowed Property 
created, established, and governed by this Agreement. 

(b) Investment of Funds. The monies described in Article II( a) hereof shall be held 
or invested as follows: 

(1) the amount of shall be used to purchase the Government Securities 
described on Exhibit B attached hereto; and 

(2) the amount of $ ____ _ shall be held as cash 1n a non-interest-bearing 
account. 

Except as provided in subsections (d) and (f) hereof, the investment income from the Government 
Securities in the Escrow Fund shall be credited to the Escrow Fund and shall not be reinvested. The 
Agent shall have no power or duty to invest any monies held hereunder or to make substitutions of 
Government Securities held hereunder or to sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of the Government 
Securities acquired hereunder except as provided herein. 

(c) Disposition of Escrow Funds. The Agent shall without fmther authorization or 
direction from the Issuer collect the principal and interest on the Government Securities promptly as the 
same shall fall due. From the Escrow Fund, to the extent that monies therein are sufficient for such 
purpose, the Agent shall make timely payments to the paying agent or its successor, for the Outstanding 
Obligations of monies sufficient for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Outstanding 
Obligations as the same shall become due and payable. Amounts and dates of principal and interest 
payments and the name and address of the paying agent with respect to the Outstanding Obligations are 
set forth on Exhibit A. Payment on the dates and to the paying agent in accordance with Exhibit A shall 
constitute full performance by the Agent of its duties hereunder with respect to each respective payment. 
The Issuer represents and warrants that the Escrow Fund, if held, invested and disposed of by the Agent in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, will be sufficient to make the foregoing payments. No 
paying agent fees, fees and expenses of the Agent, or any other costs and expenses associated with the 
Refunding Bonds or the Outstanding Obligations shall be paid from the Escrow Fund, and the Issuer 
agrees to pay all such fees, expenses, and costs from its legally available funds as such payments become 
due. When the Agent has made all required payments of principal and interest on the Outstanding 
Obligations to the paying agent as hereinabove provided, the Agent shall transfer any monies or 
Government Securities then held hereunder to the Issuer and this Agreement shall terminate. 

(d) Excess Funds. Except as provided in subsection (f) hereof, amounts held by the 
Agent, representing interest on the Government Securities in excess of the amount necessmy to make the 



corresponding payment of principal and/or interest on the Outstanding Obligations, shall be held by the 
Agent without interest and shall be applied before any other Escrow Fund monies to the payment of the 
next ensuing principal and/or interest payment on the Outstanding Obligations . Upon retirement of all the 
Outstanding Obligations, the Agent shall pay any excess amounts remaining in the Escrow Fund to the 
Issuer. 

(e) Reports. [The Agent shall deliver to the County Clerk of the Issuer, within 90 
days of the close of the Issuer's fiscal year, a report current as of the end of such fiscal year, which shall 
summarize all transactions relating to the Escrow Fund effected during the immediately preceding fiscal 
year of the Issuer and which also shall set forth all assets in the Escrow Fund as of the end of such fiscal 
year and set forth opening and closing balances thereof for that fiscal year. The Agent shall also deliver 
to the County Clerk, within 90 days following the final disposition of funds herefrom, a report 
summarizing all transactions relating to the Escrow Fund effected during the term thereof.] 

(f) Investment of Moneys Remaining in Escrow Fund . The Agent may invest and 
reinvest any monies remaining from time to time in the Escrow Fund until such time as they are needed. 
Such monies shall be invested in Government Securities, maturing no later than the next interest payment 
date of the Outstanding Obligations, or for such periods or at such interest rates as the Agent shall be 
directed by Written Request, provided, however, that the Issuer shall furnish the Agent, as a condition 
precedent to such investment, with an opinion from nationally recognized bond counsel stating that such 
reinvestment of such monies will not, under the statutes, rules and regulations then in force and applicable 
to obligations issued on the date of issuance of the Refunding Bonds, cause the interest on the Refunding 
Bonds or the Outstanding Obligations not to be excluded from gross income for Federal income tax 
purposes and that such investment is not inconsistent with the statutes and regulations applicable to the 
Refunding Bonds and Outstanding Obligations. Any interest income resulting from reinvestment of 
monies pursuant to this subsection (f) shall be applied first to the payment of principal of and interest on 
the Outstanding Obligations to the extent the Escrow is or will be insufficient to retire the Outstanding 
Obligations as set forth on Exhibit A and any excess shall be paid to the Issuer to be applied to the 
payment of the Refunding Bonds or the expenses of issuance thereof. 

(g) Irrevocable Escrow Created. The deposit of monies, Government Securities, 
matured principal amounts thereof, and investment proceeds therefrom in the Escrow Fund shall 
constitute an irrevocable deposit of said monies and Government Securities for the benefit of the holders 
of the Outstanding Obligations, except as provided herein with respect to amendments pem1itted under 
Section IV(a) hereof. All the funds and accounts created and established pursuant to this Agreement shall 
be and constitute escrow funds for the purposes provided in this Agreement and shall be kept separate and 
distinct from all other funds of the Issuer and the Agent and used only for the purposes and in the manner 
provided in this Agreement. 

(a) 
under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE III 
CONCERNING THE AGENT 

Appointment of Agent. The Issuer hereby appoints the Agent as escrow agent 

(b) Acceptance by Agent. By execution of this Agreement, the Agent accepts the 
duties and obligations as Agent hereunder. The Agent further represents that it has all requisite power, 
and has taken all corporate actions necessary to execute the escrow hereby created. 

(c) Liability of Agent. The Agent shall be under no obligation to inquire into or be 
in any way responsible for the pe1formance or nonperformance by the Issuer or any paying agent of its 



obligations, or to protect any of the Issuer's rights under any bond proceedings or any of the Issuer's other 
contracts with or franchises or privileges from any state, county, Issuer or other governmental agency or 
with any person. The Agent shall not be liable for any act done or step taken or omitted to be taken by it, 
or for any mistake of fact or law, or anything which it may do or refrain from doing, except fo1 .. its own 
gross negligence or willful misconduct in the performance or nonperformance of any obligation imposed 
upon it hereunder. The Agent shall not be responsible in any manner whatsoever for the recitals or 
statements contained herein or in the Outstanding Obligations or in the Refunding Bonds or in any 
proceedings taken in connection therewith, but they are made solely by the Issuer. The Agent shall have 
no lien whatsoever upon any of the monies or investments in the Escrow Fund for the payment of fees 
and expenses for services rendered by the Agent under this Agreement. 

The Agent shall not be liable for the accuracy of the calculations as to the sufficiency of Escrow 
Fund monies and Government Securities and the earnings thereon to pay the Outstanding Obligations. So 
long as the Agent applies any monies, the Government Securities and the interest earnings therefrom to 
pay the Outstanding Obligations as provided herein, and complies fully with the terms of this Agreement, 
the Agent shall not be liable for any deficiencies in the amounts necessaiy to pay the Outstanding 
Obligations caused by such calculations. The Agent shall not be liable or responsible for any loss 
resulting from any investment made pursuant to this Agreement and in full compliance with the 
provisions hereof. 

In the event of the Agent's failure to account for any of the Government Securities or monies 
received by it, said Government Securities or monies shall be and remain the prope1ty of the Issuer in 
escrow for the benefit of the holders of the Outstanding Obligations, as herein provided, and if for any 
improper reason such Government Securities or monies are applied to purposes not provided for herein or 
misappropriated by the Agent, the assets of the Agent shall be impressed with a trust for the amount 
thereof until the required application of such funds shall be made or such funds shall be restored to the 
Escrow Fund. 

(d) Permitted Acts . The Agent and its affiliates may become the owner of or may 
deal in the Refunding Bonds or Outstanding Obligations as fully and with the same rights as if it were not 
the Agent. 

(e) Exculpation of Funds of Agent. Except as set forth in subsection (c) hereof, none 
of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall require the Agent to use or advance its own funds or 
otherwise incur personal financial liability in the performance of any of its duties or the exercise of any of 
its rights or powers hereunder. The Agent shall be under no liability for interest on any funds or other 
prope1ty received by it hereunder, except as herein expressly provided. 

(f) Payment of Deficiency by Issuer. The Issuer agrees that it will promptly and 
without delay remit or cause to be remitted to the Agent within ten (10) days after receipt of the Agent's 
written request, such additional sum or sums of money as may be necessa1y in excess of the sums 
provided for under A1ticle II( a) to assure the payment when due of the principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on the Outstanding Obligations. 

(g) No Redemption or Acceleration of Maturity. The Agent will not pay any of the 
principal of or interest on the Outstanding Obligations, except as provided in Exhibit A attached hereto 
and will not redeem or accelerate the maturity of any of the Outstanding Obligations except as provided 
in Article LI hereof. 

(h) Qualifications of Agent. There shall at all times be an Agent hereunder that shall 
be a corporation or banking association organized and doing business under the laws of the United States 



or any state, authorized under the Jaws of its incorporation to exercise the powers herein granted, having a 
combined capital, surplus, and undivided profits of at least $75,000,000 and subject to supervision or 
examination by federal or state authority. If such corporation or association publishes reports of condition 
at least annually, pursuant to law or to the requirements of any supervising or examining authority above 
referred to, then for the purposes of this paragraph the combined capital, surplus, and undivided profits of 
such corporation or association shall be deemed to be its combined capital, surplus, and undivided profits 
as set fo1th in its most recent report of condition as published . In case at any time the Agent shall cease to 
be eligible in accordance with the provisions of this section, the Agent shall resign immediately in the 
manner and with the effect specified herein . 

(i) Resignation of Agent. The Agent may at any time resign by giving direct written notice 
to the Issuer and by giving the holders of the Outstanding Obligations notice by first-class mail of such 
resignation . Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the Issuer shall promptly appoint a successor 
escrow agent by resolution of its governing body. If no successor escrow agent shall have been appointed 
and have accepted appointment within thirty (30) days after the publication of such notice of resignation, 
the resigning Agent may petition any court of competent jurisdiction located in Loudon County, 
Tennessee for the appointment of a successor, or any holder of the Outstanding Obligations may, on 
behalf of himself and others similarly situated, petition any such court for the appointment of a successor. 
Such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it may deem proper, appoint a successor meeting 
the qualifications set fo1th in Article III(h) . The Agent shall serve as escrow agent hereunder until its 
successor shall have been appointed and such successor shall have accepted the appointment. 

U) Removal of Agent. In case at any time the Agent shall cease to be eligible in 
accordance with the provisions of Article III hereof and shall fail to resign after written request therefor 
by the Issuer or by any holder of the Outstanding Obligations, or the Agent shall become incapable of 
acting or shall be adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent or a receiver of the Agent or any of its property shall 
be appointed, or any public officer shall take charge or control of the Agent or its property or affairs for 
the purpose of rehabilitation, conservation, or liquidation, then in any such case, the Issuer may remove 
the Agent and appoint a successor by resolution of its governing body or any such bondholder may, on 
behalf of himself and all others similarly situated, petition any cornt of competent jurisdiction situated in 
the Issuer for the removal of the Agent and the appointment of a successor. Such court may thereupon, 
after such notice, if any, as it may deem proper, remove the Agent and appoint a successor who shall meet 
the qualifications set forth in Article III(h) . Unless incapable of serving, the Agent shall serve as escrow 
agent hereunder until its successor sh al 1 have been appointed and such successor shall have accepted the 
appointment. 

The holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all the Outstanding Obligations at any 
time outstanding may at any time remove the Agent and appoint a successor by an instrument or 
concurrent instruments in writing signed by such bondholders and presented, together with the successor's 
acceptance of appointment, to the Issuer and the Agent. 

Any resignation or removal of the Agent and appointment of a successor pursuant to any of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall become effective upon acceptance of appointment by the successor as 
provided in A1ticle III(k) hereof. 

(k) Acceptance by Successor. Any successor escrow agent appointed as provided in this 
Agreement shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to the Issuer and to its predecessor an instrument 
accepting such appointment hereunder and agreeing to be bound by the te1111s hereof, and thereupon the 
resignation or removal of the predecessor shall become effective an·d such successor, without any further 
act, deed or conveyance, shall become vested with all the rights, powers, duties and obligations of its 
predecessor, with like effect as if originally named as Agent herein; but, nevertheless, on Written Request 



of the Issuer or the request of the successor, the predecessor shall execute and deliver an instrument 
transferring to such successor all rights, powers and escrow prope1ty of the predecessor. Upon request of 
any such successor, the Issuer shall execute any and all instruments in writing for more fully and certainly 
vesting in and confirming to such successor all such rights, powers and duties . No successor shall accept 
appointment as provided herein unless at the time of such acceptance such successor shall be eligible 
under the provisions of Atiicle III(h) hereof. 

Any corporation into which the Agent may be merged or with which it may be consolidated, or 
any corporation resulting from any merger or consolidation to which the Agent shall be a party, or any 
corporation succeeding to the business of the Agent, shall be the successor of the Agent hereunder 
without the execution or filing of any paper or any further act on the part of any of the parties hereto, 
anything herein to the contra1y notwithstanding, provided that such successor shall be eligible under the 
provisions of A1ticle III(h) hereof. 

(I) Payment to Agent. The Issuer agrees to pay the Agent, as reasonable and proper 
compensation under this Agreement, the sum of$ , payable on the date hereof. The Agent 
shall be entitled to reimbursement of all advances, counsel fees and expenses, and other costs made or 
incurred by the Agent in connection with its services and/or its capacity as Agent or resulting therefrom. 
In addition, the Issuer agrees to pay to the Agent all out-of-pocket expenses and costs of the Agent 
incurred by the Agent in the performance of its duties hereunder, including all publication, mailing and 
other expenses associated with the redemption of the Outstanding Obligations; provided, however, that 
the Issuer agrees to indemnify the Agent and hold it harmless against any liability which it may incur 
while acting in good faith in its capacity as Agent under this Agreement, including, but not I imited to, any 
court costs and attorneys' fees, and such indemnification shall be paid from available funds of the Issuer 
and shall not give rise to any claim against the Escrow Fund . 

ARTICLE IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

(a) Amendments to this Agreement. This Agreement is made for the benefit of the 
Issuer, the holders from time to time for the Outstanding Obligations, and it shall not be repealed, 
revoked, altered or amended without the written consent of all such holders, the Agent and the Issuer; 
provided, however, that the Issuer and the Agent may, without the consent of, or notice to, such holders, 
enter into such agreements supplemental to this Agreement as shall not adversely affect the rights of such 
holders and as shall not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, for any one or 
more of the following purposes: 

(I) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Agreement; 

(2) to grant to, or confer upon, the Agent for the benefit of the holders of the 
Outstanding Obligations, any additional rights, remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully 
be granted to, or conferred upon, such holders or the Agent; and 

(3) to subject to this Agreement additional funds , securities or prope1iies . 

The Agent shall be entitled to rely exclusively upon an unqualified opinion of nationally recognized bond 
counsel with respect to compliance with this Section, including the extent, if any, to which any change, 
modification, addition or elimination affects the rights of the holders of the Outstanding Obligations, or 
that any instrument executed hereunder complies with the conditions and provisions of this Section. 



Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision of this Agreement, upon Written Request 
and upon compliance with the conditions hereinafter stated, the Agent shall have the power to and shall, 
in simultaneous transactions , sell, transfer, otherwise dispose of or request the redemption of the 
Government Securities held hereunder and to substitute therefor direct obligations of, or obligations the 
principal of and interest on which are fully guaranteed by the United States of America, subject to the 
condition that such monies or securities held by the Agent shall be sufficient to pay principal of and 
interest on the Outstanding Obligations. The Issuer hereby covenants and agrees that it will not request 
the Agent to exercise any of the powers described in the preceding sentence in any manner which will 
cause the Refunding Bonds to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Section 148 ofthe Code in effect 
on the date of such request and applicable to obligations issued on the issue date of the Refunding Bonds. 
The Agent shall purchase such substituted securities with the proceeds derived from the maturity, sale, 
transfer, disposition or redemption of the Government Securities held hereunder or from other monies 
available. The transactions may be effected only ifthere shall have been submitted to the Agent: (!)an 
independent verification by a nationally recognized independent certified public accounting finn 
concerning the adequacy of such substituted securities with respect to principal and the interest thereon 
and any other monies or securities held for such purpose to pay when due the principal of and interest on 
the Outstanding Obligations in the manner required by the proceedings which authorized their issuance; 
and (2) an opinion from nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that the disposition and 
substitution or purchase of such securities will not, under the statutes, rules and regulations then in force 
and app licable to obligations issued on the date of issuance of the Refunding Bonds, cause the interest on 
the Refund ing Bonds not to be exempt from Federal income taxation . Any surplus monies resulting from 
the sale, transfer, other disposition or redemption of the Government Securities held hereunder and the 
substitutions therefor of direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which is fully 
guaranteed by, the United States of America, shall be released from the Escrow Fund and shall be 
transferred to the Issuer. 

(b) Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held or deemed to be 
invalid or shall, in fact, be illegal, inoperative or unenforceable, the same shall not affect any other 
provision or provisions herein contained or render the same invalid , inoperative or unenforceable to any 
extent whatever. 

( c) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the law of the State of Tennessee. 

(d) Notices. Any notice, request, communication or other paper shall be sufficiently 
given and shall be deemed given when delivered or mailed by Registered or Certified Mail, postage 
prepaid, or sent by telegram as follows: 

To the Issuer: 

Loudon County, Tennessee 
100 River Road# 106 
Loudon, Tennessee 37774 
Attention : County Mayor 

To the Agent: 



The Issuer and the Agent may designate in writing any further or different addresses to which 
subsequent notices, requests, communications or other papers shall be sent. 

(e) Agreement Binding. All the covenants, promises and agreements in this 
Agreement contained by or on behalf of the parties shall bind and inure to the benefit of their respective 
successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not. 

(f) Termination. This Agreement shall terminate when all transfers and payments 
required to be made by the Agent under the provisions hereof shall have been made. 

(g) Execution by Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, all or any of which shall be regarded for all purposes as one original and shall constitute and 
be but one and the same instrument. 

(signature page follows) 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Agent have caused this Agreement to be executed 
all as of the day and date first above written. 

LOUDON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

By: _______________ _ 
County Mayor 

County Clerk 

Escrow Agent 

By: _______________ _ 
Title: ______________ _ 



EXHIBIT A 

[Debt Service Schedule of Rural School Bonds, Series 20148, dated December 30, 2014, maturing on and 
after June I, 20_, With Name and Address of the Paying Agent and Date and Amount of Payment] 

Payment 
Date 

Paying Agent: 

Principal 
Payable 

Regions Bank 
Nashville, Tennessee 

Interest 
Payable Premium 

Total Debt 
Service 



EX!-frBIT B 

[Inse1t Description of Securities] 

Total Cost of Securities: $ ___ _ 
Initial Cash Deposit: $ ___ _ 

30170243 . 1 



Loudon County Commission 

Refunding Letter 



.J ,1SON E. 1'v l u~ 1/'1 m'Ell 

Co111pr1·1J!!1·r 

March 23, 202 I 

Honorable Rollen Bradshaw, Mayor 

A ;}) 
TEN~E ~ SEE 

COMPTROLLER 
OF THE TREASURY 

and Honorable Board of Commissioners 
Loudon County 
I 00 River Road 
Loudon, TN 37774 

Dear Mayor Bradshaw and Members of the Board: 

Thank you for your recent correspondence. We acknowledge receipt on March 22, 2021, of a request from 
Loudon County (the "County") for a report on its plan of refunding (the "Plan") for the County's proposed 
issuance of an estimated $7,520,000 Rmal School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated Title 9 Chapter 21, enclosed is the Director's 
Report based upon our review of the County's Plan. The Plan, this Jetter, and the enclosed repo11 should 
be made avai !able on the County's website and must be presented to each member of the Counci 1 for review 
prior to the adoption of a refunding bond authorizing resolution. 

If you should have questions or need assistance, please feel free to contact your financial analyst, William 
Wood, at 615.401.7893 or \'. iili:1;;1 ' .•. "'·! ,; ,., i! .111 . " 1•\ . 

Very truly yours, 

[ . 

/ 
Betsy Knotts 
Director of the Division of Local Government Finance 

cc: Mr. Bryan Burklin, Assistant Director, Division of Local Government Audit 
Mr. Scott Gibson, Cumberland Securities. 
Ms . Lillian Blackshear, Bass Berry & Sims 

Enclosure: Report of the Director of the Division of Local Government Finance 
BK:ww 

.. , 



J,\SO N E. ;\.I l!~ ll'0\\ ' 1'1 1 

('11111prm//,.,. 

/[:Jt 
TENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER 
oi Tl-It: TREASURY 

Report of the Director of the Division of Local Government Finance 
Concerning the Proposed Issuance of 

Rural School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 
Loudon County, Tennessee 

This report is being issued pursuant to T.C.A. § 9-21-903 and is based upon information as presented 
in a plan of refunding (the "Plan") received by our office on March 22, 2021, from Loudon County 
(the "County"). Our repo11 provides information to assist the governing body in its responsibility to 
understand the nature of the refunding transaction, including the costs, risks, and benefits, prior to 
approving the issuance of the refunding bonds and is designed to provide consistent and comparable 
information for all local governments in Tennessee. 

This report does not constitute approval or disapproval of the Plan or a determination that a refunding 
is advantageous or necessary nor that the refunded obligations should be refinanced or remain 
outstanding until their respective dates of maturity . This repo11 does not address compliance with 
federal tax regulations and is not to be relied upon for that purpose. The County should discuss these 
issues with bond counsel. This report and the County ' s Plan must be presented to the governing body 
prior to the adoption of a refunding bond resolution. 

Refunding Analysis 

At the request of the Mayor, our office has reviewed the County 's Plan, as required by TCA § 9-21-
903 , and provides the following analysis based upon the assumptions outlined in the Plan. 

The County intends to issue by competitive sale an estimated $7,520,000 Rural School Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2021 (the "Series 202 l Refunding Bonds"), priced at par to current refund $7,370,000 
Rural School Bonds, Series 20148 (the "Series 20148 Bonds") dated December 30, 2014, and 
maturing June I, 2022 through June 1, 2035. 

o The County' s stated objective for the refunding is to achieve savings. The anticipated net 
present value savings are $863,285, or 11 . 71 % of the refunded principal amount of$7,370,000. 

o The proposed structure of the Series 2021 Refunding Bonds is not balloon indebtedness as 
defined in T.C.A. § 9-21-133 because 75% of principal is payable within 10 years . 

o Estimated costs of issuance are summarized below and are based upon the par amount of 
$7,520,000 for the Series 2021 Refunding Bonds: 



Loudon County - Rural School Refunding Bond, Series 2021 Report 
March 23, 2021 
Page 3 

Amount 

Estimated Underwriter's Discount $ 60,005 

Municipal Advisor (Cumberland Securities) 37,800 

Bond Counsel (Bass Berry & Sims) 20,000 

Rating Agency I 8,000 

Miscellaneous Fees 14,195 

Total Cost of Issuance $ 150,000 

Changes to the Structure of the Repayment Schedule 

Price per 
Sl,000 Bond 

$ 7.98 

5.03 

2.66 

2.39 

1.89 

$ 19.95 

If the structure is revised, the County should determine if the new structure complies with the 
requirements of T.C.A. § 9-2 I - I 3 3 concerning balloon indebtedness . If it is determined that the bond 
structure constitutes balloon indebtedness, the County must submit a Plan of Ba I loon Indebtedness to 
the Director of the Division of Local Government Finance for approval prior to the County adopting 
the resolution authorizing the issuance of the debt. 

Financial Professionals 

The Plan was prepared with the assistance of the County's financial advisors, Cumberland Securities 
Company. Financial advisors have a fiduciary responsibility to the County . Underwriters have no 
ficlucia1y responsibility to the County. They represent the interests of their firm and are not required 
to act in the County's best interest without regard to their own or other interests . 

The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) establishes rules and notices that municipal 
advisors and underwriters must follow when engaging in municipal securities transactions and advising 
investors and local governments . To learn more about the obligations of the County's underwriter and 
municipal advisor, please read the information posted on the MSRB website: \\" 11 .11hrl1.11 1 ~~ . 

Plan Assumptions 

The assumptions of the Plan are the assertions of the County. An evaluation of the preparation, support 
and underlying assumptions of the Plan has not been performed by our office. This repo1t provides 
non assurances of the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions. The assumptions included in the 
County's Plan may not reflect either current market conditions or market conditions at the time of sale. 
The Series 2021 Refunding Bonds may be issued with a structure different from that of the Plan. 

Debt Management Policy 

The County has adopted a debt management policy and has indicated in its Plan that the proposed 
refunding transaction complies with the County's policy. 

Requirements After the Refunding Bonds Have Been Issued 

We have included a listing of ce1tain compliance requirements your local government will be 
responsible for once the bonds are issued. The listing is not all inclusive and you should work with 



Loudon County - Rural School Refunding Bond, Series 2021 Report 
March 23, 2021 
Page 4 

your municipal advisor and bond counsel to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements 
related to the proposed refunding. 

Effective Date for this Report 

This report is effective for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of the report. If the refunding 
transaction has not been priced dur ing this ninety (90) day period, a new plan of refunding, with nevv 
analysis and estimates based on market conditions at that time, must be submitted to om office. We 
will then issue a report on the new plan for the County ' s governing body to review prior to adopting a 
new refunding bond authorizing resolution. 

/'.~. :· ( ~.~;-. 

i 

Betsy Knotts 
Director of the Division of Local Government Finance 
Date: March 23, 2021 

Enclosure: Requirements After Debt is Issued 



I 

j ,\ SON E. 1\ Jt1,\ ll'OWE ll 

Crn11;11 r11 /la 

Requirements After Debt is Issued 

o Annual Budget Approval 

/IA 
T ENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER 
OJ THE TREASURY 

Your local government will be subject to an annual budget approval process for the life of the 
outstanding debt as required by TCA § 9-21-403 . Please refer to our online guidance at: 
! ! 11: , 11.l·, · ' Ii i 1d ~'' ·1 . 

o Debt Not Refunded 
If all the bonds are not refunded as a pait of the proposed refunding transaction and the County 
wishes to refund them in a subsequent bond issue, then a new plan must be submitted to our office 
for review. 

o Debt Management Policy 
Your local government shou Id regularly review and, if necessary, amend its debt management 
policy. Please submit any amended policy to our office immediately upon adoption . Guidance 
concerning debt management policies is available at: 11 1<:,11 . , · L· : d ~· h 1 - 1 i., li ':' . 

o Required Notification 
We recognize that the information provided in the Plan submitted to our office is based on 
pre I im inary analysis and estimates and that actual results wi II be determined by market conditions 
at the time of sale. However, if it is determined prior to the issuance of the debt, that the actual 
results will differ significantly from the information provided in the submitted Plan and the County 
decides to proceed with the issue, the County 's governing body and our office should be notified 
after the sale by the local government's Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer 
regarding these differences. The Chief Executive Officer must state that they were aware of the 
differences and determined to proceed with the issuance of the debt. Notification will be necessa1y 
only if there is a change of ten percent ( l 0%) or more in any of the following: 

(I) An increase in the principal amount of the debt issued; 
(2) An increase in costs of issuance; or 
(3) A decrease in the cumulative savings or increase in the loss. 

The notification must include an explanation for any significant differences and the justification 
for a change of ten percent (I 0%) or more from the amounts in the plan. This notification should 
be presented to the County's governing body and our office with the required filing of the Report 
on Debt Obligation, Form CT-0253 . 

o Debt Report 
Pursuant to T.C.A. § 9-21-134, a Debt Report (the "Report") shal I be completed and filed with the 
governing body of the local government no later than fo1ty-five (45) days after the issuance of the 



Requirements After Debt is Issued 
Page 2 

debt, with a copy (including attachments, if any) filed with the Division of Local Government 
Finance. The Report and instructions may be accessed at: 111L« 1 .. ._ .: ,J.: h1- rc·1 i .. n . 

o Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act 
Local governments that have issued municipal securities on or after February 27, 2019, are required 
to report certain information related to the issuance of financial obligations. Information on the 
reporting requirements is available on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) 
Electronic Municipal Market Access EMMA® website: L' 1111: 111.11 Nh.l'I·,._ 



Pl.an of Refunding - Rural Debt Service Fund - Loudon County, Tennessee 

A) Identification of Key Professionals (including financial advisors, bond counsel, 

underwriters, or lenders) who have provided advice or proposals on which the Entity 

relied to prepare the Plan): 

1. Financial Advisor: Cumberland Securities Company, Inc. 

2. Bond Counsel: Bass, Berry & Sims, PLC 

3. Underwriter: Competitive Public Sale 

B) Purpose(s) of Refunding, including parameters: 

1. Cost Savings: include a projection of the savings and amortization schedules for 

both refunding and refunded debt: 

a. Loudon County, TN (the 11County11
) anticipates a gross savings of 

approximately $1,142,392.50 and a net present savings of approximately 

$863,285.27 or% of the refunded principal. 

2. Restructuring: provide a comparison of existing and proposed structures, 

describing why debt is being restructured: N/A 

3. Covenant change: Clearly describe covenant to be eliminated or revised and 

any change in the structure: 

a. N/A 

4. Reduction or elimination of risk: describe risk to be reduced or eliminated: 

a. N/A 

C) Statement that the proposed refunding complies with the Entity's adopted debt 

management policy and a description of how the transaction is consistent with the 

policy, including any savings threshold. If there is no adopted policy or the transaction 

is not consistent, the Entity shall provide a detailed explanation. 

1. The County has adopted the debt management policy. The proposed structure is 

a fixed rate bond issuance designed to provide a maturity to maturity refunding 

for savings. 

D) Other Information 

1. Amortization schedules for both (proposed) refunding and (outstanding) debt 

to be refunded, 

a. Proposed refunding debt schedule: See attached Preliminary Refunding 

Analysis page 3. 



b. Outstanding debt schedule(s) : See attached Preliminary Refunding 

Analysis page 4 and page 5. 

As well as the following: 

2. Refunding Debt : 

a. Maximum size to be authorized by the governing body, identifying all 

outstanding debt that could be included in the refunding: 

i. Maximum size authorized by governing body = $7,550,000. To 

refund the Rural School Bonds, Series 2014B, dated December 30, 

2014, matu ri ng June 1, 2022 through June 1, 2035 in the 

outstanding principal amount of $7,370,000 (the "Outstanding 

Bonds" ). 

b. Anticipated Size = $7,520,000 

c. Anticipated final maturity and weighted average maturity. If the final 

maturity is extended beyond the fiscal year of final maturity of debt to 

be refunded or the weighted average maturity is increased, list the 

projects as required below for refunded debt: 

i. Final Maturity= 6/1/2030 

ii. Weighted Average Maturity= 5.03 Years 

d. Breakdown of Costs of Issuance 

See attached Preliminary Refunding Analys is page 7. 

e. Sources and Uses of Funds 

See attached Preliminary Refunding Analysis page 6. 

3. Refunded Debt: Information must be provided with respect to each debt issue 

to be refunded; (if all currently outstanding debt will not be refunded, identify 

maturities that are candidates for refunding). 

a. Name of issue, type of debt, original terms, including whether the debt 

is federally tax-exempt or taxable. 

i. Rural School Bonds, Series 2014B, dated December 30, 2014, 

maturing June 1, 2022 through June 1, 2035 in the outstanding 

principal amount of $7,370,000 (the "Outstanding 2014 Bonds") . 

ii . The Outstanding 2014 Bonds are tax-exempt, fixed-rate 

obligations, with a final maturity of June 1, 2035. 

b. Date of issue and copy of CT-0253 filed. 

i. Date of Issue: 12/30/2014 



ii. The CT-0253 was filed with the Division of Local Government 

Finance in connection with the issue of the Outstanding 2014 

Bonds and is attached. 

c. Date of authorization by the governing body. 

i. December 15, 2014 

d. Whether bank-qualified or under other small issuer exception. 

i. Yes 

e. Projects funded with proceeds of issue and remaining average life of 

projects (if final maturity or weighted average maturity of debt is 

extended). 

i. The Outstanding 2014 Bonds were issued to provide funds to (i) 

acquisition of land for, design and constructing, improving, 

renovating and equipping of schools and school facilities; (ii) 

payment of legal, fiscal, administrative, architectural and 

engineering costs incident to any or all of the foregoing; and (iii) 

the payment of costs incident to the issuance of the Bonds. 

f. Derivative product, if any, and copy of Report of Compliance: 

i. N/A 



1L01UDOI T COUJ\TTY, TE JNES§EE 

Preliminary 
Refunding Analys is 

2014B Bonds 

March 18, 2021 

Prepared By: 

Cumberland Securities Company, Inc. 
Independent Registered Municipal Advisors 

P.O. Box 22715 
Knoxville, Tennessee 37933 

Telephone: (865) 988-2663 

Facsirn ile : (865) 988-1 863 

1@~91 
Cu ,,.rni:r~1 .1\N D Su:t rnrrn-:s 

' I ~ l I I •1; I 



Disclaimer and Disclosures 
Cumberland Sccurilies Company, Inc. (lhc "Advisor") is rcchtercd as a Municipal Advisory firm with the U.S. Sccuriiics ;:ind Exchanr.c Commission (the "SEC") and 1hc Municipa l Sccurilies l\ulcmaklnc Board (the ~MSllB~). A 
municipal advisory client brochure is poHcd on the website of the Municipa l Securities Rulcrnakine Board (www.nmb.orcl thal describes the protections that may be provided by the? Municipal Sccurilics Rulcmakine Bo<>rd 
rules and how to file a complaint with an Jpproprlatc rcculatory authority. The Advisor will moi inta in all required registrations with the SEC and the MSRB and the Advisor will d isclose any /cg;:ilordbcipllnary events, including 
information about any criminal actions, rcgulJtory ac1ioM, investigations, terminations, judcmcnts, liens, civiljudiciill actions, cuslomer complaints, arbitrations and civil lilication, und other detailed informalion. The Issue r 
m<iy electronically OJccess the Advhor's most rcccnl Form MA and cilch employee's mosr re cent Form MA·t filed with the Commission ill hllps ://www.H.?C.(!ov/cdc<ir/scarchcd(!ar/companysca rch.htrnl. As of Ilic date hereof, 
Cumlicrland Securi ti cs Comp;:my, Inc . hils never had lec.:il or disciplinary event. 

The Adviso r hc 1cUy c.Jist1oses thJl it ccncrn lly operates under a continr:cnl fee form of compensation. Under a cont!ncen t fee form of compensation, payment of the Munitipal Advisor's fee is depcnde nl upon 1he successful 
complc1ion of a rinancing or other trilnsaction. Ahhouch !his form of compensation may be customary for the Issuer, it prese n1 s a conflict because the Advisor may have an Incentive to recommend unnecessary rinancincs 
or financincs that are disadvantaccous to the client. All recom mcnd<!d financings arc reviewed by the firm to confirm 1ha1 th<>t they Jre suitable for e;,ch client. Upon c1Ccculion of i1 Mun icip;1I Advisory Acrecment, the 
Advf1or wJll hilve a lccally bindine fiduciilry responsibility to put lhe finilncial intcrcHs of 1hc Issuer before its own. The Advisor hereby discloses lh.lt the dc1crminilt ion o( ilny municipal advirnry foe or olhcr compensatio n 
wlll be mutually ilr:recablc between 1hc lssuN and the Advisor pursuant lo a Fee Le lier. 

The Advisor hereby discloses that ii receives the use of., Bloombcrc license courtesy of R;,ymond James and Associates. The use of this license is not contif"lccnt upon ;,ny specific cxistinc or future busincn. AU recommended 
financincs and invcstmcnls arc reviewed by the firm to confirm that th.lt they arc suitable for each clienl . 

This present;, lion/report may contain "forw;,rd- looking" lnform;,t ion. Such information may include, but not be limited to, projections, lorecilsts or eslimatcs of cash flows, interest rate coupons, yields or potcmlial deli! 
service savincs, scenilrio analyses and proposed or c•pected debt portfollo composition. Any forw;,rd-lookinc informillion is bilscd upon cert.:iin JHumptiom ilbout fulure events or condillon::; ;;ind is intended only to illustr;:ile 
hypo1hc1/c<1I resul!s under !hose <is sumpt io ns (not illl of whic h arc specified herein or c;,n be ilStCrlilined al lhh time) , ll docs nul represent ;:ic\ut1I r~sults th ill may Uc ;,vail:ilJle to you . Aclual events or condi1ions a1e unlikely 
lo be consisten t with, ;;ind may differ sicnificantly from, those assumed. 

IRS Circular 230 Disclosure: The Advisor and its employees are not in the business of providinr:, and do not provide, t;,x or lecal ;,dvicc . Any st;,tements in this present;, lion re ca rdinc lax matters were not intended or wrill en 
to be used, anrl cannot be used or relied upon, by any taxpayer for llH! purpose or ilvoidlnc 1<111 penalties. Any such taxp;,yer should seek advice based on 1he 1;,•payer's parUcular clrcumst;,nces from ;,n Indepe ndent tax 
advisor. 

Risk Dlsdosurcs: 

M;,tcrial Risk Consideration 
Issuer Dcr<iult Risk 

Redemption Risi( 

Refinancine Risk 
Reinvestment Risk 

Ta• Compliance Risk 

Fixed Rate Bonds 
Descr/o llon of Risk 
Possibili ty that the I Buer defaults under the authorizinn documt>nt~ 

The ;,bility to redeem the bonds prior lo maturity may be lfmited 

Possibility that the bonds cannot be reOn<>nced 

Possibility that the Issuer may be unable to Invest unspen t proceeds at or ne;;,r the interest ralc on 
the bonds 
For ta•·exempl bonds, possibil ity that faHure to comply wilh taK ·rel;,ted covenants results In the 
bonds becoming U•uble obligations 

Potentl31 Consequences 

R;,ncc or ;,vailablc remedies m;,y be broucht ;,sainsl Issuer (e.c. forcine 
is suer 10 rilise taKcs or rate:;) 
Credit r;,llncs ncr.ativcly Impacted 
Access to Cilpital m;;,rlccts impaired 
Possibility of rec<! ivc rship or bankruptcy fo r certain issuers 

Inability to refinance at lowe r inlerest r1Jte s 

ln;,bility lo refina nc e <it lowe r intNcst r.ltes 

Nena live ;,rbi1r;,ce resullinc in il h1chcr cost or funds 

lncre<)se In deb! service cons re troa ctively to dale of iu.uance 
Possible mandatory redemption ol bonds ;,rfectcd 
Risk or IRS Audit 
Difficulty in rcfinancine the bonds 
Access to tax·e•empt m;,rket impilcted 
Difficulty in issuing future tax-exempt debt 

Varlable Rilte Oemilnd Bonds ("'VROB") / Flo3trng Rate Notes {"FRN'" ) / Bilnk Index loan ("Index")/ "Put loiln .. (e.g. Fixed Rate for Five (S) Ycilrs. th en Rate Resets lo New Rate) 
Material Risk Consfder<1 tfon Descri ption of Risk (Typt of Debt Risk Appflcoble to) Potentlill Consequences 
Interest Rilte Ris k 

Index Risk 

Issuer Default flisk 

Issuer Ratings Downgrade Risk 

Liquidity Risk 

liquidity Provider Oe(au l! Risk 

Liquidity Provider RaHncs 
OownBrade 
Rcflnancinu Risk 

Reguliltory Risk 

Reinvestment Risk 

Remarkctinc Risk 

Renewil! Risk 

Ta1C Compliance Rhlc 

Poss ibility that the Interest ra1 e may increilsc on an inllHc.st re set date 
( VRDO, FRN, Index, Put Loons) 

Possibilily that the method o( dcterminlne the index (UBOR or SIFMA) could 
ch:ingc 
Indices mav be affected by factors unrelated lo FRtJ's/lndclC loan or !he lax· 
c1Ccmptmarket 
(VnDB, FnN, Index, Pur Loans) 

Possibility that the Issuer de.faulu under the authorizinc documents 
( VROB, FRN, Index, Put Loons) 

Possibility that a downgrade of the issuer's r;,t ine(s) ma y resu lt in option;, I 
lenders or an Increase In fees p;,yable lo the bank providing the liquidity 
facility (VRDO, FRN, Index, Put Loons ) 

Possibility thal VROO's c;,nnot be succeuful/y remarkclinc, resultinr: in Bank 
Oonds {VRDO) 

Possibil ity that the bank provid ing the liquidity facility support inc the VROO's 
def<iults In its oblfgiltions under lhc liquidity (acility (VROO) 

Possibillty that a downcrade of the liqu idity provider's ratinc(s) ma y resull in 
optlonal 1enders (VRDB) 

Possibility th;,t th e FRN, lndelC or Pu! loiln cannot be rema1kotcd or 
refinanced 
(FAN, Index, Pur Loons) 

Posslbifity that prospect ive reculato ry requi rements increase cos! of 
obta ining and m;,int<iining the liquldity facility (VRDB, FRN, Index, Put Loons) 

Possibility that !he Issuer may be unable to invest unspent proceeds at or near 
the Interest r;,t e on the bonds (VROD, FRN, Index, Put Loons) 

Possibility 1hat the rcmarketing age nt does nol perform ils duties in a 
satisfac1ory m;,nncr or may re sign or cease Its rcmat kelinc cffons 
(VRD8) 

Possibility that the facility or to;in wi ll not be extended for ;, successive 
commitment period or not bt> repl;,ced at a reasonable cos! 
(VROD, FRN, Index, Put Loons) 

For tax c1Cemp t bonds, possi bility th;,t failur~ to comply with t;,x rel;1tcd 
covenants result in lhe bonds becoming t<>x.-:ible obligillions 
( VRDB, FRN, Index, Puc Loans) 

lncrc<isc in debt service cost (up 10 maximum rate) 
lowe r debt service coverage 
Lower cash reserves 

Increase in deUt service costs 
Lowe r debt service covcr;1ee 
Lower cash reserve s 
Provision should be mildc for ahcrnatc mcdi;,nism lo determine r;,le 

R;,nr,e of avilil;,ble remedies m;,y be brour,ht ;,galnst Issuer (e.g., forcing hsuer to raise taxes or 
revenues ) 
Credit r;,tincs neeatively impacted 
Default could impact remar kelin c which could cause increase in debl service coSIS 
Access to C"<ipital markets lmpJircd 

Ratings cha nce could impact rcmarketing whiC" h could cause an increase In debt service cost 
Higher liquidity facility fees resulting in hir,hc r cost of funds 

Increase in debt service coSls due. to hlcher bank bond r;,lc and iltceler;,ted principle repayment 
Mily be required lo refinance or term oul lhe VRDO'~ 
Inability to rnfinance or possibly hir,her Interest r;,tes 

Issuer rcquir<!d to repay principal and accrued interest if Issue r h not able lo refinance 
Increase in debt service costs 

Ralincs d1Jnee could Impact remarketinc which cou ld cause an Increase In debt service cos1 

Hard Put ; must repay principal and ;,ccrued interest or Event or Defaull 
Soh Put: hie her interest rat e on deb! and hlche r debt service costs up lo ma1lmu111 ral~ 
Increase in debt service costs upon ;,ny refinancinc 
Inability to refinance or possibly higher Inte rest ra tes 

lncre;,sc in debt service costs 
Higher llciuidity facility foes resulting ln higher co5l offunds 

Neg;itive arbltraae result int: in hlchercosl of funds 

Higher lnlcrcst ra tes 
Oifficuhy remarkeline the VROO's 
May require appointment of a succcs5or rem;:irkclinr. ar,ent 

rs~uc.r required to rep;i.y principal and accrued ln!cresl on tender date if issuer is not able 10 
rerin;,nce 
Increase in de U1 service costs 
lncre;,se in debt service cos ts retroactive ly to date of issu;,nce 

Possible mandatory redemption of bonds ;,ffected 
Risk of IRS audit 
Difficulty In reflnancinc the bonds 
Access to la x exempt market Impacted 
Difficuhy in iss uinr. future taK·exempt debt 



Loudon County, Tennessee 

Preliminary Refunding Analysis 

Table of Contents 

REPORT l'AGE 

Rural School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

Total Combined OLJtstanding Debt Service - Chait ...... ..... .. ... .. .. .. ... ... : .. ... .... ...... .. . 
Estimated Savings Analysis.... ...... ....... ............ ........... .. .... .... .. .... .. ... .... ...... ............. 2 
Esti1nated Debt Service Report. .. .... .. ..... ... ... ..... .. ... .......... .. .... ............ ........ ......... ... . 3 
SL1111111ary of Bonds Refunding....... ................ .... .. ............ ....... ... .......... .... .. .... ..... .. .. 4 
Prior Bond Debt Service. .... ... ...... .... ....... .... ....... ...... ... .... ... ... .. ... .... ...... .. ...... ..... .. ... . 5 
Estimated Sources & Uses ofFLJnds ... ...... .. .... ...... .. .. ..... .... ... .... .......... ...... .. ..... .. ... .. G 
Estimated Costs of Issuance... .. ........... .. ...... ..... ...... .. .... .. ........... .................... ..... ..... 7 
Rura l School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 - Graph - Post Issuance........ .... ....... . 8 

CLJmberland Securities Company, Inc. 
Tennessee Public Finance - CCB 



$6,000,000 

$5,000,000 '-

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

$4,000,000 _i_ 

I $3,000,000 r 

$2,000,000 -,-
' 

I 

$1,000,000 +-1 

1 I 
$- ,-

I 

_.J 
2021 2022 2023 

Loudon County, Tennessee 
Total Outstanding Debt Service - Rural Schools 

2024 2025 2026 2027 

,· REFUNDING CANDIDATE - 59,845,000 Rur"I School Bonds, Series 2014 B 

. $14,110,000 Rural School Refunding Bonds. Series 2010/\ 

$8 ,850,000 Rural School Bonds, Series 2013/\ 
c $14,835,000 Local Government Public Improvement Bonds, Series E-3-C 

$4, 129,500 Qualified Zone Academy Bonds, Series 2005 

·· r - T -,-

2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 



Date Principnl 

06/30/2022 500,000.00 
06/30/ 2023 500,000.00 
06130/2024 1,000.000.00 
06/30/2025 800,000.00 
06130/2026 1.500,000.00 
06/30/2027 1,250.000.00 
06/30/2028 1.000,000.00 
06/3012029 600,000.00 
06/3012030 370.000.00 
0613012031 
0613012032 
06130/2033 
06/3012034 
06/30/2035 

7,520,000.00 

ClJMBERLAND SECURITIES 
,t...;1 : 1 l •J II 

ESTIMATED SAVINGS ANALYSIS 

Loudon County, Tennessee 
Rural School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

Refunding of Series 2014B Bon els 

Es1ima1ctl 
lnlcrcst Ilnlc J111crcsl Tolnl P+I 

0.750% 7<1,595 .00 57-1,595 .00 
0.775% 70,8•15 .00 570.845 .00 
0 .800% 66,970,00 1,066,970.00 
0.850% 58,970.00 858.970.00 
0.950% 52.170.00 1,552, I 70.00 
1.050% 37,920 .00 1.287.920.00 
1.200% 24.795 .00 I ,02•1.795 .00 
1.300% 12. 795 .00 612.795 .00 
1.~50% ·l,995.00 374,995 .00 

40•1,055.00 7. 924.055.00 

Savings Summnrv 

Net PV Snvings 
Nt:t PV Bcncfir/ Refunded Principnl 

Dn1cd 
r=irs1 Coupon Dale 

Wcig.hrcd Avcrngc Mmuriry 
Avcrngc Coupon 
Bond Yield for Arbilr<igt.: P11rrosc 
Tmc l111crcs1 Cosr (TIC) 

Refunded D/S 

6·17.'100.00 
6-IS,•100.00 
6·19.200.00 
644,800.00 
649. 112 .50 
6•18,087 .50 
645.587 .50 
646,817.50 
647,642.50 
648,062 .50 
646,412.50 
649,312.50 
645.137.50 
650.475 .00 

9.066,•147.50 

863.285.27 
l l.71:l5% 

06/01 12021 
1210112021 

5.03 
1.0681 % 

J.0663226% 
1.23 15529% 

Su\'incs 

72,805.00 
77,555.00 

(417.770.00) 
(214,170.00) 
(903,057.50) 
(639,832.50) 
(379,207.50) 

34 ,022.50 
272.647.50 
648.062 .5 0 
646.412.50 
649,312 .50 
6•15, I 37.50 
650,475.00 

I, 142,392.50 

Present Value 
10 06/01/lOl I 

111 l.OGG3l3% 

72.358.74 
76,229.62 

(·10·1.361.77) 
(204,%7.21) 
(856.021.92) 
(600,0Q.l.95) 
(351,728.68) 

31,514.S·I 
248.009.93 
582.90).05 
575.229.45 
571,656.78 
561,929.05 
560,538.63 

863,285.27 

2 



Date 

12/0 l/2021 
06101/2022 . 
06/30/2022 
12/01/2022 
0610 I /2023 
06/30/2023 
12/01 /2023 
06/0I12024 
0613012024 
12/01/2024 
06/01 /2025 
0613012025 
12/0 I /2025 
06101/2026 
06/30/2026 
12/01/2026 
06101/2027 
06/30/2027 
12/01/2027 
06/01/2028 
06/30/2028 
12/0 I /2028 
06/01 /2029 
06/30/2029 
12/0 I /2029 
06101/2030 
06/30/2030 

Cu tv1 BERLAND SECURITIES 
' l -..: 1: 1 1 •1 II 

ESTIMATED DEBT SERVICE 

Loudon County, Tennessee 
Rural School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

Refunding of Series 2014B Bonds 

Estimated 
Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I 

37,297.50 37,297.50 
500,000.00 0.750% 37,297.50 537,297.50 

35 ,422.50 35.422.50 
500,000.00 0.775% 35,422.50 535,422.50 

33.485.00 33,485.00 
1,000,000.00 0.800% 33 ,485 .00 1,033,485.00 

29,485.00 29,485.00 
800,000.00 0.850% 29.485 .00 829,485.00 

26,085.00 26,085 .00 
1,500,000.00 0.950% 26,085.00 1,526,085 .00 

18,960.00 18.960.00 
1.250,000.00 1.050% 18,960 .00 1.268,960.00 

12.397.50 12,397.50 
1,000.000.00 1.200% 12,397.50 1,012,3 97.50 

6,397.50 6,397.50 
600,000.00 1.300% 6,397.50 606,397.50 

2,497.50 2.497.50 
370,000.00 1.350% 2.497 .50 372,497.50 

7,520,000.00 404 ,055.00 7,924,055 .00 

D:ite Structure 

Date 
First Coupon Date 

06/01/2021 
12/01/2021 

Yield St:itistics 

A vcrogc Coupon 
We ighted Average Maturity 
True Interest Cost (TIC) 

1.0680809% 
5.031 

1.2315529% 

Fisc:tl Tutnl 

574,595 .00 

570.845.00 

1,066,970.00 

858,970.00 

1,552, 170.00 

1,287,920.00 

1,024,795.00 

612.795 .00 

374,995.00 

3 



Bond 

... 1...;1 : 1 1 •1 1 1 

CUN1BERLAND SECURITIES 

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED 

Loudon County, Tennessee 
Rural School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

Refunding of Series 2014B Bonds 

i'l'!aturi!y In !crest Par Call 
Date Rnte Amount Date 

$9,845,000 Rural School Bonds, Series 201413: 
BOND 06/01/2022 2.000% 450,000.00 06/01/2021 

06/01 /2023 2.000% ,160,000.00 06/01 /2021 
06/01/2024 2.000% 470,000.00 06/01/2021 
06/01/2025 2.250% 475,000.00 0610 I /2021 
06/01/2026 2.250% 490,000.00 06/01/2021 
06/0 1/2027 2.500% 500,000.00 06/01 /2021 
06/01/2028 2.700% 510,000.00 06/01/2021 
06/01/2029 2.700% 525,000.00 06/01 /2021 
06/01/2030 2.700% 540.000.00 06/0112021 
06/01/2031 3.000% 555 ,000.00 06/01/202 I 
06/01/2032 3.000% 570,000.00 06101/2021 
06/01/2033 3.250% 590,000.00 06/01/202 I 
06/01/2034 3.250% 605,000.00 06/01/2021 
06/01/2035 3.250% 630,000.00 06101/2021 

7,370,000.00 

Call 
Price 

100.000 
100.000 
I 00.000 
I 00.000 
I 00.000 
100.000 
100.000 
I 00.000 
100.000 
I 00.000 
I 00.000 
100.000 
100.000 
100.000 

4 



CUMBERLAND SECURITIES 
\['7t' I 1 •1 1 1 

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE 

Loudon County, Tennessee 

Rural School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

Refunding of Series 2014B Bonds 

$9.845.000 Rural School Bonds. Series 2014B 

Period Ann ua l Boml Total 
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service B:1lance Bond Value 

0610 I /2021 7,370,000 7,370,000 
12/01/2021 98,700.00 98,700.00 7,370,000 7,370,000 
06101/2022 450.000 2.000% 98,700.00 548. 700.00 64 7,1100. 00 6,920,000 6,920,000 
12/0 I /2022 94.200.00 94.200.00 6,920,000 6,920,000 
06101 /2023 460,000 2.000% 94,200.00 554.200.00 648,400.00 6,460,000 6,460,000 
12/01 /2023 89,600.00 89,600.00 6,460,000 6,460.000 
0610 I /2024 470,000 2.000% 89,600.00 559.600.00 649,200.00 5,990,000 5,990.000 
12/0112024 84,900.00 84,900 .00 5,990,000 5,990,000 
06101/2025 475,000 2.250% 84,900.00 559,900.00 644,800.00 5,515 ,000 5,515,000 
12101/2025 79,556.25 79,556.25 5,515,000 5,515,000 
06101 /2026 490,000 2.250% 79,556.25 569.556.25 649, 112.50 5,025,000 5,025,000 
12/01 /2026 74,043 .75 74.043.75 5,025,000 5,025,000 
06101 /2027 500,000 2.500% 74.043.75 574,043 .75 648,087.50 4,525,000 4,525,000 
12/0 I /2027 67,793 .75 67,793.75 4,525,000 4,525,000 
06101/2028 510.000 2.700% 67,793 .75 577,793 .75 645.587.50 4,015,000 4,015,000 
12/01/2028 60,908 .75 60,908.75 4,015,000 4,015,000 
06/01 /2029 525.000 2.700% 60.908.75 585,908. 75 646.817.50 3,490.000 3,490,000 
12/01/2029 53,821 .25 53 .821 .25 3,490,000 3,490,000 
06101/2030 540,000 2.700% 53.821 .25 593,82 1.25 647.642.50 2,950,000 2,950,000 
12/0 I /2030 46,531 .25 46,531 .25 2,950,000 2,950,000 
06/0 I /203 1 555 .000 3.000% 46,531.25 601 ,531.25 648.062.50 2,395 ,000 2,395,000 
12/0 I /203 1 38,206 .25 38.206.25 2,395,000 2,395,000 
06101/2032 570.000 3.000% 38,206.25 608,206.25 646,412.50 1,825,000 1,825,000 
12/0112032 29,656.25 29,656.25 1,825,000 1,825,000 
06101 /2033 590,000 3.250% 29,656.25 619,656.25 649,312 .50 1,235,000 1,235,000 
12/0 I /2033 20,068 .75 20,068.75 1,235,000 1,235,000 
06101/2034 605,000 3.250% 20,068.75 625.068.75 645.137.50 630,000 630,000 
12/0 I /2034 I 0,237.50 I 0,237.50 630,000 630,000 
06/01 /2035 630,000 3.250% I 0,237.50 640,237.50 650,475.00 

7,370,000 I ,696,447.50 9,066,447.50 9,066,447.50 

5 



CUlViBERLAND SECURITIES 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Loudon County, Tennessee 
Rurrtl School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

Refunding of Series 20148 Bonds 

Sources: 

Bond Proceeds: 
Par Amount 

Uses: 

Dated Date 
Delivery Date 

Refunding Escrow Deposits: 
Cash Derosit 

Delivery Date Exrenses: 
Cost of Issuance 

Underwrite r's Discount: 

06/01/2021 
06101/2021 

Underwriter's Discount (Awarded to Lowest Bidder) 

7,520.000.00 

7,520,000.00 

7,370,000.00 

89.995 .00 

60,005 .00 

7,520,000.00 

6 



~ I '• t ; I I •I I 1 

Cost of' Issuance 

Municipal Advisor 
Bond Counsel 
Rating Agency 
Paying Agent 
POS/Oflicial Statement 
Advertising 
Miscellaneous 

CUMBERLAND SECURITIES 

COST OF ISSUANCE 

Loudon County, Tennessee 
Rural School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

Refunding of Series 20148 Bonds 

Sil 000 

5.02659 
2.65957 
2.39362 
0.09309 
0.99734 
0. 13298 
0.66423 

11.96742 

Amount 

37,800.00 
20,000.00 
18,000.00 

700.00 
7,500.00 
I ,000.00 
4,995 .00 

89,995.00 

7 



Loudon County, 'fennessee 

$6,000,000 

Total Outstanding Debt Service - Rural Schools - Est. Post 2021 Refunding 

·1:- ~~~~~~~~-=-~_:_::~:::::~~~~~~~~~~~~~'.".'.'.'.:_~~~~~-

r~~~~;~;·;;; ~=====s=~--------

Estinrntcd - Rural School Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 

. ·. - . REFUNDING CANDIDA TE - S9,84S,OOO Rur:il School Bonds, Series 2014 B 

- - $24,220,000 Rural School Refunding I3onds, Series 2020A 

$5,000,000 

$4,000,000 

1 ~<: ·<'~~·: 

I

·///, r J .... ~. 

I i 
- !-

i 

i 
I 
i 

$3,000,000 -!-
\ 

I 
I 

$2,000,000 -1-

$1 ,000,000 

$-

l t 

--l 
f 

2021 

_ l 

--,J L,_l 
2022 2023 

--' 

_ i 

J ·-·· 
2024 2025 2026 2027 

$8,850,000 Rural School Bonds, Series 20 I 3A 

~$14,835,000 Local Government Public Improvement Bonds, Series E-3-C 

$4, 129,500 Qualified Zone Academy Bonds, Series 2005 

= Current Outstanding Debt Service 

-;- .- -, 
2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 

~ 

2035 2036 

8 



Loudon County Commission 

Budget Amendments 

County General Fund 101 



3 

936 

937 

938 

939 

940 

941 

942 

943 

944 

945 

946 

947 

948 

949 

950 

951 

952 

953 

954 

955 

956 

957 

958 

959 

960 

961 

962 

963 

964 

A c 

Loudon County 
County General Fund 101 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

D E F G 

General Fund IOI , , . 
H 

Account Number 
.l1ls120:!1 12:5:,- - - - --- -i-- 2020-2021 i-- 2( 1:Zo:zo£1 Appr~v~tl - i- r-;:-o~~scd . i---p-;:o-;;·o~~d--

--- - --·--- ------·-·- -----· -··· ··-- ----- - -----·----~-- ·--- ---- -~---~- .. - -· -
! Org Bgt i :\mds :\mdcd Bgt J Am<.ls l AmdcU lluLl~cl 

- ·------ - --- -- -- -r·· ; - ··-· ·- - - . - . i - i - - -- -

----- ---·· ---· _! _ _! _ - --- -- -- -- --·· · - --- --- - · . ·-- ---·- ·-· - - ___ __ ____ i_ __ ___ __ ______ !_ 
52600 1 ! Data Processing 1 i : i l 

- ff }1 -: ~~~~f ~~;~::a~l~ia~i~~~i: =~-- - ·--=---.-=-.~~~=-=1----- ~~J~~ff [ --~: _-0-~~ L ~ --~+~:r~ -~-~~- ---~+=-~ ~;~~1 
-- --~~1 i~i ~-\~~:~~2~~ ~-·: -~-~-~~;-~~ - -~-·--~:~--~=!j~I=:_-~ ~ (~- : _ :~~~-_~:}frtl~~-=~~~-J~==~~ ~~i~~ 

207 • ' Medical Insurance 17.350 : : 17.350 ! 17,350 __ =·~-- --~ ~~-f_gs : :i~-~j;i J!is~_..;,c_-=-~~~~= ~=-~~~-=---=-~=----==-_:_-I~;-_:- -__ :-~- _ r ~~:: -_·::::-21~c-=---.:::~=:~=::::===--~1j= 
212 ' :EmploycrMcdicarc . 1,408 i 35 ' 1,44 3 I ' 1.443 

- --- -- 3Q-i ; - ic;1~-1;1u11icalio11- - - - ----- -------- · ----s~iioo i · - - : - -- -- 8.oooi _______ ---- i - --- s~ooo 

------ .:i(iiWlRE ;- t Com~;; u;;i~at i ~n - - - -- - -- - -- -- ---- -- ------ - -- - -2.200 ;- - - - - -- - --2joo r- --- -- -i - -- 2:zoo-
-== _: :iio '. _; ou~s=~ntl ~:1 ~~;~c;s1;irs __ __ __ __ · _:=---- ___ _____ '. ______ - - ~ _ _ _ , __ --~-~:-=l:i _ ==---=- -_ - -i- - - ----o 

348 : Postage 1 I 00 : i 
35.~ . Travel - -- - --- - - -- - · - - -;· - -, ~ooo ' --i ,ooo· i 1 1 .ooo 
399 \ oi1~r com~nctcd Service~ -------- - - --- --! ----33~soo - - --- 33~soo j ____ ----;-- - -33:50_0_ 

435 lorncc Supplies - -- 250 ! . 250 T 250 
41! 1 ! son;,~arc - - ----- -- - - ---- - 3,5 t)(iT -- -- -- · -- - - - 3:S-ooT -- --- ---;--- 3.50-0 

;~~ ; : '~~~f;~~i~~,~~~f1~~~~~~;~1~t- - -- ----~-~~-~ ·-~~ -.::r=~~ -=-~H~~~:-- -· -_-(si~i ; _ - - ~1~~~r--=~~=-- _ -:: -==---=r~~i 
7-09 i ;l)al•; l'rocc~s-i~g-Equipmc;;-t --- --- - ---- --- --,--- -- -- - • 10,000 1 - lci:ooo 1---(3!7}1- -- 9,6SJ-

j_~ i : _: 1:~-;;;~i-~1~~~J-lxi~i£~ _ ~- ~-=~~=---= _-_-:::~-=:::L~~:::::_-=_ :_- -:=:=- ; ~~-=-::::_:::: 2 _ : ~:=--::-=~:=-:.-::-_ -=-.= i 
719 ! :Office Equipment ! 1 1.400 · 1,400 317 1,717 - ------ .. -- - - - ·- - ----- - - --- - -- ---- - -- o I , o 

- -- --- -- , -: ·i.-~ tal Data l'roccssi11~ 
! 1 -- . . 

- · 4:-i---- -·-

l 182,353 i 
j ·----·---· · 

-·- -· -----L-
i -- i--

13,604 i_~~~ij_i_ j_ -- ___ _ ___ oT ~- i9s~9Si 
; 

. ! -- - -
j ; 

~j:!:_o~:~I 1~·-~n:-~n_c c 
966 

' 2,643,789 -r·----- --- ----- so ,Gio :--- ·-2,6 9-4~409; ---- -- - - (1-:---z:69;:4(19 -
---- i -------- -----i - - -·--- ---- - -- ------

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 Page 29 



A 

2 

c 

Loudon County 
County General Fund 101 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

D E F 

I General Fund IOI i I i 
G H 

T - -·--- - - - ;,~si2~ 1 12:s-1 -2 ()20-20-i I- -; 2020--=2ii2i!~;;,:;c1-!-p,:~-~~~~-:--rro posc!l ·--
r\ccount Nun1l>cr ·t--·--- -· -···· -···--- ···-····--·--·· --·- ··-·- ---- --- - --- ---·--; --- ----- i" - - -------i- - ----.. --~-----

! Or:! Bgt ! ,.\nu..L"i ; Amdc<l Bgt j Amt.ls ! ,\mdcll Budget 3 

1069 ... ___ . ··-----~L- ___ . _ . . _ --~~ ---~:~ ~ = ~---. - ~-- ~-=--~-:::. i: ~-- ___ _ .... __ -_ -~ _!- _______ j~=- ___ .. _ _ _ __ 
1070 53400 i !Chancery Court ! 1 ! , 
1071 - ·-- ---- 10 I: · i co~1~1ti; 6m--;;-iaiiAum·i;1i~ir~ti,:~ orric~~- --- -- - 1 -- . --83 :545 ,------· ---- -; -- ··33j-45 i- --······----:·- -- -- 83~545 

1072 - _ _ _____ i_6_ijJ~l~i~.'1.!._l~ir~~111!! l~ - ~-~ ~ --·--- - -=· :~~~~--7ci;53}-;---1.7s9! ·---~n,~~f r=-=------- i-----· _7~,322~ 
1073 169 ; :Part Time Personnel i 26.800 670 i 27,470 i i 27,470 
1074 -- --- -- ----·2.al· isocialSc~·t;~i-ly- · - -- - . -- - ----,·- - - - l I ~2 14 ·;-· - . i.53 ·: -- - .ff36Ti _ ___ __ ----,- · .. - .l lj67-
1075 ·-· -·- 204 : ! s1·,~1cR~-1i~~;,,cn1 --- - - ----- - --·--: -- - 10.339-' · ·-·- -- 120· :- --~45-9 1·-- ------- · · -- i0~459 

1016 ·· - -·- - · · -·· 206 i.i 1~ilc 11;~u~a-;:;-c~ ----·---------- ----;··---. 5Js --- ·: · ··- - - - ~i3·8r·-- - ,- . 538 

1077 ---=fci~-RIOT:!=.~I~ j !,.jf~ _Insur_~~ce _____ -----==-==-=: ___ -··-· -3os_ ·--~=-- - -~-- '.·:=~- :=_j_Q~.J=-~- - ···-:::_1 _ _ ~)Q_S 
1078 207 i I tvlcdical Insurance i 36,696 . ! 36.696 i ! 36,696 

~~:~ - . 
2·01·~~J~~1~:~ ?1·-~~~I~~: :6~~:~~f~-~:-~~ ~-----~~: ___ --~~~-~!~~~~-- ··· 1 9~~66_ : __ ::_ :: ·--~ ·:l~~=:~:~ ~_ii)~~-i=~=~-~-~---- T --~-i~~;6{ 

1081 208 ' Dent"l lnsurancc 1 '.!,338 ' I 2,338 I 2,338 
1082 208-RET-DENT l oc111;;!- 1;1~~;;~n~~- I ~~ti rccs- - -- -- - - - -- --- - i 2.224 . : 2,224 \ - . - 2,224-

!§ .· ·/··~-ii!!:EE!~~:;;;;",,~~.:,·· -~= ~E~··:1i:··:~;:t~-~}iliF~.··~ .• J .•.. · .. '.,§• 
1087 331 i Legal Services · : 0 I ; 0 
1088 ------- -- - 334· j tvlaintc11"~~c~l\-grcc~;--c nts ·- -- ---- -- ----;-. ·- ·· 9,200-· -(9.i"oo) ;. - - -----or··--·-----;· · -- -.. a· 

·--· ... - ; ·; . . ···--·----.-- =·-- -_- ·. -- - ·-·---··- . - - ·- - ·- ·- ---- -------. - - ·---
1089 J37 ' 1_).1~rntc11.'1_t:lc~ -~ Rcpa_1_r-_ Ofl1cc ~l~l'.'l1cnt ____ -· ··· __ .. . - -· 0 . __ ... ___ _ jl '---- _ l_,_6_!~_ L ___ _!,_61_4_ 
1090 348 Postal Charncs ! S,000 · 8,000 I I S,000 
1091 3,j9 : - i 1;~;;11ing.st~!i~~~i).:unci1=~~~,~ - - -- - --- --· -- · 1.soo · 1:s001·- · ·- 1 ··1~500 

1092 -· :~~\Jrrav_~1::-::~~-=~: .. --~--------~-==~----~~-:.:~-- ··:-_ __ .3j oo ______ -~ ~- ::_ -::~.-~2.o_g_:~-~-~-:~-~--=t_· ___ :j jgQ:_ 
1093 399 1 iOthcr Contracted Services 11.200 ; 7,200 18,400 I (1.614)1 16,786 
1094 ·· 414i· ;-i:ii.~r-lic :;ti~g-Surr1ics-· -····· -- - -100 · · ·-··---700- r ------r -· ·- 100-
1095 - - · 43s: jOi'fi~~ Suppli~s - 1,500 - - - ·-·- - -- I ,500T----···---; -- 1,500-

1095 5.Q~ iJrrcmi_l_l_m_~.!;:~;;11?!?_1c ~ ;;;-t)J~;,~;--:_-::-: ~ -:: :_-: _ __ -- __ 5(i()_ ; · __ -· _-:- --=T~: ~~ -~-~~J~Q.L_-::== =-~=j~ --_:--Sti_O. 
1097 513 : Workers' Comp lnsurnncc 1,825 ; 639 ! 2,464 i ! 2,464 
109s - - 524 ·- :1.;-5.;~ i ;:ist;;°rroc~·cl~pmcm - ---- _ ___ T ____ ·- .. 1 ~700 · - - -i-- ·- --· l,700:·---·-- - :--- - 1-:700· 
1099 . .. . - -.,-1 ~ oi·~ccEq~;;~~~~ _ : ___________ -- ~=-i--· · ··· -· --,-_60o_i ___ 3 -:0cio ! -- -- ·- - --· ;-------- -3.000-

1100 ' ! 0 : 0 
1101 · - - - - -- ·- · 1-;;i;fr1,;~;c-;;-;:~e:-;;;;;:r - --- -· ·· ·T····---3uJ.m r. :~o6T ____ 3o9,sss ;··----- ·- o· ;--- · ioi),8s5 

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 Page 33 



A c 

Loudon County 
County General Fund 101 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

D E F G H 

General Fund IOI ------- ·- ____ ; __________ ____ ------ - -- --· --------· ; 
2 

3 

i; 
Account Number 

3/15/1:021 12:5:1 I 

- I 

I 

2020-2021 

Org n~t 

2020-2021 j Appro\'cd Proposed 
,\,~·d-~ ·-\ :\m~l~ ~j ·n~t -AmtJs · 

Proposed __ 

~ Amdc<l Budget 

1305 i ' ____ T _______ .. i -- - --:---- -----

~~~~ ==-:=~~- -5.~}~~!~i~~r~~~<:~t'~-~~-=-~=_:__= ~- __ -- ~--~~~- : -1~ -~- 56,5~5 : --~-~~13 1=-~~ -·5_1 __ :9_s_s __ ,i _______ - - . 57,958 

1308 -- -- ---- - --1-15 ; : corrc~ti;n-~-Scrgc_a.nis - -- - ---- - ·----;· · - ·13o;72s·· - -- -3,268 !- --·- ·- 133 .996T -- - --- · · : i:l3-.996. 
1309 ---- - ·- --· i6o:- i <;;;,;~d~ -- ·- - - --- c,~1rn ~s2s,2oo) ____ ·- 1--1.823,936 : · ·· -- 59:9-52 :- - 1.si(siis-1-- (19-1 :oooi· - ---1.692:888 

----- ... -·· - - -l--· -- ·-----------·-- - ---- --- -----·-- -· - - ·- ·-- -------- - -· - - ·- ---·-: -- ·-· -- -·------ --1---- - --- ·• -· ~--~- ------
1310 _ .. 160-CRSEC_ ; i _Gu~rds (Xlra=S\00()_) ! ____ ~20 ,:'._2 7 . . 2,.?_0_~ i_ .. 123,132_;__ J23 , 13 ~ 
1311 169 i !Part-Lime Personnel i 1 I 0 ! 0 
1312 --=--==: :·· ·:~_Cs_iJQv~n_i-~;.c\Y~gcs ·= --~----=- -:· _ _-__ - ____ · : .~-~-- ~- _82~_09 - ; ·- - --- :~--=-:::.!_= ~__:_~2_ooT~- ·191_o(io 2_73_,~~ 
1313 187-CRSEC 'Overtime Wag.cs 3,500 : ! 3.500 i 3,500 
1314 - -- -- - io 1 : - :Soci;l-sc~;;rity - ·- ·· · · - · · ·· --i -- - 1·29:s 1-o ' -- · -- -.1.007 ·: -- --133,8 11 !- ---· -- ----· - 133~11-

1315 ---- · 201-CRSEC 1 Sociais~c~1 ~i t); - - - - i · · - 7,683-, - - 1-;;sr·· · ··7,851i . - -
1316 --- -- 204 : ls!;t;;--l~eti~~mc~ t- -- --- - - - ·- ' -· · - 14o:48s , · - 4.-33-7T ____ -·144,-s2_5_ j __ - · 

- 72~5_ 1_ 
l ~~ .8]_5_ 

8.497 
8,_60_9 

357 

1317 ·· -2(M-cllSEC 1 is 1atc Rc1ircn;c;11 ··· · · · ···- ---- S,3-16 1 • - ls1 T - ---·-·s:;i-97-;·--· 

131s ____ - ·· 206: !t.i!;;-1,;,-t;i,;ncc_- ~~ :·_ . _ _ ____ ---=- ' ----~ _ ~~-6-g2_ _ ' _ __ ~::::J_~---~: ~ -j]>o9-J 
1319 206-_CRSEC . ; Lire ln_suranc_c i _ _ ___ 357 ' j 357 1 

1320 206-RET-LIFo ; Life lns~!?ncc:_-Ri::~ irc_cs 

1321 __ _ _ ~D_? _ 1 iv~cd_~c.'.1! !~~r_a_n_t:_c __ 
1322 207-CRSEC Medical Insurance 
1323 . --- -- 2-67-Ilt: ;i·-tviEr'l : ~l~d ;;;a l j;,~~.~;,;~~-- il:~tirecs 
1324 - - 2o7:-SRll'fl I i ;'vl~dic;l -lns~r;ncd ~-Sr~ 1i.caith 
1325 

1326 

__ _2_Q8 _ , D~n t~_l_nCiu~~c_c ______ _ 
_2_0~f R~l~C 1) l ~~nta~ l!1surance 

1327 __ __ . __ ?OS-RET : i D~ntal )nsuranc_c_ -~_ti rec_,;_ 
1328 . 212 I ; Employer Medicare 
1329 --=== i1i_c~S!T i_ ' !ii2' rJoy;;~ ~Ic:"t!;;;~~---- --
1330 _ _ __ 330 , :Orer~!i~1g L~ase_ l~ay'.n_cnts_ (Coricr) 

1331 331 ! Legal Services 
1332 ---- - -- --- -- :i~i! :~~-;i~t~~~~~~Ag~<:;;~~e1~t ~ _ 
1333 _ _______ _ _ -~~6 , _1vlai11tenancc_a1_1_d. R~l'.a_i_r~<;_c!'. iccs- I;q uipm 
1334 340 Mcdicnl and Dental Services 
1335 348 i Postal Charges 
1336 } :19 i " i 1;ri1;i~1g~ siatio.ncr)• & Forms 
1337 -- - - - D5 i- iTravd- - - . 

·- -- ---- . ·-·-- - -- - - . -- - - - ----- --
1338 355-EXTR/\ ; .Travel- Extradition 

375 i 375 ! i . - - - 663::7ll5 i - - . 
17.566 ---:- --- -- 17,566 I - . -- - --- ·- - ____§_§~ . 78_5 . -

-----~- - i-(1o4 ,- --- ---:- -··- - 14,io4 r · --
i- . - 3,-895 - -- - ___ i ___ ---J.895_!_ ---
. ·---- --·-33_s40 _______ -- ---r----- 33.840 - ~ --

·- - ~:-: 1.~s_9_ : - __ --~- T~--J::OsIC : 
1,274 ' 1,274 ; 

' 
--3 0.359 ; ---·937:--···. -·· 31.29-6--;- - - -·· 

· 1,197 - 39 1· .. · - 1;836- ; -
. i ---- -2.sooT · - - i --· - ----2.-Soo :-- -· 

·-: -----·5:arici ! - ··- ---- -- i -- ---··5:000 1----
-- --: ·· ----·-1o:ci0-o-i ----- i-- - · 10.000: --· - -

T ---5.oao · -· i ·- · 5:000 i -
·;· ·------- . --·- I -- - -- --- --- , 
' 300,000 I 300,000 I _____ i ____ - --- 200·' -- --- __ i ___ -----wo-i- - -

·- -- ·" ---- -- ---- · · · --·-- --·--r-- --- · ···- ---1 ----
, 500 · ' 500 I i - --- -i:ci-oo ;-- · - · i ·-1 :oao· ! · -

- --- ,------- 3.ooo -: - -·- ----i-------3.oooT ____ ____ - -

375 
6_6p~5-
17.~~ 
1_4,104 

?~~9L 
3}_,840 _ 

l _,0~9-
__ ! ,2~_ 

31.296 

-- _! ,~}<!._ 
_2,500 
_5,QQ_Q 

_10,0QO _ 
_5,QO_D . 

3Q_Q_ • .QQQ _ 
200 
500 

_; -· ----- 1,000 

1339 --·- - · - - -- - 3991 : oth~;:-(;;n;;~~i~d -S~;v i~~s _____ i ___ Tooo:--------;-·------.,:0001-- - ---- ·--- _ }_,O_QQ_ 
7.000 

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 Page 39 



A c 

Loudon County 
County General Fund 101 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

D E F G H 

______ _Q~_°.!::~ l F~~dIQ_ l_ _ _ ____ [_ _ . .. _ ___ _ ___ l_ ____ __ _ ... - · _. ______ _ 

2 

3 

. . 311512021 12:5•1 
1 

2020-2021 2020-202 1 Approved I Proposed ; Proposed 
AccountNumhcr r--l- - -- - --- - ----·-- -- -·--Orl-!B.~t ·· - - -:-\-n~i~ --· -~.\-n~d~;1ii; r --j--·;\r~U~-----{~\11;~j~dB 1HJ~ct 

1340 

1341 

1342 

1343 
--i·------
1344 

1345 

1346 
---t - --· -- -
1347 

1348 

1349 

1350 

1351 

1352 

1353 

1354 

1355 

1356 
--i - --·----
1357 

1358 

1359 

1360 

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 

-

-···-··-' --- ·-·- ----- --- -·-- ···-· ·- ·---·-- ··--- __ _ , ----·· - ·- - ... --- ; __ - . - -··- .. ! 
410 1 iCustodial Supplies I 30.000 · l 30,000 ! 30,000 
4 1_3_; ' o;ugsandMcdi~-aiS~ppli~s(lnmnlcs) - 210,000 i -- --i- -· z!O:oooT ____ - ·-- 2 10,000-

1~~i ·.:~~~~~1~~~:~~~~pii~s--~~---:~= ~:~:-~::~~ ~-~~I-=-~~~i~~{ ,~-=---~-=:==~-!-=-~ _: -=d~T~~~~-- -~ ---:-. . -~~1-.i~~ 
42~ ! 1 Fooc,l_S~pl'lics ~ lnma~cs) ___ _ ... , ___ 250.000 . _ -i ---·- . _2_5.Q ,~00_! ___ --· _ .. __ ·- e0.000 
,131 ; ;Law Enforcement Supplies .. . . : 2,000 · ~ 2,000 ! 2,000 

~1~0 , ~+,~~~1~~=-~=-=---~~~~~~~~-~= =~~=~--- i_. :=~ -.-1t.~~~-~ :·~:~-~~~ ~T=~~ ~-. -2-~~rr-~ ~~~~--=-- , ·· · -: i;I~f 
499 , : ot1; c;-s~rrii~;& M:i 1crial;-c1~m;;~-S upplicsi · i so,060- : - - - ··· - i 50,000 T · 56.ooo 
513; iivo;k~~;C:~7'1p Jns~·~;1~~c · -- --- -- -- ------·-i---27.0i6-· · -· · 5,017 .. - 32.03.3T. -- - - 32,633 
524.1 :·in-Scn~cds(;°t'f r)-;;~~cl~p~1~cnt · : - 3,000 i- - ----- ---j - - 3: 000 j° -·- ·- - - - :J:ooo 
599 i i q11"Jc-i;_n;i~~ - - :~~ :.- - _ ~- ~1 -_ · -_ -=- · ,0·0 --- - ~~-'~ _ ·-·--_1Q.o ·!·------- ~=-~~- j_Qa· 
708 1 !Communication Equipment . ! 2,000 : 2.000 i 2.000 
7 10 : 1~o;ci 5~;,: i~ Eq~;ir1;~11t - · • · - · -- - -,- · ·-· 3:000 ;--- -----3.ooo-i -----· ··- ----- 3~ooo·· 

71 -1 ; Furni;~rc· n~d l'ixlu ;~s- .. . - ,.. 5,000 .. . .. . S,000 l ·--; ·-s:oo-o 
716 : 1_ ,;-;;:- [;;-1corcc~ncntii°"quip1-;;-~~11 -- --- ---- -- :--· --·- --ri i 4,000 ; - ---4,ooo i -4.000 

m · : ofii~~ 1:~1~~p;,~~;- - - _- ----- --- __ ~-: __ - _·_- :- -- -- a' Toao :-- ··1-.cio~ -! 1 :00~· 

' 1·~-1;;J J;;ilD~p:1rln;-;;-1;; · --- - - --· .. -·· - ; - · - ~:z.32,79 9-;-- -92,02-.J ;-- .i,JZ4~Si3i 0 : -l,324,823 
. -- -- -· -- - -- - ·-- . ----~·------ ------- -- · - ---- ----;- - ------ i··- - - ·-· --------·~ 

I 

Page 40 



2 

3 

1507 

A 

Account Number 

- -· - ·. • - M .. 

1508 55120 : /\nimal Control 

c 

Loudon County 
County General Fund 101 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

D E F G H 

General Fund 101 [ ! ; 
3/15f202\ 12:5·1 -- --- :- ----2oin=iii21T 2oio-2o21--i -~\;;-rr---;v-cd -- ---i - P~~-;;-o~~ti -:-- - 1~;.;-;;-osccJ -

o·;.g ·-n~~ --· j - - A;;;d;--·1--:\~~clc-d Dgt -~-- ~\-1~tl:- --i ;\~-;-cJ-cLI BucJ~ct 
. -- __ ! __ ···-- _______ !_ 

I 
·; _ ! -·-

1509 ---- ----- - -- - io3 ; ,\~,is1~1;i---i':>"ircct~~ ---------- ----------------- -- ---;-- -------o i _______ ! _______ _____ o______ ----- -o· 

1510 --- - --------· --- . - 105 ! Supervisor/Di;~~to~ ----- ------ ----i- - ---56--:871---;- -- i,27£_! __ _ --52."i49----, --- \ ·--- 5-2.149-
1511 · --- -· - · - 1(;9:--- l ;ari-ii;nc--- Pc;s;;-;;;-,~1 - ----- - - --- ---- - ---· i · i9, i20 i ---· --720' - - ------ 2 9,S40 :-- - ·- -T -- - l9~~4o 

1512 ---- -- -- 1s1 : ;overtime Pay - · -- : --- · · 10.000 ·; ·10,ooci- i i-- - - 10,000 · 
1513 ·- · - · --- 189 istar{\\1agcs - ·----- --- -; - ·146-:i_ii_i_i_ 2,911 ·- - --i49,ol2T-· --- --; ---- J49:612 
1514 .. --- -- io1 ; Soci;tS-;,cu;i(); · - - ·- - - -- ---- --- -· - · ·;-· -- . - i-4:694 !" - - - 248 :- --- -----14,942 -;- -- -- ---;- - - 14,9;ff· 

1515 --- 204 ' ;S1atcRc1ircmcnt --- i- - -i3,94s-; --- -- 221 :· --- - 14X69-j · ---- - ; ------,4.169 
1516 ------- - 2oG :-\-Lit~ 1;,;;;-r; ncc -- . - --- -- - -- - - ---- -:-- ----967 l-- - - --- - ---- --- . . 967 f --- --- ~ -967 
1517 io7 i [Medical lnsu~a~ cc --- . -j. - 36.-733- i - - - -- --- :16jj3 · j·· ---:--- -------3 6,733-
1518 ----- -- 208) : o~n1a\!;;~;;-;a~ ~c ----- ·--------- - - -- - -------- -i ---- --1.758 ;- --- - ------- 1:is8T -------·-· - - · - ---- · i.1·53-
1519 ---------- - iJ2;--; limploy;;-r~l~di-;;;;~ -- ·- ----- -- --- ·- T--- ----3-:;i .36 · ~-- --·--59--- ---- JA9ST- - ! -- - -3,49·5 · 

-- · :.. -· : · - · . - . · ·--- --------·-- ··----·----; ---- - - - ----·· 1· -- - · --··-- r··- -----·· ·--- ·- ·------
1520 007 1 Commurncallon : 2, I 00 : 2, I 00 I _ 2, I 00 
1521 307-\VIRE ! comn;unic;li~;, - - ---! - l,OG6 l - S 34 

1 
2,600-i - - ' ---- --- - -2:600-

1522 --------- -- --310 · i oucs -and~l-;;;;-,b·c~ships ·- ---- ----- --· --- - - !----- --- -- sci :- -- -- - . :· - -- -----so -;----------- --- - -50 

1523 -------- ----- --- 33c): -; 01;cr.;1ing L~;;c· !;;ymc-;;-ts- -1---- ----ioo i --------- - ,--· -----·-scioT-- -- -. - - - - -- scio 

1524 __ __ ---~- - _ 3_33 [)-_icc!is~s ________ · _ ---~---- _ __ ___- :~~- ___ _· 220 ! _ _ _ __ __ , _ ~ -___ - .: ~~~~ ~-=~-----=- ..::~: ~-~- _:2}~ 
1525 338 ! : Maintenance and Repair-Vehicles i 1,500 ; 1,600 I . 3, 100 I 4,000 I 7,100 
1526 -- - . --- - - J40: : 1vlcdic~I ~~ Dc1~llll Scrvic~ (V-;;ccinalions for c;nployc' --- . -l ,000--- ! - 300 i-- -- -- - l ,300_1_ -- -------r- - --1.i"Oo-

-- -- : - --- - ---·- ·- ·--- - --- -- -- -- - - - --- :- - -- -- -- --- · ---- ---- -- ,- - ------ --- --- 1- -1-· ------- -
1527 34 8 _ JPostalClrnrgc:_:; __ ______ __ _ _______ JQO_!___ _ 1 _ ___ _ ?.OQ1___ __ __ _ _ L __ _ _ __ 20~ 

1528 349 ' : Pri111ing. S1a1ioncry & Forms _ I .327 i : I ,327 I I I ,327 

~ ~~~ - ---- ~ 49 PFl '~~~ i : 1:-~~:'.~~g~~-tat::o~1crx_& ___ 1:~r~is--~ --------- _-- --- --- -;~~-~ ~{~~- :· ----~---~- j- --~---. - -~~~~- :-~-- -- ~---~-~l ~~-~~ 
1531 355-PETSM ' :Travel - Pctstvlart ! 1,000 5.000 ! 6.000 I I 6.000 

1532 ~-~-=---=-~-~~--~ ~:s7 ; ___ i y~t~rj~-,~~ s~;;~i~~ :_-~=~----=~------- - --- --- - : ~ !=---:=~ 29}?_i:~ -~-:------~-=:~r-----· -~ :_29)~~: -::-=--:-- ~~~~=-:~~ -~ 29.?5_4~ 
1533 357-/\Sl-ILTR. : Veterinary Services __ . __ \_ _ ___ 500 _:___ _________ ___ ________ ___ . ___ __i_Q_0___1 ______ _______ _ I. 500 
1534 359 ; ;Disposa!Fccs I 100 : 210 ! 3101 I 310 
1535 ---- 39c)j i o11icr---c~;;tr;ctcdSc7~icc;- ------ -- ---- -------- ·---- 1.000-: ----------- ' - - ---1.oooT -- ____ ! _______ i.ocio 

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 Page 47 



A 
I' 

c 

Loudon County 
County General Fund 101 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

0 E 

General Fund 101 ------- - __ !__________ -- --~- _: 
F G H 

I 
·- --- __ _ !_ --- -2 1--- -- ----- - j i 

Account Numhcr 
3/1512021 12:5•l - ---- - --- ' - - 2Q~0-202 ! 20_2_1!_:2021 J Approved I Proposed : Proposed 

3 Org B~t Arnds I A;1~1J;.J - Ii;·t-- ;-· .. \,~;Is-· --r·A~;~d-cu-llud~~~ 
t ! ' - l ' i . ' 

536 _ --·-:ia·i 1 -: A~;-;-,;:;:~1!'~l;;; -,~ st~rP~-- - - ·------ 1 _ -28.060 -· - ·- --· csooi i -- --- ·21,200 i-- · -- -i-.ooo i 2s ,200 
1537 - ·-- --401 ASHL'( : Anima-1 Food- &- supplies --- · · 1· -- - 1·:5.000 : - ·c I ,500) : · · ·- ·13:soo-r -- -· -cs:ooo)1 ----- ···· 8,5cfo-

-- - ------·------ -- ·- ---- - ·-- · --- --·------------· ----- - - --------- -- ·- -- - -------- . --------- i - . -· --- -- --- "-------·---~---- -
1538 401 BQUST .. Animal Food & Supplies l 22 ,600 i . 22,600 I _ I 22,600 
1539 --- -:i-01 ~l~t-6i)s-· - ·"A~;i·.;;;; 1 F~~<l & s~rP~--- ··· · -- ·; - - 3.oaci·:---- 566 T - - - - 3.so6T- - - -·- · - ·-- · (siio 
1540 ---- -- 401-Pr::Ts-r-.1 -~ Animal1°~d £s-;;rr1-;;;-s·--------- -- ----- __ i ____ 5,000-:-- ----- ·-;--- - -5.ooor--·- -5.ooa· 
1541 -- --- -· - -- 401-TES'l:i , i..nin;~l l'o~d & Supplies . ... _ . i - -- 6:So6 1 - -- - -i . -6,50-0 T-- -- . -i. -6,500 
1542 - -----·- ---~ w:-·e:;.~[~.iia·1 ·s·,; p;;i;~~ ~--------~::-:_--:-· - ·--- _ X~~~ -- 5-:oif6-. L __ ~_::-_· __ ~_::-_r·~- =s~go_Q'_[:_:-_____ ·_ !-~ -5.09g_: 

1543 

1544 
414_:. quplic:1ting s~~plics 
425 i Gasoline 

I 269 : l 269 i ; ----- s.ooo-;------ · -i -----s.oaor-- -- ---i- -
1545 

1546 

1547 

1548 

1549 

1550 

435, : Oflicc Supplic; . 
450 · Tires 

--- -- -- ----i---- 1.soo ' ;- I Joo :- -- , 
269 

. _s,qo_g 
l ,_500 

_2,0_00 
451 l 
452 . 

499 '. 
509 : 

' Uniforms 
U1ili1ics 

: Other Supplies & Materials 
Refunds 

1551 __ ___ _ 5_11_'. . Workers' C<;> 1~p_h1su_r~nce __ 

1552 ·------- _____ 524 i __ In_~i:r_':!~i~~i Di:_:_c~op~_'C.~ ___ _ 
1553 71 Si \I chicles 

155<--~~--~~:- - ___ -y 19 i LO_f.lic~ Equipn~~1 i_t __ _ ·-· ___ __ _____ _ 
1555 791 CJ\TRM i ·- --~ --~ - - -·-
1556 

1557 

1558 

790 i\NIMJ\ i :Other Equipment_ 

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 

Tol:il Anim:il Control 

·; ·---- 1.000 i----------r-- - -- 2.oaor -- ___ ,. ___ , ___ _ 
--, -·:=. - - ~~s_oo ;· · ·: ·-~ - --- -~--- · ------------- --· -___ 1.?Q9_; __ . 

- . 2.Q~ i _., _____ _ _'.l.oqo_; 
.. L l ,?09 , ___ - --- ---~,?QQ __ i ---- -----so . 80 ; 

. -__ : ~ :06 _'._ -·· 4.56 1 - ----·- - ·-- . 
-----· - :_:-_ t8-§iL 

I.ODO : 1,000 . ... ___ o_! ____ ____ - -- - .. 

- -- --· - ------ --; - - ---754 i 754 : 

~,SQ_Q_ 
•· 9,00Q _ 

1,50.Q_ 
80 - ·-· ... -

3.~~ -
1,00Q_ 

0 
754 

2,900 ~~-~-:=-2~0-0- :~~- -· ---:2:9oy -'. _~= ---· ···- ··- --- ---
500 ; 500 i 500 

-467-:-261 r- -- 14,064 481,325' 0 481,325 

Page 48 



A c 

Loudon County 
County General Fund 101 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

D E F G 
General Fund IOI i : i ! , 

H 

2 

3 
Account Number 

-- ·-------- -·--· - .. -· - - ----------1--.. --- ,, ___ .__ ---· _. ____ ,; --
]/1512021 12:5•1 i 2020-2021 i 2020-2021 A rrrovcd / Pro rosed i Pro posed 

--- ----- --- ------·---··-- -------- --- - : -o~:~-1l~-t- ·- i ---A;,~-;-~r-t\m~i~d ii~. --r--.. -\1~uJs-- - ; Amt1cu lludf.!~ 

! - - . - - ··-- : - -- - -~- l __ _ _i ____ ----

1612 . I . i ' ' ! I 
1613 _____ .. __ · 56300 i - ! sc~1i~rcTti~cnsAssis1m;~~---·----- -- - -; - -----;--------r·-- - ----: ··---· ____ i ____ -- -
1614 ---------- -10s :• s--;;-r--;;~;;;·s~-;:i-6';'r~!o;:--- - · -- - -- -- · · - - - - ·;-- --- --42.824 T ·· -- --i.oio ,-- - - 4:fs94 :- - - ·- --- -----i------43,894 
1615 -- · · - 161 1 -! on~-~ -on Agi·,;g -Dirc~;;;:-- - -- · ·; -:i5.501_l_ - - --- 645T - · -- 26 .146 r--------:·-------26,l46 
1616 -- ---- -·- · ·-·- 1s9 i- ·o~;~rs-;;1;ric-;a~v;ges --. - - - ---- - -·-r---61:6ic)r---- 1;-s81- - - 63:19_1_! - - i-- ---- 63~91 

1611 __ _ -_ __ :_- ____ :ioi i - ' s~i_Xs~_i~tL=-~=--=-=--~-------- _______ L __ -::::~--i~~- L ___ -_ ~~-ioT: _ ___ _ _-s;~o !==-=-=:;~=~~-· --~~io-
161a 204 : !Retirement . . . 8,719 I 221 S.940 1 . : . 8.940 

1619 :~~=--------~--___ ).Q6 __ '~i1~l'.~~~- - -~ :~--~- ~- -=-~=--=--·-- - -... -=_;_ _ -- --~~ _:_6-~9 ·:~-~--=--_!- ---=- _ :_· ~-~oJ=- ~~~ - -~----T-~=----_-~:~~g : 
1620 206-RET-UF : Life Insurance - Retirees : 392 i ! 392 I i 392 
1621 --- - 207: i Medicalln~uranc~--- -·-- -- --- - -;- - 38-,311 i- ------ - : JiUll :- -------i- -----JS.3 11-

1622 - =:- ~07_:: 1~:;-l<~~~D ; ~"0~~ ~~al lns~;r;,;~c- ~ ll~ir~~~-=- ~- ----~- -~= '. . __ -_- 6 :6s_i_'._·~-~ =~----=-T .--~: .. ~.682 i ---~-~--=~~ j_- :· -- · -_ §-,~sI: 
1623 207-SIUITH l .Medical Insurance· Sr. Health 1 6.422 I ; 6.422 ! 6,422 
1624 208 i r)~~iai 1 ;;;; ,ra~c~---- -- - - ------- -- - - · 1 - - ·--i~4o61- ---- - ------- .. -2,4o6r --- ------ r · - - 2:406 

1625 208-RET-DEN . i ocnta1i;1st;~;;1~~~R~ti;c~s --- - - ··· 6·4s _i __ . .. · -- · -·648_!____ ;· 64_8_ 

1626 212 ' Emrl_oycr_ M~_di-c;r~ . __ -- _____ .. ______ - _;· - _=:us~ : ·__ __ 48 -- !_.'?]:~J~~-=-~~::_-:=::-!~=:~ _-_!:~32~ 

1627 307 .. Communication 4.833 , 4,833 i ! 4,833 
1628 - - 3 l(,.1ii)i3ox icontribuli;;-n;;-- -1°o~d -Box Program . -- - ai· 4.0 13 . 4'.ol 3 j - -- - .. ___ j _ ___ 4.0-JJ-
1629 - - · °>30 : 0 1~~r~\i;;;L.~~-;ep;;y,;,-;;-nts(Copi,;-l -- - --; ---- ---iioo·;- -- -- -- i ·2.iaa·;- ----- ·- -T-- ·· 2.2oo-
1530 333 ' lLicrnscs - i 2.000 ! i 2,000 ; - -----i---- 2,000-
1631 ________ -33'6 i- i ~1aintc·n;,;~;ndRerai~ S~rvi~~;_jj'q;1ip~1~-nt - -- ! --- - J.637 i- - ---- - l - i.637T ______ _ .. - i ---l':Gff 

::~~ -- - --- ~~~ · · :-~~!:'.~1~t~:~fc,,-;~~~--=:~=-~-- --- --- ---1--:: __ ::.;_,~~~ ;~-~~- ~- - -!-:~: -- ).~r~~1 --=: ___ - -~ r----=-- ~·~~~-
1634 ---- 349 ! Printi,-1g.Slati~~ry;;;d·I:;;~~~~ - -- --- - . -25001 - - --- : - 2,500 ! -· . . 2,500 

1535 . -~ .:_ _ .. 3_55_ ;:~~~ ~~~~-=-~~----=--- _ --~~: __ ·-~=_9_oo'[_-=-_~~=i ____ ·--~~o_[~~-~-=-~----· -- -~--- --9qa_· 
1636 399 ! !Other Conlractcd Services · 5,500 ' i 5,500 I i 5,500 
1637 -- · 4i(1 ; - : c--;;-st;;1;,~ s:ii1rl, .;---. ------ ·-- - citi-o i - ---· 1 -- -9-ooi ____ __ ·:·· --- --- -900 

~m - ----42-2 l~U~:~1:-r~~frf~~~,~~~=~- ~~=-__ :=_ __ ----- - ~:; _ - ~d~F-- .. ~ - ~~~_: i~ --~~:~~t \--:=-~~~~:-=~ .. ~~f ~-:~-~--'l~!~ 
1641 ~_3:ff lor6~~ sufir1ic~ __ -_-~~-- _ -_-_ -- - - -- - - -~~i_,_J~o ; _ __ _ - - · i .J.SQ:r~:-::-_:-r~i-=- ·~ ! ,3~( 
1642 450 1 lTircs& Tubcs l.OOO ! 1,000 1 I 1,000 
1643 .152 : !Utilities · - - · · --15,oao· ! , 15'.000-1 - - · - -· · - 1 · -- - - 1 ·5~000-

- .. __ - - ' ' -- - .-----:- . ... - - -· · : .. ·- _ ... -- ··· --- ..... , .. - - .. --- -----, --- . . - .. 1- -----· -- I ________ ... __ _ 
1644 499 ; I ()ther Suprl1_"._S a_nd_iv~o ~c_nals_ - ·· .... _ _ ____ , _ _ ____ _ 090_ [_ ... _ ___ L --· _6()_0_ J .. -- - - -- - - · - _ _I ___ ___ 6_QQ_ 
1645 513 i ! Workers' Comp Insurance i 3,649 ! (I , 185)! 2,464 I I 2,464 ... .. .. --- -· - - - - - ... - ___ ... - - . - - - -- ·- - . -- - -- - . . - ..... ·-----T- · ----·- - T .. _______ ....... 
1646 599 :ot!1crCharges ______ _! ____ 1,50.Q __ ~ .-- __ _ _ ' 1500 

1 
_ ·-- . 

1 
______ _ 1500 

1647 _____ 5_99-SR<::_::rz , !9thcr CJ1~rg~~ ----- __ _ !. . __ ___ _!_ __ ___ __ ___ : . _ 9. i__ _ _ _ __ I ___ __ _9_ 
1648 735 !Health Equipmenl · 0 : : 0 I 20 I 20 
1649 ------ 1 !9 i -! orff~-;;J~ql;·ir1;, ~ ,~i --- -- - - - · -- -- - i----------oi ----- - i -- ---·01-------;-- ---- .. -·--a-
1550 ,. " . ..... - - -- ! ! 0 ! i 0 

1651 - . : T~tal Scnio; Citizc;; ,\~;;~,a~c ---- -- -- --·-i -- 264,304 :--- - 6.597 ; - m:9ol f -.. .. -... o'!" 1:10§01 
1652 - , -- ---- -- - ·--- -----· - -j ·-------;· ·- -- I -- --i--·--- - .. -- ·-:-- - - -----
1653 - - · · 56700; i 1;;;k~ ;nd !'air ii~;;c!~-- - i --- --0·;- ----- :·· -i- -- -- --- r-- ----- --.. 
1554 - ·-- · -- 3 16T: c-;;ntr'ib~~~;;s .... -- - -- -- - -------.. T--.. -·-o-:-- -- ----,--- -- --- 1-- ·-- --- -:- --- --- -- ---- · 
1655 1• ...... -------- --- --- - - - ---1 

1656 - ·· -- L__ - --=-=-- ---__________ 1~------
16571Tolal Social, Cultural, and Rccrcalional Services 

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 

264,304 

I --- -- · ~ - -

6,597 

- __ ! -
i --r -

o r 270,901 

Page 52 



Loudon County 
County General Fund 101 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

A I C D E 

General Fund I 0 I ; 
F G H 

;1 N 
I -- 3/15120~1 -11:5-I -- .. --- -- . 2020-2021 2020-202i __ !_ 

Account : umber ' ---- - - --
i~;;;,:;:-u=:._ ~- ),-~;P~~;J __ J- i~;:-~~?~ ~ 

! Or:.! Bgt An1tl.s :\mdctl Bgt AmU.s ! Amtlcd Budget 
I I I 

1830 ________ ______________ --- -·-· ---~~ =~~T __ --~~-=-r·----- ---- - -- - ~- 1~-- ·-. ----

8,49-1,40 I I I ! 1831\Esiirnatcd .Ju1i_c 30, ~020 Fll ·--·-- --- . ----- - - -·-·-- --- -- -- ---.-:Jii7~.l3o ;·-·- ·---- ·-T - ·- --i------:·----- ·--·-· 
~ Li:~ncst ~ ~c1c_<.J_,So~1~t!_c_d_~ Assjg!'~<!..!~cms _ . 

~ Estim:i~cd ,\\·a_ilahl_~l'. u1_i_d_f.Jal ;! 11~c _.!uly _~._ 20 I? 
1834 

1835 

1836 

1837 

~ -. 

1- · 
' I 
I : 
i""i 
, I 

18381~---=~-~-------i~i-
~Total Rcnnuc 

1840ITransfcrs In 
i 1841 --·-·-·- . _! _____ ·-

18421Total R~1·cnnc an~ ~·ransfcr.< l_n 

1843 

1844 

1845 
1846 To.ta! ~\;.a-ilahi~ l; un;i; i 

---- -- -- . 
184i 

1848 !•:xrm~~-it_urc lludi:ct 

1849 Transfers Out 

1850 

~!~udg"!_!'_!fcct (Rcvcnu_~ .- l~xpi:_ns_c) _ . 

18521 ' ' 
~Total Expcnditnrcs a nd Trnnsfcr Out 
18541 --· --··---·-·-:-i. -----·----· · 
~JC!1<!_i1~g_ !'. und !,la!'.!.o~~c 
1856 ' 

1857 

1858 

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 

I 

1.386.9-11-·;---·- -·· i 1.3sG,97i-i . - - .. --- ·r· ·- 1:38<i~9il -
---- -- ~ -- ---·----·--1·-··- · ----- _____ i___ - ··; - ---------

----·-·--- ·- -- --
!. 
I 

·---r- ·· 

' - - - ------r ·--

-------- - --··- ______ ___ ! _____ __ _ :........._____ ___ _ 

['),689,385 .i .... 756,356 I 

0 ! 3,885 ' - 1··· ... -------- -·i 

--- ---- - ·- ------

20 ,_4-1~?'_41 ., ,, 

3,885 ' 

-- -- - - ___ j __ - -
[ 9,68_9,3._85__ _ _ _7~~!,.241 _:_ .. 2}~-l_-12_,~2~_ '. .. 

- - -- . -···- -- --- - . - -·- -
·-· 

.. .. - - - - --·---
__ J_<,_iij 4J ·-- 21,s3~"~2_1 r· 2_7:,0?Si.J.5~_ 

' i 21,260,100 r.o-i:.ioi· i 21,862,501 
' ' - ·- ----- . 1i - - --- - ii ; ---- . - . ·- - · 

---·- - · --- ----·--- -------- - - · - ----
; 

. ~J~.~~!7i5i [_=----~~--~i __ Jlj1i:~1-s) i - -- - -

· -- 21,26o: l1iiiT -- 6 ii2.4n 1 : 21 ,862,501 ; . ··- - ..... - r-.. - --·-···---,-------- --· .. ___ .. -
_______ j_ - - ------· ' - - - --· ------ -

- · _. _ 5,816,~~§_l _____ _l_~,.'!_4()_ [ __ - · 5,97_;j,_0_26_l 

i ---~- -- ;_, -----·---~-·-·--
----- - -- --~ ···-- - -··--·-··- ----· -·---· -· ·-·-

T 

0 l_ -~,4.:!_5 ,?_:! 1 _ 
[) ; _________ 3_,§~~ 

o ___ ~o_,.'!_-19.,§26 

0 .. 2_7,836,59_~ 

_ o~T==:_2 1,s62,so1 
0 

. _ (1,412,~7~) 

0 : . . -~_l_.l!_~2 ,?_O}_ 
i 

0 : 5,9]4,09§ " 

Page 59 



Loudon County Commission 

Budget Amendments 

Public Libraries Fund 115 



Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 

Loudon County 
Public Library Fund 115 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

A 1a c 1--0- 1 E , G H 

1 - - -- 1_[__ Public Library Fund 115 I J 1 --1----.J ___ -2!3._~~~~------- 2020-2021 I 2020-2021 Apprc~~j ___ __ !__Proposed 
l I Adopted I Approved I Amended I Proposed J Amended 

=-==J~L _ __ __ __ _ _ ____ _J Budget i Amendments J _ Budget _[_!mendment~ _ _l_ Budget 

94 Subfund LEN - Lenoir City Library - i L I j _____ _ 
95 REVENUES ! l I i I I 

96 _ __ 4300~_[ i Charges for Current Services ! -I l_------1------
4JJ50 I !Copy Fees 1,000 l I 1,000 I 1,000 
4JJ6o l i library Fees 500 1- -----1---soor---- -----soo-

___ 4.41Jo!-l sa1c of Materials&. Supplies ! [ ·1 0 i I 0 

100 --4457on contributions ft Gifts I 150 i 150 I I 150 
101 -----n- ----------------- ---1 I I o I I o 

------- - - ------- ------ ----- - --- I 1 ,650 i o I 1 ,650 f---~

11 
_____ 1_.~ 

104 48000 I I Other Governments and Citizens Groups I I I I ----
105 _ _ 4s1Jo i]c~o~(Librory~~cl)_ ___ _______ [ ____ ~o~o_ C ____ T 10,000 I ---:=-_ 10,o_oE__ 

106 47301-CARESJ \~_OVID-19 Grant ! O [---~--~\ l ~~~ 
107 48610-PEmv I Donations rrom Citizens Groups i J,000 ! (J,OOOl l 0 I i 0 

108 Total 0111!:_1" Governments antl Citizens Groups i 13,000 i (1,JOO) j 11 ,700 I O )______!_!_2~ 
______ ]_!~---- -------·--~ -··---·-·-·---- ~----! ______ , ______ ! __ . _ _ ___ !_. ____ ] ____ _ 

_ ___ ! 14,650 I (1,JOOl ! 13,350 I 0 I 13,J50 

,_____, ____________ ______ ---! ___ = [ '.-~-===[-----\== 
113 ___ 5_6000 lnl~~l,___Cultural,_a__n~~reational Services j _____ I I I _!__ _______ _ 
1M S6500I ~ I i I i 
115 =- 3o7f jcommunfc.1tions {SIOO per monlh) l 2,000 I L 2,000-i _____ _I= z .o~~ 
116 Jo1 lJ communiC.'.Jtions(UafanccofC1\RESGr.in1) j o I 1,B15_J _ __ 1_,~[ _ _ _ _ ____ ! __ _ ~~~.-
117 )07-CAl\ES I ICommunic.11ioos-CAl\ESGr.rn1 I 0 I 1,700 i 1,700 I I 1,700 
l1B ___ 2~~Ti~cr::ttin~ LCJ.Sc P.1ymc~ --~--=-~~ ! --~,--500! ___ 1 JSO\ ---- r--1JSO 

)"8 I !Postal C:har~cs ! 200 I I 200 I I 200 
---3~j ! Printing-Libr:uy Cartls&-~~iications 1 200 \ I- ---2QQj _j ____ zQO 

121 --~~jJOi~Con_~~-tcd Services ___ [ ____ ~~ r 1 so [ J 50 

122 ----~1-·~_LJ DupliDting Supplies ! 0 I 200 ! 200 i I 200 
422 1 !Story Time (Food Supplies) I 200 l I 200 I 200 

124 _ 4Jir!~~ks _ I 5,5oo_i _ __ ~~i 11,250 1 Joo , 14,550 
125 -D2-PETTW LJ Libr:lry l3ooksff..1edi:i - Pc1tw:1y Grant j J,000 [ (J,000)[ 0 ! j 0 
126 -~\00101 I Audios =ind Videos - l·-----------. ----1----- ----i----o-j- - - ---;-- ---- O 

121 m[j~p;;;:; -- ------- 1.000 1 T---,;oooi------;-~ 

128 4J7 l IP"iodicals 600 I I 600 f · 600 
129 •'2.?_ [l_(ltherS~plics_~ -~~'.erials _ _ ____ ----------- 150 j 500 r-- 650 I --------;;5i) 
130 __ _2~L] omccEquipmcn1 I 500 I J 500 I 500 

131 Total Librari'=----------- ! 14,650 I 10,465 ! 25,1151----~ '.-- 25,415 
____ !_J l . I • · 

'133 -----H Total Expenditures i 14,650 j 10,4651--~_,__1J_S-l---J_~_[ __ ~_ 

135 Est Beginning Fund Balance July 1, 2020· Includes Cash on Hand 72,074 i I 72,074 I i 72,074 
-----i !Less Cash on Hand _j ____ (SO) ' j I , ---- --

----i-JLcss PY Encumbrance {177)1 l - [ ; 
138 - ---- - 1- iTotal Revenue - 14,650 ,- - (1;3iiO)l-- 1-3,350 l-----0-~0 
139 --- - n Total Expenditures I 14,650 ~.465 125,11si-----ioo!------zs'.4;s 
140 i i--- i - --1 --- --,--- i-- ---
141 _____ J Fect on Fund Balan_c_e _______________ ___ _:--=i---o-l-(i1,765)j - ----c11.76s)-I - - - (jOo)\--11-2,065) 

::~ESTIMATED ~HDIHG FUND BALANCE SUBFUND LEN ' 71,847 : (11,765)~-6-0,-3-09-j (JOO)! 60,009 I 

Page J of12 



Budg~r Committee M;:ir 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 

Loudon County 
Public Library Fund 115 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

A C D E F ] G ----, H 

1 11 Public Library Fund 115 J J I , 
_ ___ J 3124121 9:02 PM J-z020-Zo2fl 2020-2021 Approved : I Proposed 

I i L AdopCC'd Approved ! Amended ! Proposed ! Amended 

=--~Ii____ ---====L Budset I Amendments I Budget- I-Amendments r Budget 

144 Subfund .LOU - Loudon Public Library \ ____ ! i ! 

145 REVENUES I 'I I I I i I 
146 - - 4JOOOT Charges far Current Services l ! _[ ____ ! 1 
141 4JJsoi-[ copy Fees - --------------- -------i---i:;-sooj i z ,soo l I z,soo 

4))60 i-i~Fees ! Z,600 I I Z,600 r-----1---2,600 
149 Tota!Ch;;-il:cs for Current Sc~~-s--- I 5, 100 ! 0 I 5, 100 I 0 I 5, 100 
---i-1 --- . ------· 

150 ~~doth~7Lo:_~"':!!:!__.____ : j ____ t-----~=---1==-=~ 
152 __ _:_'_-'.120,_jSalc of Materials fr Supplies I ZSO I i ZSO I I ZSO 
153 44S70 I Contributions&. Gifts I ZZS I I ZZS J ZZS 
15~ ~l~~·~Rc\'l'nlll'S - [ 47 5 \ 0 J 475 I 0 ! 475 

:~: --4-7-1-00R Fed;r_a_I t-h-rough State - ----. [ I l------1 I 

1s1 47JQ1:CAiIB[~i~y10-:-19 Grant _\_ o I -----=--ar ___ z_s_s _,l _____ z_s_s 

15B ·17l90-TECll ! lotherFederalthroughStateRevcnues i soo ! I~ 640 1 1,140 
--'------- ------- - . ! 500 I o I soo ! 895 I 1, 395 

==--tI.:__ _ ----====~==c---1- i _ ___ j ______ I _ 
'-l---4_B_o_oo_!_! Other ~o_":_emments and Citiz_ens Groups [ _____ L ____ [ _____ l ______ C---
162 ___ -- ~~~Lj~ntri_~tions from G~vcmmcnts (From Library Board) !_~~------'-· -~-~ \ ___ 9,550 

163 ~8610-PETTW J5:.ontributions rrom Citizens G~~~~~~way~~-] 2,500 l (2,500) 1 . O ! 1 O 

1G< _ __ '.'._1!610Lll'.?natio:i_s from Citizens Groups (Rotury C_lub) J ZOO ! I ZOO I I ZOO 

1G5 Total Other Go,·crnmenl~-~md Citizens Groups ! 12,250 i __ _J2,500) L __ ~~o1 o f 9 ,750 

::~ Tu(~(Fi~~~JJ,- - ---- ------------·-------- ·-----i - 18.J251 ~--,s~szs- I 895 ~no 
1se - ! I ----------] -,-- l~----i _____ i ____ _ 

PiJge 4 of f2 



Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 

Loudon County 
Public Library Fund 115 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

A JEj C I D I E I F I G I H 
1 Public Library Fund 115 \ I j _____ \ _ ____ ! I 
_, ___ __ I I 3124121 9:02 PM i ZOZ0-2021 I 2020-2021 I Approved ! I Proposed 
3 __ . ___ 1

1

=
1

1 _____ ____ ·----------- ----- ---r· Adop!!:...'!_l_~~~~men~[~~~pos!~_ [ ._~ended 
4 f Bud¥.: .. £._J_!mendments _ _j Budset l Amendme~ Budget _ 

169 EXPENDITURES i I I I t 
170 ------s600cJ~cial. Cultural, and Recreational Services r ----j ! j.------ -------
171 ~~LI libraries _ ___ j I ! I __ 
172 J07\ !Communications ! 850 J I SSC I 0 I 850 
113 ---no[ opcrati;;glea,cp;,y;:;;.;;ii i o 1 1,200 i 1,200 j _ ____ _l _ __ 1.200_ 

174 333Ulicenscs(Soltwarc)____ -----' m I L ___ _7~S_! _ _ _ _ _j _ ___ ~ 
33• I !Maintenance Agreement I UOO ! i 1,200 I I 1,200 
34B J Postal Charges i 50 ! ! SO i 1--- 50 

t--<----)4- 9r Printing ! JSO I ! 350 I r··-~ 
178 -----~(\_Other Contracted Sc~~~- __ _ ____ __ i 400 i \ 400 j J 400 
179 399 CARES!_iOther Contracted S_':_~ces - CARES Gran_t _ _______ j_ ___ o_L ! 0 ! 255 j 255 

180 ___ 4~[_ 1_custodial Supplies ! 300 ! [ }~1 ______ ! ____ 300 

181 ---. 414_]jouplicating Supplies I O L 200 i 200 I J zoo 
182 4321 I Library Books I 6 ,JOO j_ ! 6,300 I 6,300 
163 ~-:in AUDioJ Library Books _____ ___ J i.soo ! { 1.S36) [ 1. 964 i---{1 ~-0ir·---sl4 
184 ____ -!_l2 -Dl9_!_![ !Library Books I 75~_\_ {750)! ___ ___!)__! I O 

185 ~~-PETT~!~I Li_brary_~ook_s_:_ Pet_t:"_~~'.a~ t_ ______________ _ _ I 2,500 I {Z,SOO)r-- 0 I -----1- O 
165 ____ 4]~ 1 Office Supplies J 1.250 I 750 I Z,000 I Z,000 
167 -n{ Periodicals I 200 I i 200 I I 200 
188 ----499 j lather Supplies & lkterials j 1.200 \ ; 1,200_\ ·-:=--=i __ 1,200 

~9-FYZO !_!Other Supplies & M."terials 1--- o I J6 : 36 [ _____ _ C 36 
599 \ !Other Charges I O I 100 ! 100 ! I 100 
711 ! I Furniture and Fixtures I 750 ! I 750 i- - 750 

719-TECH\ JOffice Equipment ____ _ ___ J O j i O I 1, 140 J 1, 140 

719 \! 0fliceEquipment ! sool l 500 1 1,130\ 1,630 

I 20,m I 12.soo)I 18,325 ! 1,3951- 19,720 

1 I I 
- - - ----- -----li·--zo- .-62_5_1 {Z,SOO) i 18,325 i 1,395 i- ----19,720-

1 i i I --r----
19a -~eginning_Fund Balance July 1, 20~0~ Includes Cash on Hand [ __ 1_7,815 l _____ L_ 17,815 l I 17,815 

I !Less PY Encumbrance i i I I J _ ___ _ 

~==rn;_;;;,~~~-o~Han~----- j {50l i--- i [ I 
! !Total Revenue J 18,325 i {2,SOO)! 15,825 I 695 I 

l---l--- ----1-J Total Expenditures I 20,825 i (Z,~~ 1,3_95 J 19,720 
-;-------+-1 Effect on Fund Balance I (2, 500) I 0 r~Ci}i ___ {sOo)l (3 ,000) I 

16,720 

ri L I ! ! _! ____ _ 
15,265 I 0 I 15,265 I (SOC) ! 14,765 

Page 5 of 12 



Budget Commitlcf! Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 

Loudon County 
Public Library Fund 115 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

C I DIE IF I GI H 
I I Public library Fund 11 s I I __J i I 

~=--=lj _____ -_· --~24/21 9:_o2 PM ! 2020-2021 ! 2020_-2021 I Appr;;;~-i-----j ProP_osed-
l I . J Adopted I Approved j Amended 1 Proposed j Amendc-d 

=.==~[[_=-=-~- -- --~----- ------! Budgec i Amendm!_n __ ~~J~!~i:!_ _ _L~mend~~~~_!=-~-':~~ec _ 
400 !_[_______ I L __ __ i _ _ _ L·---1----
:~~ - ---i-! ToTAL REVENUE&. TRANsi'ER5_iH _ _ __ -----f--rn~mf-cs-:S~--3.,3.894i---8951-:l74,1s9 
403 - - ·--- - -- i i-------- ---···- ·--··- - ·· -· ·-- --- -------- --,------i-------i- --- i- - - - -1- - - ----

:~: =-=-~!TOTAL EXPENDITURES _ _ ----- -----------~ 356,20~1-==~~1-- _3_B,]__7:.i:::1=- 1 ,69Ij=-~~·-f!.6-~ 

:~~ -~- - -=i-1 ~FF~C!. .~~- !'.~l!_~~-~--=--- · - ------- ··-- ~-=:-~~~~-1----:==---1===1-----:-~.~2_3_ 

406 ~=~_::_j]~T BEGINNIN~ FUND BALANCE 7/1/20 ---- [ 357,mj ____ l_ 357,560-:-- j 357,560 

409 Lj Less Ca~_?!' Han~nd PY Encumbran~-- ! (177) !_ _ __ __ __ j _____ _ _! _____ L __ _ _ 
410 I I ! I ! j I 
::~ ----i=1~ailabl_e_!:_und Balan~_~.:-~1!_201"f-_ __________ _!~~1-----l----·-f--·---l-·-----

j:j =~~-:lf TI-'~'=~;~~l2~~~~r~~1~[~~. 
•20 ·-----n-·· -------- ·----- ------------- --i- ---- r----- 1------r--- - r-----

~~- --=-1~1==-~=-~- -~=-~~-=~--- -~=~-=~===i====F===F=i==----==1~-=-=== 

PJg'112of 12 



Loudon County Commission 

Budget Amendments 

Highway Department Fund 131 



A 

l i 

Loudon County 
Highway Fund 131 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

C I DIE I F I GI H 

Highway Dept 131 \ I I ! 
· -- ---· ····· -·- ·ri 

~ 
Account ! I 

i - 1 
Number : ! 

-· ----~;~5/20;!- 12:59 ·- . --·- --i- 2020-2oit_i _2020-·202 i A·~·~-,:-o-v~- · ! - i;;~;-~~:-· · - Pr.oposcd 
- - --- ·- - - - ~· · ·- .. ------- - - ·-- - -·-- -----------1------ ---- - ·- - -····------ -·--- --------------- -----------· 

I \ : I 
i Org Bgt ! Amds Amdcd Bgt I Amds i Amdcd Budget 

96 

97 

98 

99 

100 

101 

102 

103 

104 

105 

! - --1-1- ·- - ------- - - ---·--- --

! : 
i . 

----1- - - --- ----- -

i ! 

-- -~~- J ~--~ ----- --

·-·- ·· ·- ,,, ________ .!. _. ______ -· 

' 
' -- i --

__ i __ . -- -- -
i 

·-- __ ; __ ·-· 

· · ----- ----·- ·-· 
l 

- __ ...... .! --
I 

-·-··. _ _ ,, • . ·- ·- - -- ·--· ___ . ___ __ .!_, _ 

_, ___ [_ ----- -- )--------- - ·· 

' ... -- ---·· ----- ---- --
- -· ·- --·- ·---1 
I -, .... - - - I 

·- I - - - . . - .. . : . . : -·· - . - -·-·-··-- - ; -- - - - -·· . . . - - - .. - ·--·· • ·- - ·--·-···-··---·------ - -
48000 10thcr Governments & Citizens Groups' i , I 

·- - . - --------! --.:----··-·- -- . -···- ··· ·- --·-·-- - --·· - -- . - ·- . - . ·- -·-· -- - :.-. --·--- ·-·- - · ·- -- .. . :· ... -·· · - · --- - -· ·-·-···· - · ·-·-. -·--· I. ·-· ··- -~·-- ! -·---·----·- - -·--··----· 
48140-Pl-IIL • !Contracted Services I 0 ! 1 0 · I 0 - - ______ .::- .-.:. _________ -- -- -· ---~----r------ --· ----- , - -- ·--·--· ;- -· ---- --- -- ·· ·- .. ··- ·--- :· ----- ·---- --· 

i I 

---t ·· --·--· --- - · ! --or------·--o-·- - - - . - - -· --·- -· -- .. .. .. -!. 
Total Other Government~ & ~iti~~·~~__§; __ ---·--- Q i o-! 106 

107 

108 

109 

' -- -r----- -· ····1 
-··- ·----- -i-· -- --- - - .. .. --,--

1 • 

110 49-oo-o;-; oi1~e-rSo~r~es ·- · - · - ------i--·--·- - · 

o ; , 

- -~~~;- ~~-·=~~-=--~ r=.---··-·- -·-· -·- -· ' ! 
-' ___ _______ \ ___ _____ __ _ 

i 
0 111 _ _ __ ·-·-·49766! i 1~1suranc~-Recovery · -- ·- . - ·· -·· ·-T-- -·- ·--· 0 ' 

112 49GOO-TRAbi:: .1 ] r;'-C,Z~~ds fro;~~Sal~ of' Cap-itai. A.ss~ts ·- -·· ,- --· .. - - - . 1 · - ···· · - - - ··-- - ---· 9°2,oooT ________ n,000 
113 49600-TRADE -:-Tr.roce~ds f-;·01~1 s~ie .o.f Capftai Assets --·r· ---- - - ;---·--· -- ·--·-------- -i9o:ooaT·-·------ --190~6cia · 
114 ---- ·- ----i--;------- ----- - - -- --- -·-·--·-r--·· ----- - -·--;-·--- ------ ·-r -· · -· ·-- ·--- · --·-----· ·--:--------------
115 - · ··- · - -- -- - ;- i - - ·Toial.othe1:so-~;.~~ - - --- -----1 o : o ! o 2s2,ooo 1 2s2,ooo 
116 : - - - - -- · - - - - ·- - ---r-·- ------·-----·-· ·- : --· - -- · --1 - ·-----·--

... - - .... ... . . ..... - ... ... - ·1 ·-· - .. ··· -- - -· - ··- -----···-· -- -· .. - .... . ·- -----·- --;-
117 Total Revenues I 4,787,225 ! (2,400) \ 4,784,825 282,000 [ 5,066,825 
118 

----·- -i--· - -------·- ---- - ·- ··- - -· ·-· --·----·- ---- - - -

, l I 

Mar 15, 2021 Budget Committee 
Apr 5, 2021 County Commissions Page 4 



A B 

Loudon County 
Highway Fund 131 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

c D E F 

_ --·- -~~ig_l~'_'.ax_ {)~_pt Ul l : ! [ 
G H 

2 

3 

Account 

Number 

3/15/2021 12:59 
-·-r·-- . --- --- -- -- ---··· ---·-·------1- ... --·- - -- ·--· -- .. ··-····· .. ··- -· - .. 

i 2020-2021 : 2020-2021 I Approved ! Proposed Proposed 
···---•-- o;.~Bgt-- ·-·-;--·- Amds·---i-·--Amdcd B-g·t. r -A;;;ds-· -;;dcd-B~dg~t -· ·--·----- ------·--····- - . .. 

. . . ... I._ · ·· --··- ---·... · --··--' ·-· ___ , _ ·-· I __ .. .... .......... .. _!. __ -· · _____ _ 
235 68000 i !Capital Outlay i I i I . .. --· .. -r - -·--------·---- - - - -·-------:------·--· - ---- -·- -·---··-·- . ·--:------- -··-·- :- ---- -·- . - - - -··-. --· ·- -
236 321-BMILK! :Engineering Services i : 0 i 0 
231 -) -2 !:~~fs(; r - : :J ~i1ii~~~;:i~g}ij~-~;;9~s _ .- -·- _: ~- =~=L ~~~-::::.T0~i~~-~ ·: Qi s--:400) ~ =-·= · -24,oQQ~:- _ _ ~ -~-= , __ - ---= ~~=:_)4--:ooo 
238 332-BMILK, :Evaluation and Testing i 350 l i 350 i : 350 
239 - -- 339 l Matci1ings i~~1:e-- ·Aid'iforSTBGP -- --r----- 6,5781 _________ ! _______ 6,51s : -·--- --: ·-·-· ·- -·--G,5ii . 
240 _ 3}9-!3RIDG:_ J M ~t~hi _~g s~~;-e - _ ___ _ = ! -~~----~-- ~-- ~~ij_s-·j_-=~~: -_~I-- . --=·: __ --3,5·1-5 [ _ .. __ · ;· .·- 3;51-5 
241 339-STBGPi !Matching Share ! 5,232 ! (692) i 4,540 I .. ··--4~54·0 -

~:~ --- ]~J-~~~l~~!~~~~~~{~~!~~~ii~ --~---~ ---~-- -~---~:.~~= 1=-~-~-:· ___ j,i35- :-·---·- -- . - . --~~-~---··=--~-! ~~-:~- _:: =-- ---: ··:~ --~-~----=·=---6,_~~~-
244 404-S-TBGr :·· : A~pl~l·t --· I-l.~t -Mix - -- ·-- - : --- 777,llS ;--- ---777,2 18" i . -- : ·- -- ·67,2 1s 
245 409 ' ! c;:t;;h~dSto;e - · ·:-- -- 3,000 i- ----- ---·-----·--·3:000-: - -- -- ,-- -·· ··- 3·~000 
245 105 ' i 81~idg~- con~t1:;1cti·o~ - - i ·- -- 4-10.ooo-· ---- ----!-- -----,ffo~ooo : - -- - -· --- - --41-0,000 
247 - - 70G;· ! B~~ildi n_g _C~~~ti-;1ctio~ ·--··--1·-····- . : T ---· ·-·- ____ "! __ __ -- -- -- · -·- ·-·-·-· ··---·------

248 790 :- i o"ti1~r Equip~~~;r(rl~rte1:) ·· ·· ··--· _T _________ -1···----- - ,-----··-- -o ;------:-------· ··------ 0-
249 711 i ! i\n: 1~i ·;i:;-;:~ -&- Fix.tt;r~s · - - -- ·--i ----- -- -· ·- ·-- ----:-------- ·a !-------·--·------ ·--- --0 
250 7141 : 1 -ligh~vay Eqt;i.pme-nt -· - - - ---- ·- -- ·--·1-00,600 ··· ··--··--· - -T- - - ·iaoJJO"o i · -· - -- ,- -- - - · - ·10·0,06"0 
251 717 ; ! Mai11t~nanc~ ·Eq~ip;n·~nt -- ·-- -----·-- ---··:·------T-·- ···-------oj --·------··1 ·- --- ·· ···-·a -
252 -· - -· 7i.sT J f;rot;-r-V-el~i-c·l~~ -- -· · · · ----------- i- -- ·· io?,i Ii., · · ·· --- - I- -- -- 107: 117 i · (iof1 i-7) i -- --· ··- · ·----ci 
253 . 718-TRADEl--iM~t;;;:y~i~icl ~s - - ------ ··-·-i---·--- ------ -:- ---· -----r ---·- --- --0·;- 1o4:412T·----·-·· 104;4 12 
254 11s~i:.-RADE . l !Viotorvch"~ tes----·---·- -- -; - __________ ! _____ T_ ------- ·-oT -19~391 i _______ - ,-94~39j · 

255 _ ___ ---- 72G i-i st;t~Aid -Pr~j~cts-Add'lforSTBGP . ----- ·-· ·32s,927 ·;-- ---·--·- - · ; ---·--32s,927T-- - · ; -328~92-i 

256 726-S'fAi-o: istate "AiiP;·~j·e~ts ___ - --- - ---- 1 ili6;658 i - ! 2-66,658 i - - ; l66,6ss 
257 726-STBGP; ! st~te Aid P~oj-ect~ ··-· -- ··1 - ··-· -- 229~673_ \ __ (33,9085i - ·-- · 195~7()5·- 1 -------;- - ----- ·1955155 
258 ·-- - - -- · ; :· ----·--·--- ----- -- - - - -- - -·· -·~ i 

' I I ' 

259 T1 T~t~Tc; pit:~! Outlay - -·-- ·- -- --·i----z-;406;803-·j·-- -· (1 n,ooo)T ·2;2"3"3~so3 ·i -. i 9i-,686T ___ 2~425;48"9 
260 - - . !T ___________ -. . . - ·-. -- i---- ------- -r-------.. --·:- ------- -- ! --·--:----- ------ -----· 
261 TOT AL-i-i1c Hw·A. vs - - - - · ·· - ·- ·· -- - -- -·--!- ----4~93<;~359-:·- -· -c1·62,3s9) : -- - «t,773,970 ·1 - "j9} ;6s6 : ·- - --· - 4;965;6s6 -

- - - --· · - · -·- ... --- - --- ----- ..... - --· --···-· · ··- ·--·-· ··- - -----··- --·---· •·· ···-- - -·· ---1····--·- ·-----·- ·---··---·---- ·--
262 I I I . ! I : 
263 ·· · -1 i ··- - --- - ·-- ------, - ---- - - ·- ··· - ··--·· -· --·-- --···-r - - ··--·· -- ····- -- ----- ---·-· 

264 
---i--- -- .. -· 
265 

' ' ' ' 

! i 

---

Mar 15, 2021 Budget Committee 
Apr 5, 2021 County Commissions 

- --- - ··-- --- --
: 

Page 10 



Loudon County 
Highway Fund 131 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

A c D 

____ __I-I igh~::~y _J?~pt 1~1 ____ . 
2 Account 3115/2021 12 :59 

3 
Number ------ - -- --0~:~-B~t - j 

- --- - -- - ·- ·--- - '._! -·- - - ·- ------ - - -- ---· - -· - ----- - ____ L_ -- - - .! 
297 Estimated Total FB June 30, 2020 i 1,090,380 1 

29a -L~~~-Encu~b .. ;,~~~~ - - -r---517,61)-T 

E 

2020-2021 

Amds 

F 

. ~pproved_ 

Amded Bgt 
- ! ___ _ 

! 
' i 

299 Estin;~ted Av;il; ble Restricted Fund Balance July 1, 2020 T. - s7i,7o9 l -- . . - , 
.. . . . -·· - ... -·--1------ --·- -- ·-- --- -· -- --------- - ····-----·-·· 572!70_9 _i 

300 , i ! I 

301 

302 

303 

I --i" . 

304\Total Revenue i 
305 

306 

. - . r-- . . ------··--·· 
i 

l I 
~Tota! '.\va_ilablc ftj nds 

··- -- - - -i· - ---- -----
-·- - ------ ! ·- -- -i----~--=- -- ···- - ____ !_ ----

1 ;_ 
.... ----- -j -- - ·4:737 ,225 (2,400) 1 4,784,825 I - ____ i___ ---- - . ····-··· .. ·- . .. - -- i 

I i 
----·-·- ._ __ ----~,- - --- ·--- - - --- ----------· -- ---·- -- -- . 

-~~- --~ [=?~359,934 i --- ·- -- --(2,400) ' .. - -i-
I 

_5,3_57 ,534 : 

G H 

!'ropos~d __ .. __ ProE_os~~---- 
Amds Amded Budget 

·-·-· - . ·-·- · ----~7_2,709_ 

282,000 : 
- - . -·-·!··- ----~!.o.~~,82~--

·- -! -- -- --· 

_2_82,000 : - -·· - -- - 5,639,5~'!_ 

·----i~-4,93(;~3s9 i- (162;389)! ____ 4,773,910 : 191,686 · 4,965,656 
3081 _ __________ . __ .. ! _L ____ _ 

309 Expenditure Budget 

310 :---~--- _ . . I~\"" 
311 Total Expenditures and Transfer Out 
312 - - · - --· - r r-- --------- · 

~ 
~st!_:l!31te~--~'!din_g __ I.::u_?.? __ 1?~1~~c~ . 

' I 
I ; 

3 s . - ·- T i 

Mar 15, 2021 Budget Committee 
Apr 5, 2021 County Commissions 

-- --,------ - --·- · . _____ i ____ .. . . ·-- ... --- -·--·· ---···------···· -···-
! . ' i - i- 4,936,359. :· · ci62:3s9·);- ·· 4,773,97.o : - 191,68-6 ;----- -- 4,-965,65_6_ 

-----;--- ·"· - -- -- --·:--- · ···· ·---1,-- - ...... - ·-· .... - .. · ·- i ----- -----· -
I ! ; -T-- . 423,515 ! --- ls9:9s9 ;·-·· .. 583,564 ; 9o ,3i«1-i -- ·------ 613,878 

·-----;------······-- ----- · -;--------i·- . - .. .. - ·-·· .. - ·--· ····-- ···----···-

! ! i --· - ----·-- - · ---- · - .. -- -- ·- - ·- - ..... . 

Page 12 



Loudon County Commission 

Budget Amendments 

General Capital Projects Fund 171 



2 

3 

LOUDON COUNTY 
General Capital Projects Fund 171 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

c I DI E I F I G I H 

_: _____ .. _. ___ J_ ~--------------- --- ----- ------·-·-----·- · ·-·--------!---~-----·---!----- ---- - ------- ! ---- ----- -· ·- ----------
! I 1 i 0311s121 i i l i 1 

K 

T - i . . r -! --·- ·-- ----- 3/ 15/21 6:09 PM ___ . -. - · --- --· -·:- 12 020-2021 -r202.o-2021-- r---App7~v-;d-·- p;:;;p;;~~--:---Pr;;-pos~ -·-

~~:aN-;~J1 --i_-_::· =--{~F ~ -- -~-~-=~~~:=--~~--==-~~~ -~--~--~-~~--:·-~---_- 1:~· :. -~::~~~§~=--I=-~~~--=-::::. ~~d:~d~~! -· ·· · -~:~---~~~ ~--·=cE~--d.~~~~g:;_t ~~ 
6 REVENUE I ! ! I ! I : 

-------- --· .. -- . !. ··- _____ [__ ! ______ ---- - ---· - --- - -- - --------------- - --·-·--- ..... .. - - --- --~------------- ------- -·---- - •---

? · 4000 iLocal Taxes . : i ! 
--- ·----· - --- -·--· ··--------------

8 

1 ---~~H~t=li~~;~~~?=!-.a!i~ ---~--~- :~~=-~~--· -=--~ :~~-.:~~~t=J -----~ .. ~on= =r--~ -~-~=~:_ ~~ ·;!f 09--~ _____ _ 
40125 ! !Trustee·s Collections-Bankruptcy j 100 i i 100 i i 

1-11 ::-----~c_-.- _--:: __ ; _· ~~3_af·_: .• ~Te~k~~--i~-~t:~?~~;-'{~ ----~-~--:--=--~:-_ ------ - : ·: ~:-_ ·: 1~]=-:=4:60~ __ __ 1=-::~·:··-~;~:~- ~·~oq__:_~-:~-=---::-.~~~ :~=-4.60~:=-.= 
121 I 40140 : ! Interest and Penalty , i 500 ! ! 500 500 
13 

·· T · 402 :;o ;··· i L~-c~l-Op-tion -Sal~~-T-;x ___ - --- - - - i-i-178~64cl'_ [ _____ _ _ __ T--17s:6-40 ____ __ ______ _ 

lli:-- -·-; - -~-: ~-~-03~l~:~~i~1Yj~~-~~;~-~~: ___ ----- -- --- ··. ------- - ----=--i-;--1 ~6-~-;- -- --~--- -:-- ~~!~~6~- o 18!~~61 
.. -·· --- ···· I -·-------·-··- - - -- . ----··· · ·- -· - -------·- --- ---· - ·- •·- ····- ----- ·--- ---- ··- - ··· ·---- ---- -·-·--- -·· - ·----- -· ... -· ····-- - -- ·· .. - --· . ----------- --·-· 
! i---i· --- --- --- --- - - -. - ·- ------ ·- -· -·--------i--·-:----·--· ---·- _____ L __ . ______ ---L-- --· --· -. --··. ----- - ------ ---- ··-------- -·-·- --·-
1 I ; : r , 

19 
--~-=1~- - ~J ·;- ·--. - - -·-:-:-·-· =:~--:~_:.:~~. -:-~~~--~~ ;=j. - - -- ~ ---. ---· -·-·· ---

lli
CASH TRANSFERS IN FROM OTHER SUBFUNDS . , ; 
- - -- -t·--··----· r-------------------- -- --· - ·-- -- - -- ---- --- ---··-- ' -- - --- ------ ---:- - ------- -

! i i iTransfer in from Subfund 019 . 0 ! . 0 0 ·- - ---·-- ----; --·----,-- -·-:-- - - - - - . - .. . . -- . ------ - ___ , __ - ---- -- ------ :--- - -- -·-- -- · --- -- - - ... . - ·-- ·- -- --- - . --· - ------ ·---·-~-----

: I \ jTransfer in from Subfund BAL I i i 0 0 
23 

24 

25 

26 

-i ; __ - -~ ·j:=~~-===---=------·--_··_ - ---~-~=-=-~:.-_· _ - .... . j . ---- -·-- -- !--- ----,--------- , ______ ____ I __ _____ _ _ _ 
: 'Total Transfers I 0 I 0 . O : O I O 

! I i ! I ! : 
--~ 1---~ -~-1-.--c~:--=:-~:.:--_~=: ~: :~:- - -- -__ ___ -=::_=--------=-:.=·!:~:c::-----=-:-='1i -.=-= ~=--:~ ___ :~-:--=-~ -_ 1 :~ ·=_:--~-~~--_ _-[~ ----==== .~-= 

27 . --T~4§?~ ! oj~~-5-~~i~~~.!B~~: R!~i~~~i -·- _ . ~ ___ ---~ -.. __ _j .1~ -- --=-=---::.=~~:-~ --~--_-_:-c=:::_- -~- :.: :_:-__. ;~ __ -_ ·=~--~~-:=-·=~-====--:== 
28 ; i 49100 i I Bonds Issued i i ! l 0 : 0 

29 - .. , - --- - ·! _~~ -~J<l~~t-ai~~h~:~~--~e-~~u-;~s~:c~;-:~~~:~=~---:~-=----~===:~~- [:_-~ -=-~()_~~~ =-.:i.= ---~- .. -~ l:~===: o _ __ __ : _ ____ ~ ____ _ ~ _ ---~---- ___ 1 

r 1 i ! ( ~ ·--· ·-rr -- - ·· ·-- ------- ------------ ----------- -- -,-- r· -- --------1-·-
··· ·1 ·!TOTAi.-sl.iiiFuNoo21R.EvE'NuE: ______ - -·- - - - - --:· ·-·1--·1·86,261 - -! o 186,261 

1 
o 

·-----·· · -·---i-i~---- -- ·-------------- ---- ----- --···-- - ·· -·- - -· --:··--r-·--- -- - --i ---- -------1- ---------r------
33 

34 

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 

186,261 
- - - ·--· --- - - -· 



A B c 

LOUDON COUNTY 
General Capital Projects Fund 171 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

DI E I FI G 
1 i I I 1 

2 • ---:-·i ·· ------- --- ·--- ·-- o3iisT21 ____ · · ·· · - - ·- ---- ;· ·r-------·-r··------ -r---- --- _i ___ _ _ __ _ 

K 

3 - ___ i____ -r-1-·---------------- 3/15/21 6:09 PM _____ - ---- - - - ·T- 1202o-:2021 -r-2a2·0:20-fr·-·;--.Ap-p;:~~ --;·- F>;:-;;p-.;-~~7· · ----P-rop;;;~- - · 
4 -- --· -;- ·· -- ··· ----j---;-- -·---- ··-·----·--··---- --------- -----------! org Bgt - --i--A md; ·---- i A ;dedSgt- i- - · A:~ci~ · - -· A;;;-d~d B~dg~t-

35 EXPENDITURES : - -i-- r· -···--- · --·- - ------ ----- - ----- -· --:------ -1-·------ -- -----1 ----- --- --- - - -- ··---------·-

~~ ~- ~~-~! ___ s:~9~~ ; 0i~~i~~~f~~~~~~-;;·~~-0-;;;;;;i~~-;:; :. ---~~ ~~~~=~--~- -~~~--~- ;=-~1-=-=-~~-~=r=--===r-=-~~-~ 1 Recycling center 
0 

38 ----- ·· ---: - - ---; Total t.lis~ellan~-~~-Exp·e~-d-itur;; -- - - - -- .. ·T- -! o i o I 
39 

. ·· - - ·· --- -- --- · ·- ···· -----! ·r · __ i ______ i -- ·1[1SMar_OSApr2021J 
0 

40 ---·· - 9i-i1o i GeneralAdministrationProj~~ts ·- ··· - - ·· ·- - - -- --- - - : i- --- ____ i __ _ ······--· i---
--- . - - --··· - ···-------···- -··- ------ - -- ·--- l --- - - ---· '- - --------·-··-' ----------- ---···· · ----··-

41 i 510 l ~ Trustee's Commission i 4,000 i I 4,000 I I/ 4,000 
-· -· : . f · -·-- -· -----·- --------- - ------- --·- - - -··--· ----- - ----- --1-----------·---- - ·-· . ··- ·-· -·-·· --· ---· . ·- -- --- -

42 3 _3~ 1 MAINT . ! ! B_uilding_ Jv'.ai~_t::i.~ce _(~~t~:~s for s~~::i~.1__ _ _____ : _ J _______ __ L --~o__ i ___ 6, 1~~ .. .L . ---- ·-· .... ',., . . -~o.!._~9-
43 399 i ! ; Other Contracted Services (Survey at GB Recycling Cntr) 1 ! I i 0 ; 2,000 I 2,000 
44 718 1 I : vehicle~- -Tr~delnP-rogia~ ---- - - - ---- -: ·· 1 ----- -T--21,ooo __ _ T --21~00 ___ ·:--(21:060)- l- · - -a·---
45 -=,-,-ii -·- -; · : vehi~t~~- : -P~;.~h;i;; --·- --------- -- - - -~---- - -:--i ____ o ____ I ___ · -- -- - :- - -- a· - -- T··-21,0o0- 1~ - ---il:Ooo-

46 - 7i9T --- i. · iotfic-; Eq~jp;;,ent {Laptop··a:l'V-@"An;;-e; )--- - ... -- --- ·-- i- i- - z.324- ---i---------T ---2,:ii.4 ___ - - -P~;~h-;.~~~r- - -i-- --Z, 32_4 __ - · 

47 _____ , ___ 7~1~_-_J_J~flee.Equipme-~i: ---~~--- -~-~--.:-~~-~-~~~--~~~--- -~~-~I ·j =--=-= ~=~:~f~~)~~o9 ___ ... -~ _f260 __ ·_:_ ~ea~~c:::~~ce _L: ~~-=~22_~0==-· .... 
48 _ i 733 i L~TfR _J_ ! ~~i~ding_Purc~a_?_~~_(!'\_:~al_B_u~ldinJl ~.!_t~el_lL_ ___________ __i_~o . ooo __ \____13_._()90 __ ·-· ____ 6}_. ~~o- _ . _ Dept _j 62,000 
49 791 \ COBLDGi i Other Construction j i ! 0 I 0 
50 ·: · · - I · ·; '. ioi:~1- Ge~-er~I A-d~ -i,-~;;Jects"" -- --- ·· ·· -- -- --- i-- : 56,324 ; 42,360 98,684 ; 8,ooo i 106,684 

51 - : - "! -~-_; j-_---~~~- ---~--- --- -·- ·- --~ ~ -~ ·--·-_-- - -~-~- - -!~ - ~ -;~---·- -·- ---~-~.~!- -----------;- ·-------~==·;~-=-==---~ .--- ----------
52 ' 91130 \Public Safety Projects · j I ! I 
53 · ... -7 68 ,s.HERF- r [co-;;;;;,~;;;~atio-~- Eq~ip;;;;~t - - -- - - · - .. -- -------.. ; ·-:---o ______ i _ _______ ··---o -- r ··----- ---- o 

54 ---i.. 118 iEW.. _ i" _! vehictes · ------- -- ---- -- ---------------;--·T---- ·--r·--30,724--· : ----30.724- · - · ! ---3 o"J24 
55 : 71-s !sHERF-i [vehicle;·- - - · ·-------·-i--T---------·i-------·------·- --- · - 5 ·-· -- - [ 1 _ _ ___ __ _ 0 ___ ___ _ 

55 ::=_·:_-i~-~~~:-· ~ci====-=--==-------- =--==-=~:~~=:_:_=~:- -~_:T~:-------i ------- ! o ·-- :· ---- --·--;- ···--a 
57 i i j !Total Public Safety Projects ! , 0 l 30, 724 30,724 i 0 \ 

!: =_ : ''. :~I:~i~~~~~~~i~~,::, ~ ~:_:~=:=- -=-!-~~= =~~~t--== ,:~~ .. 0 •.. ~ =-[ :.-;=:~~--, · -:~ 
51 ' I : I I I l 0 I I 0 

:: ••.•••... '. ~J:~d}:~·~:·~~d ~.,;,~·ec~.=~ ~-~-:~ ~;=;~:.-t = 0 ·t- ,-:.~~ ~ ·:-f~~]_ __ ' .:_ t __ ~ - .:_, 
55 : 911 SO !Social, Cultural ft Recreation Projects I i J ! i l 
55 - -·- . -- 7 ci"8Ts1£i-R"'- i ! 8'mmu~i~;ti on- Eq~-ipm~ffi'(S~curity c1i"'m~r~-;;t · s-~ cni:-r) "i -··i ·----4-.-000---r- -- .. -·- . . ---· · 4;060- -T-------,---;;-;ooo-----
67 ~~~ '. -- ·-=~!~~---~]~- ;·~-~-=~~~ - ---~- -.~----~---~- --_---~~---~~ --~~---~---~~; --; _____________ t ____ - --·-· ··· -- i 
58 i i ! [Total Agriculture ft Natural Resources Projects i ; 4,000 i 4,000 ! i 4,000 

69 -~- ---;-- -~- --J __ ~ _-_--! -~~ ~-~ -~~=- ~ -- _______ --~~- - ~~---~ --~~ --~-~ =-~ ~-__ ~~~---~----~~ ~~~ -=~~~~~-~~=! ·-=~~~~-~-~:~ ~-~---=-~~~~=--·T-~---==---=-=~J ~~~===~=~= 
70 91120 [Administration of Justice Projects 1 l i 1 ! 
11 --i11i sEs5N- rTF"~rniture · --· · · ----- - ·-- - - ---=-=-~~~-==--~-=-=[ __ ---- ·------------- ·--- - --··a· ····----i----------· 

·- --·· j •. - ----··1 72 

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 

[ I Total Adm of Justice Projects 0 0 0 0 

0 

0 

2 



A 

2 

B 

LOUDON COUNTY 
General Capital Projects Fund 171 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

C I DI E I F I G I H I I I J I K 

__ J_·~--~~_j::_· [-_·.~=~--===-=~-frEiEi 1--~~=~-=~~-- ---=i=j===:=:~=:=~\:.==~=~=-~ = _-[_==:~::_-=-= -\ ---=~-~! ~-~----- -= --· =:= __ 

~--_-J-_--] ---~b-~: ------. _____ ]~ ?_!~ 6:0~ :M -=---====~'.=i _:'?~~--!~~-~1:- ~0-1~-~?1 -~!-~~;;~~~v;:t __ J_~Pr:~o:t=::~~ - A;~:~;g~t---~~ ill I i I 1 , 1 I ! ! 
-- -1 - i ~ - -~1·- i ---------- - - -- ·---- -··- -· - --·· ·-- ---- --·---- - -! --r---------------1--··--- -i- - - --- ------1---- - ·- ~ ------- -------- ·-

1 . . ~ _ 1 _ ' _ _ . _ _ . _ . . . _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1 J I __ I _ _ , _ t 

~J __ ~-~ : -9~~~~r~~~;oG~=f~~;1¥~~:~:!~0} e_c~~~- -~~-=~~:~--~--:~~~--~~,- -:-----···------;--------- r·--=:--=--:==F~-=--~---i--~::__-·· o 
m l I I I Total Other General Government Projects : l 0 I 0 I 0 ! 0 ! 0 

74 
75 

78 
79 
80 

81 
82 
83 
84 
85 
86 
87 

--+ - ··;-.:_---=-1)-=-~~-_-:_-___-=---- ~ -· -------·:====:=--!--===r==~~=-~--J-~=---=~-1~=- ~=~~ -:il_ :=·-- - - - -
i I ! 1 l I ---r-r -- -·· ---------· ------ ·-·----- ----------------,-1·-·-··-- ---·-1-- · ---- ·-· ----·-· --- -· ··-----!-------- ,------- ---· 

i 91200 [ Highw~y & Street Capital-Projects - ·· ····- -- - -- - -- -- __ ( ___________ :-- - .. -- i·--- -- -- ---i--------i--. ·--- - --------

!~~ 
1 

. - _ : :+-f ~~~ti~o~t~act;cii~~i-~~ . ____ ~: · .. _: _:_:_ -_- :~~- -_ -· __ ,__ i =-=-·: -~-.:=--F~~=:-~~=--~!-~~ =r----~~=r-=~==--=~:-=-{-~--~ 
718;·------i- iM;torVehicles ---· ·- - ---------------·!-·--·--- - - -i--·-------T--------0 - . -·- 1------· -- ··-j . 0 
-190! ·- :-~ i=r~~~~-:[q~~~~~~t ~ : _____ _--~_::_~=-=-== ~- _=_-:~1------ --- _! ____ -· ·-· ···;--·---o- - ·- -· : ---------- ·- ---: - -- · __ a ___ · -

1 l i !Total Highway and Street Capital Projects j 0 i 0 I 0 I 0 1·- -· 1- r: ·-·- -·- ·--· ·- ·--- . --- ------------:··-:·- ··----i-·--- :· ···---- ·- -···;- -----·-- r·-·--- 0 

r ··-·---- ;-- ---:- - :-- -------··- - - -·---··-- · ·--- - --- - · - - -----------------· -·-- - [~ ------- ·-· ·- -· i----·---; - ---~-- --- ·- - ·i· ----- ·----- -- - - - ·------ -

88 I : 1 ' I i I 

89 I -- !- ----~· 1_- _ :· _ . __ ~ _- --~- - -~ .. ____ ----~~--~~~--- - ----~~-~--~ - ~~--- _; -~- !-~~~~-~~--~~-~- -] .~-~~--~--- -· ·· j ___________ !._ _~-=~ -· ·-· ~- --- --
90 I i i iTOTAL SUBFUND 021 EXPENDITURES t 60,324 I 73,084 ! 133,408 ; 8,000 141,408 
91 --1 -------·r- --;·----·------------·- ---- ---- ----------------'.------ - 1-·-------- ----· ·; -· ·- ·- -- - ----- · -- ·;- · ------ ---- ,_ -----------

92 - --; ---T- ·- i·-·1:.raTAL susFuNo.o21-Ei<PEND 1TuREs----------: · -1---60~324--·i ---73,084 ____ 1-- ·133,-40·8-· - -i-- s.ooo______ 141,408 
93 - -: - -~--! ---~=!J -·_-----------· ---- -----···-· ··---· -- --------·· -.. -=!---_ ---_- --=~--: 1 -·:==-=-·-- -~-~====-~:====:==~=~--- -=-~:=-~=-
94 i : I I I I I I ! 

95 ==_--::_: =- -_~:r~--:: 1 ]- =-=~--=-=~ ----=-=~~--~ =-=-- _-=_--:: -= _-- -; ~I=~--_~_=:_:=J==--~ =--= ==-==-=:-::=.::-_=:_-=_=: = --==~ ==-=--=-
96 SUBFUND 021 SUMMARY: ! : ! i I : 
97 =~ _ ~:-=-- =-[l iieg1~~g j_al_a~ce Ju1y · 1·~-~-~o~=---=-~~=-~~ .::~-~;=__-_!_~=-:-.=i:...=~==..:.r_::_-:::.=----==-r-~--== __-_-=·-----=:1::== ~:~--=-·--;~-~ ~=~-=-~ =:-=-
98 I I ! i I ' 1 ; I 

----- ·- · · · ··- - - --·· ··--· · -·i--- --- - ··-- - - ---- -· ·- ·- .. -····-·------ ---------- ·- ------ --· ··-- - --------r ------------ --------- -- ·r-- - ---·-----1· -- ·· · -· ··-- ---
99 i I _ [ _j ~l~FY_20-21 RevenuePLUSCashfro~-g~~~-r-~s- __ ! J 1~_6! _~6-~ _[ _____ ~ _ ! 186,261 · 0 186,261 

i i I \ I ' 
:·--• ---1-· ·-·--r--;----- · -----·- -- -: ···- -·---------- - -- -- •· : - -•··--- - -- - ·--·- ·: ·-·---·· • - - I 

; I I [Less FY 20-21 Expenditures ; I 60,324 I 73,084 ! 133,408 1 8,000 141,408 
. -- · ---- ·-·-----r-- ·------ _,,_ -·-·- --- -------- - ---- -- -- - ·- ------ ---· - --1--------- --· •-- ------ .. . . -·- - --- - -·-- ·-------- -- ·-- ·-- ·--·-------

! I l ! I ! i I 

100 
101 
102 
103 ! i---- -- f- j"Rev~nueiE:~pens~ Eff~-~t - ·· -- · ··----- -----; - -:-"""1"25:937-- --i---(n,084) -- i ·52;853 _____ j-- (8~oo0j- · -·- - -44;853 --· · ··· 

.;· __ ---~I = -:~I~!~:=~-===--·_ - - . :::·==---=-~=-~ ~ ~ -~-~:::=:=~===:=:==~:---~T---~~~~=:~-~~c====:~ :::--~ :=~==-~=-~ 
I ! l I l \ ' 

104 
105 
106 FY 20-21 Cash transfer In from Subfund 019 0 0 

107 FY 20-21 Cash transfer In from Subfund BAL 0 
0 

0 

; ~: -~~ :-:~:~==~--=t-_-_-_ _:::+~1~_-st-im-~-~~-~~~-~~_:)_o 2~~~S-~bf~~d~~2--1]~i~=c~e--_====1:=: l---1-2 ~-!j-_3- 7-____ -_-+~_-_(7_3~_8_4)_-=l=---~-~~I3-__ -_-j--~-=-(-8~.~-~-0J__ 44, ~5_3 ______ _ 
11 o ' I I : i 1 ; ! , 

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 3 



A B 

2 

LOUDON COUNTY 
General Capital Projects Fund 171 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

C I DI E I F I G I H K 
i I ; 1· I l -i---·1-·-1 --- -·o3i1s12-1 -·--·-··- ··----- -·--f·-1----- -- -1-- ··· · ·- ---···-···-1·-·-··-----i-----··- ·-----

- ----; -----·i-··--·T T ________ _ -·--:iiiS/21-6:09-·p,y;-·---------i-I·- 2020-2021- -i 2020--2021-i--Approved ·T P~~p~-;e;;i · i Proposed 
~ ----~-i-·--i--=1r~-----=~--- ----- · ----------~---~~ -~-----c-::r_ ~-_ org Bgt-~]=- A~ci·~ ---:==i~. -~;;;ded-~i"t=i_ -~-~ : __ Amci;;Js~dg:~~~ 

6401 : I i · I ! I i i : 
641 

642 

643 

644 

645 

646 

647 

648 

649 

650 

651 

652 

653 

654 

655 

656 

657 

658 

659 

660 

661 

662 

663 

------·--·-··1 ·--·-'---- --- ·- - -- - - --· -- -- ___ ,, ________ _ ____ . -- - ---·---·- - ·---- ---- --· _,,., _ ___________ --·--
' i !TOTAL REVENUE i i 1,100, 184 I 355,473 j 1,455,657 ! -----o-; .. ·- 1,455,6 57 . -- -·-·-~---------;- -r--------- -··-·· ·---- --·---- -· - _____ l_ l_ ---- -·- __ __ T .. _ ---- -----i-------·- --i ·----·----· -·- ~ --------------- ·-·-

---~ r~ -~x:r_·~==~---.:-=.~:--=~-==- ~~-· --=-~===:= 1-=:-==-:: __ 1 __ -_··=~~-= - 1-==-=----==~-=-!=-·:==--~-- ~-~---.c~=----=== I I !TOTAL EXPENDITURE/TRFS i ! 1,061 , 567 i 1,728,007 i 2,789,574 i 8,000 : 2,797,574 

= ! =-~ ~~J~~i~~~~~~FERs~~i~: -=~~~-- -~=~--===-;~1==~-=-~J ______ ---! ___ ... ___ ~1----=-=-=~---= l~~~~=-- o-· 
i I I ; ! I I I I -.. ... : . ~1 :=ii"~~~;""'~~~,;-~ ··••·•· •·· . ·.: · ;:·· :-:~,J -~ ''·" 1-~'·'"·'~!:~ ~=~~=: :-F ,~;

0

'.
0

1;~_ :~~ _ 
1-- ----1 -: BEGlNNING FUND .BALANCE ---------------i--- l 4,755,089 !· ----- -----~------ -· . ! : .. ---·- ·-· 

... !:~~r . It~~~~~5:~;~~::0 1"1' 1·?:0 _ .··~· =:~j.l ,~:i::~i-:: ==-=i --:: J~: -... ·=-=- ··· .. 
! I I \ l ! ! ! -i -- i----- i· -i ENDiNG·F-U-ND-BALA-NCE- - -· - .... - - ·- - i --·: 3~9 i5-,433 ! - 11~3-·72;534i f ·-- -2:542,899!- . (s,ooo) ; -· 2~ 5-34,899-

----· ------·:-----,-,---·-·--·----- -~-- ----------- · -·;-·---------·---- -----· ·;·--- - ----·· ---· -- -·' --·- · _______ .. _ 
i l I I ' ! I 

,~ · ~. ~--r~: :_-~r::~-==-=--- -=-·-----===--=~=-~~----r~c::_~~~--~~1===--=-i-=---· - - --~r:~--::=~-::=~:; ---_:=~~==---- ---
T ----T--r · Formula - Beginning Balances (matches total FB per YE) i , 4,755,087 ·----- ------ _j _____ ---·----·-i-----------·-·---·-·:· ·----- ... ---... .. .. -.. -

__ , _ ---- r ~-~1= :·=-==---- ---- --_--==_---=-~-_: ·_ ·:~- .. --=-:-==~=:- ~-~- -::=:.-=-.:-~-= :-.=---=r-------=i-=~J:_-_-_::___=:_-:_:: 
! i i : ! ! · ---r F-~-;:-;;~"i~- ~- rnci~-isaianc~; ---- -- ------- --------- --·- - i- - 3.91s ;43i- ··-- -----·-r---- - - -·· -r-- -- ----- -----

Budget Committee Mar 15, 2021 
County Commission Apr 5, 2021 20 



Loudon County Commission 

Statutory Bond -
Tracy Blair 



SURETY'S BOND NO. 69871793 STATE OF TENNESSEE 
COUNTY OF_L_o_u_d_o_n _______ _ 

OFFICIAL STATUTORY BOND 
FOR 

COUNTY PUBLIC OFFICIALS 
OFFICE OF Budget Director 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

That ................... ""--,].__,_..__._,...._..~---------------------------------------~ 
of Loudon (City or Town), County of ~L .... o""-"'u""d.,,o""n"'-----------------
Tennessee, as Principal, and WESTERN SURETY COMPANY 

as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto THE STATE OF TENNESSEE in the full amount of 
One Hundred Thousand and 00/100 Dollars($100.000 00 ) 
lawful money of the United States of America for the full and prompt payment whereof we bind ourselves, our representatives, 
successors and assigns, each jointly and severally, firmly and unequivocally by these presents. 

WHEREAS, The said Principal was duly ___ elected _X __ appointed to the office of Budget Director 

of and for~L~o~u~d~o~n~-------------- County for the ___ l ___ year term beginning on the 9th day of 
March 2 0 21 and ending on the 9th day of March ~2~0~2=2~--

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH: 

That ifthe said Trac Blair , Principal, shall: 
L Faithfully perform the duties of the office of Budget Director of -L~o~u~d~o~n~----------

County during such person's term of office or his continuance therein; and, 
2. Pay over to the persons authorized by law to receive them, all moneys, properties, or things of value that may come into such 

Principal's hands during such Principal's term of office or continuance therein without fraud or delay, and shall faithfully and 
safely keep all records required in such Principal's official capacity, and at the expiration of the term, or in case ofresignation or 
remw,_· : ·· ·;o~ce, shall turn over to the successor all records and property which have come into such Principal's hands, then 
tJ?Js'~ '.t$htf.l~e null and void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect. 
$~~ ;:~t•""•4U~._, 1 '• t,~-~ ... 

... .:.::Pri...""- .,'· """l"\f;.: •,,,~~. 
~~SS~rn~~arli;t~s-e~sthis 10th day of December 2020 

~~~ fl{'~ 1.";i~ 
;: ~ITNESS -ATTEST-::~ 
~~~. ~ , l --<S 
-:, . ... •• t;,.))~-1>.~ .· A ~ 
~ ;.,.,...,, .... , ~ ~,\.iQ. ,.. ~~ ~ 

NOT NEEDED 
Tennessee Resident Agent 

(Attach evidence of authority to execute bond) 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF PRINCIPAL 

(over) 

RDA 903 



STATE OF South Dakota 
COUNTY OF Minnehaha 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF SURETY 

Before me, a Notary Public, of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared Paul T. Bruflat 
with whom I am personally acquainted and, who, upon oath, acknowledged himself/herself to be the individual who executed the 
foregoing bond on behalf of WESTERN SURETY COMPANY , the within named Surety, a corporation duly licensed 
to do business in the State of Tennessee, and that he/she as such individual being authori:i;ed so to do, executed the foregoing bond 
on behalf of the Surety, by signing the name of the corporation by himself/he~·self as such indivi l. · 
WITNESS my hand and seal this 10th dti.'Jt'4'W~o!l!!~~~~~~!#*----f. 
My Commission Expires: ~1 p DAHL 
---------~J~u=n=e~l~B~. 2025 - · • -~--l.~-~~~:.:...,.,=------

~ =~~~~ 

APPROVAL AND CERTIFICATION 

SECTION I. (Applicable to all County Officials except Clerks of all Courts) 

Bond and Sureties approvei:l. by 
of LOVibON 

C,vbb( ~l"tcl..i> SHAW , County Executive/Mayor 

County.on t~yof •§C>\>v"'k~ , 'Z.O?.l _ 

' c£~-.,,, Signod• ( ~ 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, , County Clerk of ________________ County, 
hereby certify that the foregoing bond was approved by the Legislative Body of said county, in open session on the --------
day of , and entered upon the minutes thereof. 

Signed: · 

County Clerk 

SECTION II. (Applicable to all Clerks of all Courts) 

CERTIFICATION: 
This is to certify that I have examined the foregoing bond and found the same to be sufficient and in conformity to law, that the 
sureties on the same are good and worth the penalty thereof and that the same has been entered upon the minutes of said court. 

SECTION III. (Applicable to all County Officials' Bonds) 
FOR USE BY REGISTER OF DEEDS 

SECTION IV. (Applicable to all County Officials Bonds) 

ENDORSEMENT: 

Signed: 

Judge of the __________ Court of and for said County on 
this _____ day of ________ , ---· 

Filed with the Office of the County Clerk, County of _______ , this ____ day of _____________ _ 

Signed: 

Form Prescribed by the Comptroller of the Treasury, State of Tennessee 
Form Approved by the Attorney General, State of Tennessee 

CT-0467 (Rev 07-13) 

County Clerk 

WESTERN SURETY COMPANY 
101 s. Reid St., Ste. 300 
Sioux Falls, SD 57103-7046 
800-331-6053 



Western Surety Company 
POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS_: 
That WESTEF<N SU_RETY COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of South Dakota, and 

authorized arid . licensed to dobusiness in the States of Alabarria, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California , Colorado, Connecticut, 
Delaware, District of Columbia, Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, 
Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersey, 
New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina, 
South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia, Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin, Wyoming, and the United 
States of America, does hereby make, constitute and appoint 

________ P_a_u_l_T_._B_r_u_f_l_a_t ________ ~of ______ S_i_o_u_x __ F_a_l_l_s ___________ ~ 

State of South Dakota , its regularly elected Vice President 
as Attorney-in-Fact, with full power and authority hereby conferred upon him to sign, execute, acknowledge and deliver for and on 
its behalf as Surety and as its act and deed, the following bond: 

One_Budget Director County of T.ol!don 

bond with bond number --'6"'""'"9"""8_,_7_,,,1'""'7-"9~3,__ _______________________________ _ 

forTr Blair 
as Principal in the penalty amount not to exceed: _$1 o o . o o o o o 

Western Surety Company further certifies that the following is a true and exact copy of Section 7 of the by-laws of Western Surety Company 
duly adopted and now in force, to-wit: 

Section 7. All bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney, or other obligations of the corporation shall be executed in the corporate 
name of the Company by the President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, or any Vice President, or by such other officers as the 
Board of Directors may authorize. The President, any Vice President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or the Treasurer may appoint 
Attorneys-in-Fact or agents who shall have authority to issue bonds, policies, or undertakings in the name of the Company. The corporate seal is 
not necessary for the validity of any bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation. The signature of any 
such officer and the corporate seal may be printed by facsimile. 

In Witness Whereof, the said WESTERN SURETY COMPANY has caused these presents to be executed by its 
Vice President with the corporate seal affixed this 10th day of December 

2020 

ATTEST 

a.u~ 
A. Vietor, Assistant Secretary 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA} 
SS 

COUNTY OF MINNEHAHA 

Paul T. Br. at, Vice President 
\11\~\l\lllll!!:~, .. ,. 

.. ~ .. .re~R!E u ~"' <i"i,,,.,. 
~~ '"2.1 •••• u •••• ~ '1~ 

,s;~ ,... · .. ... o-;;., 
S' ~ .. -.. · \) 0 Pl> "·· ,,.z "'!;. 
~ ft..1.11 :" ~· YT4 ~ -.. ~,,.~ 
~.,,.,. : ~ ..-:,,/''\\,>:; 
=~ : (i ~ ; }?>:.: 
=UFA ~ : z~ 
~ ~\ a:~ I\ - / :;J:fj 
-:.* ·.~£/>.·'7 ·· "" ... 
~ ~..... ··"°A.~$ 
'O(j:;;;·· .. ··· · ~-~O ~,.i,' 

'11,~ ! i~J ti~~~ .. '1..'-" 
44~dJmm1a~n 

On this 1 O th day of December 2 o 2 O , before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
Paul T Bn1flat and A Vietor 

who, being by me duly sworn, acknowledged that they signed the above Power of Attorney as Vice President 
and Assistant Secretary, respectively, of the said WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, and acknowledged said instrument to be the 
voluntary act and deed of said Corporation. 

+ .............................................. ~ ........... ~. 

I P. DAHL 
~ NOTARY PUIUC ~ 
~ SOOTH DAKOTA ~ 
""'""...,..._,"""¥11~....,."""""'""''t't+MY Commission Expires June 18, 2025 

Form F1975-12-2019 

Notary Public 



Loudon County Commission 

Bonds and Notaries 



Loudon County Clerk 
Carrie McKelvey 

101 Mulberry Street Ste 200 

Loudon, Tennessee 37774 

Notaries to be elected April 05, 2021 

Darlene Alexander 

Cinda G. Bivens 

Cassie Boring 

Karen J. Churchwell 

Cindy Cornelius 

Melanie Crowder 

Janet Jones 

Dana L. Kelley 

Debbie Kirpec 

Dawn Mackey- Wilson 

Michael W. McBroon 

Allison H. Mcconkey 

Clarence W. Minor 

Tina Parris 

Joel E. Pearman 

Adam Strachn 

Ashley N. Vandyke 

Rebecca Wallace 


	Commission Packet Part 1 - 04052021
	Commission Packet Part 2 - 04052021

